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VIETNAM PETROLEUM CONSTRUCTION JOINT Ha Noi, ngay 07 thang 05 nam 2025
STOCK CORPORATION Ha Noi, day 97 month 05 year 2025

sé/No.: 7 IXLDK-TCKT

CONG BO THONG TIN BAT THUONG
Extraordinary Information Disclosure
Vé viéc Thong bao moi tham du Pai hi dong c6 dong Thwong nién nim 2025
va Thong bao Dé cir/itng cir/gi6i thiéu nhan sy tham gia HPQT va Ban Kiém soat
Regarding the Notice of Invitation to Attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders and the Notice of Nomination/Candidacy/Recommendation of Personnel
for the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors

Kinh gui/To: Sé Giao dich Chung khoan Ha Ngi/Hanoi the Stock Exchange.

1. Tén don vi/ Name of Organization: Tong cong ty Cé phan XAy lip Dau khi Viét Nam
(PETROCONS)/ Vietnam Petroleum Construction Joint Stock Corporation

2. Ma ching khoan/ Stock Code : PVX

3. Try so chinh/ Head Office: Tang 14, Toa nha Vién Dau khi, s6 167 phb Trung Kinh,
Phuong Yén Hoa, Quan Cau Gidy, Thanh phd Ha Noi/ 14th Floor, Vietnam Petroleum
Institute Building, No. 167 Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi
City, Vietnam.

4. bién thoai/ Telephone :04.37689291 Fax: 04.37689290

5. Ngudi thyc hién cong bd thong tin/ Person Responsible for Information Disclosure:
Ngo6 Thi Thu Hoai/ Ms. Ngo Thi Thu Hoai.

6. Dia chi thuong tri/ Permanent address: khu tap thé Nghia Tan, Ph. Nghia T4n, Quin
Cau Gidy, TP Ha Noi/ Nghia Tan Residential Area, Nghia Tan Ward, Cau Giay District,
Hanoi City.

7. Bién thoai (di dong, co quan, nha riéng)/ Phone (mobile, office, home): 04.37689291
Fax: 04.37689290

8. Loai cong b thong tin/ Type of Information Disclosure:

24 gioy 72 gioy Yéu cau/ Bit thuong Dinh ky

24h 72h Request Extraordinary Periodic

9. Noi dung cua thong tin cong bd/ Content of Information Disclosure:

Ngay 06/5/2025, Hoi dong quan tri Tong cong ty Co phan Xay lél‘p Dﬁq khi Viét Nam
c6 Thong bao s6 36/TB-XLDK vé viéc Moi tham du hop Pai hoi dong c6 dong thuong
nién nam 2025 va Thong lgéo SO 37/TB-?(LDK ve Viég DQ cu/ung ’cir/g‘i(')’i thiéu nhan su
tham gia HDQT va Ban kiém soat ctia Tong cong ty C6 phan Xay lap Dau khi Viét Nam/
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On May 6, 2025, the Board of Directors of PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock
Corporation issued Notice No. 36/TB-XLDK regarding the Invitation to Attend the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and Notice No. 37/TB-XLDK regarding the
Nomination/Candidacy/Recommendation of Personnel for the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors of PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation.

Theo d6, Thoi gian t6 chirc Pai hoi: bit dau tir 8h00; thtr nim, ngay 29/5/2025/
Accordingly, the General Meeting is scheduled to begin at 08:00 AM on Thursday, May
29, 2025.

Céc thong tin khac duoc thong bao chi tiét tai Thong bao. Cac tai liéu lién quan dén
dai hoi, PETROCONS di ding tai trén website ctia Tong cong ty C6 phan X4y lap Dau khi
Viét Nam / Other relevant information is detailed in the Notices. Documents related to the
General Meeting have been published by PETROCONs on the official website of
PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation.

10. bia chi Website dang tai ngi dung CBTT cua PetroCons/ The website address for
PetroCons' information disclosure: http://www.pvc.vn hoac/ or http://www.petrocons.vn./
Ching t6i xin cam két cac thong tin cong bd trén day 1a dung sy that va hoan toan chiu
trach nhiém truéc phap luat vé ndi dung cac théng tin cong bé/ We hereby certify that
the disclosed information above is true and accurate, and we take full responsibility
before the law for the content of the disclosed information.

Noi nhin/Recipients: NGUOI PUQC UQCBTT
- Nhu trén/As mentioned above; Authorized Person for Information
- HDBbQT/BOD, BKS/BOS (e-copy); Disclosure

- Ban TGD/ Executive Board (e-copy);
- Nguoi PT QT kiém thu ky Céng ty/CGO-
CS (e-copy);
- BanPC/LD (_Q@w)/ /
- Luu HDQT/Archived by the BOD, /
VT/OD, TCKT-KT/ FAD; Ngo Thi Thu Hoai
Ms. Ngo Thi Thu Hoai

Dinh kem:
- Théng bdo s6 36/TB-XLDK/ Notice No. 36/TB-XLDK;
- Théng bdo s6 37/TB-XLDK/Notice No. 37/TB-XLDK;
- Du thao Tai ligu DPHDPCDTN 2025/draft document 2025 annual general meeting of
shareholders;
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CO PHAN XAY LAP DAU KHI VIET NAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION

Ha Néi, ngay O6 thang 5 nam 2025

JOINT STOCK CORPORATION Ha Noi, May0& 8 025

Sé: 36 /TB-XLDK
No: 36 /TB-XLDK

THONG BAO/ NOTICE
V/v: M&i tham duw hop Pai hoi dong b dong thwong nién nim 2025
ciia Téng cong ty Co phan Xay lip Dau khi Viét Nam
Re: Invitation to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of Petroviemam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Kinh gii  : Quy C6 dong Tong cong ty C6 phan Xay lip Dau khi Viét Nam
To : Valued Shareholders of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Hoi ddéng quan tri Téng cong ty Cé phan Xay lap Dau khi Viét Nam
(PETROCONSs) tran trong thong bao va kinh moi Quy C6 dong dén tham dy phién
hop Pai hoi dong ¢b dong thuong nién nam 2025 (Pai hoi) cia PETROCONS, cu
thé nhu sau:

The Board of Directors of Petroviemam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (PETROCONS)
respectfully announces and invites you to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (the
General Meeting) of PETROCON', specifically:

1.  Thoi gian: 8h00, ngay 29/5/2025 (Thir nim)
Time: 8:00 a.m., May 29, 2025 (Thursday)

2. Dia diém: Tang 12, Toa nha Vién Dau khi Viét Nam, sé 167 phé Trung Kinh,
phuong Yén Hoa, quan Cau Giay, Ha N¢i, Viét Nam.
Verue: 12" Floor, Vietmam Petroleum Institute Building, No. 167, Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa
Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi, Vietmam.

3. Diéukién tha’m d: Cac C6 dong hoaf: Dai dién iy quyén cia cac Co dong theo
danh sach chot ngéy 28/04/2025 do Tong cong ty Luu ky va Bu trir Chirng khoén
Viét Nam cung cép.
Participation conditions: Shareholders or their authorized representatives named in the list made on
April 28, 2025 provided by Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation.

4. Noi dung chinh cua Dai hdi:
Main contents of the General Meeting:

4.1. Béo cao hoat dong ctia Hoi dong quan tri nam 2024 va Ké hoach hoat dong
nam 2025.
Béo céo cua Thanh vién dgc lap HDQT vé hoat dong cia HPQT.
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4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Directors and the 2025 Operation Plan.

Operation Report of the Board of Directors by the Independent Member of Board of Directors.

Bao céo két qua hoat dong san xuat kinh doanh nam 2024 va ké hoach san xuét
kinh doanh nam 2025.

The 2024 income statement and the 2025 production and business plan.

Béo cdo hoat dong cua Ban Kiém soat nam 2024 va Ké hoach nam 2025.

The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Supervisors and the 2025 Operation Plan.

T& trinh vé viéc thong qua Béo cdo tai chinh da duoc kiém todn nam 2024 va
Phuong an phén phoi 1gi nhudn nam 2024.

Report on approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan.

. To trinh vé viéc lya chon Cong ty kiém toan Béo cdo tai chinh nam 2025.

Report on selecting an Auditing Firm for the 2025 Financial Statements.

To trinh vé viée quyét toan tién lwong, thu lao nam 2024 va phuong 4n luong.
thu lao ndm 2025 ctia Hoi dong quan trj va Ban Kiém soat.

Report on settling salaries and remuneration 2024 and the salary and remuneration plan 2025 of
the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors.

To trinh vé viée uy quyén cho HPQT phé duyét ké hoach SXKD 5 nim giai doan
2026-2030 cua PETROCONS.

Report on authorizing the Board of Directors to approve the 5-year production and business plan
for the 2026-2030 period of PETROCONS.

T& trinh vé cong tac nhan sw Hoi déng quan tri/Ban kiém soat thudc thim quyén
ctia Pai hoi ddng cb dong.

Report on personnel affairs of the Board of Directors/ Board of Supervisors under the authority of
the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Xac nhan tham du Pai hoi:

Confirmation of attendance at the General Meeting:

Dé cong tac td chire Pai hdi duge chu déo, dé nghi Quy C6 dong thuc hién thu
tuc xac nhén truc tiép tham du Dai hoi hodc ty quyén cho nguoi khac tham duw
Dai hoi (theo mau giri kém Thu moi hop hoiic mau trén website cia
PETROCONS) va giri vé PETROCONS theo duong buu dién hodc giri Fax s6
0243.7689290 trudc 13h00 Thir hai ngay 26/5/2025.

In order to organize the General Meeting in a thoughtful manner, Shareholders are requested to
carry out the procedures of directly confirming their attendance at the General Meeting or
authorizing another person to attend the General Meeting (in the form attached to the Meeting
Invitation or the form on PETROCONSs website) and send it to PETROCONS by post or via fax
number 0243.7689290 before 13:00 on Monday, May 26, 2025.

Cd déng hodc Ngudi dugc iy quyén dén Pai hdi can mang theo céc gidy to sau:
Shareholders or their Authorized Persons attending the General Meeting must bring the following
documents:

Thong bao moi hop/Thu maoi hop;

Meeting invitation/Meeting invitation letter;



Thé cin cude cong dan hodc hd chiéu (ban gbc);

Citizen identity card or passport (original);

Gidy uy quyén (ban chir ky gbc) c6 cac ndi dung chinh theo mau do
PETROCON:S ban hanh (trurong hgp nhéan uy quyén tham du Dai hoi).
Authorization letter (original signature) with main contents in the form issued by PETROCONS (in
case of the authorization to attend the General Meeting).

Céc tai liéu lién quan dén Pai hoi, cic mau gidy xac nhan/iy quyén va céc tai
liéu khac dugc dang tai trén website cia PETROCONS theo dia chi: http:/pvc.vn
hodc http://petrocons.vn. Dé bao vé moi truong, tat ca cac tai liéu tai Dai hoi sé
sir dung ban mém, PETROCONS han ché vé sé luong in tai liéu ban cing.

Documents related to the General Meeting, confirmation/authorization forms and other documents
are posted on PETROCONs' website: hitp:/pvevn_or_hitp:/petroconsyn. To protect the
environment, all documents at the General Meeting will be in soff copy, PETROCONS limits the
number of printed hard copies.

Moi chi tiét lién quan dén Dai hoi, Quy ¢ dong vui long lién hé:

For any details related to the General Meeting, please contact: g
ING

Téng cong ty Co phan Xay lép Déu khi Viét Nam e

Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Ban Tb chirc Pai hoi dong ¢ dong thudng nién nam 2025
Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders P
Dia chi: Tang 14, Toa nha Vién Déau khi Viét Nam, s6 167 Phé Trung Kinh,
Phuong Yén Hoa, Quén Cau Gidy, Thanh pho Ha No6i, Viét Nam.

Address: 14" Floor, Vietnam Petroleum Institute Building, No. 167, Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa
Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

Moi chi phi an &, di lai, cc chi phi khac do C6 dong ty trang trai.
All accommodation, travel and other expenses shall be borne by Shareholders.
Tran trong thong béo./.

Yours Sincerely./.
Noi nhan/Sent to: TM. HOI PONG QUAN TRI
- Nhur trén/As above; CHU TICH

- HPQT, BKS (dé biét); FOR AND ON BEHALF

Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors (for P
information); ,/ 5

- BTC PHPCP PETROCONS (dé t/h); s
Organizing Committee of PETROCONs General

Meeting of Shareholders (for implementation);

- Lvu: VT, HDQT, PC.

Kept at: Archives Department, Board of Directors,
Legal Department. e E_,

3OARD OF DIRECTORS

" TONG
ONG TY CO PHAK

ghiém Quang Huy
Nghiem Quang Huy
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CERTIFICATE OF ATTENDANCE/ATTENDANCE AUTHORIZATION
Re: Attendance at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Kinh giri: Tong cong ty Co phan Xay l:'ip Dau khi Viét Nam
To: PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

Tén c6 dong/Shareholder s name:

...............................................................................................................................
...............................................................................................................................

.............................................................................................................................

5 TS L0 6 E ST R S L st e N e WO Y i SR R B0 -l e,y S Wt )
SO ¢ phin s& hitWNumber of held SHAres:............cceeieieeeeieeeseesseeeeeeemeeeeeeseeens c6 phin/shares
(BEANG CRUIN WOPAS:............oeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e e et eeneeee e e eae s )

1. Xdc nhan tham dw/Participation confirmation

D Téi xéc nhan s& tham du cude hop Pai hoi dong ¢ dong thudng nién nam 2025 cia Tong cong ty
Cb phan Xay l4p Déu khi Viét Nam.

1 confirm that I will attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Petrovietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation.

2. Uy quyén tham dw Pai hi/dttendance authorization:

ID Card/Citizen identity card No... ... ... .. cc. e coecco BSSUCA OMc. e oo e e e e i e e e e e e e e e e s
T S et D e N NSO S WU O ol O . |- oo SRR SR B el

SR Ol o rih L o v e s arseos b s sep s sses s sy v er el T e T e S e o e S e
S0 €O PhAN UY QUYEN: .evvennrrnnrrenennarennans cO phan (BANg Chil:.......eeee e, )

Number of authorized shares: ... ......................shares (IN WOPAS: ............cccc o iovvveiiie e i)

2.2. Hoic tty quyén toan b s6 ¢d phin ma cb dong sé hitu cho mét trong bén thanh vién Hoi dong quén tri
Téng cong ty C6 phan Xay lip Dau khi Viét Nam c6 tén dudi déy:

Or authorize all shares owned by the shareholder to one of the four members of the Board of Directors of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation named below:




D Ong: Nghiém Quang Huy - Chii tich Hoi dong quan tri
Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy - Chairman of Board of Directors
|:| Ong: Chu Thanh Hai - Thanh vién Hgi dong quan tri
Mr. Chu Thanh Hai - Member of Board of Directors
E' Ong: Trin Hai Bing - Thanh vién Hji dong quan tri
" Mr. Tran Hai Bang - Member of Board of Directors
E‘ f)ng: Nguyén Hoai Nam - Thanh vién Hji ddng quin tri
Mr. Nguyen Hoai Nam Member of Board of Directors

2.3. Nogi dung uy quyén/Authorization contents:

Bén nhén uy quyén duoc dai dién cho Bén uy quyén thuc hién viéc tham du Pai hoi dong co
dono thudong nién nam 2025 cua Tong cong ty C6 phén Xay lap Dau khi Viét Nam va thuc hién moi
quyen loi va nghia vu tai Dai hoi dong cb déng lién quan dén s6 ¢b phén uy quyén.

The Authorized may represent the Authorizer to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation and exercise all rights and obligations
related to the authorized shares at the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Chung t6i cam két tuan thu nghiém chinh céc quy dinh cta Diéu 1é t6 chirc va hoat dong cua
Tong cong ty Co phan Xay lap Dau khi Viét Nam va chiu moi trach nhiém truée phéap ludt vé viée thuc
hién uy quyén nay.

We undertake to strictly comply with the organizational and operational charter of Petrovietnam

Construction Joint Stock Corporation and take the sole responsibility to the law for the implementation of this
authorization.

............... . ngc‘zy........thdng......ndm 2025

day.. ..month.........2025
NGUOI PUQC UY QUYEN CODPONG
(Ky va ghi ré ho tén) (K va ghi ro ho tén, dong diu néu i té chikc)
THE AUTHORIZED SHAREHOLDER
(Signature and full name) (Signature and full name, seal if the shareholder is an
organization)

Ghi chu/Notes:

Ngudi dugc uy quyén khi di dw Dai hji can mang theo Thu moi hop/Thong bdo moi hop, Ban gde Gidy 1ty quyén va ban goc
CCCD/hé chiéu.

The Authorized must bring the Meeting Invitation/Meeting Notice, the original Power of Attorney and the original ID card/passport with him/her
when attending the General Meeting.

MGi ¢é dong chi dwge 1ty quyén 01 ldn Nguoi diege ity quyén khong duoc iy quyén lai cho ngudi khdc.

Each shareholder can only authorize once. The authorized cannot re-authorize to another person.

Néu bén 1ty quyén la té chirc thi phai cé chit ky ciia nguoi dai dién phdp ludt ciia 16 chirc va dong ddu ctia t6 chire

If the Authorizer is an organization, the signature of the organization’s legal representative and the organization’s seal are required.




TAP POAN CONG NGHIEP - NANG LUGNG CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

QUOC GIA VIET NAM Déc lap - Tu do - Hanh phic
VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
. L TONG CONG TY, Independence- Freedom-Happiness
CO PHAN XAY LAP DAU KHI VIET NAM
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THONG BAO/NOTICE
Pé cir/irng cir/gii thi¢u nhan sy tham gia Hoi dong quan tri va Ban Kiém soit ciia
Tong cong ty Co phan Xay lap Dau Khi Viét Nam
Re: Nominating/running for election /recommending personnel to the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors of Petroviemam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Kinh giri: Quy c6 dong
To: Valued shareholders

Can cir Luat Doanh nghiép s6 59/2020/QH14 da dwoc Qudc hdi nude Cong hoa xa
hdi chu nghia Viét Nam thong qua ngay 17/06/2020;

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 59/2020/QH14 adopted by the National Assembly of
the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Can ctr Nghi dinh s6 155/2020/ND-CP ngay 31/12/2020 cia Chinh phu quy dinh
chi tiét mot s6 diéu cua Luat Ching khoan (Nghi dinh 155);

Pursuant to the Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 by the
Government detailing some articles of the Law on Securities (Decree No. 155);

Cin cir Thong tu sé 116/2020/TT-BTC ngay 31/12/2020 cia Bo tai chinh hudng
dan mot s6 diéu vé quan tri Cong ty ap dung ddi véi cong ty dai chung tai Nghi dinh s6
155/2020/ND-CP ngay 31/12/2020 cua Chinh phu quy dinh chi tiét thi hanh mot sb diéu
cua Luét Chung khoan (Thong tu 116);

Pursuant to the Circular No. 116/2020/TT-BTC dated December 31, 2020 by the Ministry
of Finance guiding some articles on corporate governance applicable to public companies in the

Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 by the Government detailing some
articles of the Law on Securities (Circular No. 116);

Can ctr Diéu 1& T6 chirc va hoat dong ciia Téng cong ty C6 phin Xay 1ip Dau khi
Viét Nam;

Pursuant to the organizational and operational Charter of Petrovietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation;

Hién nay, Tong cong ty C6 phan Xay lip Dau khi Viét Nam (PETROCONs) da
thuc hién chdt danh séch cé dong dé thuc hién quyén tham du Pai hoi dﬁ"mg cb dong
thuong nién nam 2025 (Pai hoi), du kién dugc té chirc vao ngay 29/5/2025. Pén thoi
diém té chic Pai hoi, ¢6 02 thanh vién Hoi déng quan tri (HPQT) (bao gdm 01 thanh
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vién HDQT va 01 thanh vién doc lap HPQT); 01 thanh vién Ban Kiém soat (BKS) hét
nhiém ky 05 ndm (2020-2025) va 01 thanh vién Ban Kiém soat (BKS) do cb dong lon
Tap doan Cong nghiép — Nang luong Qudc gia Viét Nam thoi khong tiép tuc gidi thidu
lam thanh vién BKS. Do vay, dé cong tac kién toan nhidn su HPQT va BKS cua
PETROCONs duoc hoan thién, bing vin ban nay PETROCONSs thong bdo t6i Quy ¢o
déng cia Tdng cong ty vé viéc tmg cir, dé cir nhan sy tham gia HDQT va BKS cua
PETROCONS, cu thé nhu sau:

Currently, Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (PETROCONs) has
finalized the list of shareholders to exercise the right to attend the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders (GMS), scheduled to be held on May 29, 2025. By the time of the GMS, there
are 02 members of the Board of Directors (BOD) (including 01 member of the BOD and 01
independent member of the BOD); 01 member of the Board of Supervisors (BOS) whose 5-year
term (2020-20235) has expired and 01 member of the Board of Supervisors (BOS) is ceased to be
nominated by major shareholder, Vietnam National Industry-Energy Group. Therefore, in order
to perfect the personnel of the BOD and BOS of PETROCONs, PETROCONS s hereby notifies you
of the candidacy and nomination of personnel to the BOD and BOS of PETROCONE,
specifically:

1.  S6 lwong thanh viéen HPQT, BKS cin bau

Number of members of BOD, BOS to be elected

- S6 luong thanh vién HDQT : 02 thanh vién, trong do:

Number of members of the Board of Directors : 02 members, including:
Thanh vién HDQT : 01 thanh vién;
Member of Board of Directors s : 01 member;
Thanh vién d¢c lap HDQT : 01 thanh vién.
Independent members of the Board of Directors : 01 member.

- S6 lugng thanh vién BKS : 02 thanh vién.
Number of members of the Board of Supervisors : 02 member.

- Nhiém ky cua thanh vién HDQT, BKS : 5 nam (2025-2030)
Term of office of members of the BOD, BOS S years (2025-2030)

2. Tiéu chuin va didu kién 1am thanh vién Hji ddng quén tri (HDQT)/Ban Kiém
soat (BKS)

Standards and conditions for members of the Board of Directors (BOD)/Board of Supervisors (BOS)
2.1. Tiéu chuén va diéu kién lam thanh vién HPQT
Standards and conditions for a member of the Board of Directors
a) Co6 ning luc hanh vi dan sy day di, khong thudc déi tuong khong dugc quéan ly
doanh nghiép theo quy dinh tai khoan 2 Diéu 17 cia Luat doanh nghi¢p;
Having full civil act capacity, not being a person who is not allowed to manage an
enterprise as prescribed in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Enterprise Law;
b) Cé trinh do chuyén moén, kinh nghiém trong quan tri kinh doanh hoéc trong linh
vuc, nganh, nghé kinh doanh ctia Téng cong ty va khong nhét thiét phai la c6 dong
clia Tong cong ty;




d)

Znde

Having professional qualifications and experience in business administration or in the

field, industry or business of the Corporation and not necessarily being a shareholder of

the Corporation;

Khong duogc dong thoi 1a thanh vién Hoi dong quan tri tai qua 05 Cong ty khéc;

Not being a member of the Board of Directors at more than 05 other companies at the same time;
Khong duoc 1a nguoi c6 quan hé gia dinh ciia Tong giam ddc va ngudi quan 1y khéc
ctia Tong cong ty; ciia ngudi quan 1y, nguoi c6 tham quyén bd nhiém ngudi quan ly
cong ty me.

Not being a relative of the General Director and other managers of the Corporation; of the
manager, the person with the authority to appoint the manager of the parent company.

Tiéu chuin va diéu kién lam thanh vién déc 1ap HDQT

Standards and conditions for an independent member of the Board of Directors

Ngoai dap tng cac quy dinh tai Khoan 2.1 néu trén, thanh vién doc lap HDQT con

phai ¢6 cdac tiéu chuan va diéu kién sau:

In addition to meeting the provisions of Clause 2.1 above, an independent member of the

Board of Directors must also meet the following standards and conditions:

a)

b)

d)

€)

Khéng phai 1a ngudi dang 1am viée cho Tong cong ty, Cong ty con cia Tong cong
ty; khong phai 1a nguoi da timg lam viéc cho Tong cong ty, Cong ty con cua Tong
cong ty it nhat trong 03 nam lién trudc do;

Not being a person currently working for the Corporation or a subsidiary of the
Corporation; not being a person who has worked for the Corporation or a subsidiary of
the Corporation for at least the previous 3 consecutive years;

Khéng phai 12 nguoi dang huong lwong, thi lao tir Tong cong ty, trir cac khoan phu
cap ma Thanh vién HPQT duoc hudng theo quy dinh;

Not being a person receiving salary or remuneration from the Corporation, except for
allowances that a member of the Board of Directors is entitled to receive according to the
regulations;

Khong phai 1a ngudi c¢6 vo hodc chdng, bd dé, bé nudi, me dé, me nudi, con dé, con
nuéi, anh rudt, chi rudt, em rudt 1a cd dong 16n ciia Toéng cong ty; 1a ngudi quan ly
ctia Tong cong ty hodc cong ty con ciia Tong cong ty;

Not being a person whose wife or husband, biological father, adoptive father, biological
mother, adoptive mother, biological child, adopted child, biological brother, biological
sister, biological sibling is a major shareholder of the Corporation; a manager of the
Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation;

Khéng phai 1a nguoi truc tiép hodc gian tiép so hiru it nhat 01% tong sb ¢d phan c6
quyén biéu quyét ciia Tong cong ty;

Not being a person who directly or indirectly owns at least 01% of the total number of
voting shares of the Corporation;

Khong phai 12 ngudi da timg lam Thanh vién HDQT, Ban Kiém soat ciia Tong cong
ty it nhét trong 05 (ndm) nim lién trudc do, trir truong hop duge bd nhiém lién tuc
02 (hai) nhiém ky.
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2.5.

b)

d)

g

h)

Not a person who has been a member of the Board of Directors or Board of Supervisors of
the Corporation for at least 05 (five) consecutive years before, except in the case of being
appointed for 02 (two) consecutive terms.

Tiéu chuén va diéu kién lam thanh vién BKS

Standards and conditions for a member of the Board of Supervisors

C6 nang luc hanh vi dan su day du va Khong thude doi tugng theo quy dinh tai
khoan 2 Piéu 17 ctia Luat doanh nghiép:

Have full civil act capacity and not be subject to the provisions of Clause 2, Article 17 of
the Enterprise Law,

Puoc dao tao mét trong cac chuyén nganh vé kinh té, tai chinh, ké toan, kiém toan,
ludt, quan tri kinh doanh hoac chuyén nganh phu hgp véi hoat dong kinh doanh cua
Téng cong ty:

Be trained in one of the majors of economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law, business
administration or majors suitable to the business lines of the Corporation,

Khéng phai 1a ngudi ¢6 quan hé gia dinh cta thanh vién Hoi dong quan tri, Tong
giam ddc va nguoi quan 1y khac:

Not be a relative of a member of the Board of Directors, General Director and other managers;
Khéng phai 1a ngudi quéan Iy Tong cong ty, khong nhét thiét phai 1a ¢6 déng hoac
ngudi lao dong ciia Tong cong ty;

Not be a manager of the Corporation, not necessarily a shareholder or employee of the
Corporation;

Khéng duoc lam viée trong bd phan ké toan, tai chinh ctia Tong cong ty;

Not work in the accounting and finance department of the Corporation;

Khéng dugc la thanh vién hay nhan vién cua té chirc kiém toan duge chap thuan
thue hién kiém toan cac bdo cdo tai chinh ctia Tong cong ty trong 03 nam lién trude
do;

Not be a member or employee of an auditing firm approved to audit the financial
statements of the Corporation in the previous 3 consecutive years;

Khéng dugc la nguoi c6 quan hé gia dinh cia ngudi quan 1y doanh nghiép cia Téng
cong ty va cong ty me; ngudi dai dién phan vén cua doanh nghiép, ngudi dai dién
phén vén nha nudc tai cong ty me va tai Tong cong ty;

Not be a relative of a business manager of the Corporation and the parent company;

representative of enterprise capital, representative of state capital at parent company and
at Corporation,

Céc tiéu chuan va diéu kién khéc theo quy dinh khac ctia phéap luat c6 lién quan va
Piéu 1¢ cong ty.

Other standards and conditions as prescribed by other relevant laws and the Charter of
the Corporation.

Pé cir/irng cir/gi6i thiéu irng vién tham gia HDQT va BKS
Nomination/candidacy/recommendation of candidates to the BOD and the BOS



Cin ctr theo Diéu 1€ t6 chire va hoat dong cuia PETROCONS, sb lugng cac ung vién
ma co déng/nhoém cb dong duoc quyén dé cir nhu sau:

Based on the Organizational and Operational Charter of PETROCONSs, the number of
candidates that shareholders/groups of shareholders are entitled to nominate is as follows:
< Déivéiviéc d@é cir thanh vién HPQT

For the nomination of members of the Board of Directors

Cac c6 dong nam giir ¢ phan phd thong 6 quyén gop s quyeén biéu quyét dé dé cur
céc img vién Hoi dong quan tri. C6 déng hodc nhom ¢ déng nim giir tir 10% dén dudi
20% sb cb phan c6 quyén biéu quyét dugce dé cir 01(mot) thanh vién; tir 20% dén dudi
30% dugce dé cir 02 (hai) thanh vién: tir 30% dén dudi 40% dugc dé cir 03 (ba) thanh
vién; tir 40% dén dudi 50% duoc dé cir 04 (bdn) thanh vién, tir 50% tré 1én duoc dé cur
di s6 thanh vién.

Common shareholders have the right to aggregate their voting rights to nominate
candidates for the Board of Directors. Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding 10% to
less than 20% of the voting shares can nominate 01 (one) member; from 20% to less than 30%
02 (rwo) members; from 30% to less than 40% 03 (three) members; from 40% to less than 50%
04 (four) members, from 50% or more all members.
< Doi vdi viéc d@é cir thanh vién BKS

For the nomination of members of the Board of Supervisors

Céc ¢b dong nam giir c6 phan phd thong c6 quyén gdp sd quyén biéu quyét dé dé cur
cac (mg vién Ban Kiém soét. C6 dong hodc nhom cb dong nim giir tir 10% dén dudi 30%
s0 ¢ phan c6 quyén biéu quyét duge dé cir 01 (mot) thanh vién; tir 30% dén dudi 50%
dugc dé cir 02 (hai) thanh vién; tir 50% trd 1én duge dé cir 03 thanh vién.

Common shareholders have the right to aggregate their voting rights to nominate
candidates for the Board of Supervisors. Shareholders or groups of shareholders holding from
10% to less than 30% of voting shares may nominate 01 (one) member; from 30% to less than
50% 02 (two) members; from 50% or more 03 members.

4. Ho6 so dé cir/irng cir/gii thiéu ng vién tham gia HPQT va BKS

Nomination/ candidacy/ recommendation of candidates to the BOD and the BOS

Céc ¢ dong/nhom cd dong du tiéu chudn va diéu kién ung c/dé cir ing vién dé
bau thanh vién HPQT, BKS giri hd so tng cir/dé cir bao gdm:

Shareholders/groups of shareholders who meet the criteria and conditions for nomination/
recommendation of candidates to elect members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors shall submit their candidacy/nomination documents including:

- Don/Phiéu tng ctr hodc dé cir thanh vién HDQT/BKS (theo mAu);

Application for candidacy/nomination of members of the Board of Directors/the Board of
Supervisors (in the form);

- Soyéu ly lich do ting cir vién ti khai (Theo mau)

Candidate’s CV (in the form)

- Ban sao hgp 1¢ CCCD/H9 chiéu;
Valid copy of ID card/Passport;
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- Ban sao hop Ié cac vin bang chimg nhan trinh d9 vin hoa, chuyén mon.
Valid copy of certificates certifying cultural and professional qualifications.
- Gidy uy quyén va/hodc Bién ban hop nhém (néu ung vién dugc nhém uy quyén dé
cu);
Authorization letter and/or Minutes of group meeting (if the candidate is nominated by the group);
- Tai liéu chirng minh du diéu kién thuc hién dé cir/img ctr theo quy dinh.
Documents proving eligibility to nominate/run for election according to the regulations.
Kinh dé nghi Quy cb dong khan truong giri hé so (gui ban goc) dé cu/img cur/gioi
thiéu tng cir vién tham gia HPQT va BKS dé Ban t6 chire dai hdi tp hop va chuan bi tai
li¢u phuc vu Dai hdi dugce td chire thanh cong.
We respectfully require you to promptly send their applications (originals) to nominate/be
a candidate/recommend candidate to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors so
that the Organizing Committee can collect and prepare documents to serve the successful
organization of the General Meeting of shareholders.
(Chi tiét theo Mau dinh kém théng bao nay)
(For details, see the attached Form)
Ho so xin vui long giri vé:
Please send your application to:
Téng cong ty Co phan Xay lap Dau khi Viét Nam
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
Ban T6 chirc Dai hoi dong cb dong
Organizing Committee of the General Meeting of Shareholders
Dia chi: Tang 14, Toa nha Vién Dau khi Viét Nam, s6 167 Phd Trung Kinh,
Phuong Yén Hoa, Quan Céau Gidy, Thanh phé Ha Noi, Viét Nam.
Address: 14" Floor, Vietham Petroleum Institute Building, No. 167, Trung Kinh Street,
Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

Thoi han: truwde 13h thie hai, ngay 26/5/2025.
Deadline: before 13:00 on Monday, May 26, 2025.

Tran trong thong bao./.
Yours Sincerely./.
TM. HQI PONG QUAN TRI
Noi nhin/Sent to: CHUTICH 4 Ak
- Website PETROCONS (dé CBTT); FOR AND ONBEI:L4LF OF

- PETROCONs Website (For information);
-Luu VT, HPQT, TCHC, PC. s

- Kept at: Archives Department, Board of
Directors,  Department of Organization-
Administration Department, Legal Department.

Neghiém Quang Huy
Ngluem Quang Huy



CONG HOA XA HQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
|’ Péc lap - Tu do — Hanh phic

TROCONS | SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence- Freedom-Happiness

BIEN BAN HOP NHOM CO PONG
PE CU UNG CU VIEN THAM GIA
HOQI PONG QUAN TRI/ BAN KIEM SOAT
TONG CONG TY CO PHAN XAY LAP DAU KHI VIET NAM

MINUTES OF SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
NOMINATION OF CANDIDATES FOR THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS/ BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

Hom nay, ngay ....... thang ........ nam 2025,

Today, on ....... daY.. month.......... 2025,

Chung t6i 1a nhig c¢6 déng cua Tong cong ty C6 phan Xay lip Dau khi Viét Nam ciing
nhau nam gilr ......ccceevennen cO phan, chiém ............ % s0 c0 phan c6 quyén biéu quyét cua Tong
cong ty, c6 tén trong danh sach dudi day:

We are shareholders of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation, jointly

holding ................... shares, accounting for ............ % of the voting shares of the Corporation,
whose names are listed below:

SO CCCD/HQ
T CHIEU
TT HQ}ELELNNSEED(%NG DPIA CHI CITIZEN SOCPSOHUU | KYTEN
s et il ADDRESS IDENTITY | SHAREHOLDING | SIGNATURE
e CARD/PASSPO
RT NO.
1
2
3
TONG CONG/TOTAL
Chung t6i xin @& cir / We would like to nominate
SO CCCD/HQ
CHIEU P :
TT HO TEN CITIZEN Ngﬁ% (O:?P ggcg‘g PIA CHI
No. FULL NAME IDENTITY e e para ADDRESS
CARD/PASSPORT
NO.




Lam tmg vién tham gia .............cocovviiiinnnnn. cua Tong cong ty CO phan Xay lap
Dau khi Viét Nam duoc bau trong ky Dai hoi dong cd dong thuong nién nam 2025 duge 6
chirc vao ngay 29 thang 05 nam 2025.

To be a candidate to ........... veveeevennn Of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock
Corporation to be elected at the 2025 Annua[ General Meeting of Shareholders held on May 29, 20235.

Pong thoi chung ti théng nhét cir:

At the same time, we unanimously agree to nominate:

.............................................................................................................................................

PR IICREIE GOAAECEE: o srovssn s i S B T T TS 9B P S RS P

Lam dai dién nhém dé thuc hién céc thu tuc dé cir theo ding quy dinh vé viéc tham gia
dé Clr, UNE U VAO «.evvieiiceiie e cta Téng cong ty C6 phan Xay lap Dau khi Viét
Nam trong ky Pai hoi dong c6 dong thuong nién nam 2025 duoc t6 chirc vao ngay 29 thang
05 nam 2025.

To represent the group to carry out the nomination procedures in accordance with the

regulations on nomination and candidacy for ............................... of Petrovietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation at the 2025 Annual General Meettng of Shareholders held on May 29, 20235.

................ , NEAY .......... thang ... ndm ... .....
vz O ssimewins month ........ year ........

Pai dién nhém cb dong
Representative of the shareholder group
(Ky, ghi rd ho tén, dong dau néu co)
(Signature, full name, seal if any)



CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM

Péc lap — Tw do — Hanh phiic

PETROCONS |
SRR R S it SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence- Freedom-Happiness
* % %
SO YEU LY LICH
CURRICULUM VITAE

L. Hovl TeRIFEh i O vmmvemsisissrssmamiases s Gidi tinh/Gender: .....................
2. Ngay/thang/nam sinh/Date of birth: ......ccccvvevvnennnnn.. Noi sinh/Place of birth:
3. QUOC tCH, NGHONALIY: ..o et e e et e e
4. Gidy CCCD/Hg chiéu sd/ID card/Passport number: ........................ Ngiy cép/Date of

T NOT CAP/PLACE OF ISSUE .o
3. Neidine kb HICT TV Permanent olidrass, .o sssusnsasiagnsssmn shss snaussssssansspiinmm o sy s
6. ChO O hiln A1/ CUrFent QAAFresS:  ......ooe et e e
7. Trinh d0 van hOa/Qualification: ...............ccoienein i
8. Trinh do chuyén mén (ghi 15 cu thé, vi du: kiém toan vién, ké toan vién, luat, tai chinh,...)/

Qualifications  (specify, for example: auditor, accountant, law, finance, etc.)
9. Qua trinh hoc tap, dao tao chuyén mon, chung chi:

Qualifications (specify, for example: auditor, accountant, law, finance, etc.)

Thoi gian Noi dao tao Chuyén nganh Khen thuéng Ky luit

Time Training Major Reward Discipline
organization

10. Qua trinh lam viéc/Working process:

Thoi gian Noi lam viée Chire vu Khen thuwéng Ky luat

Time Workplace Position Reward Discipline
11. Céc chic vu dam nhiém/ Positions held:
Noi lam viéc Chire vu Thoi gian dam nhiém
Workplace Position Term of office




Noi lam viée
Workplace

Chire vu
Position

Thoi gian dam nhiém
Term of office

12. Quan h¢ nhéan than/Family relationships:

Quan hé
Relation

Ho va tén
Full name

Nam sinh Dia chi
Year of birth Address

Nghé nghiép Pon vi cong
Occupation tac
Unit

Téi xin cam doan vé tinh chinh xdc, trung thuc va hoan toan chiu trach nhiém trudc phap

ludt vé cac ndi dung trén.

I hereby undertake the accuracy, honesty and take full responsibility before the law for the

above contents.

NEGIBNE IO VDL s vsncssisisamvmsessvisnibsirexbinmsisussmesrsid st Toi cam két s€ thuc hién nhiém

vu mot cach trung thue, cin trong va vi loi ich cao nhét cta
If I am elected to

honestly, carefully and for the best interests of ................

, ngay ... thang ... .... nam 2025

wiinss sens@@Vs oo miONtA...... 2025

X#c nhin cia Co quan ¢6 thim quyén

(Chinh quyén dia phirong, hodc co quan noi céng tdc)

Confirmation from Competent Authority

(Local Authority or Agency)

NGUOI KHAI
DECLARANT
(Ky va ghi ré ho tén)
(Signature and full name)




CONG HOA XA HOQI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
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0 SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
EE:[ ROCON _5_} Independence- Freedom-Happiness
00o
PHIEU UNG CU/DPE CU
CANDIDACY/NOMINATION FORM
Thanh vién Ban Kiém sot
Member of the Board of Supervisors
Kinh givi : Ban t6 chirc Pai hoi dong c6 dong thwing nién nim 2025
Tong cong ty Co phan Xay lip Dau khi Viét Nam
To: Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders Petrovietmam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
CO AONG/ SHAFEROIACT...........coceeeeeeeeereseeereseereses s s sses s sasssssss st sss s sss s s s sseseseaesasssenenasseees
S6 DKDN/CCCD/H¢ chiéw/Business Registration Certificate/Citizen identity card/Passport
O s issimswsmmsissbih sassmsomnenimsususspmss Ngay cAp/Date 0f iSSUE: ..ceveveeeeereerereerreresenn Noi cép/Place of
BSWIILY, oo inscmenis o delinn oo o s s i i o o e S S S S R R S AP Y S B S B R B DT R NS s IRa S es s oA T ST A s

Nguoi dai dién theo phap luat néu cb dong 1a t6 chic/ Legal representative if the shareholder is an

OFRANIZATION: i aivs s avmvnies i 4 555 555 ¥ Tad SERAFAEENGRSERIARY

ENG CRILAGAPESS; ...oirereosssiscssssesssnmsnmmssssasaessensmssssuarssssrnenssasssssassossussraesssbnsssssossssnssassbiosannsass ssiissssoonnsanes
SO CO PRAN/SHAFEROIAMNG: ... s ses s es st es s es s seseseessees s e seenseesesaesneans
(BANG CRTE/IN WOTPGS: ... e et eeseese s sesesenesea e e e es)

Tuong Gng voi téng ménh  gi&/Corresponding to  the total face value:

......................................................................................................................................... dong/dong.

Sau khi xem xét cac didu kién va tiéu chudn dé tmg cir, dé cir vao thanh vién Ban Kiém soat
tai Luat Doanh nghiép, Piéu 1& Téng cong ty va Quy ché bau cir tai Pai hoi dong c6 déng
thudng nién nam 2025,

After reviewing the conditions and criteria for candidacy and nomination for members of the Board of

Supervisors in the Enterprise Law, the Corporation’s Charter and the Election Regulations at the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders,

T6i dé nghi/7 propose:

1. Tuumg cir vao thanh vién Ban Kiém soat

To self-nominate for members of the Board of Supervisors
Dé nghi Quy c6 déng xac nhan viéc ing cir/dé cur vé dia chi :
Please send your candidacy/nomination confirmation to:
Ban Té chirc dai hi dong cb dong thwong nién nim 2025
Organizing Comniittee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Téng cong ty C6 phin Xy lip Diu khi Viét Nam
Petrovietnam Construction Jaint Stock Corporation

Dia chi: Tang 14, Toa nha Vién Déau khi Viét Nam, s6 167 Phé Trung Kinh, P Yén Hoa, Q Céu Gidy, TP Ha Noi
Address: 14" Floor, Vietam Petroleum Institute Building, No. 167, Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward. Cau Giay District, Hanoi Cirv
Thoi gian: chdm nhét trude 13h00 Thir hai ngay 26/5/2025.

Time: no later than 1:00 p.m. on Monday, May 26, 2023.
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Cb ddng dé ctr ngudi khac vao thanh vién Ban Kiém soat

Shareholders nominate others for members of the Board of Supervisors

Ho tén ngudi dugc dé ct/Full name of the nominee:

...............................................................................................................

................................................................................................................

(Céc ¢b dong tmg cir, dé cir vao vi tri nao thi danh d4u V vao 6 tréng tuong tmg. Phiéu dé ctr, img ctr

duoc gui vé Tong cong ty C6 phan Xay ldp Dau khi Viét Nam ciing hé so tmg vién).

(Shareholders who want to nominate for any position should tick N in the corresponding blank box. The

nomination form is sent to Petroviemam Construction Joint Stock Corporation together with the candidate’s

profile).
Hé so ouwi kém/Enclosed documents:  eeeeeeeens 4 ngc‘zy ....... fhdf’lg ......... nam 2025
- Ban sao hop l¢ CCCD/H¢ chidu iw v day ........ month... ... 2025
Valid copy of Citizen identity card/Passport Co d(’iug/ Pai dién co dﬁng
- Bansao hop ¢ cac van bang lién quan Shareholder/Representative of shareholder

Valid copy of relevant diplomas

So yéu Iy lich ciia vmg vién theo mau

Candidate’s CV in the form

Tai ligu chimg minh du diéu kién tw tmg ci/dé cie
theo quy dinh.

Documents proving eligibility to self-nominate/nominate
according to the regulations.

bé nghi Quy c6 dong xé4c nhan viéc ung cu/dé cur vé dia chi :

Please send your candidacy/nomination confirmation to:

Ban Té chirc dai hdi ddng b dong thudomg nién nim 2025

Organizing Commirtee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Tong cong ty C6 phdn Xay lip Dau khi Viét Nam

Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation . ) . ]

Pia chi: Tang 14, Toa nha Vién Dau khi Viét Nam, s6 167 Pho Trung Kinh, P Yén Hoa, Q Céau Giay, TP Ha Noi
Address: 14" Floor, Vietnam Petroleum Institute Building, No. 167, Trung Kinh Street. Yen Hoa Ward. Cau Giay Diswrict. Hanot Ciry

Thoi gian: chdm nhét truée 13h00 Thir hai ngay 26/5/2025.
Time: no later than 1:00 p.m. on Monday, May 26, 2025.




CONG HOA XA HOI CHU NGHIA VIET NAM
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[, SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

EEMIRQC_DN __SJ Independence- Freedom-Happiness
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PHIEU UNG CU/DPE CU
CANDIDACY/NOMINATION FORM
Thanh vién Hji dong quan tri
Member of the Board of Directors
Kinh giti : Ban to chire Pai hi dong c6 dong thwong nién nam 2025
Téng cong ty C6 phin Xay lip Diu khi Viét Nam
To: Organizing Committee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

CO AONG/ SHAFCROIACT ... e s e sses e e ee s sase s eee e

S6 DKDN/CCCD/HO chiéu/Business Registration Certificate/Citizen  identity card/Passport
.73 X RS NS P e Ngay cAp/Date of iSSUE: ....oveeeerreeeereeeeean Noi cép/Place of
L

Nguoi dai dién theo phap luat néu cb déng 1a td chirc/ Legal representative if the shareholder is an

Ol ANIZATON: =i 5505 5550 515 55 S R RS i P& oo imis siR b bensant SR TR SRR r TS b aslanimean T s s o Eon RS R a s aama R s e s et s
0 S VT 1 /2 R
SO CO PRAN/SAGIEROIAING: .....ovveovveeeeseeseee e es s esees s esessess s s s seseeeesans
(Bcingchz”t/[n IO vsmimses v/s 38 6 5 5 R SR 5 H AN E A A S R S S i i AR RS S AT, s 55

Twong ung v6i tong ménh  gid/Corresponding to  the total face  value:

......................................................................................................................................... dong/dong.

Sau khi xem xét cdc didu kién va tiéu chudn dé ung cir, dé cir vao thanh vién Hoi ddng quan
tri tai Luat Doanh nghiép, Diéu 1é Téng cong ty va Quy ché bau cir tai Pai hoi ddng cb dong
thudng nién nam 2025,

After reviewing the conditions and criteria for candidacy and nomination for members of the Board of

Directors in the Enterprise Law, the Corporation’s Charter and the Election Regulations at the 2025
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders,

T6i dé nghi/I propose:

1. Tu ung cir vao thanh vién Hoi ddng quan tri

To self-nominate for members of the Board of Directors
Dé nghi Quy ¢ dong xac nhan viéc ung cu/dé cir vé dia chi :
Please send your candidacyv/nomination confirmation to:
Ban T chirc dai hdi dong cb dong thwdng nién nim 2025
Organizing Commirtee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Tong cong ty C6 phin Xiy 1ip Diu khi Viét Nam
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation ) ) - .
Dia chi: Tang 14, Toa nha Vién Dau khi Viét Nam, s6 167 Pho Trung Kinh, P Yén Hoa, Q Cau Giay, TP Ha Noi
Address: 14" Floor, Viemam Petroleum Institute Building. No. 167, Trung Kinh Street. Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi Cirv

Thoi gian: chdm nhét truée 13h00 Thir hai ngay 26/5/2025.
Time: no later than 1:00 p.m. on Monday, May 26, 2023,




2. Cb dbng dé cir nguoi khac vao thanh vién Hoi ddng quan tri

Shareholders nominate others for members of the Board of Directors
- Ho tén ngudi duge dé cit/Full name of the nominee:
- Ngay thing nlm SINRBGte 0F Birth. o o osmes sossnis sonss s s soss semssas sos sus s smissssss i
- S6 CCCD/HO chiéu/Citizen identity card/Passport No.:................eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeen.
Ngay cAp/Date 0f iSSUE ©.....vvvveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeen, Noi cip/Place of issue: .......coc.oevv....

- Thong tin Khac/Other information:.................ocoviiiiiiiiiiii e
(Céc 6 dong Umg cir, dé cir vao vi tri nao thi danh déu V vao 6 trong twong tmg. Phiéu dé cir, img cur
dugc giri vé Tong cong ty C6 phan Xay ldp Dau khi Viét Nam cing hd so tmg vién).

(Shareholders who want to nominate for any position should tick N in the corresponding blank box. The

nomination form is sent to Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation together with the candidate’s

profie).
HE sor ol Ror/ Enalosed documisntss -« 0 esseseees , ngay ... thang ......... nam 2025
- Ban sao hop 1é CCCD/H¢ chiéu ~ o He day ........ month...... 2025
Valid copy of Citizen identity card/Passport CO dong/ Bal dlen CO dOIlg
- Bansao hop l¢ cdc vin bang lién quan Shareholder/Representative of shareholder

Valid copy of relevant diplomas

- Soyéu Iy lich ciia ieng vién theo méu
Candidate’s CV in the form

- Tai liéu chimg minh di diéu kién tw 1ng cie/dé cir
theo quy dinh.

Documents proving eligibility to self-nominate/nominate
according to the regulations.

bé nghi Quy c6 dong xéc nhén viéc ing ci/dé cur vé dia chi :

Please send your candidacy/nomination confirmation to:

Ban T4 chirc dai hgi ddng ¢ dong thwong nién nam 2025

Organizing Commirtee of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Téng cong ty C6 phan Xdy lip Diu khi Viét Nam

Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Dia chi: Tang 14, Toa nha Vién Dau khi Viét Nam, s6 167 Phé Trung Kinh, P Yén Hoa, Q Céu Giy, TP Ha Noi
Address: 14" Floor, Vietnam Petroleum Institute Building. No. 167, Trung Kinh Street. Yenr Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanot City

Thoi gian: chadm nhat trude 13h00 Thir hai ngay 26/5/2025.

Time: ne later than 1:00 p.m. on Monday, May 26, 2025.
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THE BIEU QUYET
VOTING CARD

Mi s6 c6 dong/dai dién cd dong
Shareholder/Shareholder Representative ID
Tén c6 dong/dai dién c6 dong
Shareholder/Shareholder Representative Name

S6 lwgng c6 phan biéu quyét

Number of Voting Shares

signarurf ot Verified
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PAI HQI PONG CO PONG THUONG NIEN 2025

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
G CONG TY CO PHAN XAY LAP DAU KHi VIET NAM

OVIE TNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

i

Ngay 29 thang 5 nam 2025
May 29, 2025

PHIEU BIEU QUYET
VOTING CARD

Ma s6 ¢6 dong/dai dién 6 dong

Shareholder/Shareholder Representative ID

Tén ¢6 dong/dai dién co dong

Shareholder/Shareholder Representative Name:

S6 lwong 6 phian biéu quyét

Number of Voting Shares:

Sau khi nghién ctru ndi dung to trinh tai Dai hoi dong c6 dong thuong nién nam 2025 ciia Tong
cong ty C6 phan Xay lap Dau khi Viét Nam, Téi c6 v kién biéu quyét timg van d& nhu sau:

After studying the content of the Statement at the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation, I have the following voting opinions on each issue:

Noi dung biéu quyét Khing
STT (d4nh déu X hodc ¥'vao 6 twong ing) g; i;r:‘;ﬁg tl:::h th‘i’gng y
No. Voting content

(Tick X or ¥in the corresponding box) Negaitve | Anstehiion

Béo céo hoat dong cua Hoi dong quan trj ndm 2024 va
Keé hoach hoat dc}ng‘ném 2025; Bao cao cua Thanh
vién dgc lap HPQT vé hoat dong cua HDQT

Report on The 2024 Operation of the Board of Directors
and the 2025 Operation Plan; Report on The Operation of
the Board of Directors by the Independent Member of the
Board of Directors.

Béo céo két qua hoat dong SXKD nim 2024 va ké
hoach SXKD nam 2025

2
Report on The 2024 production and business results and the
2025 production and business plan
Bio c4o hoat dong Ban Kiém sodt nim 2024 va ké
3 hoach nam 2025

The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Supervisors and
the 2025 Operation Plan




Bao cao Tai chinh da dugc kiém toan nim 2024

Audited Financial Statements 2024

Phuong 4n phan phéi lgi nhuan nim 2024 —

Profit distribution plan 2024 LI

T& trinh vé viée lua chon Céng ty kiém todn Bao cdo
tai chinh nam 2025 — —— (—

Proposal on selecting the Auditing Firm for 2025 Financial S— 5

Statements

T& trinh vé viéc Quyét toan tién lwong, thu lao nam
2024 va phuong an tién luong, thu lao nam 2025 cua
Hdi dong quan tri va Ban Kiém soat -
Proposal on settling the 2024 salary and remuneration and

the 2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors

T trinh vé viée uy quyén cho HPQT phé duyét ké
hoach SXKD 5 nam giai doan 2026-2030 cua

PETROCONSs

Proposal on Authorizing the Board of Directors to approve ’
the 5-year production and business plan of PETROCONS for
the 2026-2030 period

Lwu ¥: C6 dong chi danh dau vao 01 6
duy nhit tai tirmg vin dé cin biéu quyét
Note: Shareholders only need to tick one box
for each issue to be voted on.

Chir ky ¢6 dong/dai dién co dong

Signature of shareholder/shareholder representative




Ngay 29 thang 05 nam 2025

5 V|ET NARETR VIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
May 29, 2025

PHIEU BAU THANH VIEN HOI PONG QUAN TRI
BALLOT OF MEMBERS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ma s6 ¢6 dong/dai dién cd dong/ Shareholder/Shareholder Representative 1D:

......................................................................................................................

......................................................................................................................

S6 ¢6 phén so hiru/dai dién So TV HPQT dwge bau z T S £
= ; Tong so phieu biéu quyet
Number of owned/represented Number of elected Board
Total votes
shares Members

- Can ct Diéu 1¢ t6 chirc hoat dong ctia Tong cong ty;
Pursuant to the Charter of the Corporation;
- Céan cr Quy ché bau ctr da duoc thong qua tai Dai hoi;
Pursuant to the Election Regulations approved at the General Meeting of Shareholders,
- Sau khi xem xét nang luc va tu cach, dao dirc ctia cac img vién HPQT, t6i déng ¥ bau tmg vién
sau day vao HPQT ctia Téng cong ty C6 phan Xay lap Dau khi Viét Nam:
After considering the capacity, qualifications and ethics of the candidates for the Board of Directors, I

agree to elect the following candidate to the Board of Directors of the Petrovietnam Construction Joint
Stock Corporation:

x So phiéu biéu quyét
STT/No. Ho tén/Full name
< No. of votes

! Thanh vién Hi dong quén tri

Member of Board of Directors
4 Thanh vién djc lap Hoi d(’ing quan tri

Independent member of Board of Directors

Tong cong/Total

Luweu y: Tong s phiéu biéu quyét bau cho cdc ing vién khong dwge vieot qud téng sé phiéu biéu quyét cia cé
dong/dai dién co dong./

Note: Total number of votes for candidates must not exceed the total number of votes by shareholders/shareholder
representatives./.

Cb dong/dai dién dwge iy quyén
Shareholder/Authorized representative
(Ky va ghi ro ho tén)
(Signature and full name)
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Ngay 29 thang 05 nam 2025
May 29, 2025

PHIEU BAU THANH VIEN BAN KIEM SOAT
BALLOT OF MEMBERS OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Mai s6 co dong/dai dién co dong/ Shareholder/Shareholder Representative ID:

............................................................................................................

............................................................................................................

R S N DI B BRI s oo st o s g s S Y O N S TN S R R A s e
S6 ¢6 phan sé hiru/dai dién S6 TV BKS dwoc bau g g o £
B Tong so phiéu biéu quyét
Number of owned/represented Number of elected Board
Total votes
shares Members

- Can ct Diéu 18 té chirc hoat dong ctia Téng cong ty;
Pursuant to the Charter of the Corporation;
- Can ctr Quy ché bau cir da dugc thong qua tai Pai hoi;
Pursuant to the Election Regulations approved at the General Meeting of Shareholders;
- Sau khi xem xét niing lyuc va tu cich, dao dic clia cdc img vién BKS, tdi dong y bau cac img vién
sau ddy vao BKS cua Téng cong ty Co phan Xay lip Dau khi Viét Nam:
After considering the capacity, qualifications and ethics of the candidates for the Board of Supervisors, 1

agree to elect the following candidate to the Board of Supervisors of the Petrovietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation:

S6 phiéu biéu quyét

TT/No. Ho tén/Full name No. of votes

Téng cong/Total

Lueu y: Tong s6 phiéu biéu quyét bau cho cdc g vién khong dwgc vieot qud tong sé phiéu biéu quyét ciia cé
dong/dai dién co dong.

Note: Total number of votes for candidates must not exceed the total number of votes by shareholders/shareholder
representatives.

Cb dong/dai dién dwgc iy quyén
Shareholder/Authorized representative
(Ky va ghi ré ho tén)
(Signature and full name)
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AGENDA OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS OF PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK

CORPORATION
No. Time Contents
| 7:30 - %30 | = Receive the Delegates and verify shareholder qualifications
= Salute the flag, introduce delegates;
= The Chairman of the Shareholder Qualification Inspection
5 230 < 850 Committee reads the examination minutes and declares the
legality and validity of the Meeting:
= Open the General Meeting of Shareholders;
= |ntroduce the Presidium:
- |ntroduce and approve the Secretariat;
3 8:50 = 9:00 | - Introduce and approve the Vote Counting Committee;
- Approve the agenda and Regulations on organizing the Meeting
4 | 9:00-11:15- Content 1: Report on The 2024 Operation of the Board of

Darectors and the 2025 Operation Plan. Report on The Operation of
the Board of Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of
Darectors.

=Content 2: Report on The 2024 production and business resulis
and the 2025 production and business plan.

=Content 3: The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of
Supervisors and the 2025 Operation Plan.

=Content 4: Proposal on approving the 2024 Audited Financial
Statements and the 2024 Profit Distmbution Plan.

=-Content 5: Proposal on selecting the Auditing Firm for 2025
Financial Statements.

-Content 6: Proposal on settling the 2024 salary and remuneration
and the 2025 salary and remmmeration plan of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors.

- Content 7: Proposal on Authonzmg the Board of Directors to
approve the 3-vear production and business plan of PETROCONs
for the 2026-2030 period,

- Content 8: Proposal on personnel affairs of the Board of
Directors/ Board of Supervisors under the authonty of the
General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Voting to approve contents from item 2 to item 7

Documents of the 2025 Annwal General Meeting of Shareholders- PETROCONS
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No.

Time

Contents

= Election of members of Board of Directors, members of Board of
Supervisors - content 2

= Shareholders discuss and answer guestions

11:15 =11:30

- The Vote Counting Committee conducts vote counting
- The meeting takes a break

L1:30 - 11:45

- Announcing the voting results on the contents and election
results

- Introducing the elected members of the Board of Directors and
the Board of Supervisors

- Speech by the representative of the Shareholders - Vietnam

MNational Industry-Energy Group

11:45 -11:55

- Approval of the Minutes and Resolutions of the General
Meeting

12:00

- Closing of the General Meeting

Documents of the 2025 Annwal General Meeting of Shareholders- PETROCONS




VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

Ha Noi, ..._day.....month... 2025

REGULATIONS
ON ORGANIZING THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
OF SHAREHOLDERS OF PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

CHAPTER |
GENERAL PROVISIONS

Article 1. Scope of application

The Regulations on organizing the General Meeting of Shareholders are used for
organizing the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders (hereinafier referred to
as the General Meeting) of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
(heremafter referred to as the Corporation ).

Article 2. These Regulations specifically stipulate the nghts and obligations of the
participants in the General Meeting, the conditions and procedures for conducting the
General Meeting.

Article 3. Shareholders and participants are responsible for implementing the
provisions of these Regulations.

CHAPTER 11
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTICIPANTS

Article 4. Rights and obligations of common shareholders
4.1. Participation conditions

Shareholders who are legal representatives, natural persons or representatives of
sharcholders, a group of shareholders owning voting shares of the Corporation on the
closing date of shareholder list (Aprnl 28, 2025) are entitled to attend the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.

4.1. Rights of eligible shareholders when attending the General Meeting

a. To vote on all matters within the authonty of the General Meeting of
Shareholders as prescnibed in the Charter of the Corporation.

b. To authonze a representative in writing to attend and vote on is'her behalf at the
Cieneral Meetng of Shareholders.

€.  The Organizing Committee of the General Meeting will publicly announce: the
entire contents of the General Meeting agenda. All elimble shareholders are
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allowed to participate in giving opimions directly or through their authonzed

representatives. All opinions will be discussed at the General Meeting of

Shareholders.
d. At the General Meeting, shareholders or authorized representatives {shareholder

representatives) must bring the following documents to the General Meeting:

- Meeting invitation/Meeting imvitation letter;

- Citizen identity card or passport (origmal )

- Original Power of Attorney with main contents in the form issued by the

Corporation {in case of the authonzation to atiend the General Meeting);

fln case the sharcholder is an individual, the Pawer of Attorney must be signed
by that shareholder. In case the shareholder is a legal entity/organization, the Power
of Anorney must be siamped and signed by the legal representative of that legal
enfitviorganization. In case of re-authorization, the meeting aitendee must present the
original power af attarney of the shareholder, the authorized representative of the
shareholder being an arganization (if not previously registered with the Corperation).

Shareholders and shareholders® representatives shall present the abowve
documents to the Shareholder Qualification Examination Board and receive one (01)
Voting Card, one (01) Voting Ballot, one (01) Ballot for election of members of the
Board of Directors, one (01) Ballot for election of members of the Board of
Supervisors (the ballois shall contain the shareholder code, voting content and number
of voting shares). The voting value that the shareholder or shareholder representative
holds corresponds to the proportion of voting shares that he or she owns or represents
according to the attendance registration to the total number of voting shares of
shareholders/shareholder representatives.

e. Shareholders and their representatives who attend the General Meeting of
Shareholders, after hearing the report on the contents to be approved, will discuss
and approve each part by voting.

f.  Shareholders and their representatives who amve late have the nght to register
immediately, then participate and vote immediately at the General Meeting, but
the Chairman 1s not responsible for stopping the General Meeting to allow them
to register and the vahdity of the previously conducted voting sessions will not
be affected.

4.3. Obligations of common shareholders when attending the General Meeting

a. Participate or authonize participation in the General Meeting of Shareholders
according to the Charter of the Corporation.

b. Shareholders and their representatives attending the General Meeting, when
wishing to express their opinions, must obtain the consent of the Chairman, and
speak briefly and focus on the key contents to be discussed according to the
approved agenda of the General Meeting. Issues that have been expressed by
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previous people must not be expressed again to avoid duplication. Shareholders
attending the General Meeting can also write down the contents on the
Questionnaire and then submit it to the Secretariat.

¢.  Shareholders or their representatives must complete the registration procedures
for attending the General Meeting with the Organizing Commitiee.

d.  Shareholders or their representatives must sirictly comply with the regulations at
the General Meeting of Shareholders, respect the work results at the General
Meeting.

Article 5. Rights and obligations of the Shareholder Qualification Examination

Board

The Shareholder Cualificaion Examination Board 1s established by the
Corporation. The Shareholder Qualification Examination Board receives documents of
attending shareholders; Issues documents and Voting Cards, Voting Ballots; Election
Ballots; Reporis the shareholder gualification examination results to the General
Meeting.

Article 6. Rights and obligations of the Chairman and the Presidinm
6.1. The Chairman of the Board of Directors (BOLY) presides over the meeting.

6.2. The Chairman of the meeting nominates the Organizing Committee (including:
the Presidium, the General Meeting Secretanat, the Vote Counting Commitiee)
for the General Meeting's approval.

6.3. The Chairman's decision on the order, procedures or evenis arising outside the
agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders shall be highly decisive.

6.4, Without consultng the General Meeting, the Chairman of the General Meeting

of Shareholders may at any time postpone the General Meeting to another ome
and at another location at his’her own discretion if hefshe finds that:

a.  The behavior of attendees obstructs or is likely to obsiruct the orderly progress of
the meeting;

b. The postponement is necessary for the work of the General Meeting to be
conducted properly.

6.5. The Presidium is elected at the General Meeting and has the following duties:

a. Conduct the activities of the General Meeting according to the program approved
by the General Meeting; Carry out necessary tasks so that the General Meeting of
Shareholders takes place m an orderly manner, reflecting the wishes of the
majority of attendees:

b. Instruct delegates and the General Meeting in discussion;

¢. Submit drafts and necessary contents for the General Meeting to vote;
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d. Respond to 1ssues requested by the General Meeting.
Article 7. Rights and obligations of the Secretariat

a.  The Chairman introduces the Secretariat and organizes the collection of opinions
for approval at the Meeting.

b. The Secretariat performs the support tasks assigned by the Presidium, including:
- Fully and honestly recording the contenis of the Meeting;
- Assisting the Presidium in announcing the draft Minutes and Resolutions of the
Meeting and the Presidium’s notice to shareholders when requested;
- Receiving shareholders’ gquestionnaires through the Presidum's Working
Ciroup.

Article 8.  Righits and obligations of the Vote Counting Committee

8.1. The Vote Counting Commuitiee is nominated by the Chairman of the General
Meeting and approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders. Members of the
Vote Counting Commiitee may be shareholders of the Corporation.

8.2, The Vote Counting Committee has the following duties:

- Introduce the content and method of recording voting ballots; election ballots;

- Supervise the vouing and election of shareholders at the General Meeting;

= Check the Voting Cards/Voting Ballots when approving issues submitted to the
General Meetmg of Shareholders for approval;

- Carry out the procedure for counting votes for the election of members of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors;

= Notify the results to the Chayrman, the Secretanat and announce the vote
counting results before the General Meeting;

- Be responsible for the honesty and accuracy of the vote counting resulis.

CHAPTER 111

CONDUCTING THE GENERAL MEETING
Article 9. Conditions for holding the meeting

9.1. The General Meeting of Shareholders shall be held when the number of attending
shareholders represents more than 50% of the total number of voting shares
according to the list of shareholders made by Vietnam Securities Depository and
Clearning Corporation on Aprnl 25, 2025,

9.2, In case the first meeting does not meet the conditions as prescribed in Clause 9.1
of this Article, the notice of mwvitation to the second meeting shall be sent within
30 days from the date of the fiost meeting. The second General Meeting of
Shareholders shall be held when the number of attending shareholders represents
33% (thirty-three percent) or more of the total number of voting shares according
to the list of shareholders made by the Vietnam Securities Depository and
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Clearning Corporation on Aprnil 28 2025,

9.3, In case the second meeting is not eligible to be held under Clause 9.2 of this
Article, the notice of invitation to the third meeting must be sent within 20
(twenty) days from the date of the second meeting. The third meeting shall be
held regardless of the total number of voting shares of the attending shareholders.

Article 10. Meeting order

- All attending shareholders must be properly dressed.

- Shareholders entering the General Meeting room must sit in the correct position
or area as prescribed by the Organizing Committee; Comply with the direction
of the Chairman and the Orgamizing Committee.

- The attending shareholders must not smoke in the General Meeting room.

- The attending shareholders must not talk privately or use mobile phones during
the General Meeting. Mobile phones must be turmed off or not rninging.

Article 11. Meeting proceedings

11.1. The General Meeting will discuss and approve the contents (according to the
contents sent to the shareholders).

11.2. Voting

- In addition to the ballots for members of the Board of Directors (Blue). the Board
of Supervisors (Pink), each artending shareholder will be given 01 Voting Card
{ White) and 01 Votng Ballot {Yellow), on which the shareholder code and the
number of voting shares held by the shareholder are written. All contents 1n the
Cieneral Meeting’s agenda must be approved by obtamning the votes of all
attending shareholders by Voting Card/Voting Ballot.

- Voting card: printed on white paper. used to vote to approve the following
contents:
¥ Approval of the Presidium;
v Approval of the composition of the Secretariat and the Vote Counting

Committee;

Approval of the Meeting Agenda;

Approval of the Regulations on organizing the meeting

Approval of the Election Regulations;

e T I

Approval of the contenmts of the Minutes and Resolutions of the
Shareholders’ Meeting and approval of other issues as requested by the
Chairman.

Shareholders may only use the Voting Card to approve a specific matter once.
Shareholders raise the Voting Card each time they approve, disapprove or have no
opinion on each matter to be voted. This Voting Card is used when shareholders want
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to express their opimions and when the Chairman proposes to vote to approve the
above matters.
- Voting ballet: printed on yellow paper, used 1o vote to approve the following
main contents:
¥ Repont on The 2024 Operation of the Board of Directors and the 2025
Operation Plan. Report on The Operation of the Board of Directors by the
Independent Member of the Board of Directors:
¥ Report on The 2024 production and business resulis and the 2025 production

and business plan;

¥ The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Supervisors and the 2025
Operation Plan.

¥ Proposal on approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and the 2024
Profit Distnbution Plan.

¥ Proposal on selecting the Auditing Firm for 2025 Financial Statements.

v Proposal on settling the 2024 salary and remuneration and the 2025 salary and

remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors;

v Proposal on Authorizing the Board of Directors to approve the S-vear

production and busmess plan of PETROCONS for the 2026-2030 period.

For the Yoting Ballot, each 1ssue on the Voting Ballot has 3 blank boxes showing
the content of Agree, Dhsagree and No opimton. Invahid voting content 15 content that
has no or more than one voting status. In that case, the remaining voting content 1s still
valid and wall still be counted in the vote counting results.

Article 12. Approval of the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders

The Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders on: Types of shares and
total number of shares of each type; Changes in business lines, occupations and fields;
Changes in the organizational structure of the Corporation; Investment projects or sale
of assets with a value of 35% or more of the total value of assets recorded in the latest
financial statements of the Corporation; Reorgamizabion or dissolution of the
Corporation; shall be approved with the consent of the number of shareholders
representing 65% or more of the total number of voting shares of all attending
shareholders.

Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders on other issues (except for
the election of members of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors) in the
agenda of the General Meeting shall be approved with the consent of shareholders
owning more than 30% of the total number of voting shares of all attending
shareholders.
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CHAPTER IV
END OF MEETING

Article 13, Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders

All contents of the General Meeting of Shareholders must be recorded by the
Secretary in the Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders of the Corporation.
The Minutes and Resolutions of the meeting must be read and approved before the
closing of the meeting and kept in the document system of the Corporation.

CHAPTERY
EXECUTIVE PROVISIONS

Article 14. These regulations consist of 5 Chapters and 14 Articles, is read publicly
before the General Meeting of Shareholders and takes effect immediately after being
voted and approved by the 2025 Anmual General Meeting of Shareholders.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
Nenf o BOARD OF DIRECTORS
s CHAIRMAN
- Kept at: Archives Department, Board of
Directors, Legal Department.
Neghiem Quang Huy
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VIETMNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: /BC-XLDK Ha Noi, ......day..... month.. 2025
REPORT

ON THE 2024 OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND THE 2025 OPERATION PLAN

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Jomnt Stock Corporation
(PETROCONs/Corporation)

I. GENERAL SITUATION

In 2024, the world economic and political situation continues to be complicated
and unpredictable; the global economy grows slowly, the financial, monetary and real
estate markets have many potential nsks; exchange rates, inierest rates, gasoline and
o1l prices and input materials have many negative fluctuations, causing difficulties for
the production and busmess activities of construction enterprises in general and the
Petrovieinam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (PETROCONs/Corporation) in
particular. In addition, because PETROCONSs is still in the process of overcoming the
shoricomings in the previous period and gradually consolidating and mmproving
mternal capacity to ensure the common goal of integration with the current sirong
changes and competition of the market, the factors of financial resources, human
resources and application of science and technology in management are still limited,
leading to the unsatisfactory implementation of PETROCONs" 2024 production and

business plan.

In 2024, PETROCONSs has developed and mmplemented many solutions and tasks
to promote production and business activities, stnving to maximize the completion of
specific management plan targets as follows:

- For the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project: Continue to focus on
completing the construction of the remaining items; complete the scope of work and
conditions as required to ensure that the Project is accepted by the State Inspection
Council for handover and commercial operation. At the same tme, urgently carry oul
the project settlement.

- For restructunng: review and re-evaluate the entire situation, resources.
advantages and limitanons of the parent company and its member units. Thereby,
propose feasible solutions to reorganize production and business activities to ensure the
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goal of fundamentally handling the difficulties and problems of the parent company and
1ts member units in 2025, gradually improving the capacity of the enterprise.

- For bidding marketing and job search: Promoie the search for new job sources
through jomt ventures and parmerships, make the most of existing resources and
expernience after completing Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project. In addition,
promoie the consolidation and development of data systems and regularly mnovate and
learn from experiences i bidding methods.

- For debt settlement; review, urge collection, collect documents and documents to
provide/complete internal procedures to completely resolve outstanding debis between
parties. Be determined in the collection of bad debts, participate in litigation, dispute and
mediation procedures to ensure maximum legiimate rights and interests for
PETROCONS.

1. THE 2024 OPERATION REPORT
1. Prodoction and business results in 2024

Production and business performance in 2024:

2024 Plan
Impleme comple
N, ltem LUinit ntation tion in o)
Approve | Impleme Aiks 2023
2 d plan niation (%n)
(%a)
- | Piechclinnan Eiliem 91238 | 153200 | 98288 64% | 108%
business value dong
Billlon ;
Parent company 441.36 S0 261.84 Jira | 39%
! dong
2 | Total revenues Billion | 4 53706 | 170400 | 131787 7% | 108%
dong
Parent company | Dodan 765,74 | LOSS00 | G094 | 5% | A0%
! g
3 | Pre-tax profits Billion. 1 5712 3.70 481 | 130%
dong
Billlow .
Parent comparny f162.63} W48 412 43%
: dowg
4 | Afer-ax profits BULOR: | (35537 3.70 261 71%
dong
Parent ¢ ;| G| eres s .48 4712|  43%
aren IUFHIPI.I'H._I- dﬂ]‘l’” & ! 4 = e
Billipn = . :
5 | Swe budgetpayable | Ty 41.05| 4700 494 105% | 120%
Pivant company | Lian 10,67 14.00 38| 2% | 6%
2 dlergr
6 | Average income Millicas 10.58% 10.84 1142 | 105% | 108%

Parent compary | Gongfmonth 13.25 13.25 1325 | 100% | 100%
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The total production and business value of the entire PETROCONs is 982 88
billion dong. reaching 64% of the 2024 plan and equal to 10%% compared to 2023;
The parent company alone 15 261.84 billion dong, reaching 30% of the 2024 plan and
equal to 59% compared to 2023,

The total revenue of the entire PETROCONs is 1,317.87 billion dong, reaching
T7% of the 2024 plan and equal to 106% compared to 2023; The parent company
alone 1s 609.04 bilhon dong. reaching 58% of the 2024 plan and equal o 20%
compared 1o 2023,

The total pre-tax profit of the entire PETROCONSs 15 4.8] billion dong, reaching
130% of the 2024 plan; total after-tax profit of the entire PETROCONs 1s 2.61 billion
dong. The parent company’'s profit 1s 4.12 lillion dong, equivalent to 43% of the 2024
plan.

The owner's equity of the parent company PETROCONs as of December 31,
2024 15 311.53 billion dong, an mcrease of 1.34% compared to the beginming of the

year.
(Far details, see the 2024 income statement and 2024 audited financial statemenis.)

2. Activities of the Board of Directors (BOD) in 2024
A1 Summary of BOD meetings and BOD decisions

At present, the Board of Directors of PETROCONs consists of 05 members- the
number required by the Organization and Operation Charter of PETROCONs.

In 2024, the Board of Directors held 07 regular meetings and 107 times of
collecting written opimons from members, adopted 32 Resolutions, 26 Decisions and
other directive documents related to the activines of PETROCONs. The
Resolutions/Decisions issued in 2024 are detailed in the Corporate Governance Report
No. 03/BC-XLDK dated January 16, 2025 sent to the State Securities Commission and
Hanoi Stock Exchange.

In addition, to sirengthen the supervision of the mmplementation of the
Resolutions and Decisions of the Board of Directors im production and busmess
activities, the Board of Directors has assigned Board members to participate in
briefing and thematic meetings with the Board of Directors i accordance with their
assigned responsibilities.

2.2, Activities of Board Members

Information about the Board of Directors (BOD) members as of December 31,
2024
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Appointment date/
Member of Board of Dismizsal date
Wi || S e Position
Directors Appointment | Dismissal
date date
Chairman of Board of
Johi : 202
I | Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy Dirsctiod 04/11/2021
Independent Member of
2 | Mr. Pham Van Khanh 3 24/642020
f . Board of Directors
Member of Board of
3 | Mr. Chu Thanh Hai _em 4 D INE2021
Dhrectors
Member of Board of
4 | Mr. Tran Hai Bang rvmcali 1 some2021
Directors
5 | Mr Nguyen Hoai Nam | Jember of Board ot 5 on1m022
Darectors

The members of the Board of Directors have performed their duties in
accordance with the roles and powers prescribed by the Enterprise Law, the Charter of
PETROCONs, the Regulations on the Board of Directors’ operations and other
relevant legal provisions in managing the production and business activities of
PETROCONs as well as supervising the management and operation tasks of the Board
of Directors through:

= Fully participating in the activities of the Board of Directors;

- Giving opinions on the ballots for the Board of Directors 1o issue Resolutions,
Decisions, and Documents of the Board of Directors;

- Direcily in charge of monitoring specific areas in the production and business
activities of PETROCONs and its member units as assigned by the Board of Directors
of PETROCONS;

- Well performung the coordinatton of diwection and management of the
enterprise with the Party Committee, the Board of Supervisors and the General
Director.

2.3, Salary/remuneration and operating expenses of the Board of Direciors in 2024
Salary/remuneraton of the Board of Directors in 2024 15 VND 2,178.200,018.
specifically:
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No,

Full name

Title

Salary/remuneration

in 2024

Total

178,200,818

Nghiem Quang Huy

Chairman of Board of Directors

535,318,303

Member of Board of Directors

2 | Tran Ha: Bang 469,156,106
3 | Nguyen Hoai Nam DCHter U Beam ok DRnecNe 454 409,070
4 | Chy Thank Hai Member of Board of Directors 460,717,339
5 | Phom Van Khash Independent Member of Board of 258 600,000

Dritectors

The operating expenses of the Board of Directors m 2024 were: VND
409,744 698 in compliance with PETROCONs" intemal spending regulations and
current regulations.

24, Salary/remuneration and expense plan of the Board of Directors in 2024

- Salary and remuneration of the Board Member who is the Representative of the
Vietnam National Industry- Energy Group at PETROCONs: Implemented in
accordance with PETROCONs" salary regulations in accordance with the Circular No.
282016/ TT-BLDTBXH dated September 1, 2016 by the Mimistry of Labor - Invalids
and Social Affairs and the actual production and business results of PETROCONS,

- Salary and remuneration of independent members of the Board of Directors: 1)
In case a member works regularly at PETROCONs Agency according to
PETROCONs" regulations. he/she will be paid salary and other benefits according to
the regime applicable to full-ttme members of the Board of Directors who are
representatives of the capital of the Vietnam National Industry- Energy Group at
PETROCONSs; 11) In case a member works tregularly at PETROCONs Agency (Pari-
time), hefshe will receive a remuneration equal to 70% of the salary of the full-time
member of the Board of Directors.

- The remuneration of a full-time Board Member 15 maximum 20% of the salary
of a part-time Board Member.

L5, Transactions af Board members and their related persons

In 2024, transactions between members of the Board of Directors and related
parties with PETROCONs, Subsidiaries. and Member Companies in which
PETROCONSs holds control of more than 50% of charter capital are shown in the 2024
audited Consolidated Financial Statements of PETROCONs.
comply with the current Law and the Charter of PETROCONS,

These transactions
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In 2024, PETROCONS has no transactions with Companies in which members of
the Board of Directors are founding members or business managers in the 03 (three)
latest years prior to the transaction date.

L6 Activities of Independent Members of the Beard of Directors and the
Independent Members' assessment results on the activities of the Board of
Directors

- Independent members of the Board of Directors work on an irregular basis:

- Independent members of the Board of Directors fully participate in meetings of
the Board of Directors and have full opinions on the Board of Directors’ opinion
forms:

- Independent members of the Board of Directors fully exercise their rights and
obligations as prescribed in the PETROCONs Charter, the Board of Directors’
Operating Regulations and the Decision on assigning tasks to members of the Board of
Directors.

2.7, Supervision resulis on the General Director and members aof the Board of

Directors

The Board of Directors regularly supervises the General Director and members
of the Board of Directors in the process of implementing the contents of the
Resolutions set forth by the Board of Directors. The General Director has clearly
assigned tasks to the Deputy General Directors. The members of the Board of
Directors are all qualified, capable, gualified and expenenced and have a good
understanding of the assigned fields and tasks.

The Board of Directors has implemented the business activities of the unit m
accordance with the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders, the direction
of the Board of Directors and the Charter of PETROCONS and the provisions of law.

The Board of Directors works and organizes regular meetings with member units
to promptly manage business activities at the unis in accordance with the general
direction, and resolve difficulties and problems in the operation of each umit.

The Board of Directors has strengthened the implementation of measures to
reduce and sinictly conirol costs and cash flow to mamiam production and business
activities; mmplemented solutions fo strengthen iniernal resources and continue to
promote marketing, biddmng, job search and market expansion; actively searched for
investors interested in recerving capial transfers at units as well as promoted work
related to PETROCONSs restructuring.

Salaries of employees of PETROCONs and the Project Management Board
under PETROCONs is paid on the principle of linking salaries to the assigned job
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positions, quality and efficiency of work, ensuring the lives of employees at the parent
company PETROCON s with stable income.

The Board of Directors has reviewed and implemented the development and
adjustment of PETROCONs" internal regulations/rules to suit the acmal production
and business situation of PETROCONs and submitted them to the Board of Directors
of PETROCONSs for consideration and approval.

2.8 General evaluation
a.  Task implementation

- Successfully organized the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
PETROCONs on May 23, 2024,

- Review documents, support member units to organize annual general meetings
of shareholders, extraordinary general meetings of shareholders,

- Regarding production and business results: Based on the 2024 production and
business plan approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) m the
Resolution No. TWNQ-DHCD-XLDK of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders dated May 23, 2024, the entire PETROCONSs group has made efforts to
carry out production and business tasks with the results of implementing economic
targets in 2024 as follows: the entire PETROCONSs group had a pre-tax profit of 4.81
billion dong, reaching 130% of the 2024 plan; The entire group had a profit after tax of
2.61 billion dong. The parent company’s profit was 4.12 hillion dong, equal to 43% of
the 2024 plan. The owner's equity of the parent company PETROCONs as of
December 31, 2024 was 311.53 billion dong, an increase of 1.34% compared to the
beginning of the year.

- Construction at works/projects:

+ For the key project of Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project: PETROCONs
continues o carry out the remaming sub-items, handling the arisimg backlog. In 2024,
the State Inspection Council for Construction Acceptance {5tate Inspection Council)
approved the conditional acceptance of the Units in Notice No. 3895/TB-HDKTNN
dated July 8. 2024, On July 10, 2024, the Investor 1ssued the Handover Certificate
for Unit 1, Unit 2 and shared items (except for Coal Loader No. 5, Coal Warehouse
No. 3 and the remaining works in process). On July 19, 2024, the Electnc Power
Trading Company (EPTC) recognized the commercial operation date of the Plant
starting from 5:00 am. on July 19, 2024. By early August 2024, the project officially
participated in the National Electncity Market. Curently, PETROCONs s
coordinating with the Thai Binh 2 Power Plant Project Management Board to finalize
the EPC Contract.

+ Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant Project:
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* PETROCONS 15 carryving out the final settlement of the Contract No, C11/5H1-
LLM-PVCE&GEOVN on foundation treatment and Contract No. C15/SH1-LLM-
PVC on the construction of construction wems with General Contractor Lilama.

* Construction and repair works at Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant: In 2024,
PETROCONs won the bid and signed 02 contracts to removate and repair a
number of items at Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant. Currently, construction
work is being carmed out on the set schedule.

+ Southern Petroleum Institute Office Project:

* Phase |: PETROCONs has completed the Phase | settlement documents,
currently awarnting for approval by the Competent Authority.

* Phase 2: PETROCONs has completed the signing of the Supplementary
Appendix No. 1Y with the Petroleum Institute on October 24, 2024 and submutted
the Settlement documents to the Project Management Consultant for review and
confirmation and then submit them to the Investor for approval

+ Project of upgrading DCS system of umit 57 - Uong Bi Thermal Power Plant:
By December 9, 2024, PETROCONSs has completed 100% of the construction volume
under the signed contract. Currently, PETROCONs 15 coordinating with the generl
contractor to complete the construction steps to determine the payment volume.

+ Project of supplying and mstalling inverters for smoke fans of umt 52 of Vinh
Tan 2 Thermal Power Plant: The work within the scope of PETROCONSs has been
basically completed. Currently, PETROCONs has actively coordinated with the parties
to complete the guality documenis for acceptance with the Investor to fulfill the
obligations in the contract.

+ Construction project of slag disposal site, water collection tower, return water
pipeline of Quang Trach | Thermal Power Plant: currently being implemented under
the plan.

- Bidding Marketing for signing economic contracts:

+ At the parent company: In 2024, PETROCONS parent company participated 1n
bidding and became the successful bidder of the following packages: Procurement of
equipment and installation of frequency converters to conirol smoke fans of unit 52 -
Vinh Tan Thermal Power Plant; Consiruction of slag disposal site, water collection
tower, return water pipelme - CQuang Trach | Thermal Power Plant Project;
Renovation of the operation building of Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant Project;
Renovation and repair of equipment washing and slag disposal area of Song Hau |
Thermal Power Plant and Supply of 1A level pump for Cao Ngan Thermal Power
Plant.
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+ At the member units: In 2024, 43 coniracis/contract appendices were signed by
member units to supplement work sources, including: PVC-MS signed 18 new
coniracts with a total value of VND 861.4 billion (including 3 major projects: Topside
Phu Quoc with a value of VND 485 billion, Lac Da Vang base fabrication with a value
of VND 143.5 bilhion, P15 project with a value of VIND 13X balhion); DOBC signed 15
new contracis/contract appendices with a total value of VIND 20.7 billion; PVYC-Binh
Son signed 6 new contracts with a total value of VND 27.30 billion; PVC-TB signed
01 new contract with a value of VND 121.73 billion; PETROCONs-Dong Do signed
03 new contracts with a total value of about VIND 87.3 billion.

- Debt settlement and collection: As of November 30, 2024, the parent company
has settled and collected VND 3,835 billion, specifically: TID (VND 0288 hillion);
PVNC (VND 2,716 billion) and PVC-ME (VND 0.1 bilhon) and PVC-Dong Do
(VND 0731 billion m 201| dividends). Currently, PETROCONs is continuing to
review cross-debts, resplve problems in backlog projects to develop solutions to
settle/collect debts.

b, Some limitations and weaknesses:

In 2024, PETROCONs did not complete the planned production and business
value and revenue, mainly due to:

= The 2024 plan targets were developed by PETROCONs and submitied fo the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders based on the expected participation,
winning bids and starting construction of projects: Housing area for employees of
Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant project, Phu My Polypropylene Plant, Yen Hung
LPG Plant and the project of expanding some items of Ca Mau Fernlizer Plant.
However, due to many fimancial and legal problems of the Investor. up to now, some
projects have not been able to implement bidding and the bidding/commencement has
been extended to 2025. In addition, due to the limited resources of finance, human
resources and egquipment currently in the recovery phase. along with the highly
competitive market, some projects/midding packages have not been awarded contracts
(Construction of the cooling water channel from the intake to the StopLog of the
cooling water pumping station - Quang Trach | Thermal Power Plant Project, Housing
area for employees of Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant, etc. ).

- The settlement of contracts/bidding packages at the Song Hau | Thermal Power
Plant Project. the Southern Petroleum Institute has raised many issues relaied to the
adjustment of umt prices and the prolonged examination and appraisal.

Currently, PETROCONs still has weaknesses and limitations that negatively
affect production and business activities such as:
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- Dnfficulty in finding new sources of work: PETROCONs's current capacity
profile has advantages for indusinal works/power plants after completing the
construction of the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project as the EPC General
Contractor, however, for civil construction and installaton works, infrastructure
construction and leveling are stll limited {due to similar contracts completed about 10
yvears ago, so they cannot be used as a capacity profile); which has led to
PETROCONs" limited access to construction works. In addition, at the present stage,
indusirial energy works/power plants are large projects, currently in the investment
preparation/restart stage and have a small number of projects, so competition from
domestic and international contractors is very fierce. Although mn recent years,
PETROCONs has semously bumilt and mammed a basic technical team to meet the
requirements in the fields of mechanical component manufacturing, eguipment
installation and maintenance, construction and installation; however, due to financial
and capital constraints, marketing projects/contracts with scope of work suitable for
the existing Capacity Profile is extremely difficult and has not achieved the expected
results.

-The settlement of contracts between PETROCONs and the Investor as well as
between PETROCONs and subcontractors in completed projects/works is still slow,
facing many obstacles such as waiting for competent authorities to approve the ansing
value, no cooperation of subcontractors, lack of personnel to coordinate the settlement,
eic.

- Due to the mmpact of political and economic fluctuations in the world, the
source of mput materials such as iron, steel, energy, etc. has increased, many projecis
have not signed the appendix to adjust the contract price, leadmg ito the slow
mmplementation by units.

- Many member units of PETROCONs sull have outstanding loans from real
estate projects, currently facing great difficulties In restructuring loans, divesting
assets, having to bear huge depreciation costs and inierest expenses every month while
the exploitation efficiency is low, leading to large business losses. The parent company
PETROCONs must make provisions io reduce the value of financial invesiments at the
units.

- Debt settlement and collection of duefoverdue debis of PETROCONs and 1is
units still have many bad debts, especially cross-debts between umits in projects. Most
PETROCONs" member units are currently facing difficulties in production and
business activities and finance, the assets of the units are either non-existent or have
been pledged/mongaged, so the units cannot arrange resources to fulfill therr debt
repayment obligations to PETROCONSs,
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- Investment divestment at some units is stll slow. Dunng the performance
process, because most units in PETROCONs® divestment plan makes losses or haves
large accumulated losses, it 1s very difficult to find out pariners that accept the ransfer.

[l. THE IMPLEMENTATION OF AUTHORIZATION TO SIGNING AND
IMPLEMENTING THE EPC CONTRACT FOR THAI BINH 2 THERMAL
POWER PLANT PROJECT

Implementing the contents anthonzed by the PETROCONs General Meeting of
Shareholders to the Board of Directors in signing and implementing the EPC Contract
for the Thai Bimh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project in the Resolution No. 543/NQ-
DHDCD-XLDK dated June 7, 2014, Resolution No. 1 104/NQ-DHDCD-X1.DK dated
December 15, 2017 and the Resolutions of the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders from 201 8 to 2022, the Board of Directors reports on the contents related
to the signing and implementation of the EPC Contract for the Thai Binh 2 Thermal
Power Plant Project as follows:

1. Signing of Coniract and Contract Appendices:
@  EPC contract No. 9256/HD-DKVN
In 2024, PETROCONs signed a number of addimonal Appendices to the EPC

contract as follows:

= On September 30, 2024, PETROCONs signed the Addibonal Appendices No. 54
with the Investor/Project Management Board on not continuing to implement the 12.8ha
slag disposal site and related items (dykes 5,6.7); HFO oil import port; Ship anchorage
area.

- On October 30, 2024, PETROCONS: signed the Additional Appendix No. 53 with
the Investor/Project Management Board on the Value of the remaining items in the Lump
Sum Price of the EPC General Contract for the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project.

= Un November 20, 2024, PETROCONs signed the Additonal Appendix No. 55
with the Investor/Project Management Board on determining the Time to calculate the
warmanty penod/duration.

The contenis of the amendments to the EPC coniract m the next phase wall be
updated by the Board of Directors and reported at the nearest Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

b.  Coniract No. SWHDKT2012/PVC-SDC on the supply of main egquipment for
Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant between PETROCONs and the SDC
Cantractor Consortium (referred to as EPS Contracy)

In 2024, PETROCONs will not sign any additional contract appendixes with the

SDC Contractor Consortium. In the next phase, if there are any amendments to the EPS

Contract, the Board of Directors will promptly update and report at the nearest Annual
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Ceneral Meeting of Shareholders.

Developmenis in the coniract dispute with the Daelim E&C Contractor (DL E&C)
under the SDC Consortium:

+ On January 25, 2024, the SDC Consortium sent the Official Letter No. TB2-SDC-
PEB-L-3433 1o PETROCONs informing: DL E&C Contractor submitted a Pettion for
Dispute (“RFA") over the EPS Contract against PETROCONs to the Vietnam
International Arbitration Center (“VIAC™).

+ On March 1, 2024, PETROCONs received the Notice Letler No. 478/VIAC
signed on February 26, 2024 from the Vietnam Intemational Arbitration Center (“VIAC™)
about VIAC s receipt af the Request For Arbitration (“"RFA”™) from DL E&C.

+ From May 31. 2024 to December 2, 2024, PETROCONs submitted the Statement
of Defence (S0D), the Statement of Counterclaims (SOCC) of DL E&C contractor and
the accompanymg evidence to the Arbitration Council. At the same time, DL E&C semi
responses to PETROCONs' SOD

+ On December |2, 2024, the Online Meeting on junisdiction issues was conducted
in accordance with the instructions of the Arbitration Council { AC);

+ The AC i1ssued the Document No. 338/VIAC announcing the issuance of the
Decision on jurnisdiction 1ssues dated January 30, 2025. Regarding the 1ssue of arbitration
Jurisdiction, PETROCONs found the Decision of the Arbiiration Council on pmsdiction
issues dated Janwary 30, 2025 unsatisfactory. Therefore, on February 10, 2025,
PETROCONSs filed a complaint with supporting documents to the Hanoi People’s Court
{the Court) regarding the Complamt aganst the Arbitration Council Decision on the
Jurisdiction of the Arbitration Council. On March 6, 2025, the Court issued a Notice of
accepiance of the case to the Hanoi People’s Procuracy and to the parties. Currently,
PETROCONSs is supplementing the case’s supporting documents to the Court.

In parallel with the lifigation process, PETROCONS 15 still working wath the Daelim
Contractor to negofiate outside of htigation 1o move towards a negotiated settlement.
Currently, both parties are still considering the proposals made by each party.

IV. THE 2025 OPERATION PLAN OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Based on the assessment of existing resources and forecasted market demand, the
Board of Directors makes a 2025 production and business plan with the following key
economic indicators:

1. The 2025 Economic targeis plan:
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Unit: billion dong

Yo
2024
2025 plan /
No. ltems A i Plan 2015 plan 1014
Plan mg ﬁ::.-_'n completion implement
percentage ation
| ETCHE A 1,532.00 982 88 64% | 1,345.00 137%
business value bl G ' o
Parent company S840 261 84 3% 33200 127%%
2 | Total revenues 1.704.00 131787 1T 1,707.00 130%
Parent company 105300 a09.04 3% 8600 I31%
3 | Pre-tax profits 130 4581 130% 4.56 D5%
Parent company @45 4.12 43% F72 it
4 | After-tax profits 370 2.61 71% 4.56 175%
FParent comgany 048 4.12 43% 152 Oia
5 | e Dullget 47.00 49.14 105% 58.00 118%
pavable
Puarent compary 1408 3.81 2% .00 236%
Averape income
{mullion ) o - o
& dong/person/mont 1084 1142 105% 11.90 104%,
h)
Parent company 325 13.25 1% 4.0 106%

The 2025 production and revenue plan of the Consolidated Company and the
parent company PETROCOMNs 15 butlt on the basis of completing construction and
recovering capital at fransitional projects from 2024 (Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant
project, bidding packages at Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant project, Uong Bi
Thermal Power Plant. Vinh Tan 2 Thermal Power Plant, Quang Trach as well as
projects that have signed contracts and projects that PETROCONSs plans to market and
participate m bidding such as foundation treatment and leveling of Mut Tram station
and An Minh station = Lot B - O Mon pipeline, Housing area for employees of Thai
Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant, O Mon 4 Thermal Power Plant project, bidding packages
at Long Phu | Thermal Power Plant project, Hydrogen peroxide production plant
project, etc. However, the implementation of the above plan still has potennal nisks in
case of not winning the bid for the above projecis.

2. Key tasks and solutions:

To simve o complete the set plan, PETROCONs has set out key tasks and
solutions to be implemented m 2025, specifically:

21 Production and business:

Documents of the 2025 Annwal General Meeting of Shareholders- PETROCONS




- Sirive to complete/over-fulfill key economic targets and tasks set out in the
2025 plan.

= Build models and deploy appropriate management methods such as: fluctuation
management, value chain management, ecosystem management, digital-based
management, etc.; Thoroughly implement the moito of “renewing old metivation,
adding new motivation” and be ready to transform the business model in line with the
trend of transformation and modem development.

= Orgamze and implement well the annual management plan of PETROCONs
and its units. Focus on effectively controlling cosis, especially large cost centers;
minimize losses due to market impacts, ete.

- Focus on directing the implementation of construction contracts and transitional
projecis to ensure completion on schedule and gquality according to the requirements of
the Coniractor, at the same tme, exceedfachieve efficiency according to the
implementation plan approved by the PETROCONs Board of Directors.

= Closely follow the production and business plans. investment plans of the
Ciroup and its subsidiaries, promote the search for marketing information, bid for the
provision of industrial constmuction, electricity, and infrastructure services in projecis
mside and outside the imndustry. At the same time, orgamze full preparaton and
readiness of human resources, matenals and implementation plans to increase the rate
of winming bids and the effectiveness of implementing bidding packages.

= Complete the settlement of contracts/projecis thai have been constructed such
as; EPC of Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project, Song Hau | Thermal Power
Plant project, Vung Ang | Thermal Power Plant project. Nghi Son Refinery and
Quang Trach Power Center. At the same fime, carry out settlement with subcontractors
in projects in the direction of negotiating costs to reduce payable debts, reduce capital
coslts in works/projecis.

= Control and use costs to emsure savings, associaied with production and
business results and achieve the highest efficiency for the Corporation.

= Strengthen the direction, control and supervision of production and business
activities at member units, striving that by 2025, the Corporation will not have to set
aside financial investment provisions for capital contributions at units consolidating
financial statements.

2.2, Restructuring:

- Continue to implement the restructuring plan of PETROCONs under the
Resolution No. 332/NQ-XLDK-DHDCD dated October 11, 2022 by the PETROCONs
General Meeting of Shareholders on approving the restructuring plan of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation for the 2021-2025 period and the direction of the
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PETROCONs Board of Directors in the Document No. 109HDQT-VBNB dated
Ohetober 8, 2024,

- Research, evaluate and have a restructuring plan on the model and organization
of operations for ineffective units/depariments.

- Review, evaluate and rearrange the orgamzational structure and personnel to
ensure a streamlined structure and quality suitable to the work source and resources of
the Corporation. Focus on training, education and supplementing the workforce in
areas identified as key in the next phase such as Bidding Marketing, Project
Management and other supporting areas.

- Review and amend the system of internal regulations and rules of
PETROCONs 1o ensure consistency and synchronizalion between/within the
regulations and miles, while ensuring compliance with current regulations of the State
and the charter of PETROCONS.

2.3, Finance and resource wiifization:

- Based on the assessment on classification of debts for PVN and PVN's member
uniis at the projects that PETROCONs has been and 15 implementing: urgently develop
a specitfic and detalled plan o effectively carry out debt collection, supplement
working capital for production and busmess activities m the coming time.

- For debts at member uniis and other pariners: review receivables and payables,
the value of unfinished volume at works/projects. make a detailed plan on debt
collection/handling 1n 2025 and be resolute in the work of acceptance, settlement, debt
collecion, handling/offsetting cross-debis to ensure capital recovery for
PETROCONs' production and business actrvities.

- Make a plan and pay loans related to investment in Lam Kinh Hotel and Thai
Binh Hotel in 2025.

- Continue to amrange sources and urge units to arrange sources, supplement
collateral/repay for PVN's entrusted loans through Oceanbank. Direct the
representatives of PETROCONs' capital at units borrowing from banks puaranteed by
PETROCONs to work with credit imstimtions to resolve PETROCONs' loan
guarantees for units.

- Focus on consolidating and perfecting financial management and accounting
work throughout the Corporation to ensure compliance with the provisions of law, the
CGroup and the Corporation. Strengthen supervision of economic management,
busmess accounting, contract management and cost management {0 ensure maximum
profits from production and business activities
4. Investmeni:

- Proactively work and implement the requirements of competent authorities to
recover the investmen: value at Soai Rap, recover/handle the Tam Dao land.
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- Organize the implementation of management and research mvestment options
to maximize the efficiency of existing assets such as Chwa Ha land, Ceniral
Mechanical Workshop. Tam Dao land (in case of not being handled vet): ensure cash
flow for production and business activities, increasing the asset use efficiency of
PETROCONs.

- Review, analyze and evaluate the level of necessity, demand and ensure
efficiency in basic construction mvestment and equipment/asset procurement 1n 2025
of the parent company/member units, submit the resulis to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation for approval before implementation.

The above is the 2024 operation report of Board of Directors of PETROCONs
and the 2025 operation plan. The Board of Directors respectfully reports to the General
Meeting of Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Y ours Sincerely.J.

Seni fo; FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
- As above; BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Board of Directors; Board of Supervisors; CHAIRMAN

Board of Menagement {e-copy);
- Kept at- Archives Department, Board of
Mrectors,

Nghiem Quang Huy
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

Ha Noi, _.....day......momth.... 2025

REPORT

ON THE OPERATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS BY THE
INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

To: 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

My name 15 Pham Van Khanh, born on February 3, 1960, qualification: Geology
Engineer, Master of Business Administration, Doctor of Economics.

I was elected by the 2020 Apnual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Petrovienam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (Corporation/PETROCONS) on
June 24, 2020 as an Independent Member of the Board of Directors (BOD) for the
2020-2025 term.

As an Independent Member of the Board of Drectors of PETROCONSs, | would
like to report the General Meeting of Shareholders on the evaluation results on the
activities of the Board of Directors of PETROCONs and the work | have done from
January |, 2024 1o December 31, 2024, specifically:

1. Evaluation on activities of Board of Directors of PETROCONSs

- The Board of Directors of PETROCONs operates/works in accordance with: 1)
The Charter of PETROCONs approved by the Anmual General Meeting of
Shareholders; 1) PETROCONs" miernal repulations on governance approved by
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders; 111} The operating regulations of
the Board of Directors approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders;
) PETROCONSs internal regulations and current legal regulations.

- Working principles of the Board of Directors: 1) The Board of Directors operates
on the principle of collective, majority decision; 11) The members of the Board of
Dhrectors are responsible for their assigned tasks and are responsible before the
Cieneral Meeting of Shareholders and the law for all Resolutions/Decisions of the
Board of Directors in the management activities of the Corporation; m1) The
Board of Directors assigns tasks to the members of the Board of Directors in
charge of professional fields and supervises the activities of PETROCONs.
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The Board of Directors approves the contents under its authority as prescribed in
the Corporation’s Charter, the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders
and the Intemal Regulatons/Regulations of PETROCONs. The General
Director’s statements/documents submitted to the Board of Directors for
approval are made by collecting the opinions of each Board Member in the
Opinion Form or exchanging/discussion at the Board of Directors meeting.

The Board of Directors meetings are held periodically according to the Internal
Regulations on Governance, the Board of Directors organizes exiraordinary
meetings subject to the nature of the work to be handled/approved. In addition,
the Board of Directors and the General Director have organized monthly
meetings with Departments/Divisions, member units, meetings to review the
mplementation status at the Thali Bmh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project. the
restructuring work, debi collection, meetings with pariners/cooperators. In
addition, the Board of Directors assigns Board members to attend meetings with
the Board of Directors to supervise the implementation of the Board of Directors®
Resolutions and Decisions in production and business activities.

The Board of Direciors does not establish any affihated  sub-commitiees,
currently, the Corporation has 01 person i charge of admmisiration and the
Secretary of the Corporation.

The Board of Directors 15 supervised by the PETROCONs Board of Supervisors,
all Resolutions/Decisions/Documents of the Board of Directors are sent to the
Board of Supervisors.

By December 31, 2024, the Board of Directors of PETROCONs has (5
members, mcluding 01 mdependent member of the Board of Directors, with the
full number and structure as prescribed in the Charter.

In 2024, the world economic and political situation confinues to be complicated
and unpredictable; the global economy grows slowly, the financial, monetary and
real estate markets have many potential nsks; exchange rates, interest rates,
gasoline prices and Input matenals have many negative fluctuabons, causing
difficulties for the production and business activities of construction enterprises
in general and PETROCONs in particular. In addion, PETROCONs 15 also
affected by difficulties in arranging investment capital and site arrangements by
mvestors, leading to a limited source of new construchon contracts in the market.
In addition to the objective difficulties of the economy, PETROCONs sull has
many internal problems such as: lack of capital, low competitiveness,
management limitations, leading to the unsatisfactory implementation of
PETROCONs" 2024 production and business plan.

Report on the work | have done in 2024




- Working regime:

+ 1 work irregularly at PETROCONs headquariers or go on business itrips
according to the assignment of fasks by the Board of Directors.

+ | fully participate in Board of Directors meetings and fully submit opimions on
Opinion Forms.

- Remumeration: Up to now, PETROCONs has fully paid the remuneration of
Independent Members of the Board of Directors in accordance with the annual
remuneration regime approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- In the past year, | have tried to perform my duties well, fully performing the role
and duties of an mdependent member of the Board of Directors in accordance
with the Enterpnise Law, the Charter of the Corporation, the Board of Directors’
Operating Repulations and other relevant legal provisions in managing the
production and business activities of PETROCONS.

- According to the assignment of tasks of the Board of Directors, in addition to
fully performing the general duties of a member of the Board of Directors, | am
also assigned to be directly responsible for the following areas:

+ Supervise and orgamize the management and operation of the Corporation based
on the penodic/ad hoc reports of the General Director submitted to the Board of
Directors:

+ Evaluation report on activities of the Board of Directors;

+ Monitor and supervise unit prices, norms and economics;

The above 15 the report of the Independent Member of the Board of Directors of
Petrovieinam Construction Jomt Stock Corporation at the 2025 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders. 1 hereby respectfully report to the General Meeting!

Yours Sincerely./.

Sent to: INDEPENDENT MEMBER OF

- A5 phove;
- Board of Dircotors of PETROCONS (reporting), BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pham Van Khanh
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No.: /BC-XLDK Ha Noi, ......day...... month._.. 2025

REPORT
ON THE 2024 PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS RESULTS
AND THE 2025 PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS PLAN

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

PART 1
PERFORMANCE RESULTS OF THE CORPORATION'S TASKS IN 2024
I.  GENERAL SITUATION

In 2024, the world economic and political situation continues to be complicated
and unpredictable; the global economy grows slowly, the financial, monetary and real
estate markets have many potential risks; exchange rates, interest rates, gasoline and
o1l prices and input materials have many negative fluctuations, cansing difficulties for
the production and business activities of construction enterprises in general and the

Petrovieinam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (PETROCONs/Corporation) in
particular.

In addition, PETROWONSs 15 also affected by difficulties in arranging investment

capital and site arrangements by investors, leading to a limited source of new
construction contracts in the market.

In addition to the objective difficulties of the economy, PETROCONs still has
many internal problems such as: lack of capital, low competitiveness, management
limitations, etc. leading to the unsatisfactory implementation of some of
PETROCONs' 2024 production and business plan targets

II. PERFORMANCE RESULTS OF MAIN ECONOMIC TARGETS

Based on the 2024 production and business plan approved by the General
Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) in the Resolution No. YO'NQ-DHCD-XLDK dated
May 23, 2024 of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the entire

PETROCONS has strived to carry out production and business tasks with the following
results:
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2024 Plan
comple
Implement tion | 2024/
No. ltems Unit ntligzjln Approv | Impleme perui-nt Ig?]n
ed plan | ntation i | ()
2024
(%a)
[ Eredietianan Hillion 91238 | 1,532.00 | 98288 |  64% | 108%
business value dong
Parent compary ‘?;:ii” 441.36 | 8%400| 26184 30% | 359%
7 | Total revenues Eﬂ;i“ 1237.96 | 1,704.00 | 131787  77% | 106%
Parent comparny El;:i::r TGS 74 | 1.0535.00 LR 538% A%
i | Pre-tax profits Hitlisn (267.12) 3.70 481 130%
dong
Purent company it (162.63) 048 412 43%
dlemgr
- Billion . =
4 Adfter-tax profits [265.22) 3.70 2.61 71%0
dong
Parent compary i f162.63) 048 472 43%
dlongr
5 | State budget payable Bﬁ;‘;" 41.05 47.00 4914 | 105% | 120%
Parent comparny ‘5:;”’“" .67 1400 3181 27| 36%
NI
6 | Averape income Mullion 10.58 10.84 11.42 |  105% | 108%
dong
Parent company ,mmttr:l 13.23% 1325 {325 TNy | FENEs

The total production and business value of the entire PETROCONs 15 98288
billion dong, reaching 64% of the 2024 plan and equal to 108% compared to

2023; The paremt company alone is 26184 billion dong. reaching 30%% of the
2024 plan and equal to 59% compared to 2023.

The total revenue of the entire PETROCONSs 15 1.317.87 lllion dong. reaching
7% of the 2024 plan and equal to 106% compared to 2023; The parent company
alone is 609.04 billion dong, reaching 58% of the 2024 plan and equal 10 80%

compared to 2023,

The total pre-tax profit of the entire PETROCONS 15 4.8]1 hillion dong, reaching
130% of the 2024 plan; total after-tax profit of the entire PETROCONs 15 2.61

billion dong. The parent company's profit is 4.12 billion dong, equivalent to 43%

of the 2024 plan.
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- The owner's equity of the parent company PETROCONs as of December 31,
2024 is 311.53 hillion dong, an increase of 1.34% compared to the beginning of
the year.

- The accumulated loss of the parent company as of December 31, 2024 1s
3.765.93 billion dong.

Ill. PERFORMANCE RESULTS OF OTHER TASKS
1. Construction work of key works/projects

The construction status of some works/projects of PETROCONS 15 as follows:
»  Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project:

PETROCONs continues to implement the remaining sub-items. handling the
arising backlog. In 2024, the State Inspection Council for Construction Acceptance
{State Inspection Council) approved the conditional acceptance of the Units
Notice No. 3895/ TB-HDKTNN dated July 8, 2024, On July 10, 2024, the Investor
1ssued the Handover Certificate for Unit 1, Unit 2 and shared items (except for Coal
Loader No. 3, Coal Warehouse No. 3 and the remaining works in process). On July
19, 2024, the Elecinic Power Trading Company (EPTC) recognized the commercial
operation date of the Plant starting from 8:00 am. on July 19, 2024. By early August
2024, the project officially participated in the National Electricity Market.

Regarding the project settlement, PETROCONs has coordinated with the Thai
Binh 2 Petroleum Power Project Management Board to sign the minutes to determine
the settlement value of some items, However, the project settlement progress 15 still
slow due to some problems related to the determination of price adjustment plan,
supplementing new norms/unit prices, contract rewards and penalties, supplementing
some cost items, ete. PETROCONs is continuing to request the Investor/Project
Management Board to support in settlement.

PETROCONs has negotiated debt reduction of over 38 billion dong with
contractors such as Sojit, Quingiao, Sotec and some other customers.

Regarding the dispute between the SDC/DL E&C consortium and PETROCONs
regarding EPS Contract No. 3WHDKT2012/PVC-SDC dated May 22, 2012:
PETROCONs has established a Dispute Resolution Group and hired a legal
consultancy unit to support the implementation/follow-up of the lawsuit. In addition,
PETROCONs continues to negotiate outside of litigation to move towards a negotiated
settlement.

»  Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant Project:

- Contract CI1/SHI-LLM-PYC&GEOVN on foundation treatment: The contract
seftlement 15 still pending because Lilama must complete the EPC contract
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settlement with the Investor before seitling the corresponding settlement with
PETROCONSs.

- Contract CI15/5HI1-LLM-PYC on the construction of construction items:
Currently, the project has been completed. General Contractor Lilama has
terminated the Contract Performance Guarantee of the EPC Contract and moved
on to the warranty work with the Investor. Regarding the approval of the official
unit price as the basis for settlement, PETROCOMNs has coordinated with General
Contractor Lilama to protect the cost estimate with the consulting unit PECC |
however, according to the Estimate Appraisal Report that PECC | sent to the
Investor, the contractor’'s explanations have not been updated. Currently,
PETROCONs is continuing to request the Project Management Board/General
Contractor to consider resolving the problems, at the same time, coordinate with
Gieneral Contracior Lilama to prepare payment/settlement documents.

- Construction and repair works at Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant: In 2024,
PETROCONs won the bid and signed 02 confracts to removate and repair a
number of items at Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant. Currently, construction
work 15 being carmed out on the set schedule.

»  Southem Petroleum Institute Office Project:

= Phase I: In 2024, PETROCONs coordinated with the construction contractor
PVC-IC to carry oul warranty repairs of existing problems according to the
meeting minutes with the investor on September 9, 2024, On December 4, 2024,
the parties agreed on the contents of the Minutes of Acceptance of Repair and
Warranty Work, The Investor has signed the settlement documents and reported
to the Group, currently waiting for the Group to approve the settlement
documents for phase 1.

- Phase 2: In 2024, at the Vietnam International Arbitration Center (VIAC), the
parties agreed to mediate all disputes over the number of delayed days for each
item and agreed on the penalty for delay in phase 2. On November 18, 2024, the

Investor met with the Supervision Consultant and the construction unit to review
and agree on handling the problems regarding the settlement documents.

PETROCONs completed the signing of Supplemental Appendix No. 19 with the
Petroleum Institute on October 24, 2024 and submitted the Settlement Document

to the Project Management Consultant for review and confirmation for approval
by the Investor.

#  Project of upgrading DCS system of unit 57 - Uong Bi Thermal Power Plant: By
December 9, 2024, PETROCONs has completed 100% of the constructon volume

under the signed contract. Currently, PETROCONs 15 coordinating with the general
coniractor to complete the construction sieps to determine the pavment volume.
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#  Project of supplying and installing mverters for smoke fans of unit 52 of Vinh
Tan 2 Thermal Power Plant: The work within the scope of PETROCONs has been
basically completed. Currently, PETROCONs has actively coordinated with the parties
to complete the gualiy documents for acceptance with the Investor to fulfill the
obligations in the contract.

L

#  Construction project of slag disposal site, water collection tower, return water
pipeline of CQuang Trach | Thermal Power Plant: PETROCONSs" work progress is until
August 2025, currently being implemented under the plan.

2.  Restructuring

According to the restructuring plan for the 2021-2025 period approved by the
Creneral Meeting of Shareholders, in 2024, PETROCONs has deployved the following
specific tasks:

- The Board of Directors of PETROCONs has 1ssued the PETROCONs" Action
Program on implementing the restructuring contents of PETROCONs untl the end
of 2025 in the Document No. 13/XLDK-HDQT dated February 1, 2024.

- Reviewmng the entire current situation and actual restructunng of the parent
company and potenfial member units; thereby, proposing solutions to organize
production and business activities so that by the end of 2025, the difficulties and
problems of the parent company and member units will be maximally resolved,
eradually restonng production and business activities.

- Orgamizing implementation, assipmng tasks i the Board of Management,
departments and directing PETROCONs" Capital Fepresentatives at units to
implement restructuring solutions for the parent company and member units
approved by the Board of Directors.

- Implementing procedures to post information about the divesiment plan on media
(electronic newspapers/papers, eic.) to promoie and attract interesied mvestors to
accelerate the divestment plan at units.

- Strengthening production and business activities for core units by assigning tasks
to the Corporation’s Capital Representatives at PVC-MS and DOBC to
mplement the restructuring plan for the 2023-2025 period based on the
assessment of the current situation and the developed restructuring plan o ensure
the goals of being a core unit of PETROCONs. The roadmap for the 2024-2025
period is to have positive profits. redoce accumulated losses and improve
financial capacity to increase marketing opportunities for bidding for new
projects. In 2024, PVC-MS will eamm a profit of 10.67 billion dong. DOBC will
earn a profit of 1.22 hillion dong.

- Supporting PVC-Duyen Har to carry out procedures to apply for a certificate of
land use righiz and assets on the land plot No. 441, Da Nang Street, Dong Hai |
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Ward, Hai An District, Hai Phong City at the request of Hai Phong City
Department of MNatural Resources and Environment to provide records and
documents under the Decision No. 2105/QD-BCT on determining the enterpnise
value and approving the setilement of the equitization of PTSC Corporation, 1n
which the list of assets that have been included in the enterprise value upon
equitization i1s declared. Currently. the Department of Natural Resources and
Environment is in the review and appraisal process.

3. Economic, financial, accounting and auditing contract
3.1, Marketing, bidding and signing of economic contracts:
% Project/contract signing:

The parent company PETROCONs has won the bid and signed 05 new contracts
with a total value of about 52 billion dong: Procurement of equipment and mstallation
of frequency converters to control smoke fans of unit 52 with a value of 5.6 hillion
dong; Construction of slag disposal site, water collection tower, return water pipeline -
Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project with a value of 31.795 hillion dong;
Renovation of the operation building of Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant Project with
a value of 2.695 billion dong; Renovation and repair of equupment washing and slag
disposal area of Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant with a value of 658 million dong
and Supply of Level 1A Pump for Cao Ngan Thermal Power Plant with a value of
11.33 hllion dong. Currently, in addition to the contract at Cao Ngan Thermal Power
Plant with a construction period of 20235, other bid packages have been implemented
on schedule.

At member units, 45 contracts/contract appendices were signed with a total value
of approcxamately 1,200 billion dong, adding work sources including: PVC-MS signed
|8 new contracts with a total value of 861.4 bilhion dong (including 3 major projects:
Topside Phu Quoc with a value of 485 billion dong, Lac Da Vang base fabrication
with a value of 143.5 billion dong, P15 project with a value of 13K billion dong);
DOBC signed 15 new confracts/contract appendices with a total value of R0.7 billion
dong; PYC-Binh Son signed 6 new contracts with a total value of 27 30 billion dong;
PVC-TB signed 01 new contract with a value of 121.73 hillion dong; PETROCONSs-
Dong Do signed 03 new contracts with a total value of approximately 87.3 billion
dong; PVC-Duven Hai signed 02 new contracts with a total value of about 17.82
billion dong.

& Bidding marketing:

In 2024, due to many mvestors” difficulty in arranging capital and problems with
legal and admmistrabive procedures, the project implementation progress has been
stopped/delayed. In additon, PETROCONs" capacity 15 sull limited. Therefore, in
spite of being very active in marketing and bidding in 2024, the set targets have not
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been achieved. leading to lower output and revenue compared 1o the plan
PETROCONS 1s contimung to coordinate with pariners/joini ventures to participate in
bidding/prepanng for bidding packages at the projects: Joint venture with Telico
Company to id for filling and ground treatment packages at the Lot B - O Mon Gas
Pipeline Project; Joint venture with TITAN Electromechanical Joint Stock Company
to bid for the C&l Replacement Matenals Procurement Package (DCS System) for
Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant (The winning bid lztter has been received.
Currently, the contractor consartium is Regoliating contracts and preparing resources
Jfor construction); Joint venture with Duc Anh Company to bid for the package of
Supplying grinding ball, lining plate and grinding tank tightening parts for electricity
production of Pha Lai Thermal Power Joint Stock Company: Bidding for Supplymg
poods and services for repairing high pressure heater No. 3 - Duyen Hai 3 expanded
Thermal Power Plant, etc.

PETROCONs continues to prepare and complete bidding documents and plans to
be ready and timely pariicipate m bidding when there is official information for the
projects of Long Phu 1 Thermal Power Plant, O Mon 4 Thermal Power Plant, Nam
Dinh Waste-to-Energy Plant, Supply of furnace water circulation pumps (including
motors and pumps) - Quang Ninh Thermal Power Joint Stock Company. etc.

In addition, PETROCONs regularly follows up and works with domestic and
foreign partners to implement projects that are preparing for bidding, at the same time,
seeks and selects potential partners who can cooperate for future projects.

3.1, Finance, accounting and auditing:

- Complete the approval of the 2023 management cost settlement of the
Corporation and the Boards of Directors of the Parent Company; the
management cost basically follows the approved estimate. Approve the 2024
management cost plan of the Parent Company of the Corporation.

- Balance cash flow, arrange capital for projects and regular expenses. Balance
resources, camy oul procedures for extendingfissuing guarantees at credit
mstitutions for Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project and PETROCONs
projects to be constructed in 2024,

- The outstanding principal as of December 31, 2024 is 575.6 billion dong, of
which PETROCONs must collect from the following units: 344.6 billion dong
{including: Lam Kmh Hotel: 200 hllion dong: PVC-8G: 1283 billion dong;
PVYNC: 163 billion dong); the amount PETROCONs uses: 230.99 billion dong.
As of March 31, 2025, the mterest PETROCONSs still has to pay PVN 152 175.28
billion dong, of which: Unpaid interest i due time: 9.01 billion dong; Penalty
tor late payment of interest and principal: 8528 hillion dong. Currently,
PETROCONs 1s continuing to propose PVN 1o submit to competent authonities
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4.1

4.2,

for consideraton and approval to waive and reduce these due/overdue interest
EXPENSES.

By the end of 2024, PETROCONs stll has guarantees for member units to
borrow capital of 155.04 bilhon dong (of which, PVC-HN: 73.67 billion dong;
PVC-ME: 64.27 billion dong; PVC-5G: 1710 billion dong). These guarantees
are all overdue, PETROCONs has set aside provisions for payable obligations up
to the present time: 137.94 billion dong. In 2024, there will be no arising issues
related to the units regarding guarantees, setting aside provisions for guarantees.

Total recervables of PETROCONs Parent Company as of December 31, 2024 15
2.533.33 hillion dong, accumulated provisions of 878.24 billion dong. The
provision as of the end of 2024 decreased by 47.64 billion dong compared to the
beginning of the yvear due to the review and handling of cross-debt with umts.

Investment

Financial investment

In 2024, PETROCONs will not make any capital investments outside the
enterprise. As of December 31, 2024, PETROCONs' parent company has
contributed capital in 25 units with an invesiment value of 2,326.55 billion dong.
Of which, 1,384.91 billion dong in 07 subsidiaries. 735.45 billion dong in
associated units (1 | units) and 20620 billion dong in other financial investments
(07 units).

Accumulated provision for devaluation of financial investments as of December
31, 2024 is 1.810.13 billion dong, equivalent to 77.8% of the total value of
PETROCONs" financial imvestments. The total provision for devaluation of
financial investments in 2024 is 12,76 billion dong.

Real estate investmeni, basic construction, infrasiruciure and procurement of
machinery and equipment

In 2024, the parent company PETROCONSs and s subsidianies will not carry out
basic construction invesiment and procurement of machinery and equipment.

Divestment/capital recovery/asset management, projecis of the parent
cOmpany:

Transfer of Soai Rap - Tien Giang project: On July 31, 2024, PETROCONs 1ssued
the Document No. 16T/ XLDK-KHBPT&TCC reporting to the Prime
Mimister/Deputy Pnme Mimister Le Minh KhayTien Giang Province People's
Committee to propose mstructions on payment of costs to Soal Rap Petroleum
Service Industnal Park project, Tien Giang. In which it is recommended: (i)
Consider, gmde and pay the costs i the Soal Rap Pefroleum Service Industrial
Park project to PYN and PETROCONSs; (i1) In case there 15 no plan to pay the
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mvested costs to PYN/PETROCONs, we respectfully request the Pnime Minister
to hand over the Soa1 Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Park project, Tien Giang to
PYN/PETROCONs as the investor so that the parties can continue to invest with
therr own resources and seek pariners with sufficient capacity and expenence to
cooperate and continue to invest in completing the project; thereby promoting the
efficiency of land use, creating revenue for the local budget and enterprises. On
August 7, 2024, the Government Office issued the Document No. 1974/PC-VPCP
to the Mimstry of Planning and Investment and Tien Giang province People’s
Committee to reguest them to resolve PETROCONMs' petition according to
regulations.

At the request of the Departiment of Finance of Tien Giang province in the Official
Letter No. 2739/STC-TCDT-DN dated September 13, 2024 and Official Letter
No. 343/STC-TCDTDN by the Department of Finance dated October 7, 2024, the
Corporation has sent the Official Letter No. 1533/XLDK-KHDT&TCC dated
October 16, 2024 to Tien (nang province Depariment of Finance to provide all
documents related to the mvestment costs of PETROCONs. The Group has also
provided documents about the cosis implemented by the Group at the Soai Rap
Petroleum Service Industrial Park project for Tien Giang province Department of
Finance.

On February 19, 2025, PETROCONs representatives attended the meeting
according to Inwitation Letter No. 725/GM-STNMT by Tien Giang province
Department of Natural Resources and Environment. Accordingly, at the meeting,
the departments and branches of Tien Giang province proposed to refund the costs
that PVN had invested in the project. PETROCONs will also receive back the
costs imvested in the project after deducting the penalty for late payment of the
coniract between DOBC and PETROCONs (according to the conclusion of the
State Audit) and the depreciabion of nfrasmucture (temporary roads, temporary
power lines, welcome gates) from 2014 to 2018.

On March 27, 2025, Tien Giang province People’s Committee sent a notice of the
value of assets invested on land at the Soai Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Park

Project to the Group and the Corporation, accordingly PETROCONs was refunded
126,434 billion dong. Currently, the Corporation 1s reviewing and submitting the
refunded investment value to the Board of Directors for consideration and
approval.

- Central Mechanical Workshop Project: Currently, PETROCONSs is coordinating
with PVC-MT to promote the search for smtable customers to cooperate in the
exploitation of the Mechamcal Workshop site.

- Land plot at Chua Ha: The land plot at No. 01, Lane 86, Chua Ha Sireet, Dich
Vong ward, Cau Giay district, Hanei city has a land lease term of 20 years from
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January 1. 1996 to January |, 2016 and the land lease coniract has now expired.
The Corporation 1s carrying out procedures to extend the land lease contract
(including: measuring and drawing the current status map, requesting red hine
boundanes, requesting planming information, reviewing the current status of land
use, etc.).

- Regarding the 3.400m” land plot in Tam Dao town, Vinh Phuc province, which
Mai Phuong Company returned to PETROCONs under the Decision of Hanoi
city Civil Judgment Enforcement Department: On September 27, 2024,
PETROCONSs received the on-site handover of the land plot under the witness of
the competent authorities. On November 19, 2024, PETROCONs received the
Land Use Rights Certificate from the High People’s Court in Hanot for the land
plot in Tam Dao. On December 5, 2024, PETROCONs worked with Vinh Phuc
Province Land Registraion Office on the regstration of transfermng the
ownership of 3 400m2 land at plot No. 6, map No. 20 i Village 1. Tam Dao
town, Tam Dao distnict, Vinh Phuc province o PETROCONs.

On March 25, 2025, PETROCONSs sent the Document No. 320/XLDK-PC to the
Vimh Phuc Province Land Registration Office, Vimh Phuc Province Depariment
of Agriculture and Environment and the Vinh Phuc Province People's
Committee regarding the completion of procedures for registration of changes in
the owner of the above land plot. Vinh Phuc Province Department of Agriculture
and Environment has given specific instructions and PETROCONs is currently
preparing the documents.

6. Other tasks

= In 2024, PETROCONs actively coordinated with law consulting umits to carry
out legal work to ensure the legitimate nghts and interests of PETROCONs m
tawsuits and judgment enforcement related to PETROCONs such as: disputes
between PETROCONSs and SDXC, debt collection of PVR, disputes with Lisemco,
judgment enforcement in the lawsunt of domestic transporiation clearance
coniract dispute with Thanh Trang-Tagi joint veniure, etc. Conclusion in the
judgments: PVR must pay PETROCONs 49 billion dong, Lisemco must return
assets to PETROCONSs or equivalent to 40 billion dong in cash, Thanh Trang-
Tagt must pay 23 billion dong. Currently, PETROCONs is continuing to work

with the authorities to request the settlement of judgment enforcement and appeal
of the PVE lawsuit because PVR has filed an appeal.

- The 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of PETROCONs was
successfully held. Documents were reviewed; member units were supported to
hold annual/extraordinary general meetings of shareholders m 2024.

- Completed the official assessment of the level of fulfillment of duties and
responsibilines of PETROCONs Representatives at other enterprises in 2023;
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Completed the Capital Representatives at member umits, ensuring compliance
with the production and business situation of the uniis.

- At the parent company, the Corporation has carried out the work of staffing and
arranging the use of labors at the Corporation’s Office in 2024 and evaluated the
performance of employees at the Corporation’s Departments/Offices. In 2024,
the parent company reduced 21 people compared to December 31, 2023,

=  As of December 31, 2024, the total number of employees of the Corporation
{including the parent company and (07 controlling companies): 1,279 people. The
estimated average income in 2024 of the entire group is 1142 million
dong/person/month, equal to 105% of the plan (mainly increasing the average
meome at some units with profitable business results such as PVC-MS, DOBC).
In particular, the estimaied average income of the parent company 1s [3.25
million dong/person/month (corresponding to the salary under the labor contract)
equal to 100% of the plan and equal to the average income in 2023,

- In human resource training and development, in 2024, the entire Corporation
group will implement 3.42 billion dong, reaching 95% of the plan for 2024 with
1.613 trained people:. At the parent company PETROCONs, 875 mllion dong
was spent on 18] trainees, including training courses funded by PETROCONSs,
training courses funded by the Vietnam National Industry-Energy Group and
staff assigned to attend training courses organized by the Group.

IV. CAUSES AND WEAKNESSES, LIMITATIONS

In 2024, PETROCONs did not complete the planned production and business
value and revenue, mainly due to:

- The 2024 plan targets were developed by PETROCONs and submitted to the
2024 Anmual General Meeting of Shareholders based on the expected
participation, winning bids and starting construction of projects: Housing area for
employees of Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant project, Phu My Polypropylene
Plant, Yen Hung LPG Plant and the project of expanding some items of Ca Mau
Fertilizer Plant. However, due to many fmancial and legal problems of the
Investor, up to now, some projects have not been able to be implemented for
bidding and the bidding/commencement deadline has been extended to 2025, In
addition, PETROCONs" bidding marketing apparatus 15 still weak: limited
financial capacity, almost no machmery and egquipment capacity, low
competitiveness leading to failure in bidding some projects/bid packages
{Construction of the cooling water channel from the receiving gate to the
StopLog of the cooling water pumping station - Quang Trach | Thermal Power
Plant Project, Housing area for employees of Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant,
etc.). Therefore, all plans for output value, revenue and profit of PETROCONs
from the above projecis cannot be implemented in 2024,
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The settlement of bidding packages C11, CI5 of the Song Hau | Thermal Power
Plant project 1s still slow, due to the prolonged time in the work of unifying the
adjustment of unit prices and reviewing the estimates; At the same time, the
general contractor Lilama must complete the EPC contract setilement with the
Investor before making the corresponding settlement with PETROCONSs.

Currently, PETROCONs still has weaknesses and limitations that negatively

affect production and business activities such as:

The financial situation of PETROCONs and its member units is very limited, the
capacity profile/financial report does not meet the requirements of most of the
bidding packages that PETROCONSs and its member units wish to participate in,
leading to difficulties in marketing and bidding to find new sources of work:

The techmical workforce is still weak and lacking. For a long time, PETROCONs
hias not participated m marketing and bidding but has mainly been assigned to
bid, so 1ts marketing and bidding capacity is poor, especially the bid price is not
updated and lacks competitiveness

The setilement of contracts between PETROCONs and the Investor as well as
between PETROCON: and subconiractors m completed projects/works 1s still
slow, facing many obstacles such as waiting for competent authornties to approve
the arising value, no cooperation of subcontractors, lack of personnel to
coordinate the setilement, etc.

Due to the impact of polibcal and economic fluctuations in the world, the source
of mmput materials such as ron, steel, energy, etc. has increased, many projects
have not signed the appendix to adjust the contract price, leading to the slow
implementation by units.

Many member units of PETROCONSs still have outstanding loans from real estate
projects, currently facing great difficulties in restructuring loans, divesting assets,
having to bear huge depreciation costs and nterest expenses every month while
the explomtation efficiency 1s low, leading to large business losses. The parent
company PETROCONs must make provisions to reduce the value of financial
investments at the units.

Debt settlement and collection of due/overdue debts of PETROCONs and its
units still have many bad debts, especially cross-debts between units in projects.
Most PETROCONs" member units are currently facing difficulties in production
and business activities and finance, the assets of the units are either non-existent
or have been pledged/mortgaged, so the units cannot arrange resources to fulfill
their debt repayment obligations to PETROCONs.

Investment divestment at some units is still slow. During the performance
process, because most units in PETROCONs" divestment plan makes losses or
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haves large accumulated losses, it 1s very difficult to find out pariners that accept

the transfer.

PART 11

THE 2025 PRODUCTION AND BUSINESS PLAN

In 2025, PETROCONs continues to face many challenges m carrying out
production and business tasks, difficulties in finding sources of work as well as

continue -to- emerge potential risks. PETROCONSs has developed a 2025 plan and
targets to present to the General Meeting of Shareholders, specifically:

L. 2025 PLAN AND KEY TASKS
1. Main economic indicators
Uinit: billion domg
Yo
s 2025 plan /
No. ltems Plan 2025 plan 024
Plan Img::::lmt completion implement
percentage ation
. | Frodustion and 1,532.00 9R2 8RR 64% | 134500 137%
business value
FParent comgany WLERLH 26184 3 33200 2T
2 | Total revenues 1,704.00 131787 TT% 1,707.00 130%,
FParent company 105500 Al {14 Fi% 70600 131%
3 Pre-tax profits 1.70 4. 81 130% 456 95%
Parent company V.48 4.12 43% 372 i
4 | After-tax profits 370 261 1% 4.56 175%
Parent company 48 4.12 43% 372 9t
5, | TR 47.00 49.14 105% 58,00 118%
pavihble
FParent comgany I4.00 381 2% w00 236%
Average income
{mullion
& dong/person/mont 1084 11.42 105% 11.90 104%
h)
Parent company 1325 13.25 Tihrs 14,10 I0n6%s

The 2025 production and revenue plan of the Consolidated Company and the

parent company PETROCONs 15 made on the basis of completing construction and

recovering capital at transitional projects from 2024 (Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant

project, bidding packages at Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant project, Uong Bi Thermal
Power Plant, Vinh Tan 2 Thermal Power Plant, Quang Trach as well as projects that
have signed contracts and projects that PETROCONs plans to market and participate in
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bidding such as foundation treatment and leveling of Mui Tram station and An Minh
station - Lot B - O Mon pipeline, Housing area for employees of That Binh 2 Thermal
Power Plant, O Mon 4 Thermal Power Plant project, bidding packages at Long Phu |
Thermal Power Plant project, Hydrogen peroxide production plant project, etc.
However, the implementation of the above plan still has potential nsks in case of failure
to become a successful contractor of the above projects.

2.  Key tasks and solutions

To sirive to complete the set plan, PETROCONs has set out key tasks and
solutions m 2025, specifically:

2.1. Production and business:

- Smmive 1o complete/over-fulfill key economic targets and tasks set out m the 2025
plan.

- Build models and deploy appropriate management methods such as: {luctuation
management, value chaln management, ecosystem management, digital-based
management, etc.; Thoroughly implement the motto of “renewing old motivation,
adding new motivation” and be ready to transform the business model i Iine with the
trend of transformation and modern development.

= Focus on effectively controlling costs, especially large cost centers. mumimize
losses due to market impacts, eic.

= Focus on directing the implementation of construction contracis and transitional
projects to ensure completion on schedule and quality according to the requirements of
the Coniractor, at the same btme, exceed/achieve efficiency according to the
mmplementation plan approved by the PETROCON: Board of Directors.

= Closely follow the production and business plans, mvestment plans of the Group
and its subsidianes, promote the search for marketing imformation, bid for the
provision of indusinial construction, eleciricity, and infrastructure services mn projects
mside and ouiside the industry. At the same time, orgamze full preparation and
readiness of human resources, matenals and implementation plans to increase the rate
of winning bids and the effectiveness of implementing bidding packages.

= Complete the settlement of contracts/projects that have been constructed such as:
EPC of Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project, Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant
project, Yung Ang | Thermal Power Plant project. Nghi Son Refinery and Quang
Trach Power Center. At the same time, carry out settlement with subcontractors
projecis in the direction of negotating costs to reduce payable debis, reduce capital
costs in works/projects.
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- Control and use costs to ensure savings, assoctated with production and business
results and achieve the highest efficiency for the Corporation.

- Sirengthen the direction, control and supervision of production and business
activities at member units. siriving that by 20235, the Corporation will not have to set
aside financial investment provisions for capital coniributions at units consolidating
financial statements.

2.12. Restructuring:

- Continue to implement the restructuring plan of PETROCONs under the
Restructuring Plan of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation for the 2021-
2025 period approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders and directed by the
Board of Directors of the Corporation in the Document No. 1089/HBOT-VBNB dated
October 8, 2024,

- Research, evaluate and have a restructuring plan on the model and organizahon
of operations for ineffective umits/departments.

- Review. evaluate and rearrange the orgamzational structure and personnel fo
ensure a sireamlined structure and quality suitable to the work source and resources of
the Corporation. Focus on training, education and supplementing the workforce m
areas identified as key in the next phase such as Bidding Marketing, Project
Management and other supporting areas.

= Review and amend the system of internal regulations and rules of PETROCONs
to ensure consistency and synchronization between/within the regulations and mles,
while ensuring compliance with current regulations of the State and the charter of
PETROCONS.

2.3. Finance and resource utilization:

- Based on the assessment on classification of debts for PVYN and PVN"s member
units at the projects that PETROCONs has been and 1s implementing: urgently develop
a specitfic and detalled plan io effectively carry out debt collection, supplement
working capital for production and busmess activities m the coming time.

= For debis at member units and other pariners: review receivables and payables,
the value of unfinished volume at works/projects, make a detailed plan on debt
collecion/handlmg 1 2025 and be resolute in the work of accepiance, settlement, debt
collection, handling/offsetting cross-debts to ensure capital recovery for
PETROCONs" production and business activities,

= Support member umits of PVC-TB and Lam Kinh Hotel JSC to make plans and
complete the settlement of loans related to investment in Thai Binh Hotel and Lam
Kinh Hotel in 2025,
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- Continue to arrange sources and urge uniis to arrange sources, supplement
collateral/repay for PVN's entrusted loans through Oceanbank. Direct the
representatives of PETROCONs' capital at units borrowing from banks guaranteed by
PETROCONs to work with credit institutions to resolve PETROCONs' loan
puarantees for units.

- Focus on consolidating and perfecting financial management and accounting work
throughout the Corporation to ensure compliance with the provisions of law, the
CGroup and the Corporation. Strengthen supervision of economic management,
business accounting, contract management and cost management o ensure maximum
profits from production and business activities.

2.4, Investment:

= Proacoively work and implement the requirements of competent authonties to
recover the mvestmen: value at Soai Rap. recover/handle the Tam Dao land.

= Organize the implementation of management and research investment options to
maximize the efficiency of existing assets such as Chua Ha land, Ceniral Mechanical
Workshop. Tam Dao land (in case of not being handled yet): ensure cash flow for
production and business activiiies, increasing the asset use efficiency of PETROCONs.

= Review. analyze and evaluate the level of necessity, demand and ensure
efficiency in basic construction invesiment and equipment/asset procurement n 2025
of the parent company/member units, submit the results to the Board of Directors of
the Corporation for approval before implementation.

The above 1s the 2024 income statement and the 2025 plan of Petrovieitnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation. | respectfully report io the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval.

Youirs Sincerely./

Semi fo: GENERAL DIRECTOR
- Az phowve:

- Board of Dhrectors of the Corporation;

- Hoard of Supervisors of the Corporation;

- Board of Management of the Corporation;

- Departments and Divisions of the Corporation;
- B.ept at: Archives Department, Department of

Investment Plan & Restructuring. Tran Q'lll}t Hoan
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No.: fXLDK-BKS

SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Ha Noi, _.....day......momth.... 2025

THE 2024 OPERATION REPORT OF
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND THE 2025 OPERATION PLAN

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

- Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 592020/)H14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020,

- Pursuant to the Organization and Operation Charter of Petrovienam Construction
Joint Stock Corporanon which was amended and passed on October 5, 2023;

- Pursuant to the Operating Regulations of the Board of Supervisors of the
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation which was passed by the General
Meeting of Shareholders.

The Board of Supervisors of Petrovietnam Construction Jomt Stock Corporation
{(PETROCONs/Corporation) would like to report the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (AGM) on inspection work, reporting and monitoring of production and
business activities of the PETROCONs Board of Supervisors in 2024 and the 2023
operation plan as follows:

L. MONITORING RESULTS OF PETROCONS'
FINANCIAL SITUATION
1. Production and business results in 2024,

Based on the production and business plan approved by the 2024 Amnual General

Meeting of Shareholders, PETROCONs has proactively developed and implemented
solutions to overcome difficulties. However, in 2024, PETROCONs did not complete

PERFORMANCE AND

the assigned plan.
Unit: billion dong
2024
Pl
Impleme m:I:I 2024/
Mo Liems Uit niation Approve | Impleme | etion IEIJ
2023 | gplan | neten | (%) | %
Production and Billion
l bt waliia dong 912 38 1.532.00 Q82 E8 4% | 108%
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2024 .
Impleme compl 1024/
i) I
M. liems Uit ntation Approve | Impleme | etion 2023
1823 d plan ntation (%%) (%)
Billion : X
Puarent company d 441 36 RN 26554 Ia ]
- I'.FHH
2 | Total revenues Billion 1 4 33796 | 170400| 131787 77| 106%
A
Parent compaiy Ei}f::;' 765.74 | 105500 | 60904 | 8% | s0%
3 | Pre-tax profits Adilen. | oeam 3.70 481 130%
A
Billion "
» L3 b { e ]
Puarent compm) doung (i62.63) .48 4.12 43%
4 | After-tax profits Adilen. | 1ngsa9 3.70 261 |  71%
g
Billion "
! ) : ] 3
Puarent compan doitg fI62.63) 048 4 I2 E
5 | State budget payabie | Sidlion 41.05 47.00 2914 | 105% | 120%
3 oy
Parent comparny ks TiL67 14.00 381 2| 36%
' dong
6 | Average income Million 10.58 10084 1142 | 105% | 108%
dong/mo
Puarent company nth I3.25 f325 1325 TOs | JON2G

In 2024, the Corporation did not complete the production and business targets

compared to the plan on output and revenue.

The total production and business value of the entire PETROCONs 15 982 88
billion dong, reaching 64% of the 2024 plan and equal to 108% compared to 2023;
The parent company alone 15 261.84 billion dong, reaching 30% of the 2024 plan and

equal to 59% compared to 2023.

The total revenue of the entire PETROCONSs is 1,317 .87 billion dong, reaching
T7% of the 2024 plan and equal to 106% compared to 2023; The parent company
alone is 609.04 bilhon dong, reaching 58% of the 2024 plan and equal 10 80%

compared to 2023,

The total pre-tax profit of the entire PETROCONSs 15 4.8] billion dong, reaching
130% of the 2024 plan; total after-tax profit of the entire PETROCONs 15 2.61 billion
dong. The parent company’s profit is 4.12 billion dong, equivalent to 43% of the 2024

plan.

The owner's equity of the parent company PETROCONSs as of December 31, 2024

15 311.53 ballion dong, an increase of 1.34% compared to the beginning of the year.
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The accumulated loss of the parent company as of December 31, 2024 1%
3,765.93 billion dong.

- Among the 7 umis that control the consolidated accounting of PETROCONs,
some units have positive after-tax profits with low values such as PVC-MS (9.946
billion dong), DOBC ( 1.22 billion dong), PVC-IC (0.369 billion dong), PETROCONs
Dong Do (0376 billion dong) and PYC-Binh Son. The remaming 2/7 umits are
operating at a loss, which has greatly affected the consolidated profit target of
PETROCONs such as: PVC-Thai Binh (37.61 billion dong), PVC-Mekong ((.534
billion dong).

The business results of some companies continue to suffer losses, the potential
risk 1s that capital cannot be preserved, leading to the loss of Owner's capital due to
the lack of new sources of work to mamtain operations, compensate for the minimum
costs for the company, at the same tnme, the debts recoverable are still facing many
difficulties and the bad debts lead to increased financial costs; the Group's entrusted
loans due for repayment have not been balanced with the payment source; member
uniis suffered losses for many years, it 1s not feasible to divest capifal to arrange
repayment of entrusted investment loans. It 15 difficult to find out the marketing
jobs/sign new contracts, the output and revenue of projects/works are sull very low.

2.  Construction/key projects

Construction progress ai some specific projects/works of PETROCONS is as
follows:

F  Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project:

PETROCONs continues (o implement the remaining sub-items, handhing the
arising backlog. In 2024, the State Inspection Council for Construction Acceptance
{State Inspection Council} approved the conditional acceptance of the Units in
Notice No. 3895/ TB-HDKTNN dated July 8, 2024, On July 10, 2024, the Investor
issued the Handover Certificate for Umit 1, Unit 2 and shared items (except for Coal
Loader No. 5, Coal Warehouse No. 3 and the remaming works in process). On July
19, 2024, the Electric Power Trading Company (EPTC) recognized the commercial
operation date of the Plant starting from 8:00 a.m. on July 19, 2024 By early August
2024, the project officially participated in the National Electricity Market.

Regarding the project settlement, PETROCONs has coordinated with the Tha
Binh 2 Petrolenm Power Project Management Board to sign the minutes to determine
the settlement value of some items. However, the project settlement progress is still
slow due to some problems related to the determination of price adjustment plan,
supplementing new norms/unit prices, coniract rewards and penalties, supplementing
some cost items, etc. PETROCONs is continuing to request the Investor/Project
Management Board to support in settlement.
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PETROCONs has negotiated debt reduction of over 38 billion dong with
coniractors such as Sojit, Quingiao, Sotec and some other customers.

Regarding the dispute between the SDC/DL E&C consortum and PETROCONs
regarding EPS Contract No. 3WHDKTZ2M2PVC-S8DC dated May 22, 2012:
PETROCONs has established a Dispute Resolution Group and hired a legal
consultancy unit to support the implementation/follow-up of the lawsuit. In addition,
PETROCONs continues to negotiate outside of litigation to move towards a negotiated
settlement.

F Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant Project:

=Contract C11/SHI-LLM-PYVC&GEOVN on foundation treatment: The contract
settlement 1s still pending because Lilama must complete the EPC contract settlement
with the Investor before settling the corresponding settlement with PETROCONs.

-Contract C15/SH1-LLM-PVC on the construction of construction items:
Currently, the project has been completed. General Contractor Lilama has terminated
the Contract Performance Guarantee of the EPC Contract and moved on to the
warranty work with the Investor. Regarding the approval of the official unit price as
the basis for settlement, PETROCONs has coordinated with General Contractor
Lilama to protect the cost estimate with the consulting umit PECC 1. however,
according to the Estimate Appraisal Report that PECC | sent to the Investor, the
contractor's explanations have not been updated Currently, PETROCONs 15
continmng to request the Project Management Board/General Contractor to consider
resolving the problems, at the same time, coordinate with General Contractor Lilama
to prepare payment/settlement documents.

- Construction and repair works at Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant: In 2024,
PETROCONs won the bid and signed 02 contracts to renovate and repair a number of
iems at Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant. Currently, construchion work 1s being
carried out on the set schedule.

»  Southern Petroleum Institute Office Project:

- Phase I: In 2024, PETROCONs coordinated with the construction contractor
PVC-IC to carry out warranty repairs of existing problems according to the meeting
minutes with the investor on September 9, 2024, On December 4, 2024, the parties
agreed on the contenis of the Minutes of Acceptance of Repair and Warranty Work.
The Investor has signed the settlement documents and reporied to the Group, currently
waiting for the Group to approve the settlement documents for phase 1.

- Phase 2: In 2024, at the Viemam Intemational Arbitration Center (VIAC), the
parties agreed to mediate all disputes over the number of delayed days for each item
and agreed on the penalty for delay in phase 2. On November 18, 2024, the Investor
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met with the Supervision Consultant and the construction wmt to review and agree on
handling the problems regarding the settlement documents. PETROCONs completed
the signing of Supplemental Appendix No. 19 with the Petroleum Institute on October
24, 2024 and submiatted the Settlement Document to the Project Management
Consultant for review and confirmation for approval by the Investor.

#  Project of upgrading DCS system of unit 87 - Uong Bi Thermal Power Plant: By
December 9, 2024, PETROCONs has completed 100% of the construction volume
under the signed contract. Currently, PETROCONs is coordinating with the general
contractor to complete the construction steps to determine the payment volume.

»  Project of supplving and installing inverters for smoke fans of unit 52 of Vinh
Tan 2 Thermal Power Plant. The work within the scope of PETROCONs has been
basically completed. Currently, PETROCONSs has actively coordinated wath the parties
to complete the guality documents for acceptance with the Investor to fulfill the
obligations in the coniract.

F  Construction project of slag disposal site, water collection lower, return water
pipeline of Quang Trach | Thermal Power Plani: PETROCONs" work progress i1s
until August 2025, currently being implemented under the plan.

3.  Restructuring

According to the restructuring plan for the 2021-2025 period approved by the
General Meetng of Shareholders, in 2024, PETROUCONs has deployed the following

specific tasks:

- The Board of Directors of PETROCONs has issued the PETROCONs" Action
Program on implementing the restructuring contents of PETROCONs until the end of
2025 in the Document No. 1 3/XLDK-HDQT dated February 1, 2024,

- Reviewing the entire current situation and actual restructuring of the parent
company and potential member units; thereby, proposing solutions 1o organize
production and business activities so that by the end of 2023, the difficulties and
problems of the parent company and member umits will be maximally resolved.
gradually restonng production and business activities.

= Orgamizing implementation, assigning tasks m the Board of Management,
departments and directing PETROCONs" Capital Representatives at units to implement
restructuring solutions for the parent company and member units approved by the Board
of Directors.

- Implementing procedures to post mformation about the divestment plan on media
{electronic mewspapers/papers, etc.) to promote and attract interested nvestors to
accelerate the divestment plan at units.
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- Sirengthening production and business activities for core units by assigning
tasks to the Corporation’s Capital Representatives at PVC-MS and DOBC to
implement the restructuring plan for the 2023-2025 penod based on the assessment of
the current siuation and the developed restructuring plan to ensure the goals of bemg a
core unit of PETROCONs. The roadmap for the 2024-2025 period is to have positive
profits, reduce accumulated losses and improve financial capacity to increase
marketing opportunities for bidding for new projects. In 2024, PYVC-MS will earn a
profit of 10.67 billion dong, DOBC will eamn a profit of 1.22 billion dong.

- Supporting PVC-Duyen Hai to carry out procedures to apply for a certificate of
land use rights and assets on the land plot No. 441, Da Nang Street, Dong Hai | Ward,
Hai An District, Hai Phong City at the request of Hai Phong City Department of
Matural Resources and Envioonment to provide records and documents under the
Decision No. 2105/Q0D-BCT on determining the enterprise value and approving the
seftlement of the equinization of PTSC Corporation, in which the list of assets that
have been mcluded in the enterprnise value upon equitization is declared. Currently, the
Depariment of Natural Resources and Environment is in the review and appraisal
process.

4. Economic contracts, bidding marketing, investment, divestment/capital
recovery/asset management, parent company projects

¥ Project/contract signing:

In 2024, the parent company PETROCONs has won the bid and signed 05 new
contracts with a total value of about 52 billion dong: Procurement of equipment and
mstallation of frequency converters to control smoke fans of umt 52 with a value of
5.6 billion dong; Construction of slag disposal site, water collection tower, return
water pipeline - Quang Trach | Thermal Power Plant Project with a value of 31.795
billion dong; Renovation of the operation building of Song Hau | Thermal Power
Plant Project with a value of 2.695 billion dong; Renovation and reparr of equipment
washing and slag disposal area of Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant with a value of
658 million dong and Supply of Level 1A Pump for Cao Ngan Thermal Power Plant
with a value of 11.33 billion dong.

At member umits, in 2024, 43 contracts/contract appendices were signed to add
work sources including: PV C-MS signed 18 new contracts with a total value of 861 4
billion dong (including 3 major projects; Topside Phu Quoc with a value of 485 billion
dong, Lac Da Vang base fabncation with a value of 143.5 hillion dong, P15 project
with a value of 138 billion dong); DOBC signed 15 new contracts/contract appendices
with a total value of 80.7 billion dong: PVC-Binh Son signed 6 new contracts with a
total value of 27.30 billion dong; PVC-TB signed 01 new contract with a value of
121.73 billion dong; PETROCONs-Dong Do signed 03 new contracts with a total
value of approximately 87.3 lillion dong.
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#  Bidding marketing:

In 2024, due to many imvestors’ difficulty in arranging capital and problems with
legal and admmistrative procedures, the project implementation progress has been
stopped/delayed. In additon, PETROCONs" capacity 15 sull hmited. Therefore, in
spite of being very active in marketing and bidding in 2024, the set targets have not
been achieved, leading to lower output and revenue compared to the plan.

PETROCONs is continuing to coordinate with pariners/joint ventures to
participate in bidding/preparing for bidding packages at the projects: Joint venture
with Telico Company to bid for filling and ground treatment packages at the Lot B - O
Mon Gas Pipeline Project; Joint venture with TITAN Electromechanical Joint Stock
Company to bid for the C&l Replacement Materials Procurement Package (DCS
System) for Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant (The wimming bid fetter has been
received. Currently, the contractor consortium is negotiating contracts and preparing
resources for construction); Joint venture with Duc Anh Company to bid for the
package of Supplying grinding ball, lining plate and grinding tank tightening paris for
electnicity production of Pha Lai Thermal Power Joint Stock Company; Bidding for
sSupplying goods and services for repaming high pressure heater No. 3 = Duyen Ha 3
expanded Thermal Power Plant, eic.

Continues to prepare and complete bidding documents and plans to be ready and
timely participate in bidding when there is official information for the projects of Long
Phu 1| Thermal Power Plant. O Mon 4 Thermal Power Plant. Nam Dinh Waste-to-
Energy Plant, Supply of furnace water circulation pumps (including motors and
pumps) - Quang Ninh Thermal Power Joint Stock Company, etc.

In addition, PETROCONs regularly follows up and works with domestic and
foreign partners to implement projects that are preparing for bidding, at the same time,
seeks and selects potential pariners who can cooperate for future projecis.

< Invesiment:

=ln 2024, PETROCONs will not make any capital mvestments outside the
enterprise. As of December 31, 2024, PETROCONs" parent company has contnbuted
capital in 25 units with an investment value of 2.326.55 bilhon dong. Of which,
1,384.91 billion dong in 07 subsidiaries, 735.45 billion dong in associated units (1]
units) and 206,20 billion dong in other financial invesiments (07 umis).

= Accumulated provision for devaluation of financial investmenis as of December
31, 2024 s 121013 hillion dong, equivalent to 77.8% of the total value of
PETROCONs' financial investments. The total provision for devaluation of financial
investments m 2024 is 12.76 billion dong.

=In 2024, the parent company PETROCONSs and 1ts subsidianes will not carry
out capital construction investment and purchase of machinery and equipment.
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% Divestment/capital recoverv/asset management, projecis of the parent company.

= Transfer of Soai Rap - Tien Giang project: On July 31, 2024, PETROCONs
1ssued the Document No. 1167WXLDK-KHBET&TCC reporting to the Prime
Minister/Deputy Prime Minister Le Minh Khai/Tien Canang Province People's
Commitiee to propose instructions on payment of costs to Soai Rap Petroleum Service
Indusirial Park project. Tien Giang. In which it 1s recommended: (1) Consider, gude and
pay the cosis in the Soai Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Park project to PVN and
PETROCONs; (n) In case there 1= no plan to pay the invested cosis to
PVN/PETROCONs, we respectfully request the Prime Minister to hand over the Soai
Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Park project, Tien Giang to PYN/PETROCONSs as the
imvestor so that the parties can continue to mvest with their own resources and seek
partners with sufficient capacity and experience to cooperate and continue to Invest in
completing the projeci; thereby promoting the efficiency of land use, creating revenue
for the local budget and enterprises. On August 7, 2024, the Government Office 1ssued
the Document No. 1974/PC-VPCP to the Ministry of Planming and Invesiment and Tien
Cnang province People’s Committee to request them 1o resolve PETROCONs" petition
according o regulations.

At the request of the Depariment of Finance of Tien Giang province in the Official
Letter No. 273%5TC-TCDT-DN dated September 13, 2024 and Official Letter No.
3M3/STC-TCDTDN by the Department of Finance dated October 7, 2024, the
Corporation has sent the Official Letter No. 1333/ XLDRK-KHDT&TCC dated October
16, 2024 to Tien Giang province Department of Finance to provide all documents
related to the investment costs of PETROCONs. The Group has also provided
documents about the costs implemented by the Group at the Soai Rap Petroleum Service
Industrial Park project for Tien (nang province Department of Finance.

On February 19, 2025, PETROCONs representatives attended the meeting
according 0 Invitaton Letter No. 725/GM-STNMT by Tien Giang province
Department of Natural Resources and Environment. Accordingly, at the meeting, the
departments and branches of Tien Giang province proposed to refund the cosis that PVIN
had invested in the progect. PETROCONs will also receive back the costs invested in the
project after deducting the penalty for late payment of the contract between DOBC and
PETROCONs (according to the conclusion of the State Auodit) and the depreciation of
mirastructure (temporary roads, temporary power lines, welcome gates) from 2014 to
2013.

On March 27, 2025, Tien Giang province People’s Committee sent a notice of the
value of assets invested on land at the Soai Rap Petroleum Service Industrial Park
Project to the Group and the Corporation, accordingly PETROCONs was refunded
126,434 billion dong Currently, the Corporation is reviewing and submitting the
refunded investment value to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval.
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=Cemiral  Mechanical Workshop  Projec:  Currently, PETROCONs 15

coordinating with PVC-MT to promote the search for surtable customers to cooperate
in the explottation of the Mechanical Workshop site.

- Land plot at Chua Ha: The land plot at No. 01, Lane 86, Chua Ha Soeet, Dich
Vong ward, Cau (nay district, Hanoi city has a land lease term of 20 years from
January 1, 1996 to Japuary 1, 2016 and the land lease contract has now expired. The
Corporation 1s carrying out procedures to extend the land lease contract (including:
measuring and drawing the cwrent staius map, requesting red line boundaries,
requesting planning information, reviewing the current status of land use, etc.).

- Regarding the 3.400m" land pot in Tam Dao town, Vinh Phue province, which
Mai Phuemg Company returned to PETROCONs under the Decision of Hanoi city
Civil Judgment Enforcement Department:. On September 27, 2024, PETROCONs
recelved the on-site handover of the land plot under the wimess of the competent
authorities. On November 19, 2024, PETROCONs received the Land Use Rights
Certificate from the High People’s Court in Hanoi for the land plot in Tam Dao. On
December 5, 2024, PETROCONs worked with Vinh Phuc Province Land Regisiration
Office on the registration of transferring the ownership of 3 400m2 land at plot No. 6,
map No. 20 m Village |. Tam Dao town, Tam Dao distinct, Vinh Phuc province to
PETROCONS.

-On March 25, 2025, PETROCONs sent the Document No. 320(XLDK-PC to
the Vimh Phuc Province Land Registration Office, Vinh Phuc Province Department of
Agnculiure and Environment and the Vinh Phuc Province People’s Commuitee
regarding the completion of procedures for registration of changes in the owner of the
above land plot. Vinh Phuc Province Department of Agniculture and Environment has
given specific imstructions and PETROCONs 15 currently preparing the documents.

5. Financial condition of PETROCONS.

Some items on the Corporation’s balance sheet as of December 31, 2024

ASSETS (Billion dong) CAPITAL RESOURCES (Billion dong)
At the Ad the Al the At the
ot end of | beginning | Compari i end of | beginnin | Compari
Description the of the som (%) Description the gof the | som (%)
perind period period period
ALl | 363803 | 373357 | 9747% | C-Lisbilities | 404049 [ 415582 | 9723%
I Caxh and 1 Sh
cash 154,57 25048 | 141.56% | oronerm | o wra35 | 403266 | 96.07%
E lichilitios
eguivalents
I, Shori-
i 154.24 a62¢ | Tanaw | 1L Lomsterm o nel g2 | 134m0%
Sfinancial lighilities
IRVESRRETIN
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{1 Short- T Chikie®
term 163292 | pa70.78 | 94.95% | TUWENT 0 qppsa | soman | 10034
receivahler e g
) I 1. 383 A f 43700 O 2850
inventories
V. her
current 11333 12007 0 A8%
Givery
B. Mon-
Curmend T12.08 T2 65 7. 73%,
asseks
TOTAL 4,352.02 446322 | 97.51% 435202 | 446322 97.51%
Fmancial indicators as of December 31, 2024 are as follows:
M. Items Limit 2024 2023
1 Asset Structure
Mon-curment asseis Total Assels e 16397 16.35%
Cusredit Assets/ Tolal Assets e B3.61% B3G50
2 | Capital Structure
Liabilities/Total Capital Y P 03 11%
Equity'Total Capital e T 16% 6.89%
3 | Pavability
Quick Pavability Time .58 0.57
{Liabilities-Inventories WCurrent Liabilities Tumne 0.94 0.93
4 | Current Pavability
(LiabilitieaCurrent Liabilities) Ya 0001 (0.0 )%
Profit Margin e .01 (0.22)%
Return on Assels (ROA) i (Lol {0,533 )%

The quick ratio and current ratio show that PETROCONs 15 facing financial

difficulties. Current assets do not include inventones and are not enough to pay shorn-

term debts.

The debt to total capital matio as of December 31, 2024 is 0.93; this shows thal
PETROCONS has large debts, accounting for the majonty of equity (93%).

Regarding PETROCONs' gquick ratio in 2024, it is (.58; this shows that 1t 15 very
difficult for the company to pay all shor-term debis mn the short term.

The two ROA and ROE ratios m 2024 compared to 2023 fluctuate sigmficantly.
The ROA and ROE ratios in 2024 are not negative because PETROCONS' business

resulis in 2024 are profitable.

- Reparding the Group’s entrusted

debt

through Oceanbank.

n

2024,

PETROCONs will continue to seek solotions as well as urge member units to use
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entrusted loans such as: PYVNC, Lam Kinh Hotel, PVC-8G to review sources of money,
assets o balance capital sources to repay entrusted loans to the Group. However, so far
there have been no resulis. The entrusted principal outstanding as of December 31, 2024
is VND 575.6 hillion, of which PETROCONs must collect from the units: VND 344.6
billion (including: Lam Kinh Hotel: VND 200 billion; PVC-S8G: VND 128.3 billion;
PVNC: VND 16.3 billion): the amount PETROCONs uses: VND 230.99 billion. The
interest that PETROCONSs still has o pay PVN as of December 31, 2024 is: VND
172.78 billion.

=In 2024, there will be no arising issues related to the units regarding the
puarantee, provision for guarantee. Currently, PETROCONs still has guarantees for
member units to borrow capital of VND 155.05 billion (PVC-HN: VND 73.67 billion;
PVC-ME: VND 64.27 billion; PVC-S8G: VND 17.10 billion). These guarantees are all
overdue, PETROCONS has set aside provisions for payables of VND 137.94 hillion.
The units that PETROCONS guarantees to borrow capital from credit institutions are
all facing financial difficulties. with loss-making business results and potennal risks of
not being able to repay bank loans. In recent years, PETROCONs has worked with
credit msttunons, requinng PETROCONs' Capital Representatives at units to find
solutions and arrange capital sources to repay bank debts but has not been able to
handle the above puarantees yet.

- PETROCONSs 15 currently the VKD 111.8 billion payment guarantor for PVC-
TB te commit and puarantee PVC-TB's payment obligations to PVEP under the
contract for transferrmg the Thai Binh Petroleum Hotel Construction Invesiment
Project between PVEP and PVC-TH.

- Total receivables of PETROCONs Parent Company as of December 31, 2024
were VIND 1 30932 billion, with accumulated provisions of VND 178.86 billion. The
provision at the end of 2024 decreased by VND 19.04 bhillion compared to the
beginning of the vear. In 2024, the Corporation has recovered a total of VND 5588
billion up to the reporting date, specifically: TID (VND 0.288 billion); PYCN (VND
2716 billion): PVC-ME (VND 0.1 billion); PVC-Dong Do (VND 0.731 billion);
Vinaconex 39 (VIND 1.753 bilhon). Details of some receivables as of December 31,
2024 are as follows:

+ Receivables from customers: VND 1,309 billion, wath a provision of VND
178.56 billion, of which the debt to the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project
Management Board is VND 900.21 billion;

+ Advance payments to sellers: VIND 558 billion, with a provision of VND 306
billion:

+ Short-term loan receivables: VIND 356 billion, with a provision of VND 269
billion, of which the majority are receivables from units for entrusted loans;
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+ Other receivables: VIND 286 billion, with a provision of YND 124 bilhion.

- For the audited separate financial statements, afier the Board of Supervisors
reviewed a number of issues for a disclaimer of opinion of AASC Auditing Company
Limited: As of December 31, 2024, the accumulated loss was VND 3,765.93 billion;
short-term liabilities were VIND 3,874.35 billion, exceeding current assets by YND
23542 billion; overdue debts as of December 31, 2024 were VND 575.67 billion.
These factors, together with the contents in Note |, lead to doubis about the
Corporation’s on-gomg ability. The Corporation’s on-going ability depends on the
plan to recover debis, restructure investmenis, complete and settle unfinished projects
to recover money and finmancial support from shareholders and creditors. Within the
scope of an audit of financial statements, we do not have sufficient information to
assess the appropriateness and etfectiveness of these operating plans (guated in section
! of the Basis for a disclaimer of opinion on the Parent Company s auditor's report).

- Regarding the audited consolidated financial statements, after the Board of
Supervisors considered a number of issues for a disclaimer of opinion of AASC
Auditing Company Limited: As of December 31, 2024, accumulated loss was VND
3,998.41 bilhon; short-term habilities were YIND 5.393.51 billion, exceeding short-
term assets by VIND 781.85 billion; overdue debis as of December 31, 2024 were
VND 1,209.95 bilhon. These factors, together with the contents in Note |, lead to
doubis about the Corporation’s on-going ability to. The Corporation’s on-going ability
depends on plans to recover debis, restructure invesiments, complete and settle
unfinished projects to recover money and financial suppori from shareholders and
credifors. Within the scope of an audit of financial statements, we do not have
sufficient mformation to be able to assess the appropriateness and effectiveness of
these operating plans (guoted in section | of the Basis for a disclaimer af opinion of
the Consolidated Auditor's report).

II. SELF-ASSESSMENT REPORT ON THE PERFORMANCE RESULTS OF
THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND OF EACH BOARD MEMBER

2.1. Organizational structure of the Board of Supervisors
The Board of Supervisors of the Corporation consists of (13 members, including:
+ Mr. Hua Xuan Nam - Head of the Board of Supervisors.

+ Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Cuong - Pari-time member of the Board of Supervisors
(from June 3(), 2021 according to the Resolution No. 143/NQ-DBHDCD-XLDK dated
June 30, 2021).

+ Mr. Phung Van Sy - Part-time member of the Board of Supervisors (from June 30,
2021 according to the Resolution No. 148/MNQ-DHDCD-X1LDK dated June 30, 2021).

2.2, Operation resulis of Board of Supervisors in 2024.
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- The Board of Supervisors has senously implemented the contents of the 2024
Operation Plan approved by the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board of
Supervisors has closely followed the Resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, the operation plan and the actual situation, properly performed the powers
and responsibilities as prescnibed by the Enterpnse Law, the Charter of the Corporation
and the Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- The Board of Supervisors has fully participaied in the meetings of the Board of
Drectors/General Dhrector to grasp the situation of production and business activities,
invesiment, divestment and restructuring; contributed opinions and made
recommendations to the Board of Directors/General Director within the scope of their
responsibilites and powers. The members of the Board of Supervisors worked with a
high sense of responsibility on the principles of independence and prudence, always for
the benefit of shareholders and the development of PETROCONs Corporation.

- The Board of Supervisors held 02 meetings on March 19, 2024 and September
16, 2024 to report the mplementation of tasks in the Cuarter and deploy the action plan
for the next Quarter. The meeting contents were unanimously approved by the members
{3/3) participating 1n the vote.

= Conduct inspection and supervision at U3 umits: Petrolesm Equipment Assembly &
Metal Structure Jommt Stock Company (PVC - MS), Binh Son Petroleum Construction
Joint Stock Company (PVC-Binh Son), That Binh Petroleum Investment and Trading
Jomt Stock Company (PVC-Thai Binh).

- For other member units, the Board of Supervisors reviewed the productron and
business reporis and related reporis of the Representative/Representative of
PETROCONS" capital at the units to promptly make recommendations to the Board of
DirectorsiCieneral Director of PETROCONs.

- The Board of Supervisors reviewed and appraised the financial statements of the
parent company, the gquarterlv/anmual consolidated financial sitatements of the entire
Corporation and appraised the salary fund of the parent company in 2024,

2.3, Activities of each member of the Board of Supervisors.

In 2024, the members of the Board of Supervisors have performed and completed
their duties and responsibilities in each assigned area, m sinct compliance with the
provisions of the Law and the Charter of the Corporation. The assessment resulis on
completion of duties and responsibiliies in 2024 are as follows:

2.3.1. Mr. Hua Xuan Nam - Head of Department: Successfully completed assigned
tasks:
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- Fully participaie in the meetings of the Board of Supervisors and give full
opinions on the inspection and supervision of the assigned activities and fields of the
Board of Supervisors.

- Well perform the duties and responsibilities related to the work and fields: Take
general charge of all mspection and supervision activities of the Board of Supervisors
according to the Enterprise Law, the Orpanization and Operation Charter of
PETROCONS, the Operating Regulations of the Board of Supervisors of PETROCONS,
be responsible for signing penodic and ad hoc reports, as requestied, to the General
Meeting of Sharcholders, Major Shareholders - Vietnam NMational Industry - Energy
Croup and official dispaiches and documents to the Board of Directors, Board of
Directors of PETROCONs, Representatives of PETROCONs at other enterpnises;
Participate in meetmngs of PETROCONs and member umits orgamzed by the
Corporation; Be maimnly responsible for making the annual operation plan of the Board
of Supervisors to submit it to the General Meeting of Shareholders; Plan penodic and ad
hoe mspections based on the annual operating plan approved by the General Meeting of
Shareholders; Organize and preside over meetings of the PETROCONs Board of
SUPErvisors.

= Well implement the mspection and supervision on the followmng activities:
Inspect and supervise the implementation of the regulations, processes and rules of the
Corporation, supervise the amendments in accordance with the State’s regulanons; the
implementation of the salary, remumeration, bonus, responsibility allowance and other
benefits for Employees and Enterprise Managers according to the Law: the annual
production and business plan targets assigned/approved by the Vietnam Nafional
Indusiry-Energy Group; mspect the activities of the Board of Supervisors of capital
coniributions umt; mspect and supervise the mvesiment management i projects,
financial investment, divestment and capital transfer in projects and enterprises;
supervise the mmplemeniation of production and business results of the Project
Management Boards of the Corporation; Act as a direct focal point m charge of
montioring and supervising the activies of member umits: Petroleum Equipment
Assembly & Metal Structure Joint Stock Company (PVC - MS); Petroleum Pipeline and
Tank Construction Joint Stock Company (DOBC).

2.3.2, Mr. Nguyven Ngoc Cuong - Concurrent member of the Board of Supervisors:
Successfully completed assigned tasks.

- Fully participaie in the meetings of the Board of Supervisors and give full
opinions on the inspection and supervision of the assigned activities and fields of the
Board of Supervisors.

- Well perform the responsibilities related to the work and fields: Make the annual
operation report, the next annual operation plan of the Board of Supervisors, submit to
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the anmual General Meetmng of Shareholders of the Corporation; Draft the inspection
schedule of units and inspection minutes of umis under the inspection plan of the Board
of Supervisors; Participate in the inspections on the units by the Board of Supervisors;
Be responsible for urging the units under their supervision to submit reports according to
the documents issued by the Board of Supervisors monthly, quarterly, annually and
review the mdicators n the financial statements, control reports of member units, the
Board of Supervisors of member units, the Executive Boards assigned to monitor,
synthesize data and drafi the annual operation report of the Board of Supervisors to
submit to the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Well implement the inspection and supervision on the followmg activities:
mspect and supervise the implementaton of the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant
Project; mspect and supervise the debt collection and handling of the parent company
and the Project Management Boards of the Corporation; inspect and supervise the
management and handling of assets and equipment of the Corporation; inspect and
review the accounting reports of the parent company and 15 member units; consider
preparing the contents of the financial accounting reports, the contents to be appraised
50 that the Board of Supervisors can appraise the 6-month and annual reports of the
Corporation; Act as a direct focal point in charge of monitoring and supervising the
activities of member uniis: Dong Do Petroleum Joint Stock Company (PETROCONs-
Dong Do); Thai Binh Peiroleum Trading and Investment Jomnt Stock Company (PVC-
Thai Binh).

2.3.3. Mr. Phung Van Sy - Concurrent member of the Board of Supervisors:
Successfully completed assigned tasks

- Fully participaie m the meetings of the Board of Supervisors and give full
opinions on the mspection and supervision on the assigned activities and fields of the
Board of Supervisors.

- Perform well the duties and responsibilites related to the work and helds:
Participate mm inspections on the PETROCONs Board of Supervisors by supenor
agencies; Be responsible for urging the units under their supervision to submit repons
according to the documenis 1ssued by the Board of Supervisors, review the indicators m
the financial statements, conirol reports of member units, Boards of Supervisors of
member units and assigned the Executive Boards for monitonng. Draft the documents
on issues refated to the assigned work as requested by the Head of the Board of
Supervisors to be sent 1o related agencies, units and Executive Boards for monitoring.

= Well implement the inspection and supervision of the following activities:
Inspect and supervise the compliance with the law on the management and use of capital
of enterprises, the implementation of financial management regulations, nternal
regulations, inspect and supervise the distribution of profits, the establishment and use
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of funds; Check and review accounting reports of the parent company and member
units; synthesize data to dmaft the Board of Supervisors’ Operation Reports on a
quarterly, 6-month, Y-month, and annual basis; Review and prepare the contents of the
financial reporis, the contents that need to be appraised, and carry out procedures for the
Board of Supervisors to appraise the Corporation’s f-month and annual reports; inspect
and supervise invesiment management m projects, financial invesiment, divestment, and
capital transfer in projects and enterprises; inspect and supervise the provisioning and
provision reversal of the parent company; Act as a direct focal point in charge of
monitoring and supervising the activities of member units: Bmh Son Petroleum
Construction Joint Siock Company (PVC - Binh Son); Petroleum Industrial and Civil
Construction loint Stock Company (PVC-IC)E Petroleum Urban Development loimt
Stock Company (PVC- Mekong).

IMl. REMUNERATION, OPERATING EXPENSES AND OTHER BENEFITS
OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AND EACH BOARD MEMBER

- For full-nme Board of Supervisors members who are representatives of major
shareholders, PVN: follow the PETROCONS' salary regulations in accordance with the
provisions of the Circular No. 282016/TT-BLDTBXH dated September 1, 2016 by the

Ministry of Labor, Invalids and Social Affairs and the actual business resulis of the umt.

= For part-time Board of Supervisors members: approved by the 2024 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders and expenses according to the Intemal Expenditure
Regulations of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation, specifically:

Unit: Dong
Ciross salary/
MNo. Full name Position remuneration in Motes
2024
| Hua Xuan Nam Head 441 418,999

2 | Nguyen Npoc Cuong | Concurrent member 32,400,000

3 | Phung Van Sy Concurrent member 32,400,000

Total 506,218,999

* The operating expenses of the Board of Supervisors in 2024 are: VND
8,523, 000,

Operating expenses in 2024: Administrative and related expenses for the
activities of the Board of Supervisors are carmed oul m accordance with PETROCONs"

regulations.
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IV. SUMMARY OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MEETINGS AND
CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE BOARD OF
SUPERVISORS

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors held 02 meetings with the full presence of the
Board of Supervisors members to agree on the Board of Supervisors’ operation plans in
the supervision and inspection at the Corporation and its member units. The Board of
Supervisors has 2 concurrent members, so the Board of Supervisors members
exchanged and conimbuted opinions on the Board of Supervisors’ operations by calling
and sending emails to discuss and agree on the Board of Supervisors” operations, ansing
1ssues as well as exchanging professional work.

: Nomber of -
No. e Main contents
participants
| n - Implement the Board of Supervisors’ action plan for the first
6 months of 2024
4 13 - Report on implementng tasks for the latest & months of
B ) 2024 and the 2025 plan.

V. ASSESSMENT REPORT ON TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE
CORPORATION, SUBSIDIARIES, OTHER COMPANIES IN WHICH THE
CORPORATION CONTROLS 50% OR MORE OF THE CHARTER CAPITAL
WITH MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS, GENERAL DIRECTORS,
OTHER EXECUTIVES OF THE CORPORATION AND RELATED PERSONS OF
THAT ENTITY: TRANSACTIONS BETWEEN THE CORPORATION AND
COMPANIES IN WHICH MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
GENERAL DIRECTORS, OTHER EXECUTIVES OF THE CORPORATION ARE
FOUNDING MEMBERS OR BUSINESS MANAGERS WITHIN THE 3 MOST
RECENT YEARS PRIOR TO THE TIME OF THE TRANSACTION.

= In 2024, the Corporation did not have any transactions with Subsidianies or other
companies in which the Corporation controls 50% or more of the charter capital with the
Board of Directors, General Director and other executives of the Corporation and related
persons of that entity.

=In 2024, the Corporation did not have any transactions with Companies in which
the Board of Directors, General Director and other executives of the Corporation were
founding members or business managers in the 03 (three) latesi years prior to the
transaction date.

VI. SUPERVISION RESULTS ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS, GENERAL DIRECTORS AND OTHER EXECUTIVE
OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION.
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The business operations of the Board of Directors, the General Director and other
executives of the Corporation in 2024 generally complied with the Enterprise Law, the
Charter of the Corporation, the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and
relevant legal regulations,

6.1, Activities of the Board of Directors

In 2024, the Board of Supervisors participated in regular meetings of the Board of
Dhrectors/ Board of Management and monthly and quarierly meetings.

The Board of Directors of PETROCONs has senously implemented the
Resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders in 2024, The Board of Directors of
PETROCONs has issued the Directives and Resolutions directing the Board of
Directors to conduct operations; The depariments at the parent company and the
capital representatives at the subsidiaries, affiliated companies and financial
mvestment companies implement the directives and resolutions of the Vieinam
Mational Indosiry-Energy Group, the resolutions of the General Meeting of
Shareholders, organize production and business m the direction of maximizing
PETROCONS" resources to ensure compliance with the law and have i1ssued a number
of documents and resolutions. The Board of Directors has performed the leading role,
supervising the operation of the Board of Directors in the operation of production and
busmess to solve difficulties, problems, limit and prevent potential nsks, maintain a
stable production and business operation apparatus, organize regular and ad hoc
meetings n the form of voting directly or through written opinions to issue
Resolutions and decisions on resolving 1ssues under the authority according to the
operating regulations of the Board of Directors and the Charter of the Corporation.

The Board of Directors has maintained the form of veting to 1ssue Resolutions
and decisions on resolving issues under its authority according to the Board of
Directors” Operating Regulations and the Corporation’s Charter, In 2024, the Board of
Directors held 07 regular meetings, collected all wnitten opinions of members and
approved 32 Resolutions, 26 Decisions and other directive documents related to
PETROCONs" activities. The Resolutions/Decisions issued m 2024 are detailed in the
Corporate Governance Report No. 04/BC-X1L.DK dated January 16, 2024 sent to the
State Secunfies Commission and Hanol Stock Exchange.

The Board of Directors has performed the role of directing, supervising and
supporting the Board of Directors in operatmg PETROCONS" production and busmess
activities.

The Board of Directors has restructured and rearranged PETROCONs’
production and business activities to stabilize PETROCONs" production and business
activities.
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The Board of Directors has strictly made the supervision report and sent it to
shareholders, PVN, such as special financial supervision reporis and penodic income
statements.

6.2. Suopervision results on the General Director and other execuotives of the
Corporation.

In the context of many difficulties and challenges, the Board of Management of
PETROCONs has managed and operated production and business activifies in
accordance with the decentralization between the Board of Directors and the Board of
Directors. The Board of Directors has properly performed 1ts role and responsibilities
in managing production and business activities, strictly and fully complying with the
regulations and provisions of the law, PYN and the Corporation.

The Board of Directors has strengthened the mmplementation of cost reduction
measures, sirictly controlled expenses and cash flow to maintain production and
business activities: taken measures to strengthen internal resources and continued to
promoie marketing, bidding, and new job search; actively searched for immvestors
mterested in receiving capital transfers at units as well as promoted work related to the
restructuring of PETROCONs. The Board of Management has ensured that the salary
payment for the employees of the Corporation and the Project Management Board of
the Corporation 15 carried out on the principle of linking salary with the assigned
position, quality and efficiency of work, ensuning the life of employees at the parent
company of the Corporation with stable income. However, some units sull have not
had a source of work for many vears, so they still owe salaries and social insurance.

VI. REPORT ON SUPERVISION OF COOPERATION BETWEEN THE
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS, THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT, THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS AND SHAREHOLDERS.

The coordination of activities between the Board of Supervisors, the Board of
Directors, the Board of Management and shareholders s based on the principles of
honesty, objectivity and ransparency for the stability and sustainable development of
the Corporaton and ensuring the nghts of shareholders in accordance with the Law and
the Charter of the Corporation

The Board of Supervisors has been provided with meeting documents of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Management chaired by the Board of Directors.
The Board of Management has presided over and has fully participated in meetings of
the Board of Directors, contributing opinions on identification and warning of risks in
the management and direction of the Corporation’s production and business activities.
The Board of Supervisors’ recommendations have been considered and implemented
by the Board of Directors and the Board of Management to ensure the interests of the
Corporation, comply with the provisions of law and the nternal management
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regulations of the Corporation. The Board of Directors and the Board of Management
have cooperated to create favorable condibions for the Board of Supervisors to
complete their tasks: such as providing mformation and documents, assigning staff to
coordinate with the Board of Supervisors when requested and creating conditions for
the Board of Supervisors to participate in meetings of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Management of the Corporation.

The Board of Supervisors has informed the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management about the inspection and conirol plan in the year. The Board of
Supervisors has coordinated with the departments of the Corporation in mspecting and
controlling the activities of member units and reporting the resulis to the Board of
Directors/General Director.

Every quarter, the Board of Supervisors prepares and sends quarterly and annual
mspection and supervision reporis to the major shareholder, the Vietnam National
Industry- Energy Group and the Board of Directors and the Board of Management of
PETROCONS.

The activities of the Board of Supervisors have received support and facilitation
from the Board of Directors, the Board of Management and the conirol subjects m
accordance with the control requirements, helping the control results to be presented
objectively, reflecting the true nature of the Corporation’s operations.

For other shareholders: The Board of Supervisors shall repori to the General
Meeting of Shareholders, disclose information in accordance with the current regulations,
and report mformaton to the General Meeting of Shareholders honestly, carefully, and
accurately. In 2024, there will be no requesis for unusual control activities or the
Corporation’s production and business activities from shareholders.

For the largest shareholder, the Vietnam National Industry- Energy Group, the
Board of Supervisors shall fully implement periodic quaneriy/anmual reports and ad hoc
reports when requested by the Group. The Board of Supervisors has submitted them on
the basis of the prescribed content and deadline.

VIIL. REPORT APPRAISAL
8.1. Appraisal on the 2024 Audited financial statements.

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2024 Financial Statements audited by
AASC Auditing Company Limited to assess the truthfulness and reasonableness of the
financial data im accordance with the current accounting standards and regimes.
Basically, the financial statemenis of the Corporation have honestly and reasonably
reflected the production and business activities. The recording, accounting and
presentation of financial statements are in accordance with Vietnamese accounting
standards and the current regulations.
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8.2. Appraisal on the Board of Directors” Management and Operation Evaluation

Repaort.

The Board of Directors has prepared and sent the 2024 operation report and the
2025 operation plan to the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. In particular,
the report specifically assessed the Corporation’s activities m 2024 from the
implementation of strategic onentations, corporate restructuring, cost management,
corporate governance, investment work, etc. The Board of Directors always supervises,
direcis and guides the Corporation to implement important and urgent issues related to
invesiment onentations, human resource development plans, organizational structure
and arrangement and appoiniment of managers; amend and promulgate internal
regulations and mles of the Corporation.

The Board of Directors’ operation report on the Corporation’s management and
operation in 2024 1s consistent with reality; the rights and obligations of the Board of
Directors are stipulated in the Charter of the Corporation and in accordance with current
legal regulations.

8.3. Appraisal on income statement of the General Director

The Board of Supervisors has reviewed the 2024 income statement of the Board of
Directors. In particular, the Board of Directors has reporied in details each activity of the
Corporation, restructuring, construction of key projecis/works, especially the production
and business situation at key projects such as Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project.
The 2023 income statement and management and operation of the Board of Directors
have reflected the actual operations of the Corporation; the revenue and profit indicators
in the report are reflected and recorded in the 2024 Financial Statements andited by
AASC Auditing Company Limited.

% Some auditing recommendations for the Board of Directors/Board of Management
of PETROCONS:

+ Regarding the fimancial situation on the 2024 Separate Financial Report audited by
AASC Apdiing Company Limited issued on March 31, 2025, the “Basis for a
disclaimer of opinion™ 1s stated in ems 1,2,3.4,5. In stem 1, 1t 1s siated: As of December
31, 2024, the accumulated loss of the Corporation was VKD 3,765.93 billion {as of
January 1, 2024, 1t was VND 3.770.05 billion), shori-term liabilines {code 310) were
VIND 387435 billion, exceeding short-term assefs (code 100) by VND 235.42 billion
{as of January 1, 2024, shori-term liabilities were YNNI 4,032.66 billion, exceeding
short-term assets by VND 299.09 hillion: overdue debts as of December 31, 2024 were
VIND 575.67 billion (as of January 1, 2024, it was VIND 575.67 billion). These factors,
together with the content in note |, lead to doubts about the Corporation’s on-going
ability. The Corporation’s on-going ability depends on the plan to recover debts,
restructure investmenis, complete and settle unfinished projects to recover money,
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financial support from shareholders and owners and AASC Auditing Company Limited
also gave a disclaimer of opinion on the balance of unfinished production and business
costs of the Vung Ang | Thermal Power Plant project, Quang Trach | Thermal Power
Plant, ete.

+ Regarding the Finance of the 2024 Consolidated Financial Statement audited by
AASC Auditing Company Limited issued on March 31, 2025, it stated “Basis for a
disclaimer of opinion™ stating |6 1tems. In item |, it stated: “As of December 31, 2024,
the Consolidated Fmancial Statement of the Corporation 1s reflecting: Accumulated loss
(code 412) of the Corporation is VND 3,998 41 billion, short-term liabilities (code 310)
15 VIND 539351 llon exceeding current assets (code [100) is VIND 78185 hillion,
overdue debts as of December 31, 2024 are VND 1.209.95 billion. The financial
situation of the Corporation as of January [, 2024 15 also in a similar siwation. These
factors, together with the contenis of Note |, lead to doubts about the Corporation’s on-
poing ability. The Corporation’s on-going ability depends on the plan to recover debis,
restructure invesimenis, complete and seitle unfinished projects to recover money,
financial support from shareholders and creditors, ete.

+ The Board of Supervisors of the Corporation recommends that the Board of
Directors and the Board of Management of PETROCONs have solufions to resolutely
direct the handling of existing problems mentioned in the 2024 Auditor’s Report to
ensure the stable operation and development of the Corporation.

+ Regarding Asset Inveniory: Every year, the Corporation has established an Asset
Inventory Council. The Board of Supervisors recommends thai the Board of
Directors/General Directors direct the Departments, Boards and Project Management
Boards to conduct the inventory in accordance with the Accounting Law; Law No.
ER2015/QH 13 1ssned on November 20, 2015 and the Government’s decrees.

X1. THE 2025 OPERATION PLAN OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Impleméent
ation
frequency
L)

MNao, Contents

1 Regular tasks

Check/monitor the inplementation and compliance with the unit’s
Charter, Emerprse Law, sate laws: the mmplementation and
I | compliance with PVN's Directives related to the unit’s operations | Regular
of the PVN Representative at the unit:
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No,

Contents

Implement
ation
frequency
(")

-

Check/monitor and evaluate the implementation of the Resolution
of the 2025 Annual General Meetng of Shareholders; financial
situation, capital balance and cash flow management, operational
efficiency and debi payment ability, capital management and use;
capital preservation and development; implementation of guarterly
production and business plans; check/monitor the implementation,
progress and effectiveness of invesiment projects;

Regular

Coordinate with State authorities, inspection and internal aodit
teams of the Group and the unit in checking and supervising the
management and production and business activities at the unit.

Regular

Coordinate with the PVN's Capital Representative in managing
PVN's capital at the unit and the unit’s capital invested in other
enterprises.

Regular

Review contracts and mransactions with related parties under the
approval authority of the Board of Directors or the General Meeting
of Sharcholders and make recommendations on contracts and
transactions to be approved by the Board of Directors or the General
Meeting of Sharcholders; supervise enterpnses 1 disclosing
information about related parties and ransacniions with relaied
parties:

Regular

Supervise the mmplementation of development strategies and
business plans: Inspect/supervise the implemeniation of corporate
restrociuring  and  mnovanon  according o approved
DecisionsThrectives/Resolutions:

Regular

=l

Recommend the Board of Directors to amend, supplement and
improve the organizational structure for management, Supervision
and operation of the unil’s busmess actvities:

Regular

Perform other tasks of the PYN Representative in charge of control
as required by PVIN, the General Meeting of Sharcholders and
current regulations; propose the General Meeting of Shareholders 1o
select an independent asditing company;

Regular

Periodic tasks

Implement/coordinate with the Board of Supervisors members 1o

make the 2024 operational report and the 2025 operational plan of
the Board of Supervisors to submit to the General Meeting of

Shareholders for approval and implementation.

Oluarter I
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Implement
ation
No, Contents
frequency
o
Implement’coordinate with the Board of Supervisors members (o
submut the following reports to the Annual General Meeting of
" Shareholders and Petrovietnam: Appraisal on the 2024 Financial Oniaierd
= Statements, appraisal on the annual business and production report
and the 2024 management assessment report of the unit’s Board of
Directors.
Check the reasonableness, legality. honesty and level of prudence mn
3 the management amd direciion of business  activities; the Quarterly
systemancity, consistency and approprnateness of accounting,
stanstics and hnancal reporting.
Review accounting books, accounting records and other documents When
4 of the company, management and operation of the wmit when g
NECEssary
NECESEry.
Review, inspect and evaluate the effectiveness and efficiency of the
internal control system. internal audit, risk management dnd early
5 warning of the unit: make recommendations and proposals 10 | Quarterly
improve and enhance the effectivensss of the internal control
system
(i) Appraise the 6-month/annual 2025 financial statements. Quarterly
uarter
7 Appraise the 2024 salary fund of Employvees and Unit Managers. ﬁﬂn?i
Check/monitor the  implementation  status  and  handle
recommendations of inspection teams of stale agencies and
B | competent authorities at the unit. Quarterly
Prepare the 2026 Operation Plan for approval by the PVN Board of
Direciors
Prepare quarterly monitoring repotts according o the Regulations of Quarterty/at
u =
9 the Viemam Mational Industry -Energy Group and other reports as :..u.f::.
required. .
Before
10 Prepare and submit 2026 Operation Plan to PYVN Board of Directors | November
for approval 15 every
year
11 Supervise vear-end asset inventory activities at the unit /122025
- Inspection/supervision of specialized subjects, projects,
subsidiaries and associated companies (*).

Documents of the 2025 Annwal General Meeting of Shareholders- PETROCONS

69



Implement
No, Contents e
frequency
(")
1 Subsidiaries
I Petroleum Industrial and Civil Construction Joint Stock Company Quarter 1
7 | pveac) "
Petroleum Pipeline and Tank Construction Joint Stock Company
1.2 : 2r 111
(DOBC) Quarter
13 | PETROCONs-Dong Do Quarter 11
Associated companies
2.1 Thanh Hoa Petroleum Construction J5C Duarter IV
Duyven Hai Peroleum Construction Investment Joint Stock ;
2.2 B 5 : Quarter IV
Company (PVC Duyen Har)

The above is the operation condition of the PETROCONs Board of Supervisors in
2024 and the 2025 Operation Plan. The PETROCONSs Board of Supervisors respectfully
submits it to the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation for consideration/approval.

Yours Sincerely./.

Kent to: FOR AND ON BEHALF OF

- As above; BOARD OF SUPERVISORS HEAD
- Board of Dhrectors of PETROCONs;

- Board of Management of PETROCONS;

- Kept at: VT, Board of Supervisors.

Hua Xuan Nam
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No.: MTr-XLDK Hua Noi, ......day..... month.... 2025

PROPOSAL

On approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and
the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders
Petrovieinam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Enterpnse Law No. 592020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Organization and Operation Charter of Petrovietnam Construction
Jomit Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PETROCONs);

Pursuant to Resolution No. 70/NQ-BHDCD-XLDK dated May 23, 2024 by the
2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on approving the selection of the
Auditing Company m 2024, the Board of Directors of the Corporation respectfully
submits the 2024 Financial Statement audited by AASC Auditing Company Limited to
the General Meeting of Shareholders for approval, specifically:

1- The 2024 Aundited financial statements:
- Parent Company’s Audited Financial Statements 2024,
- Audited Consolidated Financial Statements 2024,

2- Parent Company’s profit distribution plan:

Unit: Dong
Undistributed Funds established during the vear Dividend 2024
e e Macvemen | o | 2t | o T e | N
fund . Tunds | shares | cash
(3,765,932 03 1,020) f] 0 0 0 0

We respectfully submit this report to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval./.

Nent to: FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
- As above; BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Kept at; Archives Depariment, Board of Supenvisors, CHAIRMAN

Board of Dhirectors, Finance-Accounting Depariment.
{Atached audited financial statements of parent

company and 20024 audited consolidated financial
statements of PETROCONS)

Nghiem Quang Huy
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No.: MTr-XLDK Hua Noi, ......day..... month.... 2025

PROPOSAL
On selecting the Auditing Firm for 2025 Financial Statements

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Enterpnise Law No. 592020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Organization and Operation Charter of Petrovietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PETROCONS);

The Board of Supervisors of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
respectfully submits the list of 03 independent auditing companies for the 2025
Financial Statements of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation to the
General Meeting of Shareholders for approval as follows:

- VACO Auditing Company Limited.
= AASC Aupditing Company Limited.
- Viemam Auditing and Valuation (VAE).

We rtespectfully submit this list to the General Meeting of Shareholders to
authorize the Board of Directors to decide to select one of the above-mentioned three
auditing companies to audit the 2025 Financial Statements, review the 2025 Interim
Financial Statements of PETROCONs and priontize the experienced units to conduct
audits at the majonty of the Corporation’s member units to facilitate the audit of the
Corporation’s Financial Statements. In case the auditing contract cannot be signed
with one of the three above-mentioned companies, the General Meeting of
Shareholders shall apthorize the Board of Directors to proactively select an anditing
company In accordance with regulations, ensuring compliance with the imformation
disclosure deadline of the listed company.

We respectfully submit this report to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval./.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF

Sent fo: BOARD OF SUPERVISORS HEAD
- As above;

- Board of Directors of PETROCONs;

- Kept at Archives Depariment, Board of

Supervisors, Finance-Accounting Department.

Hua Xuan Nam
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION [ndependence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: MTr-XLDK Ha Noi, ......day....._month... ... 2025
PROPOSAL

On setiling the 2024 salary and remuneration and the 2025 salary and
remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to:
- The Enterprise Law No. S92020/0H 14 passed by the National Assembly of the
Socialist Republic of Viemam on June 17, 2024,

- The Organization and Operation Charter of Petrovietnam Construction Joint
Stock Corporation {the Corporation/PETROCONs);

- The Resolution No. 7IWNNQ-DHDCD-XLDK of the 2024 Annwal General
Meeting of Shareholders dated May 23, 2024;

The Board of Directors respectfully submits the General Meeting of Shareholders
for approval of the 2024 salary and remuneration settlement of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors and the 2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Supervisors of the Corporation as follows:

1. Settlement of salary and remuneration of the Board of Directors (BOD) and
Board of Supervisors in 2024:

Salary/Remuneration of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors in 2024
shall be implemented in accordance with Resolution No. T0/NQ-DHCD-X1L.DK dated
May 23, 2024 by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, specifically:

Linit: Dong
Salarviremuneration 2024

Non Contents
Plan Implementation | Percentage
f4) (B) fi) 21 (3 m(2 )i}
1 | Board of Directors 2,496 600,000 2 178,200,018 B7%
2 | Board of Supervisors 593,450,000 501,819,999 83%
Total 3.090.050,000 2.680,020,817 BT
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2.  Salary and remuneration plan for the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors in 2025:

- Salary and remuneration of full-time members of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors: lmplemented according to the Salary Regulations of
PETROCONs in accordance with the Decree No. 44/2023/ND-CP dated
February 25, 2025 by the Government on labor management, salary,
remuneration, bonuses in state-owned enterprises and the actual production and
business results of PETROCONs.

- Salary and remuneration of independent members of the Board of Directors: i) In
case a member works regularly at PETROCONs Agency according o
PETROCONs" regulations, he/she will be paid salary and other benefits
according to the regime applicable to full-time members of the Board of
Directors who are representatives of the capital of the Viemam National
Industry- Energy Group at PETROCONS; i1) In case a member works irregularly
at PETROCONs Agency (Part-time), he/she will receive a remuneration equal to
0% of the salary of the full-time member of the Board of Directors.

- The remuneration for concwrent members and part-time members of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Supervisors: not exceeding VND
5,000, 000/person/month.

We hereby respectiully require the General Meeting of Shareholders to consider
and approve the above contents.

Yours Sincerely./.

Sent fo: FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
- As shove; _ BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Kept st Archives Department, Board of CHAIRMAN

[Mrectors, Department of Organization-
Admintstration Department.

Nghiem QJuang Huy
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No.: MTr-XLDK Ha Noi, ......day......month_. .. 2025

PROPOSAL
On Authorize the Board of Directors to approve the S-year production and
business plan of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock
Corporation for the 2026-2030 period

To: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Enterpnse Law No. 59/20200/0QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020,

Pursuant to the Orgamzation and Operation Charter of Petrovieinam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PETROCONs);

Based on the implementation results of the production and busimess plan for the
20202025 peniod, mm order to overcome the existing problems of the previous pernod
and achieve the goal of gradually recovering production and busmess, building
PETROCONs into a specialized construction umit in the oil and gas sector, indusinal
works and mifrastructure capable of competing with leading domestic enterprises,
clearly defining the development plan and direction of PETROCONs in the coming
time, Petroviemnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation is making a 5-year plan for
the 2026-2030 period and the development strategy of PETRODCONS.

In order to be proactive in organizing and implementing the 5-year plan for the
2026-2030 peniod and the development strategy of PETROCONSs, the Board of
Directors: respectfully proposes the General Meeting of Shareholders of the
Corporation to authonze the Board of Directors to approve and organize the
implementation of the 5-year plan for the 2026-2030 period, the development strategy
of PETROCONs after being approved by the major shareholder, Vietnam National
Industry-Energy Group and report the authorization results at the nearest annual
General Meeting of Shareholders.

We respectfully propose the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation for consideration and approval.

Yours Sincerely./.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
Kent to; BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- As sbove; CHAIRMAN
- Board of Supervisors;
- Kept at: Archives Department, Board of

Directors; Department of Investment Plan

d Restructuring.

Nghiem Quang Huy
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

No.: MTr-XLDK Ha Noi, ......day......month_. .. 2025

PROPOSAL

On Electing the members of the Board of Directors
and the Board of Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term

Ta: The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Petrovietnam Construction Jomnt Stock Corporation

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 3972020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietmam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Secunties Law No. 54/20190QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019;

Pursuant to the Organization and Operation Charter of Petrovietnam Construction
Jomnt Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PETROCONs);

Based on the nomination documents of candidates for the General Meeting of
Shareholders to elect members of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors by
shareholders/groups of shareholders.

The Board of Directors of the Corporation respectfully propse the 2025 Annual
Cieneral Meeting of Shareholders to consider and elect members of the Board of Directors
and Board of Supervisors of the Corporation for the 2025-2030 term as follows:

I. Members of Board of Directors:
- Number of members of the Board of Directors to be elected: (12 members,

mcluding:
+  Member of Board of Directors : 01 member;
+  Independent member Board of Directors : ()] member.
- Term of office of Board of Directors member + 5 years {2025-2030})
II. Member of Board of Supervisors:
- Number of members of the Board of Supervisors : 02 member.

- Term of office of the Board of Supervisors member : 5 years {(2025-2030)
{The hst of candidates for the Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors will
be reported directly at the meeting).
We respectfully propose the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration
and approval.
Yours Sincerely./.
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
Sent fo: BOARD OF DIRECTORS

- As above; CHAIRMAN
- Kept at: Archives Depariment, Beard of

Directors, Organization-Ad ninistration

Department, Legal Department.

Nghiem (Juang Huy
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION [ndependence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

Ha Nui, .....day......month...... 2023

REGULATIONS
ON ELECTING THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
AND MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
FOR THE NEW TERM

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No, 539°2020/0H14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietmam on June 17, 2020,

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 542019 0H 14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019;

Pursuamt to Decree No. 1552020/ND-CP dated December 31, 2020 by the
Government detailing a number of articles of the Law on Securities;

Pursuani to Circular No. 115 guiding a number of articles on Corporate
Governance applicable to public companies in the Decree No. 1552020/ND-CP dated
December 31, 2020,

Pursuant te the Organization and Operation Charter of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation;

The 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Petrovietnam Construction

Joint Stock Corporation will elect members of the Board of Directors and Board of
supervisors for the 2025 - 2030 term according to the followmng contents:

Article 1. Subjects of election

Shareholders owning shares with voting rights and authorized representatives of
shareholders owning voting shares (according to the list of shareholders made by
Vietnam Secunties Depository and Clearing Corporation “VSDC™ on Apnl 2%, 2025).

Article 2. Standards and conditions for members of the Board of Directors
{BOD)/Board of Supervisors (BOS)

2.1. Standards and conditions for members of the Board of Directors

a}  Have full civil act capacity, not being a person who is not allowed to manage an
enterpnise as prescribed in Clause 2, Article 17 of the Enterprise Law;
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b)

c)

d)

F i

Have professional gqualifications and experience in business administration or in
the field, sector or business of the Corporation and not necessarily being a
shareholder of the Corporation.

Not a member of the Board of Directors at more than U5 other companies at the
same time;

Not a relative of the General Director and other managers of the Corporation; of
the manager, the person with the authonty to appoint the manager of the parent
company.

Standards and conditions for independent members of the Board of

Directors

In addition to meeting the provisions in Clause 2.1 above, independent members

of the Board of Directors must also meet the followmg standards and conditions:

a)

b)

d)

2.3,

a)

bi

Not a person currently working for the Corporation or a subsidiary of the
Corporation; not being a person who has worked for the Corporation or a
subsidiary of the Corporation for at least the previous (3 consecutive years;

Not a person who 1s receiving salary or remuneraton from the Corporation,
except for allowances that a member of the Board of Directors 15 enntled to
receive according to regulations;

Not a person whose wife or husband, biological father, adoptive father,
biological mother, adoptive mother, biological child, adopted child, biological
brother, biological sister, biological sibling 15 a major shareholder of the
Corporation; is a manager of the Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation;

Not a person who directly or indirectly owns at least 01% of the total number of
voting shares of the Corporation;

Not a person who has been a member of the Board of Directors or the Board of
Supervisors of the Corporation for at least the previous 05 (five) consecutive
years, excepl in the case of being appointed for 02 (rwo) consecuiive lerms.

Standards and conditions for independent members of the Board of
Supervisors

Have full civil act capacity and not be subject to the provisions of Clause 2,
Article 17 of the Enterprise Law:

Be trained in one of the majors of economics, finance, accounting, auditing, law,
business administration or majors suitable to the business lines of the
Corporation;
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d)

e)

g

h)

Mol be a relative of a member of the Board of Directors, General Director and
other managers;

Not be a manager of the Corporation, not necessarily a shareholder or employee
of the Corporation;
Not work in the accounting and finance depariment of the Corporation;

Not be a member or employee of an audiing firm approved to audit the financial
statements of the Corporation in the previous 3 consecutive years;

Not be a relative of a business manager of the Corporation and the parent
company; representative of enterprise capital, representative of state capital al
parent company and at Corporation;

Other standards and conditions as prescnibed by other relevant laws and the
Charter of the Corporation.

Article 3. Nomination/candidacy/recommendation of candidates to the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors and the number of elected members

3.1. Nomination/candidacy of candidates to the Board of Direciors and the

a)

bi

Board of Supervisors

Shareholders or groups of shareholders ownmg 10% or more of the total number
of common shares {according to the list of shareholders made by Vieinam
Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation on April 25, 2025) have the nght
to nominate candidates to the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors.

Number of candidates nominated for the Board of Directors/Board of
Supervisors according fo the Enterprise Law and the Corporation’s Charter.
Specifically:

Nomination of candidates for the Board of Directors

¥ Common shareholders have the right to aggregate their voting rights to nominate

candidates for the Board of Directors. Shareholders or groups of shareholders
holdmg 10% to less than 20% of the voting shares can nominate 01 {one)
member; from 20% to less than 30% 02 {two) members; from 30% to less than
40% 03 (three) members; from 40% to less than 50% (4 (four} members, from
50% or more all members.

In case the number of candidates for the Board of Directors through nommation
and candidacy 1s still not enough as required under the decision of the General
Meeting of Sharcholders, the current Board of Directors shall recommend
additonal candidates or organize nominations m accordance with the
Corporation’s Charter, the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance and the
Operating Regulations of the Board of Directors. The introduction of additional
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3.2

a)

3.3.

a)

candidates by the current Board of Directors must be clearly announced before
the General Meeting of Shareholders votes to elect members of the Board of
Directors in accordance with the law.

Nemination/candidacy of candidates 1o the Board of Supervisors

Common shareholders have the night to aggregate their voting rights to nominate
candidates for the Board of Supervisors. Shareholders or groups of shareholders
holdmg 10% to less than 30% of the vouing shares can nominate 01 (one)
member; from 30°% to less than 50% 02 (two) members; from 50% or more 03
members.

In case the number of candidates for the Board of Supervisors through
nomination and candidacy is still not enough as required under the decision of
the General Meeting of Shareholders, the current Board of Supervisors shall
recommend additional candidates or organize nominations in accordance with the
Corporation’s Charter, the Internal Regulations on Corporate Governance and the
Operating Regulations of the Board of Supervisors. The mitroduction of
additional candidates by the current Board of Supervisors must be clearly
announced before the General Meeting of Shareholders votes to elect members of
the Board of Supervisors in accordance with the law,

Application for candidacy/nomination of members of the Board of
Directors/the Board of Supervisors

Application for candidacy/nomination of members of the Board of Directors/the
Board of Supervisors (in the form)

Candidate’s CV {in the form)
Valid copy of 1D card/Passport
Valid copy of ceriificates certifying cultural and professional qualifications;

Authorization letter and/or Mmutes of group meeting (if the candidate is
nominated by the group);

Documents proving eligibility to nominate/run for election according to the
regulations,

Note: Nominees and candidates for the Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors
miust be responsible before the law and the General Meeting of Shareholders for
the accuracy and truthfulness of the content of therr candidacy and nomination
documents.

Number of elected members of the Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors
The number of members of the Board of Directors elected at the 2025 Annual
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b)

c)

General Meeting of Shareholders is two (02), mncluding one (01} independent
member of the Board of Directors.

The number of elected members of the Board of Supervisors at the 2025 Annual
Cieneral Meeting of Shareholders 1s one (02) member.

The term of office of members of the Board of Directors and Board of

Supervisors 1s: 03 years (2025-2030).

Article 4. Ballot and Writing ballot

4.1.

4.2

bi

c)

dj

4.3,
a)

b)

List of candidates of Board of Directors/Board of Sapervisors

Arranged in alphabetical order by name, write the full name on ballot.
Ballot and Writing ballot

Shareholders or shareholders’ representatives are delivered at the same time:

Omne (01) ballot for members of the Board of Directors (blue) (including the
content of voting for members of the Board of Darectors and independent
members of the Board of Directors) based on the attendance code comresponding
to the number of owned and authorized shares;

Ome (1) ballot for members of the Board of Supervisors (pink) based on the
attendance code corresponding to the number of owned and authorzed shares;

The ballot 15 printed uniformly with the total number of votes according to the
attendance code;

In case of incoerect recording, the sharcholder requests the Vote Counting
Committee to change the ballot;

The shareholder must himselffherself write the number of votes for each
candidate in the corresponding blank box on the ballot. In case of vahd
authorization (with authonzation letter), the authorized person has full voting

nghts.
Invalid ballots

The ballot does not follow the form prescnbed by the Corporation and does not
have the Corporation’s seal affixed;

The ballot 1s crossed out, corrected, added or has an incorrect name or 1s not on
the list of candidates approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders before
the voting;

The ballot has the total number of wvotes for the candidates of the
shareholder/shareholder representative exceeding the total number of votes of the
shareholder/shareholder representative;
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d} The ballot does not have the signature of the shareholder/shareholder
representative.

Article 5. Election method

a} Voting to elect members of the Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors shall be
conducted directly by secret ballot under the cumulative voting method.

b} Each shareholder shall have a total number of votes corresponding to the total
number of voting shares (including owned and authorized shares) multiplied by
the number of elected members of the Board of Direciors/Board of Supervisors.
Shareholders shall have the nght to allocate all or part of their total votes to one
or several candidates.

Article 6. Vote Connting Committee, voting and counting principles

6.1. Vote Counting Committee
a) The Vote Counting Committee is nominated by the Chairman and approved by
the General Meeting of Shareholders;

b}  The Ballot Counting Committee is responsible for:

- Introducing the content and method of recording the voting ballots and election
ballots:

- Supervising the voting and election of shareholders at the General Meeting;

- Carrying out the procedures for counting votes to elect members of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors;

- Notifying the Chairman and the General Meeting Secretaniat of the results and
announcing the vote counting resulis before the General Meeting;

- Bemg responsible for the truthfulness and accuracy of the vote counting results.

c) Members of the Voie Counting Commitiee must not be on the hist of nommees
and candidates for the Board of Directors/ Board of Supervisors;

6.2. Principles of vofing and counting
a) The Vote Counting Committee shall check the ballot box i the presence of
shareholders;

b} Voting shall bemin when the disinbution of ballots 15 completed and shall end
when the last shareholder places his ballot in the ballot box;

€} The ballot counting shall be conducted mmedialely after the votng 15
completed:

d) The ballot counting results shall be recorded in wnting and announced to the
General Meetmg by the Chairman of the Ballot Counting Commuitiee.
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Article 7. Principles for election of members of the Board of Directors/Board of
Supervisors

- The elected members of the Board of Directors/Board of Supervisors are
determined by the number of votes from high to low, starting from the candidate
with the highest number of votes until the required number of votes 1s reached.

- 02 or more candidates receive the same number of votes for the final member of
the Board of Dwrectors/Board of Supervisors, a re-election will be conducted
among the candidates with the same number of votes.

Article 8. Preparation and publication of the Vote Counting Minutes

a} After counting the votes, the Vote Counting Committee must prepare the Vote
Counting Minutes. The contents of the Vote Counting Minutes are: Total number
of delivered votes, total mumber of collected votes, number of valid votes, invahd
votes, abstention votes; the number of votes for each candidate for the Board of
Directors/Board of Supervisors;

b}  The full text of the Vote Counting Minutes must be published before the General
Meeting.

Article 9. Executive provisions

Complaints about the election and wote counbing will be resolved by the
Chairman and recorded i the minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders.

These regulations consist of 09 articles, are read publicly before the General
Meeting of Shareholders and {ake effect immediately after bemng voted and approved
by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Sent to: FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
- As above, BOARD OF DIRECTORS
- Kept at: Archives Department, Board CHAIRMAN

of Directors, Legal Department.

MNeghiem Quang Huy
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

FPETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: /BB-BHBCB-XLDK Hua Noi, ......day......month.... 2025
DRAFT
MINUTES OF MEETING

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION

COMPANY INFORMATION

4+ Company name: PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK
CORPORATION

%+ Business Registration Certificate No. 3500102363, the 22™ revision on January
18, 2024,

4% Head office: 14th Floor, Vietnam Petroleum Institute Building, No. 167, Trung
Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City, Vietnam.

Today, at ....hour.......minutes on._............. 2025, at the 12" Floor - Vietnam
Petroleum Institute Building, No. 167, Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay
District, Hanoi City, Vietnam, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of
Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the Comporation/PETROCONS) 15
held with the following contents:

A, PART I: OPENING, PARTICIPANTS, LEGALITY OF THE GENERAL

MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
1. Opening of the General Meeting of Shareholders

The Organmzing Committee of the General Meeting of Shareholders announces
the reason for opening the General Meeting and introduced the invited guests:
4  The representative of the Strategic shareholders and partners of the Corporation,
mcluding;
+ Representative of Vietnam National Industry - Energy Group.
+ Representative... iR
%  Petrovietnam Construction Jmm EIu-c:k Cﬂr[mratlnn including:
+ Members of the Board of Directors.

+ Members of the Board of Management.
+ Head of the Board of Supervisors

+ Heads of Departments/Divisions/Party Offices/Mass orgamzations,
2. Participants, legality and validity of the General Meeting of Shareholders
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The attendees listened to the Minutes of the Shareholder Qualificabon
Examination Board presented by Mr. ...................... = Head of the Organization-
Administration Department, Head of the Shareholder Qualification Examination Board
to attend the Congress.

Total number of shareholders entitled to atiend the 2025 Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders is ......... shareholders, owning ........ voting shares in total. The list
of shareholders entitled to attend the General Meeting 15 specified m the List of
securities owners ( The last regisiration date 1s Apnl 2%, 2025) of Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation.

The total number of shareholders present in person and authonzed to attend the
Cieneral Meetnng: ..._..... shareholders, owning ... .............. shares accounting for
...... %e of the total number of voting shares of PETROCONS.

According to the Enterprise Law No. 39/2020/QH14, the organizational and
operational charter of PETROCONs, the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of PETROCONS is legal, valid and meets all prescrnibed conditions to be
held.

3. The General Meeting approves the Presidium. Secretariat and Vote
Counting Committee
To run the General Meeting, assist the Presidium in recording the Minutes and
Draft Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders and counting votes for the
contents passed at the Meeting, the Congress approved the members of the Presidium,
Secretariat and Vote Counting Committee by raising voting cards with a confirmative
vote rate of . .....% of the total number of voting shares.

<  The Presidium consists of the following 05 members:

+ Mr. Nghiem Cuang Huy - Chairman of the Board of Directors - Charman
+ Mr. Pham Van Khanh - Independent member of the Board of Directors -
Member

+ Mr. Tran Hai Bang - Member of the Board of Directors - Member
+ Mr. Chu Thanh Hai - Member of the Board of Directors - Member
+ Mr. Nguyen Hoai Nam - Member of the Board of Directors - Member

%  The Secretariat consists of the following 02 members:

+ Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam - Person in charge of corporate povernance and
Secretary of the Corporation - Head of the Secretariat
+ Ms, Nguyen Thi Lan Anh = Official of Legal Department - Member

4%  The Vote Counting Committee consists of the following 08 members:

+ Mr. Le Manh Ha - Head of the Orgamzation-Admimistration Department —
Chairman
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Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam - Person in charge of corporate povernance and
Secretary of the Corporation - Deputy Head of Standing Board.

Ms. Nguyen Phuong Thao - Official of the Economic and Trade Department -
Member {Representative of the Shareholder)

+ Mr. Nguyen Cong That - Deputy Head of the Organization- Administration
Department - Member

Mr. Do Anh Thuy - Deputy Head of the Orpanization- Administration
Department - Member

Mr. Truong Hoal Phong - Official of the Orgamzation-Adminisiration
Department - Member

Ms. Luong Thi Yen - Secretary of the Board of Directors — Member

+ Ms. Duong Thi Van Trang - Official of the Department of Investment Plan &
Restructuring - Member

4. Adoption of the Meeting Agenda

The Meeting listened to the Apenda of the 2025 Annual General Meefing of
Shareholders of PETROCONs presented by Mr. _..._............coioii... = Member of
the Board of Directors of the Corporabon, member of the Presidium.

The Meeting approved the Agenda of the General Meeting of Shareholders by
raising voting cards with the confirmative voie rate of ......% of the total number of

voling shares.

Meeting agenda

Content 1:

Content 2:

Content 3:

Content 4:

Content 5:

Content 6:

Report on The 2024 Operation of the Board of Directors and the
2025 Operation Plan. Report on The Opemation of the Board of
Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of Directors;

Report on The 2024 production and business results and the 2025
production and business plan.

The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Supervisors and the
2025 Operation Plan.

Proposal on approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and
the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan.

Proposal on selecting the Audiing Firm for 2025 Financial
Statements.

Proposal on settling the 2024 salary and remuneration and the 2025
salary and remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors.
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Content 7:  Pmoposal on Authonzing the Board of Drrectors to approve the 5-
vear production and business plan of PETROCONs for the 2026-
2030 penod.

Content 8: Proposal on personnel affairs of the Board of Directors/ Board of
Supervisors under the authonty of the General Meeting of
Sharcholders.

Election of members of the Board of Directors and the Board of
Supervisors.

5. Adoption of the regulations on organizing the Meeting

The Meeting listened to the Regulatons on organizing the 2025 Anmual General
Meeting of Shareholders of PETROCONs presented by Mr. .. ..o =
Member of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, Member of the Presidium.

The Meeting approved the Regulations on orgamizing the General Meeting of
Shareholders by raismz voting cards with the confirmative vote rate of ....... % of the
total number of voting shares.

Regulations on organizing the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of PETROCONS (For details, see the attached documenis).

B. PART II: REPORTS, STATEMENTS
PETROCONs" 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders has
implemented the following contents:

. Mr. i = eiieeeeeen... presenied the Repori No. ... /BC-XLDK
dated........... on The 2024 Operanon of the Board of Directors and the 2025
Operation Plan. Mr. ._........ ceciraices-- = Independent Member of

the Board of Directors of the fﬂi‘pﬂmﬂﬂﬂ presented Report on The Operation of
the Board of Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of Directors.

(For details, see the attached Report).

IR | A cveeaee--- presented the Report No. .. ...../BC-XLDK
dated..... ...... on TI'!E '-"I'.L'a_'d production and business results and the 2025
production and business plan.

{For details, see the attached Statement ).
e M oo i . presented the Report No. ... . /XLDK-BKS

dated.............. on The 2024 I']perauun Report of the Board of Eupenlsurs and
the 2025 Operation Plan.

(For details, see the attached Report).
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4. Mr o= iciieescasian. presented the Proposal No. ... TTr-
XLDK dated .......... on approving the 2024 Audited Financial Statements and
the 2024 Profit Disinbution Plan.

(For details. see the attached Proposal).

5. Mr.oii= iiiaicvinas. presented the Proposal No. . TT=XLDK
dated.......... on selecting an Auditing Firm for the 2025 Financial Statemenis.

(For details, see the attached Proposal).

6 Mr ... - -. presented the Proposal No. . /TTr-XLDK dated

. on '-:-Etllmg 2024 _mla.r}r and remuneration and the 2025 salary and

remuneration plan of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors. (For
details. see the attached Report).

A | O R e . presented the Proposal No. ... /TTr-XLDK
dated ....... on f‘&ulhum:mg the Board of Directors to approve the 5-year
production and business plan for the 2026-2030 penod of PETROCONS,

{ For details, see the attached Proposal).

#.  Shareholders and their authorized representatives shall vote to approve the
contents from items | to 7 by votng at the meeting.

C. PART III: ELECTION CONTENTS OF MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
At the 2025 Annupal General Meeting, there are (02 members of the Board of
Directors (including 01 independent member of the Board of Directors) and 0]
member of the Board of Supervisors whose term of office (2020-2025) has expired.
Therefore, at this meeting. the members of the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors will be elected for the new term of office (2025-2030).

. Mr.oiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaiee.. = Chairman presented the Proposal on Electing the
members of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors for the 2025-
2030 term.,

{ For details, see the attached Proposal).

I

I T S R R e B S e . Head of the
DTga.mzmg Committee pres.emed the R.eprm on  nominabion, cnm:lu:laL:,r and
recommendation of personnel to the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors.

(For details, see the attached Report).

e B acaeiena - -, Head of the
Vote Counting C'Dmmmee r-d ThE L""u"s n-f The candldntes ﬁ:lr The Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors.
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The Meeting voted to approve the Report and the List of candidates for the Board
of Directors and the Board Supervisors of the Corporation with a confirmative
vote rate of ....... %a of the total number of voting shares.

d: M R R R R TR R sy Head of: e
Vote Counting Commiitee read the Regulations on electing members of the
Board of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors of Peirovieinam
Construction loint Stock Corporation

The Meeting voted to approve the Regulations on electing members of the Board
of Directors and members of the Board of Supervisors with a confirmative vote
rate of ....... % of the total number of voting shares.

(For details, see the attached regulations)

5. Shareholders and their authorized representatives attending the meeting shall
vote 1o elect the members of the Board of Directors and members of the Board of
Supervisors by direct vofing at the meeting.

D. PART IV: SHAREHOLDERS' DISCUSSION AT THE GENERAL
MEETING
The shareholders ratsed a number of questions about the production and busmess
situation, plans and finances of PETROCONs and the Presidium fully answered the
guestions at the General Meeting.

E. PART V: VOTING RESULTS AND ELECTION RESULTS AT THE
MEETING
M s, i e ci,y, Head of the Voie Coanting Commitiee
announced the voting and election results as follows:

1. Voting results:

L1 The Report No. ....... o/ BOC-XLDK dated... on The 2024 Operation of the
Board of Directors and the 2025 Operation Plan. Report on The Operation of
the Board of Directors by the Independenit Member of the Board of Directors:

Affirmative votes:  ............. shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.
MNegabive votes: waneasemsens. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of aftendees.
Abstentions: sveeeseose... Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.
1.2 The Report No. ........ JBO-XLDK dated... on The 2024 production and
business resulis and the 2025 production and business plan:
Affirmative votes:  ..._......... shares, accounting for ._. % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.
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MNegative votes: wieeesemsens- Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of aftendees.

Abstentions: iieeeveoieew. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.
1.3 The Repart Na. ...... SXLDK-BKS dated........ on The 2024 Operation Report

of the Board of Supervisors and the 2025 Operation Plan:

Affirmative votes! ............. shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

MNegative votes: weneeeeesnn. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Abstentions: seeeasemsens. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

L4 The Propasal Ne. .......... LLTTr-XLDK dated ... on approving the 2024
Auwdited Financial Statemenis and the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan:

1.4.1 The 2024 Aundited Financial Statements

Affirmative votes:  ......._..... shares, accounting for ._. % of the total number
of voting shares of aftendees.
Megative votes: +imeiiewse.- Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number

of voting shares of attendees.

Abstentions: weneesesens. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of aftendees.

1.4.2 The 2024 profit distribution plan

Affirmative votes: iimvreese... shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Negative votes: seseasa-sss.- Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Abstentions: sveeaseosea.. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

L5 The Proposal No. ........ JTTr-XLDK dated..... on selecting an Anditing Firm
Jfor the 2025 Financial Statements:

Affirmative votes: temsseenene. Shares, accounting for ... % of the twotal number
of voting shares of aftendees.
MNegative votes: sveeeseose... Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number

of voting shares of attendees.
Abstentions: rteeesemsses- Shares, accounting for ._. % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.
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L& The Proposal No, ........ STTr-XLDK dated.......... an sertling 2024 salary and
remuneration and the 2025 salary and remuneration plan of the Board of
Directors and the Board of Supervisors:

Affirmative votes: ............. shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

Negative voles: simeseesnee.- Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of aftendees.

Abstentions: iieeeveoieew. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.

L7 The Proposal No. ........ STTr-XLDK dated..... on Authorizing the Board of
Diirectors to apprave the S-year production and business plan of PETROCONS
Jor the 2026-2030 period:

Affirmative votes:  ............. shares, accounting for ... % of the total number
of voting shares of attendees.
Megative votes: weneeeeesnn. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number

of voting shares of attendees
Abstentions: waneasemsens. Shares, accounting for ... % of the total number

of voting shares of aftendees.

2.  Voting resalts:

The Meeting conducted the election and achieved the following resulis:

FULL NAME OF
S CANDIDATES v HESLLES
Election of Member of Board of Directors
Election of independent members of the Board of Directors
Election of members of the Board of Supervisors

F. PART VI: PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTIONS AND MINUTES OF
THE GENERAL MEETING
Mr. Nguyen Phuong Nam - Head of the Corporate Governance and Secretary of
the Corporation - Head of the Secretariat presented the Minutes and Resolution of the
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2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Petrovieinam Construction Joint
Stock Corporation.

G. PART VII: CLOSING PROCEDURES

The Mimmutes and Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of PETROCONs have been fully and honestly recorded by the
Secretanal and unamimously approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders by
raising voting cards with the Affirmative votesof ................. shares, accounting for

... % of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

The Minutes of the General Meeting of Shareholders were prepared at ... hours
... rinutes on the same day and in three (03 ) copies of the same legal value.

The Chairman of the General Meeting declared the closmng of the 2025 Annual

General Meeting of Shareholders of PETROCONS at ... hour ... minutes on the same
day.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
SECRETARIAT GENERAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS
CHAIRMAN
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VIETNAM NATIONAL INDUSTRY - ENERGY GROUP SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM

PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
No.: NQ-BHBCB-XLDK Ha Noi, ......day......month.... 2025
RESOLUTION

OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
OF PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK
CORPORATION

Pursuant to the Enterprise Law No. 39/2020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Viemam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Law on Securities No. 54/201%/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on November 26, 2019 and its guiding
documents;

Pursuant to the organizational and operational charter of Petrovietnam
Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the Corporation/PETROCONs);

Pursuant to the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
No. o.ooooeoee. . /BB-DHDCD-XLDK of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock
Corporation dated ... /... /2025;

DECIDES:

Article 1. To approve the report No. ....../BC-XLDK dated ......on The 2024
Operation of the Board of Directors and the 2025 Operation Plan; Report on The
Operation of the Board of Directors by the Independent Member of the Board of

Directors.
Content: According to the Report No. ... .../BC-XLDK dated ............ and the
attached Report of the Independent Member of the Board of Directors.
The meeting unanimously approves these reports with ... voling
shares, accounting for ... ... % of the total number of voting shares of attendees.
Article 2: To approve the report No. ........./BC-XLDK dated ....... on The

2024 production and business results and the 2025 production and business plan.

% Performance results of economic targets in 2024
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Yoar 2024 Plan
Implrmm complet
Mo uns tation in Implem o 202412
) ltems L'mit 023 A sntstion p-r:rmfnt 023
plia in 2013 age in (o)
2024
(*a)
j [ Produciman il 91238 153200 | onzas 4% | 108%
business valoe dionz
Ballzon i &
Parent company S 44136 BE4 (W 26184 1 5000
Bill
2 | Total revenues dl.:.:.:n 1.237.96 1,704.00 | 1.317.87 7% |  106%
Billio
Parent compam :tn;;n 765.74 105500 | 609.04 sa% | BO%G
3 | Pre-tax profits Hd':::;" (267.12) 3.70 481 | 130%
Parent company Eﬂ:::;n (162.65) 048 412 43%
4 | After-tax profits Lh'"'“” (265.22) 3.70 2.61 1%
ong
Billion e
Farent company s [ 162.65) b4H 4.12 43%0
ng
il
5 | State budget pavable iﬂ;:" 41.05 4700 4904  105% | 120%
Parent company Hd':::: 1067 14.00 3.8 7% 6%
& | Average income Million 10.58 1084 11.42 105% | 10%%
dong/mo
Farenr company nik 1325 e ] 1325 1P 1R

% The 2025 plan with key economic targets

2024
; 5 2
| e | 2
Plan Implementation | completion P P
percent
y | Posmectionand 1,532.00 9%2 8% 640 | 1,345.00 137%
business volue
Parent company K4 261 84 Sy | 33200 127%
2 Totol revenues [ 700 0 131787 Tida | 1.707.00 1 30%%
Parent eompany PPN Y AL R A S, (AR 131%
3 Pre-tux Frmt-]!_ﬁ 3.0 4.4l L 30% 4.56 5%
Parent company w4 4.12 43% 372 Wit
4 | After-tax profits 370 161 T1% 4.56 175%
Parent company AR 4.12 43% 372 W%
g | S Huiee 47.00 49.14 105% [ SR.00 1 18%
pavable
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2024
2025 2025 plan/2024
o lems s plan | im hul:1:nlaliun
Plan | Implementation | completion g
percent
Parent company f4.00) 3.4 N (M 236%
Average income
6 | (million 1054 142 15% L1.tH L%y
dong/person/month)
Parent company 1335 f325 L 4.1 e
The meeting unanimously approved the above plan with ... ..................... valing
shares, accounting for ... ......% of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Article 3. To approve The 2024 Operation Report of the Board of Supervisors
and the 2025 Operation Plan No. .._..../XLDK-BKS dated........_..

Content: According to the attached Report No. .._...._. /XLDK-BKS dated......

The meeting unanimously approved the rveport with .................. voling
shares, accounting for ... _......% of the total number of voting shares of attendees.

Article 4. To approve the 2024 Audited Financial Statement and the 2024
Profit Distribution Plan

Contents: According (o the attached Proposal No... /TTr-XLDK
dated.............

No. ltems Parent company Notes
I Total after-tax profits (2024) 4. 120 891 160
T Accumulated loss as of December 31, (3.765,932.031,020)
2024
Il | Provisions for funds 0
1 | Reward and wellare fund Q
2 | Financial reserve fund 0
3 | Development investment fund l
IV | Dividend pavment (2024) {
Approval of not setting aside funds and paying dividends in 2024.
The meeting unanimously approved with ... .....co...... vorting shares,
accounting far ......_....% af the total number of voting shares of attendees.
Article 5. Approval of the Proposal No. ... . /TTr-XLDK dated...._.. on
selecting the Auditing Firm for 2025 Financial Statements
Content: According to the attached Proposal No. ..... . /TTr-XLDK dated.....
The meeting wmanimously approved with ... .......... voting shares,
accounting for ... .......% of the toral number of vating shares of attendees.

e e L S e O e o e B o o o o L oy el L Ty e Y e s L e e e e e e e e e o e
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Article 6. To approve the Proposal No. ........./TTr-XLDK dated.... on setiling
the 2024 salary and remuneration and the 2(k25 salary and remuneration plan of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors

Content: According to the attached Proposal No. ... _/TTr-XLDK dated......

1. Salary and rermmeration of the Board of Directors and the Board of Supervisors
in 2024: Settlement of salary and remuneration of the Board of Directors and the
Board of Supervisors in 2024 {(according to the Resolution No. TUWNQ-BHDCD-
X1LDK by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders dated May 23, 2024),

specifically:
No. Continia Salary/remuneration (2024)

Plan Imple mentation Percentage

(4) (B) () {2) (3)={2)/%1)
| | Board of Directors 2.496.600,000 2 178,200,018 87%
2 | Board of Supervisors 593,450,000 501,819,999 85%
Total 3,090.050,000 2,680,020.817 B7%

2

. The 2025 salary and rerumeration plan of the Board of Directors and Board of

Supervisors:

Salary and remuneration of full-ome members of the Board of Directors and
Board of Supervisors: according to the Salary Regulations of PETROCONS in
accordance with the Decree No. 44/2025/ND-CP dated February 28, 2025 by the
Government on labor management, salary, remuneration, bonuses in State-owned
enterprises and based on the actual production and business results of

PETROCONS,

Salary and remuneration of independent members of the Board of Directors: 1) In
case a member works regularly under the working regime at the Corporation’s
Office, he/she will be paid salary and other benefits like the full-time members of
the Board of Directors: 1) In case a member works irregularly at the
Corporation’s Office (pari-time), he/she will be paid remuneration equal to 70%
of the salary of the full-time member of the Board of Directors.

Remuneration of pari-time members of the Board of Directors and the Board of

Supervisors: no more than VIND 5 000,000/person/month.
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The meeting unanimously approved the above content With ... ..o v veling

shares, accounting for ... ... %o af the total number of veting shares of attendees.
Article 7. Approval of the Proposal No. . ... /TTr-XLDK dated.... on

authonizing the Board of Directors to approve the 5-vear production and business plan of
PETROCONS for the 2026-203(} period.

Content: According to the attached Proposal No. _.... . J/TTr-XLDK dated.....

The meeiing unanimously approved the above Report with ..................... voling

shares, accounting for ... ... %o af the total number of veting shares of attendees.

Article 8. The General Meetmng of Shareholders elected members of the Board
of Directors and the Board of Supervisors for the 2025-2030 term with the following

results:

No. FULL NAME VOTES

List of elected members of the Board of Directors

N = S R e R R T s e B e st oo N [ ¥ <. X N K e K

B | e e e e e | e o

-

Article 9. Executive provisions
This Resolution takes effect from May 29, 2025,
The General Meeting of Sharcholders assigns the Board of Directors, the Board

of Supervisors and the Board of Management to organize the implementation of the
contents approved at the General Meeting on the basis of ensunng the interests of
PETROCONs and the interests of shareholders in accordance with the orgamzational
and operational Charter of PETROCON: and the current legal regulations.

This Resolution was approved fully by the 2025 Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders of Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation at the meeting on
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May 29, 2025 with the affirmation vote rate of 100% of the total number of voting

shares of attendees.

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF
GENERAL MEETING OF
Sent fo: SHAREHOLDERS
- As per Article 9 (for implementation); CHAIEMAN
- State Securitics Commssion, Hanot Stock
Exchange ( for report);
- Information publisher (for information
desclosure);
- PETROCONs website (instead of sendmg
nortices to sharcholders); )
- Kept at- BOD, Archives, Legal Department. Nghiem Quang Huy
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VIETNAM OIL AND GAS GROUP THE SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION.ISC Independence - Freedom — Happiness

No: (4 /BC-XLDK Hanoi A5 January, 2025

REFORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (ABRIDGED VERSION)
2024

To:
- The State Securities Commission;
- The Hanoi Stock Exchange

- Name of Company: PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
{PetroCons).

- Address of headoffice: 14th floor, VPI tower, 167 Trung Kinh street, Yen Hoa
ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi city, Vietnam.

- Telephone: 02437685291 Fax: 024,376859290 Email: info@pve.vn

- Charter capital: 4.000.000.000.000 Vietnamese Dong (Four thousand billion
Vietnamese Dong)

- Stock symbol; PVX

- Governance model: General Meeting of Shareholders, Board of Directors, Board
of Supervisors, General Director and Director,

- The implementation of internal audit: has Internal audit division directly under
Finaneial-Accountant and Audit Department.

I. Activities of the General Meeting of Shareholders

Information on meetings, resolutions and declsions of the General Meeting of
Skareholders (including the resolutions of the General Meeting of Shaveholders approved in the
form af written commenis)

Mo, I Rﬂﬂl““;':]m““m Date Content
1 TONQ-DHBCD - | 0. P24 Resolutions of the 2024 Annual General Meeting
XLDK G of Sharcholders of PetroCons

I1. Board of Directors
1. Information about the members of the Board of Directors:

The date becoming/ceasing
= to be the member of the
No. Board of Directors Pesition Rosvd of Directors
members

Date of Date of

n_ppnintment dismissal
1 | Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy | Chairman 04/11/2021
2 | Mr. Chu Thanh Hai Members ol the Board of | 50 /06/2021

hrectors

3 | Mr. Tran Hai Eangr Members of the Board of | 30/06/2021




The date becoming/ceasing
A to be the member of the
Mo, Bﬂ“ren:;l;i:::mrs Position Board of Directors
Date of Date of
appointment | dismissal
Directors |
: Members of the Board of
4 | Mr. Nguyen Hoai Nam Ditectsics 2000172022 X
Independent members of
5 | Mr. Pham Van Khanh the Board of Directors 24/06/2020
2. Meetings of the Board of Directors
Number of
: g meetings
No. Haard of Directors attended by Attendince Reasons for absence
members rate
Board of
Directors
I | Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy 07/07 100%
2 | Mr. Chu Thanh Hai 0707 100%
3 | Mr, Tran Hai Bang 07/07 100%
4 | Mr. Nguyen Hoai Nam 0707 100%
5 | Mr. Pham Van Khanh 05/07 T1% Had reasons for absence

3, Supervising the Board of Management by the Board of Directors:

- The Board of Directors follows and supervises Board of Management in order to
implement Resolutions of the Board of Directors,

- The Board of Directors attends and has opinions in Regular work meetings of
Board of Management.

- The Board of Dircctors follows and gets information of business management
through Board of Management's repor/letter to Board of Directors,

- The Board of Directors coorporates with Board of Supervisors in order to
supervise business execution and management work of PetroCons.

4. Activities of the Board of Directors’ subcommittees: None of subcommittees.

3. Resolutions/Decisions of the Board of Directors in 2024:

No. I;lu?i::::l;in:. Date Content
Resolution on PetroCons' Capital Representative at
1 05/MNQ-XLDE 1040172024 | DOBC 10 appoint Mr. Pham Van Thu as Company
Director.
Resolution on Approving the short-term credit limit |
of the Parent Company - PetroVietnam Construction
2 09/NQ-XLDK 17/01/2024 | Joint Stock Corporation to serving business
activities in 2023-2024 a1 BIDV Bank - Ha Dong
Branch.

—

2




Nao.

Resolution/
Decision No.

Date

Conftent

12/NQ-XLDK

31/0172024

Resolution on implementing Business tasks in 2024
of PetroCons.

I4NQ-XLDK

06/02/2024

Resolution on approving the personnel work of
Thanh Hoa Petroleurn Construction Joint Stock

Company (PVC-TH).

16MNQ-XLDK

12/03/2024

Decision on Establishing the Organizing Committee
of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Sharcholders of PetroCons.

18 NQ-XLDK

14/03/2024

Resolution on Approval of the policy of liquidating
02 cars of the PetroCons.

19/NQ-XLDK

20/03/2024

Resolution on approving the organization plan and
contents of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of PetroCons.

28/NQ-XLDK

19/04/2024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of PVC-
1C.

I1/NQ-XLDE

221042024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of PVC-
Binh Son.

10

JANQ-XLDK

2410472024

Resolution on Approving the policy of
implementing the process of introducing personnel
1o hold the position of Director of PVC-TH from the
source of mobilization between PetroCons’
Companies,

ik

ISNQ-XLDK

25/04/2024

Resolution on Approval of the introduction of
changing personnel to hold the position of Head of
the Board of Supervisors of PVC Thai Binh.

12

FTNQ-XLDK

25/04/2024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of PVC
Thai Binh.

13

IFNQ-XLDK

25/04/2024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of
PetroCons Dong Do,

14

INQ-XLDK

26/04/2024

Resolution om approving the appointment of
PetroCons’ capital representative at PVC-Binh Son

46NQ-XLDK

07052024

Resolution on Approval of the nomination of Mr.
Hoang Dac Tuan as Director of PYC-TH.

16

48/NQ-XLDK

07052024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of DOBC.,

17

32NQ-XLDK

15/0572024

Resolution on approving the contents of the 2024

Annual General Meeting of Sharcholders of PVC-
MS.

13

SINQ-XLDK

15/05/2024

Resolution on Voting additional members of the
Board of Directors and Board of Supervisors of
PVC-Binh Son introduced by other sharcholders.




Mo,

Resolution/
Decision Nao.

Date

Content

19

S4/NQ-XLDK

20

16/05/2024

Resolution on Approval of the completion of the
personelirepresentatives of PetroCons' capital at the
PetroCons member companies.

S9NQ-XLDK

17/05/2024

Resolution on voting on the dismissal and election
of additional members of the Board of Supervisors
of P¥C Duyen Hai introduced by other shareholders
at the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

21

60/NQ-XLDK

2040572024

Resolution on Approval of the introduction of
personnel restructuring for the Board of Directors
and Supervisory Board of DOBC.

22

TONQ-XLDE

23/05/2024

Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
shareholders of PetroCons Corporation,

76/NQ-XLDK

31/05/2024

Resolution on Approval of Mr. Vu Manh Quang’s
resignation from the position of PetroCons' Deputy
General Director.

24

T9/NQ-XL.DK

10/06/2024

Resolution on Approval for the Representative of
PetroCons' capital share at PetroCons-Dong Do to
re-appoint the Company Director,

5

93/NQ-XLDK

027772024

Resolution on Approval for the Representative of
PetroCons' capital share at PVC - IC to re-urrange
organizational model,

26

G6/NQ-XLDK

V772024

Besolution on Plan  for
equipments,

handling PetroCons®

27

103/NQ-XLDK

05/9/2024

Resolution on Approval for the Representative of
the Corporation's capital share at PVC-Binh Son 1o
vate to approve the liquidation of 01 old car and
purchase of {1 new car to serve the management and
operation of PYVC-Binh Son

29

106/NQ-XLDK

11/9/2024

Resolution on approving the resignation application
of PetroCons' capital representative, Chairman of
PVC-Metal Board of Directors of Mr. Doan Huu
Trac,

111/NQ-XLDE

18/9/2024

Resolution on the completion of the representative
of the PetroCons' capital at PVC-TH.

30

127NQ-XLDK

06/11/2024

Resolution on Approval for the Representative of
the Corporation's capital share at PetroCons Dong
Do to vote to approve the car liguidation and
purchase of 01 new car to serve the management and
operation of PetroCons Dong Do

31

135/NQ-XLDK

05/12/2024

Resolution on Approving the short-term credit limit
of the Parent Company - PetroVietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporation to serving business
activities in 2024-2025 at BIDV Bank - Ha Dong
Branch.

32

137/MNQ-XLDK

101272024

Resolution on introducing personnel to hold the
position of Chairman of the Board of Directors of

|

4




M.

Resolution/
Decision No,

Content

Thanh Hoa Petrolevm Construction Joint Stock
Company.

Decisions

20/QP-XLDK

22/03/2024

Decision on Approving the 2024 management cost
plan of the Parent Company and the 2024
maenagement cost estimate of the PetroCons Head
ofhce.

21QB-XLDK

26/03/2024

Decision on Issue the Action Program of PetroCons
o implement the Action Program of PYN attached
with Decision No. 1327/QD-DEVN dated March 6,
2024

40/QP-XLDK

26472024

44/QB-XLDK

Decision on contributing PetroCons' capital share to
the Capital Representative at PVC - Binh Son.

03/05/2024

Decision on PetroCons persons 1o join the Group to
visit Truong Sa island and DK | platform in 2024.

45/QD-XLDK

04/05/2024

Decision on approving sending PetroCons person on
abroad business trips (Korea).

56/QD-XLDK

17/05/2024

Decision on contributing PetroCons' capital share to
the Capital Representative at PVC — MS.

61/QD-XLDK

2000572024

T4/QP-XLDE

Decision on contributing PetroCons’ capital share to
the Capital Representative at DOBC.

28/05/2024

Decision on Approval of 2023 management cost
settlement of Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant
Project Mana Board

77/QD-XLDK

30572024

Decision on the dismissal of Mr. Vu Manh Quang
from the position of PetroCons Deputy General
Director.

10

B1/QB-XLDK

117062024

Decision on strengthening the Steering Commitiee
and the Working Group of the Steering Committee
on  anti-lerrorism  prevention  and  comtrol  of
PetroCons

83/QD-XLDK

12

| 1/6/2024

Decision on approving the implementation plan of
Contract No. 15/HD-NDVT/24&NBSP:  dated
March 12, 2024 between Vinh Tan Thermal Power
Company - Branch of Power Generation
Corporation 3 - Joint Stock Company and SAIGON
E.T.C - PETROCONSs Joint Venture,

B4/0D-XLDK

| 4/06/2024

Decision on issuing the Regulation on Document of
PetroCons Head office.

13

%5/QB-XLDK

21/06/2024

Decision on approving the implementation plan of
Contract No. UBDCS-P5-21082023 dated August
21, 2023 between Thermal Power Project
Management Board 3 - Branch of Power Generation
Corporation | One Member Co., Ltd. and VCAP-

5




No.

Resolution/
Decision No.

Diate

Content

PETROCOMNs Joint Venture.

14

R8/QD-XLDK

25/06/2024

Decision on approving the results of the assessment
of the level of completion of duties and
responsibilities of PetroCons’ representative at other
Enterpnises in 2023,

15

89/QB-XLDK

26/06/2024

Decision on approving and issuecing the Regulations
on recruitment, management and use of labor of the
PetroCons Head office.

16

92/QB-XLDK

027772024

Decision on Approval of selection of auditing unit
for the Parent Company's Financial Statements and
the PetroCons’ Consolidated Financial Statements in
2024,

17

101/QD-XLDK

26/8/2024

Decision on Approval of 2023 implementation
management costs of PVC's Project Management

Board at South,

18

104/QD-XLDK

05/9/2024

Decision on Approval of the implementation plan of
Contract  No, LSOHDEKT/ 2024/ NMNDSHI -
PETROCONSs dated August 24, 2024 between the
Oil and Gas Power Generation Branch - Vietnum Oil
and Gas Group and PetroCons on Renovation and
repair of the housing area for employees operating
Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant.

19

105/QB-XLDK

05/9/2024

Decision on Approval of the implementation plan of
Contract Mo, 151/HDKT2024/NMNDSH1 -
PETROCON: dated August 24, 2024 between the
0il and Gas Power Generation Branch - Victnam Qil
and Gas Group and PetroCons on the renovation of
equipment washing area, hoiler slag discharge area
of Units 01 and 02 of Song Hau 1 Thermal Power
Plant Project.

20

107/QB-XLDK

11972024

Decision on the termination of the appointment of
PetroCons' capital representative at PVC-Metal.

21

109/QD-XLDK

13/9/2024

Decision on Approval of the implementation plan of
comtract No. 23/2024HDXD-EVNPMNZ dated July
29, 2024 between Power Project Management Board
2 and Geovietnam Joint Stock Company and
PetroCons Joint YVenture on the construction of slag
dump, water collection tower, retumn water pipeline
of Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project.

22

112/0b-XLDK

| 8/972024

Decision on contributing PetroCons' capital share 1o
the Capital Representative at PVC-TH.

125/QB-XLDK

3v10/2024

Decision on Approval and issue PetroCons' Contract
Management Regulations

24

128/QB-XLDK

08/11/2024

Decision on approving the abolition of the Citizen
Reception Reguolations of PetroCons.

25

130QBP-XLDK

151172024

Decizion on Approval of the implementation plan of
Contract No. 2142024/HD/CNPC-PETROCONS
dated October 18, 2024 between Cao Ngan Thermal

6




Resolution/

No. | Decision No.

Date Content

Power Company - TEKV and PetroCons.

Diecision on contributing PetroCons’ capital share 1o

26 138/QB-XLDK | 10/12/2024

l the Capital Representative at PVC-TH.

IIL. Board of supervisors:
L. Information about members of Board of Supervisors:

—

The date
becoming/ceasing
N, Memsh S crth-I:rnnt o Position to be the member Qualification
VPRETIS of the Board of
Supervisors
Head of the - Master of Business
| | Mr. Hua Xuan Nam Board of 01072021 Administration
Supervisors - Bachelor of Economics
. F”::’E : | Engineer in Control and
member o :
Automaton of
2 | Mr. Phug Van Sy the E!:_:an:l 017072021 | Petrochemical Refinry
Swmm | Tﬁ:hﬂﬂlﬂ-ﬂjtﬁ
Partime - Engineer in  Thermal
member of power.
3 | Mr. Nguyen Ngoe Cuong the Eu.u.rﬂuf 01072021 - Bachelor of Invetsing
Supervisors Economics

2. Meetings of Board of Supervisors: In 2024, Board of Supervisors organized
U2 meetings with full members of Meetings of Board of Supervisors,

3. Supervising Board of Directors, Board of Management and shareholders by
Board of Supervisors
3.1, Result of Supervising Board of Directors

In 2024, Board of Supervisors attended all meetings of Board of Directors/Board of
Management.

The Board of Directors of PetroCons has strictly implemented the Resolution of the
2024 General Meeting of Shareholders. The Board of Directars of PetroCons has issued
Directives and Resolutions directing the Management Board: the functional Departments
at the Parent Company and the Capital Representatives at the Subsidiaries, Affiliates. and
Financial Investment Companies to implement the directives and resolutions of the
Vietnam Oil and Gas Group, the Resolution of the General Meeting of Sharcholders, to
organize production and business in the direction of maximizing PetroCons' resources 1o
ensurc compliance with the provisions of law and has issued a number of documents and
resolutions. The Board of Directors has performed the leading role, supervising the
management of the Board of Directors in the operation of production and business 1o
remove difficulties, problems, limitations, prevent potential risks, maintain a stable

7

e LA




production and business operation apparatus, organize regular and ad hoc meetings in the
form of a centralized meeting or through written opinions to issue Resolutions and
decisions to resolve issues under the authority according to the operating regulations of
the Board of Directors and the Charter of the Corporation.

- The Board of Directors has performed the role of directing, supervising and
supporting the Board of Management in operating the business activities of PetroCons.

- The Board of Directors restructures and rearranges PetroCons' business activities
to stabilize PetroCons’ production and business activities

3.2. Result of Supervising Board of Management:

In the context of many difficulties and challenges, the PetroCons Board of
Management has managed and operated production and business activities in accordance
with the decentralization between the Board of Directors and the Board of Management.
The Board of Management has properly performed its role and responsibilities in
managing production and business activities, strictly and fully complying with the
regulations and provisions of the law, PYN and PetroCons,

The Board of Management has strengthened the implementation of cost
reduction measures, strictly controlled expenses and cash flow to maintain production
and business activities; implemented measures to strengthen internal resources and
continue to promote marketing, bidding, and search for new jobs; actively deploved the
search for investors interested in receiving capital transfers at units as well as promoting
work related to PetroCons restructuring,

The payment of salaries to employees of the Corporation and the Project
Management Boards is carried out on the principle of linking salarics to the assigned job
position, quality and efficiency of work, ensuring the life of emplovees working at the
PetroCons Headoffice, with stable income. However, there are still some units that have
not had a source of work for many vears, so they still owe salaries and social insurance.

3.3, With Shareholders:

- The Board of Supervisors has submitted a report to the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders approving the Board of Supervisors' performance report, the
Board of Supervisors' remuneration in 2024 and the Board of Supervisors' performance
plan in 2025,

- For the largest sharcholder, the Vietnam Oil and Gas Group, the Board of
Supervisors fully implements periodic monitoring reports every quarter/year and ad hoc
reports when requested by the Group. The Board of Supervisors has submitted them in
accordance with the prescribed content and deadline

4. The coordination among the Board of Supervisors, the Board of
Management, Board of Directors and other managers:

- The coordination among the Board of Supervisors, the Board of Directors and the
Board of Management is carried out on the principle of stability and sustainable

development of PetroCons and ensuring the rights of Shareholders according to the
provisions of the Laws and PetroCons’ Charter.
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- In 2024, the Board of Supervisors closely coordinated with the Board of Directors
and the Board of Management in performing assigned tasks, coordinating in inspection
and supervision activities according to regulations.

- The Board of Directors and the Board of Management have cooperated and
created favorable conditions for the Board of Supervisors to perform their duties, such as
providing information and documents, assigning staff to coordinate with the Board of
Supervisors when requested; participating in meetings of the Board of Directors and
meetings of PetroCons,

- The Board of Supervisors has informed the Board of Directors and the Board of
Management about the inspection and control plan of the vear. The Board of Supervisors
has coordinated with the functional departments of PetroCons in inspecting and
controlling the activities of member units and reported the results to the Board of
Directors.

- Quarterly, the Board of Supervisors prepares quarterly and annual inspection and
supervision reports and sends them to the Vietnam Oil and Gas Group and to the Board
of Directors and the Board of Management of PetroCons.

IV, Ban diéu hanh

Date of appointment/
dismissal of members of
" Members of Board of Date of ; the Board of
L Management birth Qualification Management
Date of Date of
appointment | dismissal
U | Mr.PhanTuGiang | 07/06/1972 | pocimeal equipment el
2 | Mr.Tran Quoc Hoan 10/12/1973 CE onsirustion 01/01/2024
3 | Mr. Nguyen Van Dong | 30/04/1965 ‘E‘m"’fu‘;f 08/07/2011
= Master of
Business
4 | Mr, Bui Son Truong 24/03/1970 | Administration 29/10/2018
- Mechanical
engineernng
Thermal power
3 | Mr. Vu Manh Quang 12/01/1979 Biigliisr 30/05/2024
Petroleum Chemical
7 | Mr. Pham Trung Kien | 26/06/1978 | Equipment and 02/10:2023
Machinery Engineer

LEalhi




V. Chief Accountant

Dre of appaimiment!
Date of dismissal

MName u Qlllu.“l'.'ﬂthﬂ

birth Diare of Date of
appointment | dismissal
Mr. Vu Minh Cong 30/01/1979 | Bachelor of Economics 04/01/2022

VL Training courses on corporate governance
In 2024, PetroCons sent management staffs to attend training courses and seminars
organized by PVN, as follows:

- Training Program on the Government's salary reform policy in 2024 and its
impacts on businesses according to Decision 1652/QD-DEVN dated March 18, 2024 of
the Vietnam Oil and Gas Group.

- Workshop on Building human resources for sustainable energy development
according to Document No. | 11%DEVN-QTNL dated February 28, 2024 of Vietnam
(il and Gas Group.

- Workshop on handling petitions and letiers in the PVN according to Official
Dispatch No. 1365/DEKVN-PCTTr dated March 7, 2024 of PVN.

- Training program on Instructions for implementing the Regulations on
management of title holders, positions and representatives of PVN's capital at other
enterprises according to Official Dispatch No. 3951/QD-DEVN dated June 7, 2024

- Macroeconomic and financial seminar - Quarter 11, 2024 according to Official
Dispatch No. 3982/DEKVN-KTDT dated June 7, 2024

- Investment - Finance Conference 2024 according to Official Dispatch No,
4003/DEVN-KTKT dated June 10, 2024 of Vietnam Oil and Gas Group

- Professional workshop on control work at units in 2024 according to Official
Dispatch No. 3362/DEKVN-HDTV dated July 27, 2024

- Seminar on the draft Law on State Capital Management and Investment in
Enterprises according to Official Dispatch No. 397%DKVN-TCKT dated August 20,
2024

VIL The list of affiliated persons of the public company 2024 and transactions of
affiliated persons of the Company
1. The list of affiliated persons of the Company: as attached APPENDIX 1,

2. Transactions between the Company and its affiliated persons or between the
Company and its major shareholders, internal persons and affiliated persons: none.

3. Transaction between internal persons of the Company, affiliasted persons of
internal persons and the Company’s subsidiaries in which the Company takes controlling
power: None.

4. Transactions between the Company and other ohjects:

4.1, Transactions between the PetroCons and the company that its members of
Board of Management, the Board of Supervisors, General Director have been founding
members or members of Board of Directors, or CEOs in three (03) latest years
(calculated at the time of reporting): None,
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4.2. Transactions between PetroCons and the company that its affiliated persons
with members of Beard of Directors, Board of Supervisors, General Director and other
managers as 8 member of Board of Directors, Director (General Director or CEO): None.

4.3. Onher transactions of PetroCons (if any) may bring material or non- material
benefits for members of Board of Directors, members of the Board of Supervisors,
Dhrector (General Director) and other managers: None.

VIIL Share transactions of internal persons and their affiliated persons in 2024

|. Transactions of internal persons and affiliated persons with shares of PetroCons:
as attached APPENDIX 2.

2, Transactions of internal persons and affiliated persons with shares of the
company: None.

IX. Other significant issues: None.

Recipients: CHAIRMAN OF:
- As To; Fai

- PetroCons Board of Directors: =7 TONE
PetroCons Board of Supervisors; fex {EONG 1Y 1 pd
PetroCons Board of Management; L\ TAY LAP

. PetroCons  Financial and  Accouting AT
Deparment; -
PetroCons Personel and  Administration W &
Deparment; AL &

- PetroCons Information publisher: Nghlem Quang Huy _

- Archied VT, PetroCons Board of Directors.
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PETROVIETNAM COMSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
14th Flaoe, WPl Tower, 167 Trun»g Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District. Hanoi, Vietnam

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of PetroVietnam Construction. Joint Stock Corporation ("the Corporation”)
presents its report and the Corporation’s Separate Financlal Statements for the fiscal yvear ended as at 31
Decamber 2024

THE CORPORATION

PetroVieinam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the “Corporation®), an entity under managameant of
Vietnam Qi and Gas Group (PVN), formerly known as PefroViginam Construction Joint Siock Company,
was astablished in Vielnam by privatizing Petroleum Design and Canstruction Company undar Decision
Mo, 532/Q0-TCCE dated 26 March 2004 of the Minister of Industry [cumently known as the Ministry of
Industry and Trade). PetroVietnam Canstruction Joint Stock Company operates under Business
Regatration Certificate for Joint Stock Company No. 4503000232 dated 13 March 2006 E=sued by
Department of Planning and Investment of Ba Ria - Yung Tau.

&s per Resolution Mo, 3804/NO-DEVN daled 28 October 2007, the Board of Members of Vielnam O and
Gas Group {"PetroVieinam®) approved the proposal on transfer of Peiro Construction Joint Stock
Company inte PetroVietnam Construchon Joint Stock Corporation, operating under the model of holding -
subsidiary company. The Corporation operates under Business Registration Certificate for Joint Stock
Company Mo, 3500102365 daled 20 December 2007 and the 225t change on 18 January 2024, issued by
Hanol Authority far Planning and Invesimant

The Corporation's head office ks located at 14th floor, Vietnam Petraleum Institute building, 167 Trung
Kinh Street, Yen Hog Ward, Cau Giagy District, Hanoi

BEOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Directors during the fiscal year and to the reporting date are:

Mr. Mghiem Cuang Huy Chairman

Mr. Pham Van Khanh Indapendant Member
Mr. Tran Hai Bang Member

Mr. Chu Thanh Hai Murmbiar

Mr. Nguyen Hoai Mam Member

Membars of the Board of Management during the fizcal year and o the reporting date ane:

Mr Tran Quoc Hoan General Director (Appainted on 01 January 2024)
Mr. Phan Tu Giang Gensaral Diractor (Resigned on 01 January 2024)
Mr. Mouyen Yan Dang Deputy General Director

Mr. Bui Son Truong Deputy Ganeral Directar

Mr. Pham Trung Kien Deputy General Director

Mr. Yu Manh Quang Depuly Ganeral Director  (Resigned on 30 May 2024)

The legal represantative of the Corparation dufing the year and until the preparation of these Saparate
Financial Statemants iz Mr, Tran Quoc Hoan (General Director)

Members of the Board of Supenision are

Mr. Hua Xuan Nam Head of the Board
Mr. Nguyen Mgoc Cuong Member

Mr. Phung Yan Sy Member
AUDITORS

The auditors of AASC Auditing Firm Company Limited have taken the sudit of Separate Financial
Statements for the Corparation.
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/" O behaitof he Board of Management

PETROVIETHMAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORPORATION
14ih Floor, VPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay Dislrict, Hanal, Vietnam

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF MAMAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Management is responsible for the Separate Financial Statements which give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Corporation, ifs operafing results and #s cash flows for the year In
preparing those Separate Financial Statemants, the Board of Management is required to:

- Establish and maintain an internal cantrol system which is determined necessary by the Board of
Directors and Board of Management to ensure the preparation and presentation of Separate Financial
Statements do not contaln any material misstatement caused by errors or freuds;

- Galect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

= Make jJudgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- Glate whether applicable sccounting standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disciosad and explained in the Separate Financsal Stalements;

Prepare the Separate Financial Statements on the basls of compliance with Vielnamase Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the
preparation and presentation of Financial Stataments;

- Prepara the Separate Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it is mappropriate o
presume that the Corporation will continue in businass

The Board of Management (s mesponssble for ensuring thal accounting records are kept to reflect the
financial position of the Corporation, with reasonable accuracy et any Lime and to ensure that the
Separate Financial Statements comply with the current State's regulations. [t s responsibie for
safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other iregularities,

The Board of Management confirms that the Separate Financial Statements give a true and fair view of
the financial position at 31 December 2024, iis operation results and cash flows in the yvear 2024 of the
Corporation in accordance with the Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate
Accounting System and the stalutory requirements relevant o the preparation and presantation of
Financial Statemants.

Cther commitments

The Board of Managemsant pledges that the Corporaiion complies with Decree No. 1552020/ND-CP
dated 31 Decamber 2020 an detalling and guiding the implemeantation of 2 number of articles of the Law
on Securities and the Corporation does not violate the obligations of information disclosure in accordance
with the regulations of the Circular No. 25/2020TT-BTC dated 16 Movember 2020 issued by the Ministry
of Finance guiding the disclosure of information on Securities Market and the Circulzr Mo, 68/2024/TT-
BTC dated 18 September 2024 issued by Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some arlicles

o the Cireular No. 96/2020/TT-8TC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: Shareholders, Board of Directors and Board of Management
PotroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

We have audited the accompanying Separate financlal statements of PetroVietnam Construction
Joint Stock Corporalion (the “Corporalion”), prepared on 31 March 2025, as sef oul on pages 06 o
47, including: Separale Statement of Financig! postion as sl 31 December 2024, Separale
Slatemenl of Income, Separate Stalement of Cash flows and Moles io Separate Financial
Siatements for the fiscal year ended as a1 31 December 2024,

Board of Management’s Responsibility

The Board of Management of PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporalion |s respongible for
the preparation and presentation of Separate Financlal Statemeants that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and
the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of Financial Stalements and
for such internal control as management delermines s necessary o ensbla the praparation and
preseniation of Saparale Financial Stetemenis that are free from material misstatement, whether
due io fraud or error

Auditor's Responsibility

Cwur responsibility is o express an opinion on these Separate Financial Statements based on our
gudit, We have conducied our gudit in accordance with Vielnamese Standards on Auditing
Howevar, dua to the matler described In the paragraph "Basis for Disclaimer of OpEnion”, we were
unahla to obtain sufficient appropriete audit evidence 1o provide a basis for the audil apinian.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

We were unable o assess the effect of the lollowing matters on the Corporation's Separate Financial
Slatements for the fiscal vear ended 31 December 2024 (attachad);

1. As al 31 Decembier 2024, Lhe Separate Financial Statements reflect an accumulated loss (code
421) of VND 3,765.93 billion (compared to 3,770.05 billion as at 01 January 2024, currant
lighilities (code 310) of VND 3,874.35 billion, exceading current assels (code 100) by VND
£35.42 billion {as a1 01 January 2024, current liabidities was 4,032.66 billion, exceeding currant
assets by WND 299.00 billion), cverdus debts of VMND 575.67 billion (which remalned unchanged
a5 @l 01 January 2024). These faciors, along with the discloaures in Mote 1 lead to doubts abaut
the Corporation's ability to confinua as a going concern. The Corporation's conlinuing cperations
depend on plans 10 recover debts, restructure investments, complele and finalize works In
progress to recover funds, and oblain financial support from shameholders and creditors. Within
the scope of our audil, we do nol have sufficlent iInformation to evaluate the appropriateness and
effectiveness of these plans.

2. As al 31 December 2024, the Corporation recorded a loan receivable of WND 200 billion lendt to
Lam Kinh Hotel Joint Stock Company o suppord iis operations {the same amount was recorded
as al 01 January 2024), for which a provision of VWD 124.4 billion had been made (unchanged
from 01 January 2024) (see Mole 7). We were unable o oblaln sufficient audit evidence
regarding the recoverable amount of this receivable as at both 31 December 2024 and 01
January 2024, Consequently, we could nol determing whether any adjustments lo these
amounis are necessary.

3. As at 31 December 2024, the cost of wark in progress for the Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant
Project (see Mote 10) and the Cuang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plani Project (see Mote 14)
amounied to approximately VND 245.1 billion and WND 258 billion, respectively (the same
emounts were rapofted as at 01 January 2024), At the reporting date, the Corporation was bl
working with the relevant authorities on (1) approval for adjustments relating to unexpected
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expanzes incurred In the Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant Progect and (2} the acceptance and
finalization of the Corporation's incumed expenses for the Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant
Project We were unable 1o obiain sufficient evidence regarding the nef realizabla value of these
warks in progress as at both 31 December 2024 and 01 January 2024. Consequently, we could
not determine whather any adjustments to these amounts are necessary

4 Mate 14 of the Moles to Separate Financial Statements presenis a balance of consfruction in
progress as al 31 December 2024 for prodecis (in which the Corporation iz the investor) that
have been suspended in previous Yedrs, namely (1) the Petroleum University Urban Areas
Project and (2} the Tien Giang Pelroleum Indusirial Zona Project with a lotal amount of
approximately WND 572 bilion (the same as at 01 January 2024). We were unable o obtain
adequale documentation regarding the potential future economic benefits of these projects,
Consequently, we could not delerming whether any adjustmenis to these amounis ame
FI-E'E!EEEEI:L

5. As gt 31 December 2024, the Corporation held invesimenis in subsidiaries, associates and other
entithes with a total book value of WVHND 832 58 billion and an mpairment provision of WND 858 76
billlon, These investments were provisioned for impairment based on the iatesi financial
staternents available to the Corporation (see MNole 4), We were unable o obiain adequate
documentation regarding the impairment losses on these investments and to pericrm aliernative
audit procadures ta assess the adequacy of the impairment provision as at 31 Decamber 2024,
therefors, we could nol determing whether adjustments to these figures are necessary.

Disclaimer of Opinion

Bacauza of the significance of the maltter described n the "Basis for Dsciaimer of Opinkon®
paragraph, we have not been able o obiain sufficient appropriate audit evidence o provide a basis
for an audit opinicn, Accordingly, we were unable 1o express our opinicn on the attached Saparate
Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Mattor

A5 presanted in Note 33 of the Notes lo the Separate Financial Sfatements, as at 31 December
2024, the Corporation hed some contingent liabilities, related to which the final resull of the
Corporation's obligations have not bean determined.

Our desclaimer of opinion & not further modified with respect to this matter

?ﬁﬁﬁ%pﬂ Company Limited

[ LR RR ST ) it AL, S

“i A = ~
JAnh Tuan. NMguyen Duy Quang
Depity.Cengral Directar Auditor
Reagistered Auditor Mo: 077 7-2023-002-1 Registered Auditor Moo 3363-2025-002-1
Hanaol, 31 March 2025



Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14th floor, VP Tower 187 Trung Kinh Street, Hanaoi

Separate Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as-at 21 December 2024

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 37 December 2024

Code ASSETS

100

110
111
112

120
121
122

123

130
131
132
135
136
137
139

140
121
148

160
151
152
153

A. CURRENT ASSETS

I. Cash and cash equivalents
1. Cash
2. Cash equivalents

[I. Short-term financial investments

1. Trading securities

2. Provision for diminution in veiue of frading
securities

4. Held-fo-maturity investments

Il Short-term recelvables

1. Shari-term frade receivables

2. Shaort-term prepayments o supgpliers
3. Shori-term loan receivabla

4. Other shart-ierm receivables

&, Provizion for ahor-term doubtisl debis
B. Shortage of asseis awaiting resoluton

IV, Inventories
1. Invenicries
2, Prowvision Tar davaluation of inventoras

V. Other short-term assets

1. Short-term prepaid expenses

2. Deduchbhe VAT

3. Taxes and other receiiables from State
budget

Mote 211252024
WND

oo ~d LR

10

LK

1w

3,638,934,763,990

354,571,200,087
168,571,200,087
156,000,000,000

154,509,326,478
14,600,000,000
(13,585,000,000)

153,784 326,478

1,632,922 337,631
1,308,321,214,277
558 680 562,551
355,676 053,493
286,750 465,332
(878,240,546,048)
724,988 026

1,383,604 585,418
1,395,015 419,627
{11,410,834,208)

113,327 ,314,375
217,796,265
81,752,277 .880
21,387 240 230

01/01/2024
VND

3,733,673,097,802

250,481,504,058
210,481,504 058
40,000,000,000

206,237,960,000
14,500,000, 000
(13,885,000,000)

205,522, 960,000

1,718,777,240, 475
1,430 645 450, 270
5re 070,700,736
J55 676 953 403
273,544 789, TE4
(925,885,731 823)
T24 SR8 026

1,437,002,007,370
1,452,198,633,409
(15,196,626,123)

120,074,385,888
187,365,949
86.532.775,720
21,354 240,230
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Petrovietmam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14th floor, VP Tower 187 Trung Kinh Streat, Hanoi

Separate Financial Statemenis
For the fiscal year ended as at 31 Decembar 2024

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Az at 31 December 2024

Code ASSETS

200

210
218

220
221
222
223
227
228
229

241
242
250
251
252
253
254
280
281

2m

B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS

I. Long-=term receivables
1. Other long-term recenvables

Il Fixed assots
1. Tangible fixed aszeis

- Histovical cos!

- Accymiated depreciation
2. Infangible fixed assets

- Histoncal cost

= Accumidated amartizalion

1, Long-term assets In progress
1. Long-term work in progress
2, Consénuction in progress

I¥. Long-term investments

1. Invesiments in subsidiaries

2; Investments in joint vantures and
associates

3. Equity investmients in ofher antities
4. Provision for devaluation of long-tarm
mvestments

V. Other long-term assets
1. Long-tarm prapaid ekpenses

TOTAL ASSETS

{Continued)

Note

12

13

14

1

311212024
VND

713,088,707,024

22 893,210,988
27 B3 210,088

10,497,124,450
10,152,124 454
50,296, 874,592
{40,144, 750,138)
345 000,006
5,505, 180,340
{5,160 180,334)

158,163,600,048
24.471,433,215
133,682,166,731

515,712,188,687
1,084,909 968 398
T35 449,467 055

181,585,000,000
(1,786 242 246, TG6)

01/01/2024
VND

729,650,313,157

22,893,210,988
22,893,210,988

12,227,372.972
11,782,372 970
70,547 420220
(64,765,047 250)
445 000,002
5,505 180,340
{5,060, 180,338)

188,163 600,046
24 471,433,315
133,602, 166,731

528.475,777,108
1,384 505 968,398
735445 467 055

191,585,000,000
(1,783,478 658,244)

5,822 582 843 T,B90,352,042
5822 582 843 7,890,352 042
4,352,023 471,014 44683 223 410,959




Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14th floor, VPl Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hangi

Separate Financial Statements
For the fiscal vear ended as at 31 December 2024

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Az at 31 Decamber 2024

(Continued)

Code CAPITAL Mote
300 C.LIABILITIES
310 L Current Habilities
311 1. Short-term trade payables 156
312 2. Sho-term prepaymenis from customers 18
313 3. Taxes and other payvables to State budget 17
314 4, Payables o employess
315 & Shorl-term accrued expenses 18
318 & Short-term unaamed revenus 14
18 7. Other short-term payables 20
320 B Shori-term borrowings and finance lease 21

Rabilities
322 2 Bonusand welfare fund
330 Il Mon-—current fiabilities
333 1. Long-term accrued expenses 18
336 2. Long-term uneamed revenua 18
237 3 Dther long-term payables 20
400 D. OWNER'S EQUITY
410 |, Owner's equity 22

411 1. Confributed capilal

471a - Ordinary shares with voling righis

415 2. Treasury shares

418 3. Development and investment funds

420 4. Other resarves

421 b Retained sarmings

4218 - Relained eamings accumuiated bif the
end of the pravious year

421b - Relaimed eamings of the current year

440 TOTAL CAPITAL

_‘_'_,_,f—f”
oW

311212024
VHND

4,040,498,219,300

3,874,354 502,480
2,584 583,934 D07
178,580,304 121
2,441 450 047
15,062.073,834

B4 851,379,122
1.447 847 545
418.672,124,755
585 006,557,122

(7.281.211,073)

168,143,718 820
115,497 508 588
50632 252,045
13,856, 187

311,525,251,714

311,525,251,714
4,000,000.000,000
4,000,000,000,000
(28,710,000

TE 985 892 734
500,000,000
(3,765,632,031,020)
(3,770,052,922,160)

4.120,891,160

01/01/2024
VHND

4,155,8159.050,405

4,032,660,730,737
2 678,520 B18 552
168,355,667,015
3,047,020,226
15,533,484,203
118.341,799,657
1,511,477,008
400,604, 709,563
542 936,064,685

(7.281.211,073)

123,158,319,668
71,084,359, 884
52.080,003.557
13,858,167

307,404,380,554

307,404,360,554
4.000,000.000.000
4,000,000,000.000
(28,710,000}

T8 988 092 734
500,000,000
(3,770,052,622,180)
(3,807 400, 160,442)

(162,652, 761,738

-lﬁﬁ%ﬂ!&dﬂiﬂ'ﬂ

4.463.223.410,953

cl"_-_-___hl.- I.'.' Na 1
Vu Thi Cham ¥u Minh Cong R
Preparer Chief Accountant o

- nov, 31 March 2025
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14th floes, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Stresf, Hano

Separate Financial Statements
For the fecal vear ended as at 31 December 2024

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF INCOME

Year 2023
VNI

731,970,173,839

731,970,173,838

700,964,818,513
31,005,254,326

31,877 257,307
172,826,932.285
12,021,998, 667
50,518,423,765

(160,362,844, 517)

1,788,186.097
4,073,103,318

{2,289,917,221)

(162,652,761,738)

Year 2024
Code ITEMS MNote Year 2024
VND
01 1. Revenue from sales of goods and 24 530,359,037,999
rendering of services
10 Z. Met revenue from sales of goods and 530,358,037 9598
rendering of services
11 3. Cost of goods sold 25 541,859,855 843
20 4. Gross profit from sales of goods and (11,500,817,844)
rendering of services
21 & Financial income 26 37 671,144 758
22 6. Financial expense 27 57,178.961,923
23 Irr which. inferes! expense G 446 758 758
286 7. General and admmistratve expense 28 5,153,820.247
30 8. Net profit from operating activities (36,862,555,256)
3 8. Cifver income 28 40,714, 076,508
22 10, Oiher expense 20 730,630, 492
40  11.Other profit 39,983 446 416
50 12 Total net profit before tax 4,120,891,160
81 13 Current corporate income 1ax expense 3
&0 14, Profit after corporate income tax 120.881.1
—~ = 0
d_._._,_,—t-"'_'__ _.-_j':‘,f .:-'--_'."-\-\..:.}\%
e FOMG. N
ib If |"l. 2 ot ke
:. ||!_|_|Ll ¥ OO PR
{ |"lI {{!‘ |55 .||'-II -'- i'-’-'il' 11 If
Vo VIET mam /4
- i ET NAML L.
Vu Thi Cham Vu Minh Cong “’:,;M_ . Tram Hoan
Preparer Chief Accountant “a_ = Gensfal Director
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—Hanoi, 31 March 2025
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Steck Corporation

14th floor, YPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Streat, Hanoi

Separate Financial Statements

For tha fiscal year ended a5 2t 31 December 2024

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Yaar 2024
{indirect method)
Code ITEMS MNote Year 2024 Year 2023
WND VHD
I, CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
g1 1. Profit before tax 4, 120,891,160 (162,652,767,738)
2. Adjustment for:
02 - Depreciation and amortization of fixed 1,003 546,962 1,476,915 596
assets and investment propertes
03 - Provisions (38,667,080 268) 123,860,010,448
04 - Exchange gains / losses from retranslation {4,275,831,351) (740,448 BE5)
of monetary items denominated in foreign
=T
05  -Gains / losses from investmeant {8,233, 574 5B5) (14,159 624 955)
08 - Interest expansa 8445 758,758 12.021.598 667
08 3. Operating profit before changes in (38,515,398 405) (40,085, 201,656)
working capital
08 - Increase or decrease in receivables 142, 798 544,116 181,545 861,058
10 - Increase or decrease in inventares 57,183,213, 866 (162 666,354 935)
11 - Increase or decrease in payables {61,682,700,361) (106,342 269.013)
12 = Increase of decrease in prepaid expenses 2.037 342,883 1,911,348.429
14 - Interest paid (4,130,381 918) (7.6980,312,074)
16 - Other receipts from operating activities 1,215,000,000 4,270,000,000
17 - Other payments on operating activities (1,240 000,000) (4,068,336 810}
20 Net cash flow from operating activities 97,665,620,7161 {133,145,265,001)
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 1. Purchase or consiruction of fixed azzats - (538,290,000}
and other bng-larm assets
22 1 Proceeds from disposals of fixed assels 2523171 380 G54 545 445
and clher long-term assels
23 3 Leans and purchase of debt instruments {148,000, 000,040 (282 560,000)
froem ather entities
24 4 Colection of loans and resate of debt £00,000.000,000 600,623,176
instrument of cther antities
27 5. Imterest and dividend received 5,554 450 701 15633,127,799
30  Net cash flow from investing activities &0,077. 652 081 15476, 346 424
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
23 1. Proceeds from borrowings 5B ET5 47T 205 127 280,500,855
34 2, Repayment of principal (114,604,984, TE0) (173.,577,308,616)
40  Naot cash flow from financing activities (57,829,507, 564) (46,696,807, 761}
50  Net cash flows in the year 09,811, 764,678 (164,365,726,328)
60  Cash and cash equivalents at the 250,481 ,504,058 415,096,736,295
beginning of the year
61  Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 4.275.831,351 {249 505 899)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
L 354 250,481,504,058
F A -
il —f e f
Vu Thi Cham Vu Minh Cong
Preparer Chief Accountant
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Patrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Separate Financial Statements
14th flogr, VIP| Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanal  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 Decermber 2024

NOTES TO SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Year 2024

GENERAL INFORMATION

PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation (the “Corporation®™), an  entity under
management of Vielnam Ol and Gas Group (PVYN), formerly known as Petro Conséruction Jaint
Slock Company, was established in Vielnam by privatizing Petroleum Design and Construction
Company under Decision Moo S32/Q0-TCCE dated 26 March 2004 of the Minister of Industry
fcurrently known as the Ministry of Industry and Trade) Petro Construction Joint Siock Company
oparates under Business Registration Certificate for Joint Stock Company No, 4803000232 dated
13 March 2008 ssued by Ba Ria - Vung Tau Department of Planning and Investrment.

Az par Resolution Mo, 3604/NO-DKVN dated 26 Ociober 2007, the Board of Membars of Vietnam
Gil and Gas Group ("PetroVietnam”™) approved the proposal on transfer of Petro Construction Joint
Stock Company info: PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock. Corporation, opevating under the
model of holding as parent company - subsidiary company, The Corporation cperates under
Business Registration Cerificate for Joint Stock Company Mo. 3500102365 dated 20 December
lECIU'?, amended for the 225t time on 18 January 2024 by Hanol Authorify for Planning and
nvestment.

The Corporation’s head office iz located at 14ih foor, Vietnam Petrodeum Institute building, 167
Trung Kink Strest, Yen Hoa ward, Cau Giay district, Hanoi, Viet Nam,

The total charter capiial of the Corporation is VND 4,000,000,000,0400

The number of employess of the Corporation as 8t 31 December 2024 15 154 people (as at 01
January 2024 was 1681 employeas).

Business field: Construction
Business activities

Main business activities of the Corporation include: constructon and installation of industrial and
civil warks,

The Corporation’s operation in the year that affects the Separate Financial Statements

Duuring the year, the Corporation continued to implemeant the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Flant
project with an expected gross loss rafe of 067% according to the decision of the Board of
Directors of the Corporation on @ provisional basis for the EPC Contract implementation of the Thai
Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project However, the recognized outpul volume has decreased
significantly as the project has entered its final stage. leading to a sharp decline in revenue and
castof goods sold tems comparad to the previeus year, Meanwhile, financial expenses decreased
significantly, primarily due {o the fact that subsidiaries and associates’ oparating fessilts remalned
mofe stable than in the previous year. Additionally, general and administrative expenses decreased
significantly as the Corporation reversed the provision for doubtful debts accumulated from the
reassessment of recelvables' recoverability, These factors were the primary drivers behind the
significant fuctuations in the statement of income.

Applying going concern assumption:

As at 31 December 2024 the Separate Financial Stalements reflect an accumulated loss (code
421) of WYND 3,765.83 billlon {compared 1o VWD 3.770.05 bilfion as at 01 January 2024}, current
Eabilities (code 310} of VMDD 3,574.35 billion, exceeding current assels (code 100) by VND 23542
bifion (compared to & difference of WND 250.08 billion as at 01 January 2024, when current
liabilites amounted ta VND 4,032 68 billion); and overdue debts of VND 57567 billion {unchanged
from 01 January 2024), These factors lead to doubts about the Corporation's abdlity o continue
operating. The Corporation’s ablity to continue 8s & gaing concern depands ont its plan 10 fecover
debls, resfructure investments, complete and finglize works in progress to recover funds, and
sacure financial support from shareholders and creditors.

1
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th fleor, VP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoli  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2.1

2.2

2.3

Corporate structure

The Corporation’s member entities ara as follows.

Nameg Address Main business activities

Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project Thai Binh Managing Thai Binh 2 Tharmal
fManagament Lnit Power Flant Project

Yung Ang - Quang Trach Project Ha Tinh Managing “ung Ang - Quang
Management Linit Trach Project

Southern Projects Management Unit Ho Chi Minh City ~ Project management

Paolyester Plani Prodect Management Unit Hai Phong Projact management

Ethangl Phu Tho Plant Project Fhu Tho Project management
Managament Linit

MNorthem Branch Hanoi Construction

Information of Subsidianes, Associates and Jomt ventures of the Corporalion is provided m Note
Ma. D4

Comparability of information on Separate Financial Statements

The Information in the separate financal statements has beean mnsm-lunur presented by the
Corporation and is comparable bebween accounting periods,

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND ACCOUNTING POLICY

Accounting period and aceounting currency

Annual accounting pericd commences from 01 January and ends as al 31 December

The Corporation maintaing its accounting records in Vietnam Dong (VND).

Standards and Applicable Accounting Policies

Applicable Accounting Policies

The Corporation apples Corporate Accounting System issued under the Circular No, 2002014/TT-
BTC dated 22 December 2014 by the Ministry of Finance and the Circular No. 532016TT-BTC
dated 21 March 2016 i=sued by Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some arficles of
the Circular Mo, 2002014 T-BTC.

Caclarabion of comphiance with Accounhing Slandards and Accaunling Systanm

The Corporation applies Vietnamess Accounting Standards and supplemeniary documents ssued
by the State. Financial Statements are prepared and presanted in accordance with regulations of
gach stendard and supplementary documant as well as with current Accounting Standards and
Accounting System.

Basis for preparation of the Separate Financial Statements

The Saparate Financial Statements are presented based on histoncal cost pnnciple.

The Separate Financial Statements of the Corporation are preparad based on summarization of the
financial slatermants of the independent accounting entities and the head office of the Corporation.

Separate Financial Statements of the Corporation, are prepered based on summarnzation of
transactions incurred of dependent accounting entities and the head office of theé Conporation

Tha Users of this Separate Financial Staternents should study the Separate Financial Statements
combined with the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Corporation and its subsidiaries for

12
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stoeck Corporation

Eeparate Financial Statements

14th floor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Sireet Hanoi  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2.4

2.5

2.6

27

the fscal year ended as at 31 December 2024 in order to gain enough information regarding the
financial position, operating results and cash flows of the Corporation.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of Separate Financial Statements in conformity with Vietnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporate Accounting System and legal regulations relating to financial
reporting requires the Board of Managamant 1o make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of liabilities, assets and disclosures of contingent liabilities and assets at the date
of the Separate Financial Statements and the reporied amounts of revenues and axpensas dufing
the fiscal year.

The estimates and assumplicns that have a material impact in the Separate Financial Statemants
Include:

- Provision for bad debts;

- Provision for devaluation of inveniory;

- Provizion for payables,

- Estimaled allccation of prepaid expenses,

«  Estimaled useful life of ixed assets;

- Classification and provisicn of financial investments;
- Estimaled income fax

Such estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated. They are based on historical
experience and other faciors, including expectations of future events that may have a material
impact on the Corporation’s Separala Financial Staternents and that are assessed by the Board of
Managament to be reasonable under the circumstances,

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign curmency transactions during the year are franslated into Vietnam Dong using the actual
rate at transaction date

Actual exchange rate when revaluating monatary items denominated in foreign currencies at the
reporting date of Separate Financial Statements is determined under the following principles:

- For asset accounts, applying the bid rate of the commercial bank where the Corporafion
regularly conducts fransaction;

- For cash deposited in bank, applying the bid rale of the commercial bank where the Corporation
opans its foreign curmancy sccounts,
For liability accounts, applying the offer rate of the commercial bank where the Corporation
regularly conducts transactions,

All exchange diferances arising as a result of transactions or revaiuabion at the batance sheet date
ehall ke recorded inio the financial income or expense in the year

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, demand deposits.

Cash equivalents arg short-term invesiments with the maturty of not over than 3 months from the
date of investment, that are highly liquid and readily convertible into known amount of cash and
that are subject to an insignificant risk of conversion into cash

Financial investments

Trading sacunies are initially recognized at onginal cost which includes purchase prices plus any
directly afirbutable fansaction costs such as brokerage, Iransaction fee, cost of information
provision, faxes, bank's fees and charges. ARer initial recognition, trading securities are measured

at original cost less provision for diminution in value of trading securifies, Upon liguidation or
fransfer, cost of trading securities & defermined using weightad average method.

13



Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Slatements

14th floor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanod  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

2.8

29

Investments held fo maturty comprise term deposits held to maturity to earn profits pericdically

Investments in subsidiares, joint verlfures or sssociales arg initially recognized at original cost,
After initial recognition, value of thess investments is measured al original cost less provision for
devaluation of mvestments,

Invesiments in cther entities comprise investments in equity instruments of other entities without
having control; joint controd, or significant influence on tha investee, These investmenis are inifially
stated at original cost.  After iniial recognition, these investments are measured af onginal cost
less provision for devaluation of mvestmanis

For dividands received in the form of shares, only the number of shares recewed is recorded
without any incréase in the investment value and financial income.

Prowizion for devaluation of investments is made st the end of the yvear a5 follows:

- Investments in trading securities: provision shall be made on the bass of the excess of original
cost of the investments regorded in the accounting book over their markat value at the provision
date.

= Investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates: 8 provision for investment impairment
shall be made when the investes Incurs |losses, based on the investee's Separate Fimancial
Statements/Consolidated Financial Statements. (if the investee & a parent company) as of the
provision dats.

- Long-term investments (other than trading securties) without significant influence on the
investea: If the Investment in listed shares or the fair valee of the investment is determined
reliably, provisions shall be made on the basis of the market value of the shares; if tha fair valus
ef the investment (s not detarminead at the reporting dale, provision shall be made based on the
Firancial Statements at the provision date of the invesies
Investments held to maturity: provigion for doubtful debts shall be made based on the recovery

capacity in accordance with statutory regulations,
Receivables

The recaeivables shall be recorded in details in terms of due date, entities receivabie, types of
currency and other factors according to requirements for management of the Corporation, The
recalvabiles shall be classified inta short-term receivables or long-lerm recaivables on the separate
financial statements according o thelr remaining terms 2t the reporting date,

The provision for doubtful dabts s made for receivables that are cverdus under an economic
contracl, a loan agreement, a confractual commitment or 8 promissory note and for receivables
that are not due but difficult to ba recovered. Accordingly, the provisions for overduee debis shall be
based on the due date stipulated in the inifial sale contract, exclusive of the debt rescheduling
betwean contracting parties and the case where the debts are not due but the debtor i In
bankruptcy, in dissolution, or missing and making fleeing or estimating the possible losses.

Inventories

Inventosies are initially recognized at original cost Including purchase price, processing cost and
other costs incurred In bringing the inventories to their location and condition at the time of initial
recognition. After initial recognition, at the reporting date, invantories are stated &t the lower of cost
and net reaizable valus,

Met realizable value & astimated based on the seling price of the invantory minus the astimated
costs for complefing the products and the estimated costs needed for their consumption,

The cost of inventary is calculatad using weighted avarage method.
Inventory is recorded by perpetual method

Method for valuation of work in process at the end of the year The value of work in progress s
recorded for each construction project which i incomplete or revenue 8 unrecognised,
coresponding to the amount of work in progress at the &nd of the year
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th fioor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

210

2N

2.13

Provision for devaluation of inventories made at the end of the peried is based on the excess of
original cost of inventory over their net realizable value.

Fixod assals

Fived assets (tangible and intangible) are initially stated at the historical cost. During the using
time, fixed assets (langible and intangible} are recorded at cost, accumulated depreciation and
cafrying amount.

Subsaguent measurement altar inllial recogibion

If these costs aument future economic bensfits abtained from the use of tangible fixed assets are
extended to their initial standards conditions, these costs are capitalized a3 an incremental in their
historical cost,

Oiher costs incurmed after tangible fived assels have been put into ocperation such as repair,
maintenance and cverhaul costs are recognized in the Saparate Statement of Incoms in tha year in
which the costs are incurred.

Fixed assets ara deaprecialed wsing the straight-line method over their estimated useful life as
fiolhows:

= Buildings, stnactures 05 « 25 years
= Machinery, aquiprment 5 - 10 years
= Vehicles, Transportation eguipment 06 - 10 years
-  Office aquipmeant 03 - 07 years
- Management sofiware 03 years

Construction in progress

Constructon in progress includes fived assats which is being purchased and constructed as at the
balance shest dalte and is recognised |n historical cost This includes costs of construction,
installation of equipment and other direct costs.

Dperating lease

Crperating leases s ficed asset leasing in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor. Payments made under operating leases are charged fo
Statement of Income on a siraight-line basis over the period of tha lease.

Prepaid expenses

The expenses incurmed but related to operating results of sevaral accounting periods are recorded
as prepaid expenses and are allocated to the operating results in the following accounting periods.

The calculation and allocation of long-term prepadd expenses o operaling expenses in each
accounting period should be based on the nature of those expenses to select a reasonable
allocaton meathod and cntera.

Types of prepaid expanses of the Corporation include:

- Tools and supplies include assets which are possessed by the Corporation m an ardinary
course of business, with historical cost of each asset less than 30 milkion dongs and therefare
not eligible for recording as fxed asset under current legal regulations. The historical cost of
toals and supplies are aliocated on the straight-line basis from 01 to 03 years,

- Other prepaid expenses are recorded at ther historical costs and allocated on the straight-ling
basis from 01 to 03 years,

- Prepaid office rental expenses are recognized at cost and amortized on a straight-line basis
over tha lease term speciied in the comtract
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2.14

2.16

2.18

217

213

Payables

The payables shall be recorded in details in terms of due dale, entities payable, types of curency
and other factors according 1o the requirements for management of the Corporation. The payables
shall be classified into short-tarm payables or long<erm payables on the separate financial
statermants according 1o their rerraining terms at the reporting date.

Borrowings

Barrowings shall be recorded in details in terms of lending entibes, loan agreement and terms of
borrowings and finance lease liabilities.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as operating expenses in the year, in which it is incurred excepting
those which are directly attributable to the construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset in accordance with VAS No. 16 "Barmowing costs’
Besides, regarding bormowings serving the construction of fixed assets and investiment properties,
the interests shall be capitalized even when the construction duration is under 12 months.

Accrued expenses

Accrued expenses include payables to goods or services received from the suppliers or provided
for the customers during the reporting period, but the payments for such goods or services have
not been made and other payables which are recorded as operating expenses of the reporting
YEdr.

The recording of accrued expenses as operaling expenses during the year shall be carried out
under the matching principle betwesen revenues and expenses duning the year. Accrubd expenses
are settied with actual expanses inourred. The difference between accrued and actual expenses is
raverted.

Unearned revenues

Unearned revenues include prepayments from customess for one or many accounting periods
relating to asset leasing.

Linearned revenues are transferred to revenue from sale of goods and rendering of servicas with
the amount comesponding to each accounting period

Owner's aquity
Owner's equity is stated at actually contributed capital of owners.

Treasury shares bought before the effective date of the Securities Law 2019 (January 1, 2021) are
shares issued by the Corporation and bought-back by itsel, but thase are not cancelled and may
be re-issued subsequently in accordance with the Law on Securities, Treasury shares bought after
January 1, 2021 will be cancalled and adjusiad o reduce equity.

Retained eamings are used fo present the Corporation's operating resulis (profit loss) after
carparate income tax and profits appropriation or loss handling of the Corporation.

The Corporation’s net profit after tax is distributed o the following funds according to
recommendation of the Board of Directors and approval of shareholders at annual General Meeting
of Shareholders:

- Development and investment funds: The fund is reserved for the purpose of business
expansion or in-depth investment of the Corporation,

- Banus and wefare fund and bonus for the Board of Management: The fund is reserved for the
purpose of bonus, material incentives, common benefit and increasing welfare for employees
and presented as a liability on tha Separate Statement of Financial Position
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2.20 Revanue

2.2

2.22

Revenue is recognized o the extent that it s probable that the economic bensfits will fiow to the
Corporation and the révenue can be relably measured regardiess of when payment is baing made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates,
and sales refurns

Canstructon contrac! revenis

In case the construciion contract stpulates that the contractor is pard according o thie value of
the volume performed, when the resulls of construction confract performance are reliably
determined and confirmed by the customer, then revenue, confract-related cosis are recorded
in propordion fo the completed work confirmed by the customer in the year reflected on the
invaice.

Revenus from rendenng of sanices

- The percentage of completion of the transaction at the Balance sheel date can be measured
refiably.

Fimamzal income

Financial incomes inciude income from interest, royafties, dividends and other financial gains by
the Corporation shall be recognised when the two conditions are satisfied.

- It is probable that the economic benefils associated with the bransaction will flow to the
Corporation,
- The amount of the revenue can ba maasured reliably.

Dividend income will be recognised when the Corporation’s right to recewe dividend i established,
Cost of goods sold and services rendered

Cost af goods soid and services rendered are cost of finished goods, merchandises, materiaks sold
of services rendered during the year, and recorded on the basis of matching with revenue and on a
prudence basis Cases of loss of materials and goods exceeded the norm, labour cost and fixed
manufacturing overheads nol aliccated to the value of inventory, provision for devaluation of
inventory, abpormal expenses and losses of invenlores afler deducting the responsibilty of
collective and individuals concerned, efc. is recognized fully and promptly into cost of goods sald in
the year even when products and goods have not been determined as sald.

Financial expenses
ltems recorded inta financial expenses comprise:

Expenses or losses relafing o financial invastiment achvibas,

Barrowing costs;

Losses from the disposal and transfer of shor-term securities, fransaction cost of salling
securies;

Provision for diminution in value of trading securities price; provision for losses from investment
in other entities, losses from sale of foreign currency, exchange loss, et

The abave items are recorded by the tolal amount ansing In the year without offsetting against
financial income.
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223

2.24

E.H

Corporate income tax
Current corporale income {8y expenses

Current corporale income tax expenses are determingd based on taxable income dusing the pericd

‘and current corpodate incoma tax rate.

Current carporate income {ax rale

The fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024, the Corporation applies the corporate Income tax
rate of 20% for the operating activitles which has taxable income.

Retated Parties

The parties are regarded as refaled parties if thal party has the ability to confral or significantty
influence the other party in making decisions about the financial policies and activities. The
Corporation's retated parties include:

- Companies, directly or indirectly through one or mone intermediaries, having control over the
Corporation or being under the control of the Corporation, or being under commaon coninol with
thie Corporatian, including the Corporation’s parent, subsidianes and associales,

= Individuals, directly or ingirectly, holding woting power of the Corporation thal have a significant
influence on the Corporation, kay management personnel including direciors and employees of
the Corporation, the clese family members of these individuals;

- Enterprises that the above-mentioned individuals directly or indirectly hold an important part of
the voling power or have significant influence on these enterprises

in considering the relsbonship of related parties o serve for the preparation and preseniation of
Separata Financial Statements, the Corporation should consider the nature of the relationship
rather than the legal form of the relationship.

Details of related parties' transactions are presenied in the Consolidated Financial Statements for
the fiscal year ended 31 December 2024 of the Corporation published concurrently by tha
Corporation in its Consolidated Financial Statements and Separate Financial Statements for the
fiscal year ended 31 Decembar 2024

Segment information

The company primarily engagas in canstruction and installation activities, mainly within the teeritony
of Vietnam, the Corporation dogs nol prepare segment reports by business segment and
geographical segment

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

11252024 01012024

WHD WMND

Cash on hand 404,150 412 1,118,583, 740
Demand deposits 198, 162,040,875 209,362 910,318
Cash equivalents (1) 166,00:0,000,000 40,000, 000,000

EEIET‘IEMIHT 15!]&1 504058

(i} At 31 December 2024, the cash equivalents are deposits with berm of from 01 1o 03 manths with
the amount of VWD 156000000000 at Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Investment and
Development of Viet Mam - Ha Dong Branch at the inferest rate from 1.6%/year to 2 2%lyear.
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Separate Financial Statements

14dth flcor, VPl Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol  For the fiscal vear ended as at 31 December 2024

4

by)

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Held to maturity investments

J1T 22024 01/01/2024
Crainal Cost Pravision Qniginal Cost Provision
WHD YHND WND WND

Shorl-term investments
Termm deposits (i) 153,704,326 478 - 205,522 560,000 =

TR T T 1. R —

{{} At 31 December 2024, the sharl-term investments are deposits with terms from over 3 months to
less than 12 months with (he amount of WND 153,794 328 478 at Joeint Stock Commescial Bank
for Investment and Development of Viet Nam - Ha Dong Branch at the interest rate from
2. 0%yvesr io 4. 2% year which are being pledged for loans al this Bank (Detailed in Nola 21)

Trading securities

311212024 _D101r2024
Ciriginal cost Provision Driginal cost Provision
VND WD WND YND
Shares
Petroleumn Internal and ~ 14,600,000,000 (13,885,000,000) 14,800,000,000 (13,885,000,000)
External Equipment
—14,600,000,000 (13,885,000,000} _14,600,000,000, {13,585,000,000)
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
14th floor, WP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol

Separate Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended a3 at 31 December 2024

Provision for devaluation of investments in subsidiaries;

The Carporafion has made provision for devalustion of investment in Petrovietnam Urban
Development Joint Stock Company with the vaiue of WVND 1535 billien based on the unaudited
financial statements for the quarter |1 of 2024 of thei company.

Provision for devaluation of investments in assoclates and other investments:

Ag at 31 December 2024 ihe Corporation hes made provision for the above financal investments on

the fallowing:
Entity Base for provisions Onginal cost Prowvision
~ WND VND
Investments with avdited Financlal Statements for T48,000,000,000  (148,000,000,000)
2024
Thanh Hoa Peiroleum Audited Financial 75,600, 000,000 (75,800,000,000)
Caonstruction JSC Statements as at
Jtr2r2024
hsen Trumg Petroleum Audited Financeal 72,40:0,000,000 (72 400,000,000)
Construction JSC Statements as at
31122024
Investments without audited Financial Statements for 779,044, 467,055  (T05,230,121,166)
2024
- - Baklgon Petroléum Audited Financial B3,271,467 055 (83,271 487,055)
Consiruchon and Stataments az at
Investment JSC S1erRod
Duyen Hal PetroVietnam  Audited Financial 58 060,000,000 (26632 401,7885)
Investment and Stefements as at
Canstruction JSG S1M2f023
- HalLong Cement JEC Audited Financial 147,300,000,000  (147,300,000,000)
Statements as at
S1Mar02a
Other entities (i) Latest Financial 490423000000  (448,026252,323)
Statements (i)

{I} The Corporation has not yet collected the financial ststements for the fiscal year ended as at 31
December 2024 of thasa companias.

(*] The value of the Investment (n Kinh Bac Petroleum Investment and Construction Joint Stock
Enmmny ("PVC Kinh Bac”) is VND 23.5 bilion including 2 parts

An amount of YND 2.5 billian in capital contributions incurred before 2010, acocounting for 5%
of PVC Kinh Bac's charter capital at that time of VND 50 bdllion: and

An amount of VND 21 billion arising In 2010 from a debt offsett amangement with the amount
advanced by the Carporation to PVC Kinh Bac fo support a construction contract, when PVC
Kinh Bac's charter capital was VWD 150 bilion. This amaoiunt was determined to ba usad by
PVC Kinh Bag to purchase 3 400 m? of land at Plot Mo, 06, Map sheet Mo. 20, Hamlst 1,
Tam Daa town, Tam Dao distnel, Vink Phuc province (“the Tam Dao land 1of7), which was
then transfer to Mai Phuong Investment Company Limited ("Mai Phuong®}, currently aiso the
entity named on the certificate of fand usa rights for the aformentioned lat.

According to Judgment No. 412/2021/HSPT dated 29 September 2021, it was concluded that:

The case of advancing conpstruction funds to PVC Kinh Bac Company was in violation of
regulations, and the Tam Dao land ot should be returned to the Corparation;

The Corporation's capilal contribution ratio in Kinh Bac Petrcleum [nvestment and
Canstruction Joint Stock Company will be resolved by the related parties themselves, and if
necessary, will be handled in a separale civil lawsuit

On 01 Juna 2022, the Director of the Hanoi Civil Judgment Enforcament Department (ssuad
Enforcement Decision No. 805/0D-CTHSDS based on the above judgment.
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Steck Corporation Separate Financial Statements
14th flear, VP Tower 187 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

On 28 September 2024, the Corporation received the transfer of the land use rights for 3, 400 m®
of land at Plot No. 06, Map Sheet No. 20, Hamlet 1, Tam Daa Town, Tam Dao District. Vinh
Phuc Pravince, from Mal Phuong Investment Company Limited.

As ab the date of these Separate Financial Statement, the Corporation s in the process of
compéeting the procedures to fransfer the ownership of the Tam Dao land |ot to itself and is
working with PVC Kinh Bac 1o reassess the capital confrbution ratio. Ghen the events that
ocourred in 2024, the Carporation has determinad that the YND 21 billion capital confribution to
PVC Kinh Bac no konger shows signgs of impalrment and has therefore fully reversed the
provision for this investment,

Detailed information on the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2024 as follows:

Investments in subsidiaries

Mame of subsidiaries Place of Rate of Rateof  Principal activities
establishment  interest  voling rights
and operation
Thal Binh Petroéeum Trading Thai Binh T2.22% T2.22% Constructon, real astate
and Investmant J5C business and sefvices
Petraleum Equipment Assembly Ba Ria - Vung 50.87% 50.97%  Construction, real estate
and Matal Structure JSG Tau business
Binh Son Petroleum Quang Mgai  4651% 52 56%  Real estate business,
Construction JSC construction matanals
Patroleum Dong Do JSC (il Ha Mo 34.87% 34.87% Feal estate business
and sarvicas
Petro Vietnam Lirban Ca Mau 53.44% 53.44%  Conslruction, real estate
Development JSC business
Patroleum Industrial and Civil Ba Ria-Vung 51.00% 51.00% Caonsiruction, indusinsal
Constructon JSC Tau manufacturing, real
estate business
Petroleum Pipeline and Tank Ba Rig - Vung 51.00% 51.00%  Construction, real estate
Construction JSC Tau buginess

(i} According to the assessment of the Board of Management, although tha Corporation’s vating
righiz in Dong Do Petroleum Joint Stock Company are less than 50%, the Corporation still
execises control over this company by directing its financial and operating policies, as wall as
assigning and evaluating the implemeniation of its annual production and business plan,
operational support, constrechion and instaliation contracts, market strateges, and financial
matiers. Accordingly, Dong Do Petroleum Joint Stock Company 5 deemad a subsidiary of the
Corporataon
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14th floar, WPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Sireset, Hanoi

Separate Financial Statements
For tha fiscal year endad as at 31 December 2024

Investments in associates

Detaitzd information on the Company's associates as at 31 December 2024 as follows;

Mame of associates Place of Rate of Rate of  Principal activities
establishment  interest  wofing rights
and operation
Petroleum Mechanical Ha Mod 40 00% 4000%  Construction, real estate
Execuling and Assembly JSC business
Hano Pefroleum Construction Ha Mai 35.83% 35.83%  Construction, real estate
JEC business
Saigon Patroleurn Construction  Ho Chi Minh 24.72% 2472%  Consfruction, real estate
and Invesiment JSC City business
Duyen Hal PetroVietnam Hai Phang 42 48% 42.45%  Industrial investment,
Imvesiment and Construction fuel, and construction
JEC materials
Thanh Hoa Petraleum Thanh Haa 38, 008% 36 00%: Construction, real estats
Canstruction JSC businass
Mien Trung Petraleum Da Mang 4B.27% 48.27%  Coenstruction, real esiate
Canstruction JSG businasa
Lam Kinh Hotal J5C Thanh Haa 35.01% 43.16% Holel service business
Patrovietnam - Mghe An Nohe An 22.64% 2264%  Construction, resl estale
Consiruction Joint Stock business
Corporation
Petroleum Interior Desoration Ha MNoi 48.58% 49.98%  Design and constructon
JSC of construchion works
Heerim-FYE International Ha Mod 44 00% 44 00%  Site Planning and
Desgign JSC Design, architectural
design works
Petrolagm Lnk Communicaton Ha Mod BT 22% 3505%  Communications and
and Trading JBC {iif} Trade

{iii} The Corporation's ownership rate in the Petroleum Union Communication and Trading Jont
Stock Company (Pefro - link) as at 31 December 2023 is 97 22%. However, this ownership rate
is only temporary because the remaining members have not contributed enough capital. The
ownership rate (contribuling capital) of the Corporation according 1o the Certificate of Business
Registration is 35%, the Corporation does not have confral over this company. Therefora, the
Board of Management of the Corporation delermines and presents the investment in Petro - link
as an invastmani in an associata,

Investments in other entities:

Mame of invesiea Place of Rate of Rate of  Principal activites
establishment interest Wotling rights
and cperation
Ha Long Cament JSC Quang Minh  7.58% 7.58% Producton and sales of
cement producis
Kinh Bac Patroleum Bac Minh 1567% 1567%  Construction of clvi
Construction and Investment engineering works
Vietnam Port and Infrasiructure Hanoi 25005 2.50% Wholesale of machinery
Construction Investment JSC and eguipmeant
Truong Son Investment Group Quang Binh 3, 89% 3.99% Civil consfruction,
J5C investment, real estate
business, resort
Petroleum Construchion JSC 2 Mam Dink 5.00% 5.00% Construction consulting
Petra Vieinam Building Materiais Hanoi 1000 %% 10.00% Construction consulting

and Construction JSC 4
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14th floor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Separate Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

5 SHORT-TERM TRADE RECEIVABLES

SN202024 01/0172024 _
Valug Provision Valua Provision
WD VND WD VND

Thai Binh 2 BYG 699 508 102 - 10506512 879 774

Petraleum Powar

Praject

Management

Vielnam Pefraleum 36063772 860 (747 531,048} 42 586 383 664 (747,531 048)

Institute

Hanol Petroleum 01,468 710,445 (81,468 710.445) 81469,710445 (91,451,422 013)

Constructon JSC

Peatrovietnam - 41,635, 737,524 (23,330,668 607) 41,635 737,624 (14,648,480.719)

Mghe An

Constrecton Joint

Stock Corporation

Others 263 552 394 246 (B3,315711,317) 213,340,738 872 (91,055,637,018)

1308321214277 (178,863,821 617) 1438645450275 (197,903,070799)

68 PREPAYMENTS TO SUPPLIERS

AMEra02a _ 01012024

Value Provision Valug Provision

WHD YD WD VD
Vietnam Port and 113385879741 (17 858 167 B37) 113386878741 {17.B5B.157.637)
Infrasiructure
Construction
Investment JSC
Harnol  Petrobeum 108,564, 918,776 (108, 864.918,776) 108,864 518,776 (108,864 5818,776)
Construction JSC
Othars 336,437 764,034 (179410144 086) 353,8180952.219 (202,542 234 602)

HEEEEI!!EI!H‘I (308,131 Eiﬂ-ﬂgg! &78,070,730,736 !Sﬂégﬂ’l 1![!3 E!
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Beparate Financial Statements

14ih fioor, WP Tower 1687 Trung Kinh Streel, Hanod  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

b)

OTHER RECEIVABLES
Jaa0Eg 0140172024
Value Proviskan Walus Provision
VD WD VND WND
Short-term
Recaivables from 2,752 Ba5 587 - 500,108,589
deposit interest

Dividends and profits B.844 4830687  (B.844 483.0687) 5,575,5961,408 (9,675,561 408)
receivable

Agvance 9.318,700,625 (280, 806,391) 9,116,121,205 ({980,806 3087)
Morigages 409,275,926 . 409,275,926 -
Recalvables relating 42.770,314825 (42328 848975) 42770314825 (42 328.848.575)
o guarantes
abligations {i)

Receivables from 108, 513,848,523 (27,733 568,215) 103842031545 (27 733.568.215)
loan Interest, capital

support, kate

payment penalty

interest, late payrmant

Intarmatianal 4 Bag.aT5 324 - ] -

arbitration fees

withiout @ ruling (i)

Othars 108.251,121,458 (44,185,603,233) 107 530,075266 (48,927,570,968)
266760465332 (124,073,209,881) _273,544,789,764 (128,546,755 857)

Long term

Martsages 22 A9 210,988 - 22E93210,088 -
__22.893,210,968 . _22893210,988 :

(i) Recelvables from guarantee obfigations is the amount deducted by the bank from the
Corporaiion's account to fullfil guarantee obligations for the credit contracts that the Corporation
has guaranteed (Detailed in Noke 33)

(ii} This arbitration fee was pald to the Vieinam Intemational Arbitration Cepter (VIAC) fo Faclitale
the submission of a8 counterclaim against DL ERC Co,, Lid, related to Arbitration Case Mo, 05724
VIAC between the Corporation and DL EEC Co, Lid (Nate 15), On 31 May 2024, the Corporaton
submitted the counterclaim against DL E&C Ca., Lid 1o VIAC and paid the arbitration fee as per
VIAC's notice, reguesting the Arbitral Tribunal 1o resolve the Corporetion's claims regarding DL
EEC Co,, Ltd's breaches during the execution of the EPS Contract. This arbitration fee will be
allocated by tha Arbitral Tribunal upon the issuance of the arbitration awand
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th floor, WP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Sireet, Hanoi  For the fiscal year endad as st 31 December 2024
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1"

aj

b)

INVENTORIES
311202024 0110172024
Ciriginal cost Provision Original cost Provision
WND YND WND VND
Raw malsrials 1,825,344,133 5 1,625,344, 133 =
Toals, supphes 431,700,000 . 431,700,000 -
Woark in progress 1,370,564,112 312 - 1,426,114, 048 541 =
Goods 13,194.263,182 (11,410,834 208) 23,827.540,819 (15,196,626,123)

1,293015.413.627 (11,410,834 208) 1,452 196,633,483 (15,196,626,123]

Dhatails of work ;- progress, s follows:

311272024 01:01/2024

WYND VND

Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant (i) 1,110,252,563. 799 1,158,830,163,123
Yumg Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant (i) 245 057 BBA 468 245 057 BBH 468
Song Fau 1 Thermal Power Plant (§) 12,889, 703,081 12,883,135,080
Others 11,363 976 964 8,342 881,870

1,379,564 112,212 1,426,114, 048 541

{I} The Corporation |5 a sub-confractor of the EPC general confractor of thess projects, As
presented in Mote 34 of the Motes to the Separate Financial Statements, due io changes in
deskgn and unit prices, the Corporation s requesting the Owner, Genéral Confractor and
competant authonties to consider an adjustment for unforeseen additional cosis of tha Vung
Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant Project The Saparate Financial Statements do not include any
adjustments that may be relaied to this matter,

(i} Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant

- Locaton: Phu Xuan ward, Mai Dam town, Chau Thanh district, Hau Giang provinee;

- Investor: The Vietnam Ol and Gas Group, which signed Contract No, 2348/HD-DKVN on 10
Apnl 2015 with Vietnam Machinery Erection Corporation;
The Corporation s @ subcontractor for the General Contractor under Contract No. C15/5H1-
LLM-PYG for the construction package,

- Total contract value: WND 2.555,445,781,034 (after tax}),

- Construchon timeline. Canstruction slarted in 2016 and was expected to be completed in
2018

- Current status: The project has now been completed and is awaiting final settiement.

FREPAID EXPENSES
311202024 01012024
WHD WD
Short-term
Dihers 217,798,265 187,365,040
217,796,265 187, 369,848
Long - term
Prepaid expenses of offica lease (i) 5472, 381,603 G777 404 220
Cithers 350,201,235 1,112,947, 752

5,827.582.843 7,890,352,042

{i} Prepaid expenses for office rent are amortized according 1o the office lease contract for the San
Mam building No. 001/2008/SN-PVC dated 8 January 2009 between the Corporation and San
Mam Co., Lid,

29
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
14th floor, VIPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hano

Separate Financial Statements
For the fiscal year endad as at 31 December 2024

13 INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Manager software Total
WHD VND
Historical cost
Beginning bakanoe 5,505, 180,340 5,505,180 340
Ending balance of the year 005, 180,340 5,505,180.340
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning balance 5,080,180,338 5,080,180,338
- Depreciation in the year 55 058 598 B3 899 096

e e s w e s,
Ending balance of the year 5,160,180,334 5,160,180, 334
Met carrying amount
Beginning balance
Ending balance of the year

445 0040 2 445,000,002

— 000 230 000.005

Cast of fully depreciated intangibhe fixed assets but siill in use at 31 December 2024 was WND
5,005,180,340 {as af 01/01/2024 was VND 5005, 180,340}

14 LONG-TERM ASSET IN PROGRESS

21A202024 07:01/2024
Crriginal cost Recoverable Crriginal cost Recoverable
valug B value
VND VHND VND VD

a) Long-term works in progress
- Quang Trach 1 Thermal 25781820548 12890910273 25781820546 12890910273
Power Plant Propect (1)

- Yam Factory Project 25 7559 325 212 5,162 308.BB0 25759,325.212 59,162 306,880

- Long Phu Thermal Power  12,180,083,636 800,000,000 12,180,083,636 800,000,000
Ciperation Center

- Ohhers TAagoa25521 16182161682 7329825521 18182168162

71,051,054 815 24471433315 71,051,054,915 £?1!433g15

i1} According to Official Lefler Mo, 1828/TTg - KTH dated 15 Octobar 2016 of the Prime Minister
regarding adjusimenis to certain thermal power projects within the Quang Trach and Quynh Lap
Power Centras, Vietnam Electricity will replace Vietnam Oil and Gas Group as the investor of
the Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project Ag of the date of these Separate Financial
Statements, the Corporation is still working with relevant parties to finalize and settle its incumed
expenses related to this project

b} Construction in progress

31202024 01/01/2024

WHDO WND

- Soal Rap Petroleumn Service Industrial Zone Project 127,975 080 823 127.973,.080,823
in Tien Giang (i)

- Petro Vietnam University Urban Area (i) 3,883 084 SEE 3,883,684 985

- Tien Glang Petrodeum Industrial Zone Project () 1,835,100,523 1.835,100,923

133|'EBEIJ EE1 133!5'32!1'55!?31

a



Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Separate Financial Statements
14th floor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

(i) Construction in progress of Soal Rap - Ten Giang Petroleum Service Industrial Park Project

("Project”). The Project was received by the Corporation and designated as an invesior by
Vietnam Oil and Gas Group (PVYNM) according o Decision Mo, THERQD-DEVN dated 12 August
2010 of the Board of Membars of FYVN.

On 22 August 2015, the Ministry of Finance issued Official Letter No. 11704/BTC-TCDN to the
People's Commitles of Tien Giang Province and PYN for specific instructions on the transfer of
tha Progact

According to Minute No. 1421/BB-5KH & DT dated 31 July 2017 from the Project Transfer Task
Force of the People’'s Committes of Tien Giang provinge, the parties agreed to recognize the
value of the project during the Corparation's implemantation pariod at VND 143 billion

On 01 Ocicber 2018, the Corporation signed a land lease termination agreement with the
Deparireent of Matural Resources and Environment of Tien Giang province, returning the iand
and its attached assets 1o this authority.

On 28 February 2019, the Government Office issued Official Letter No. 1630NPLCP-CN,
directing the Miristry of Planning and Investment, the Ministry of Justice, the Ministry of Natural
Resources and Environment, the Ministry of Industry and Trade, and the Commission for the
Management of State Capial al Enterprises to guide the People's Committee of Tien Giang
province and the project investor in reimbursing the invested expenses. This process must
comply with legal regulations to pravent stale assets loss and ensure the investor's rights.

Despita muliple directives from the Government, the Ministries have not yat to develop an
official plan to solve and guide tha refund of the Corparation's Invested expenses in the Soai
Rap - Tien Giang Petrolaum Sanvice Industrial Park Project

On 28 March 2021, the Corporation issued Official Letter Mo, 428/XLDK-KHDTATCC on
requesting to continue assignment as the investor of the Project

On 06 August 2021, the Ministry of Planning and Investment issued Official Lelter No.
S183/BKHET-OLKKT, proposing the Prime Minisier to assign the People's Committea of Tien
Glang Province to resolve all outstanding ssues related to the Project within 2021, in
eccordance with its authority and the relevant legal regulations.

On 16 February 2022, the Govemnment Office issued Official Letter Mo. S64NVPCP-CN
announcing the directive of Deputy Prime Minister Le Van Thanh, assigning the Ministry of
Natural Resources and Environment to provide specific guidance on the legal compliance of
the kand acquisition process conducted by the People's Commitiee of Tien Giang province. This
guidanca would serve as the basis for determining whether the Corporation is enfitted fo
compensation for assets on the project land.

As al the date of these Separate Financial Statements, the project handover remains
incomplete. The Board of Management befieves that the Corporation will either fully recover the
expenses incurred In implementing the project or be reassigned the project for continuing
development

(i) The Projects have been suspended for years The Corporation's Board of General Directors

could not assess the ability to bring for future economic banefit of these projects.
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Separate Financial Statements
14dth floor, VPl Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanod  For the fiscal vear ended as at 31 December 2024

15 SHORT-TERM TRADE PAYABLES

31122024 01/01/2024
Qutstarsding Amount can be Cutstanding Amaound can ba
balance paid balance paid
WND VHD WND VHND
Daalirn Indutriad Co., 1,044 415 842 304 1,044 4156842 204 1021 827 357 860 1,021,827 357 560
Ltd (i)
Wigt Mam Machineny 205,781,647 084 208, 781,847 084 200,682, 562,403 290,582,562 403
Instalkstion
Carparation - JSC
Vietnam Od and Gas  177,207,0B8265  177,207.085285  177,.207.0B5285  177,207,085285
Group
Patrobeum |ndusirk 70,514 325,748 70,514 325,748 V3086041 436 73,0096,041 435
and Civil Construction
J5G
Sajitz Corporation 111,744 046,842 111744046842 139,552,763.255 139552763255
Vietnam Electricity 166,966 601,507 166,965 891,507 138,384 004,434 133,384,004 434
Petroleum Mechanical 57624 311,377 57,824, 311,377 57.924 311,377 57,924 311,377
Executing and
Assembly JEC
Otivars 7459, 307 204,080 748 307 204 080 TBD TEE 622 422 T80, 7BE 522 422

2534563534007 2884,563,934,007 2679520,816,852 2679620818562

() On 25 January 2024, DL EEC Co,, Lid submitied a Stgiement of Claim to fhe Vietnam
International Arbitration Cenfer (VIAC), initiating & dispute related to EPS Contract No,
IVHDETZ2012IPVC-50DC dated 22 May 2012, between the Corporation (the main contractor) and
DL EAC Co., Lid (the subcaniractor).

The subcontractor has requested the Arbitral Tribunal to review and decide on the following
matters: the conditions for granting the Operational Acceptance Certificate (completion certificate)
for the work performed under the confract have been satisfied, the waranty pernod for the
equipment and services provided by the subconbrector has ended; the Corporation is requested
o settie the overdue debts amounting fo USD 7,87 milllon and VND 2873 millien; refund the
performance deposit for the EPS Confract, tefaling USD 13.4 million and VYND 532.0 million;
retumn the retained amount for warranty obligations; iotaling USD 20.05 milion and VYND 7833
milion; compensate for costs incumed dus fo project delays amounting to USD 11.86 million,
other related ciaims amounting o USD 623 milllon; and the estimated late payment penaity
amounting to USD 17,81 million,

On 31 May. 2024, the Corporation submitted a Statement of Defense in response to DL EAC Co.,
Lid's Statement of Claim to VIAG, with the following key arguments.. the Corporation does not
recognize DL E&C Co, Lid's legal standing to initiate the claim, disputes the Arbitral Tribunal's
jurisdiction aver the case, and rejects all claims made by DL E&C Co., Ltd.

On the same day, the Corporation also filed a Counterclaim with VIAC, raquesting DL E&C Co,,
Lt to compensate for damages résulting from breaches in the execution of the EPS Conlract,
with a iotal counterclaim value of WND 17 55547 millien and USD 35 64 million

DOn 13 June 2024, VIAC ssued Notice No. 17220IAC, Infarming that the Arbitral Tribunal had
decided io hold a case management conference, schedubed for early August 2024

On 14 Septermber 2024, VIAC Issued Procedural Order Na. 1 (PO No. 1") under Notice No
274TAAC on behalf of the Tribunal

On 12 Decembar 2024, VIAC conducted an online hearing attendad by representatives of bath
the claimant and the respondent

Parailel to the arbitration proceedings at VIAC, PetroCons continues to engage in negotations

and mediation efforts with Daslim E&C to resolva the disputes amicably and urges the contractor
fo withdraw the aforementioned claims.

a3



ol TN S

ganUoyInNe xe ay) A uogeuLuEap

ey uodn ep Jaie| e je pebueys Bq pinoo sjusEElS |BoUBul Y ajemedas ay) u) paucdel sjunowe ‘suopeEladiens Buliea 01 aigndacsns S| SUORIESUED
io s2dq fuew uo sucqenBa pue swme; xe] Jo uoledydde eyl asnessg saquoyine Xey sy} Ag vogeunuexs o) Jelgns aiE SlUBWBNEs XE] § Lojeodion auyl

h.!... '6EY L¥F T mmm ﬂm m ELD ERE ﬂﬂ.u_m.?

VOFZCOCIOE  DCLUZBLPOE  OLZOFZFPGLEZ

DZLESL 0L00ZE ELT R S0F 192 8¥) DZLE8d sajgeded sago pue safieyn ‘eaay
: D0O'000E £89E'099'08E" | BE.'700'6B0 e e el - saxm Jauyin
L8O POQ'RZ0L . ZBFLIE'JOE'L BO6"BZ0'00% L vLiL'E00'06GE . (BB pUB| PUB NE} PUEN
B08'Z0Z L1521 LLS'SPDLS BEL'LLD'LOE'L ¥EL'SGL'00E" L ZsL'is0'ovE) LLG'ekD S XE} ST [BUDTIa
: GBZ9SE'OSZLE - * + SHE'955'eSTIT XE] SLU0Din ajerodion)
. E0L'¥SZ'EL FEO'LLL'LE FEQ'LLL'LE . E0L'PIT 6L safnp Podu ‘podxs
825" LPY 101 1000892 506°291'c8 LEB'BOE rpE 05Z'005 LLO'00D'eE *E] peppe-anEn
MM ONA ONA A ONA ONA
JEBA IEETS JEah JEEh
2} jo pua ay) BUY JO pus Sl ieak Jeak ay o BunieBag ey jo BuwwBag ay)
eaqeiedve| jEagesecaixe] sywpedxel uegededxe;  jesgeledxel  jEajgemEcal xE|

1390N8 31V.LS IHL 0L SI1EYAYL HIHLO ONY XVl

Tioioacacen  Te VR0l
L6606 6L 96T ELD'EFS POG GE B18LI0
Gyl 'GeE SBR'SS 6L 'GBZ LGB'GS S - Uoneiodiony uogelEsUy| Aauyel W jaia,
568'C.F'BLL'ER G668’ 8L T8 preoq Juswabeuey 199lon jamod Wnsgoned ysel | Buenp - Buy Buns,
ONA ONA
G ) YEOZIZMIE

SHIWOLSND NOYd SININWAYJIHD WHAL - LHOHS

Lk

al

¥Z0Z J2qlUadag L€ B SE papua JEak [E08)) au) J0
SJUBLLGIEIS |EoURL|S ajeiedag

|CuBH T8ads uuy Buns) [ mmo] 1dp, 1o0j i)
uoijesodion Y2015 0P UOHINSUST WELSAL}EY

&



Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th floas, VP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi For the fiscal year ended gs 88 31 December 2024

18 ACCRUED EXPENSES

b)

19

a)

b)

1122024 0102024
WND VND

Short - term
Apcrual of construction works 8S 852 084 281 113,225,848, 5649
Other accruad expenses 5,009 284, 841 5,111,851,088
Elﬁ1 IEEJE 113&“3!&5&1

Long - term
Accrual of construction works 115,487 608 588 71,064 360,884

115éifiﬂlﬂéﬂ ?1IBEA|£EEIB:EI
UNEARNED REVENUES

311272024 0170112024
VHD WHD

Short - term
Revenues from property leasing 1,447 841 545 1.511,477,908
1.447 B41.545 1,511,477,908

Long - term
Revenues fram property leasing (i) 500,632,252 D45 52 080,093 557

50,632,252,045 52,080,083 597

{1} Including: VND 42,956, 289,426 is the balance of land rent received in advance by PetroVietnam
Steel Pipe Production Joint Stock Company undef Confract No. J1/HDD/PVYPIPE-PYC dated 01
Movember 2012 with the lease period of 588 months and a contract value of VND 46,818,181 818
al Soal Rap Indusirial Park - Tien Giang. The Corporation has aflocated this rental amount to
revenue up o December 2014 with the amount of YND 3,821,802 393, After December 2014, the
project was planned to be handed over to the People’s Committes of Tien Giang province, but the
handover process has nol been completed yel (defailed in Note 14). Therefore, the Corporation
has nat yet worked with customers an the remaining balance of land rent mentionad above.

L SR

i



Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
14th fioor, WP Tower 187 Trung Kimh Street, Hangd

Separate Financlal Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31 Decamber 2024

20 OTHER PAYABLES

a)

b)

22024 0102024
WHD WHND

Short - term
Trade union fes 1,778,814, 842 1,358,218,552
Socigl insurance 50,950,975 173,583,017
Haalth Insurance 93,088,851 106,448,912
Linemployment Insurance 17,551,681 54,110,669
Short-tenm deposis, collateral received 3,000,000 3,000,000
Provision for guarantee obligations (F) 137,842 779,492 137,942 779,492
Modern Bank of Vietnam Limited (i) 172,784,334 551 162, 596,140,733
Vietnam Od and Gas Group (iil} 54,068 464 510 54,008, 464 510
Others 62 002,120,753 53,363,8953.678
418,672 T iﬁ-‘&lﬂﬂlﬁ-‘!

Long - term
Long-term deposis, collateral receved 13,856 187 13,856 187

13 1 3,856 1

{1} As at 31 December 2024, the provision for guarantee obligations was as presented in Note 33,

{il) Interest payabie to Modemn Bank of Vietnam - MBVY (formerly Ocean Commercial Bank Limited -
QceanBank) includes the Corporation's interest expense and interest expense that the Corporation
will coliect from companies that the Corporation has paid or lent under capital support contracts
{detailed in Note 8) to pay OceanBank According to Resolution No. 754B/NQ-DKVN dated 20
October, 2014 of the Board of Members of Vietnam Oil and Gas Group and Official Letter No.
76972074/CV-OceanBank dated 9 December 2014 of OceanBank, the payment deadline for these
amounts was extended to 31 December 2017 and the loan interest rate was reducad o 1% per
annum from 01 January 2015 as presented in Note 21, Fram 01 Janwary 2018, the loan was
subject to-an overdue interest rate equal to 150% of the current interest rate. As at the date af
these Separate Financial Stalements, the Corporation Is sesking solubions to settle the overdue
loan interest payable

1I|_I} 1nl:I|..ndr'r_|g VND 42 22 billion payable to Vietnam Oil and Gas Group, which is the amount that
Vietnam Ol and Gas Group supporied the Corporation 1o pay confractors of the Soai Rap - Tien
Giang Petroleum Sarvice Industrial Park Project.
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Petroviotnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
14th floor, VP1 Tower 167 Trung Kinh Sireet, Hanal

€}

d)

23

a)

bj

Separate Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31 Decambar 2024

Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends and profits

Owner's contributed capital
- At the beginning of the year
- At the end of the year

Shars

Quantity of Authorized issuing shares
Cruantity of issued shares

- Comman shares

Quantity of shares repurchased

- Common siocks

Quantity of outstanding shares in circulation
- Common slocks

Far value per share: 10,000 VND

Company's reserves

Development and investmeant funide
Other reserves

Year 2024 Year 2023
WND YMD
4,000.000,000.000  4.000,000,000.000

4,000,0:00,000,000

4,000,000,000,000

OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS AND OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

Foreign currencies

ush

Doubtful debts written-off

Doubtful debts writtean-off

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
400,000,000 400,000,000
400,000,000 400,000,000
400,000,000 400,000,000

2.971 2,871

2971 2.071
392,957,029 399,597 029
399,997,029 399,997,029
3111272024 01/01/2024
WND VND
76,585,892,734 76,986.992,734
500,000,000 500,000,000
77,486.992,734 77.486,992,714

3171212024 110172024

7.364,563.80 B,459,255 60

31122024 01/01/2024

VND VND

8,718,217,233

9716.217.233

TOTAL REVENUE FROM SALES OF GDODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revenue from construction contracts
Revenus from real estate business
Revenue from rendering of services

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VHD

519,557 604,974 TO7 462 458 841
8,232 924 488 21.57T8.118, 707
2,568,303 5837 2,929 585 291

530,359,037.989 T31!9Tﬂ!1?;!33-5

4
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Fetrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
14th fioor, VPI Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Separate Financial Statements
For the fiscal year anded as at 31 Decamber 2024

25

28

COST OF GDODS 50LD
Year 2024 Year 2023
VD WD
Cost of constructon eantracts 523,564, 760,540 B73,229, 330 607
Cost of goods sold 18.614,679,758 30,821,750, 587
Cost af services rendered a,566, 307 420 3,621,648 814
Revearsal of provisions for inventory devaluation 13, 785,751,916) (6,707.810.605)

541859355843 _ 70086481957

FINANCIAL INCOME

Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND
Intarest income 7,347 104 838 14,095,379 518
Gain on exchange difference in the year 251951 349,511 13,808 905 385
Gain on exchange difference at the year - end 4 275 931 351 285,954 584
Sales interest on deferred payments, payment discounts 396,753,080 2.983,017,832
71,144,758 877,257,307

FINANCIAL EXPENSES
Year 2024 Year 2023
VYND VHD
Intarast expensas 8,446, 758 758 12,021,858 657
Loss on exchange difference in the year 30 84T OFB 407 22,312 487 565
Loss on exchange difference al the year - end - 243 505 BoO

Provision for diminution in vaiue of rading securities and 12,763,588 422
Impairment |ess from investment
Oithiars 5,121,536 246

131,845,831,243

6,397,108.011

57.178.961,823 T?glﬂﬁﬂ%aiﬁ

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Year 2024 Year 2023

YND WND

Labaur expanses 35,658 493 265 35,922 840 500
Tools, supplies office expenses 305823.373 344 723,781
Depreciation expenses 468,304,060 769 344 600
Tax, Charge, Fee Big 429 747 1,129,076,878
Reversal of provision expanses (47 544 BB5 7T5) {1,168,001,189)
Expenses of oulsourcing services 9,967 002 762 911,418 657
Hher expenses In cash 5467 687 810 6,610,022 538
5!15:!'!9E|HI 50,51 FES

41




Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

14ih foor, VPI Tower 167 Tmngﬁmrl Streat, Manal

Separate Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31 Deacember 2024

29 OTHER INCOME

Ey )

32

Gain from liquidation, dispasal of fixed assets
Collacied fines

Lizbifibes writlen off by agreement

Cithers

OTHER EXPENSES

Late payment penalfies on tax and insurance
Othess

CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Total prafit befors tax

Increase

- Ineligitie expenses

Taxable income

Carry forward Josses from previous years

Current corporate income tax expense (20%)
Tax payabie at the beginning of the year

Corporate income tax payable at the end of
the year

BUSINESS AND PRODUCTIONS COST BY ITEMS

Haw materials

Lebour expanses

Toois, supplies office expenses
Depreciation expenses

Tax, fee and charge

Pravisions

Expenses of cutsourcing services
Other expenses in cash

42

Year 2024 Year 2023
WVND VD

1,885 460,830 64,545 449
446 108 187 1,720,548.012
38,380, 782 870 :
T14 02 4091 638
ﬂ!‘lﬂ!lﬁ'ﬂi!ﬂm 1 1 a7
Year 2024 Year 2023
WHD VND
256,001,943 174,855,081
474 628 549 3,604 244 237

730,630,493 4,075,103,.318

Year 2024 Year 2023

WD YND

4.120,891,180 (162.652,761,738)

501,735 485 2,994 959 415
501,735 485 2.994 999 415

4 622628645 (159,657, 762.323)
{4,822 626 645) .
(21,256,566,285) {21,256.556 285)
iET!mliﬁliﬁl 21,2565 B85
Year 2024 Year 2023

WD WD

6,180 455 070 26 602 770 586
48,845 852 062 58,653,986 333
305,823,373 2 534 543 350
1,083, 546 552 1,478 915 506
1.771,138,000 1,410,022 564

{47 644,885 7735)
475,358, 837,34

(1,169,001, 1849)
833,506,119,472

G,.683, 764,161 B.338, 168,005
492,604.531,284 811 7ar
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Petrovietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

Separate Financial Statements

14th flcor, VP Tower 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi  For the fiscal year ended as at 31 December 2024

b)

c)

On 18 August 2018, PVC-SG sent Official Letter No. 58/XLOKSG to the Corporafion, reporting
details regarding the collateral for the entrusted Iloan and its ongoing discussions with Oceanbank,
According fa the letier, on 10 August 2016, Oceanbank - Saigon Branch issusd Official Letter No,
TBAZ016/CV-CNSG, responding to PVC-5G's propased debt setffiement plan. In this Official Letier,
Oceanbank - Saigon Branch approved PVC-5G's investment and business plan for the Urban
Development Project of Areas 2 and 3, Ward 5, Vi Thanh City. Hau Glang Province (Vi Thanh
Project) as well as the partial release of collateral to enable PVC-SG to sell goodsiassete and
generate funds for debt repayment Under this plan, PVC-SG commited to repaying the full
cutstanding principal amount of approximalely VND 148 billion to Ocean Bank

As at 31 December 2024, PVC-S5G has repaid VND 131 billion out of YND 148 billion of the
principal. Additionally, PVC-5G has effactively implemented the debt repayment plan proposed by
Oceanbank - Saigon Branch, Based on this progress, the Board of Management assesses that the
the Parent Company - the Corporation will not incur any liability under the guarantee, as PVC SG is
finrancially capable of fulfilng its repayment obligations to Oceanbank (mow Modern Bank of
Vietnam — MBV).

Payment guarantee

On 28 December 2010, the Corporation signed Guarantee Agreament No, 0112/2010/HDBL TT-
PVCTE with Thai Binh Petrolsum Tourism Company Limited (currently known as Thai Binh
Petraleum Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company (PVC Thal Binh) - a subsidiary of the
Corporation} and issued a guantantes payment letter for PVC Thai Binh, with a guaranteed amount
of approximately VND 111.8 billion. Under this quarantes, the Corporation undertakes and assures
PetroVietnam Exploration Producton Corporation (PVEF) that PVC Thal Binh would fully and
timely fulfil its payment cbligations to PVEP in accardance with the Agregment on the transfer of
Thai Binh Petroleun Hotel Construction project, signed on 28 December 2010 bebween PVEP and
PVC Thai Binh, The latter of guarantee takes effect from the signing date until PVC Thai Binh has
fully discharged its obligations to PVEP in accordance with the terms of the transfer agreement.

In 2016, the Corporation received a request from PVEP to fulfil its guarantes obligation, However,
ihe Board of Management of the Corporation has sssessed that no liabdities will anse for the
Parent Company under this guarantee, as PYC Thal Binh is able to fulfll its payment abligation to
PVERP,

Conclusion of the Government Inspectorate

The Corporation was the contractor for the Northern Ethancl Biofuel Plant construction project and
the Dinh Vu Polyester Manufacturing Plant construction project.

On 24 November 2016, the Governance Inspectorate issued Announcement No. 3129/TB-TTCP,
concluding its inspection of biofuel projects that were partially funded by Vietnam Gil and Gas
Group and ifs subsidiaries Based on the inspection findings, the Government Inspectorale
proposed that the Corporation should be responsible for economic loss incurred by the project
awner due to breach of the EPC Contract for the construction of the Maorthem Ethanol Biofugl Plant.

On the same day, 24 November 2016, the Gavemnment Inspectorate also msued Announcement
No. 3130/ TB-TTCP, summarizing the findings of s Inspection regarding the construclion of the
Dinh Vi Polyester Manufacturing Piant. According to the Government Inspectorate, the following
comeciive measures were recommended;

- A reduction of approximately WND 46.8 biflion in the accepted and pald value of the work
performed by the Corporation due to violations of the Foreign Exchange Ordinance in contract
axacufion,

- A reduction of approximately YND 8.1 billicn and USD 23,000 in the EBC contract's accepted and
pa:d value due to duplicate acceptance of work volumes and unauthorized goceptance of
additional work volumes beyond the regulatory framewark,

The Corporation’'s Board of Management has assessed that the conclusions in the above
Gavernment Inspectorate reports were directed at the project owners, with whom th Corporation
had contractual relationships as a relsted party. As at the reparting date, tha Carporation was still
warking with the project owners and the Government Inspectorate to clarfy and address matters
eoncaming the Corporation's involvement as staled in the inspection repors
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In 2022, the Corporation recewed the Government Inspector Conclusion No. 2090/KL-TTCP dated
23 November 2022 regarding its compliance with poficies and laws in production and business
activitlies duting the period 2008-2013. The Corporation has been actively coordinating with
relevant parties 1o implement the recommendations of the Government Inspectar in accardance
with this conclusion

Contingent liabilities

As of the reporing date of these Separaie Financial Statements, the Corporation and s
subsidianes were Involved in several ongeing litigation cases related to receivables, payehles and
contingent liabilities relating to valued added tax obligations and penalties for late payment of tax
on recognized revenue that has not yet been invaiced. The outcomes of these itigation cases and
eiher contigent liabilities remain uncertain at this stage.

OTHER INFORMATION
Unexpected costs at the Corporation’s construction projects

Due o economic fuctuations, the Corporation's business opesatlons are exposed o risks
azsociated with changes in market value of construction materials: Significant price fluctuations in
these malerials could have a major impact on the Corporation’s financial abligations and economic
benefits. However, the Board of Management acknowledges that market trends and governmant
macroeconomic policses are highly unpredictable. Therefore, it is impossible to quantify the exact
impact of these factors on the Corporation's ongaing constructicn projects. The final result will only
be determined upen completion and handover of the projects to the investors

Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project

The Corporation signed an EPC confract to construct Thal Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant with fhe
Thai Binh 2 Petroleumn Power Project Management Board (under the Vietnam 0il and Gas Group)
with approximalely of USD 918 milllon and WND 5874 billon. Al the date of these Separate
Financial Statements. the fotal provisional contract value signed by the Corporation  with
subcontractors for the project has exceeded the EPC contract value agreed with the Thai Binh
Patroleum Power Project Management Board. According to Official Letter Na. 737/TT o-KTN dated
23 May 2014 of the Prime Minister, the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant has been classified as a
priority power project for the period 2013-2020,

The project is subject to spacial mechanisms and palicies ouffined in Decision No 2414/Q0-TTg
dated 11 Decamber 2013 of the Prime Minister

Actording to a resalution by the Board of Directors of the Corporation, which temporarily approved
the EPC contract implementation plan, the expected revenue for the project s USD 9268 milllan
and YND 11,076.2 billen; while the estimated cost is USD $21.2 million and VNO 11,402.1 billian;
resulting oin & projected gross loss margin of 0 67%. As of the reporting date, the Corporation and
the Thal Binh 2 Petroleum Power Project Management Board ars negotiating and finalizing
appendices to adjusl the EPC contract value. Simultanecusly, the Corporalion is also working with
subcontractors to re-sign appendices adjusting their cantract values. The Board of Management
considers this o be the best estimate available at the time of preparing these Separate Financial
Statements and the estimate is continuously reviewed and updated to accurately reflact the actual
financial performance of the Project Accordingly, the Cesparstion has recognized revenue and
expenses of this project based on the projected gross loss ratio,

Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant

On 28 September 2008, the Corporation signed a construction contract for the Vung Ang 1
Thermal Power Plant with Vietnam Machinery Installation Corporation (LILAMAY under Contract
Mo, 2B0G0%LILAMA-PVC with a total value of approximately VND 1,322 biliion, According to
Rasclution Mo. 686/NQ-DEVN dated 27 January 2014, the Vietnam Qil and Gas Group (PVN) has
approvied the unforeseeable costs of the entire Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant project, including
internal roads and construction, amounting to approximately WND 1,080 billion. After verification
and appraisal, the estimated value of construction wark perfarmed by the Carporation increased by
gpproximately VND 280 billian {excluding deductible value-added tax) compared to the initial lump-
sum conltract value signed by the Corporation. The Corporation has formally requested PYN to
consider adjusting the additional unexpected costs of this project. At the date of these Separate
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Financial Statements, PYN and relevant stale authorties have not yet issued a final declsion
regarding this matter. However, the Board of Management believes that the additional contract
value will be approved and offictally signed,

Information on the Corporation's restructuring

According to Resolution Mo 332N0Q-XLDK-DHDCD dated 11 October 2022 of the Genaral
Meeting of Shareholders of PefroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation approving the
Corporation’s restructuring plan for the 202 1-2025 perind:

- The Corporation will continue to hold at least 51% of its charter capital in the period 2021-2025 in
two subsidiaries: Petroleumn Pipeling and Tank Construction Joint Stock Company (PVC-PT) and
Petroleun Equiprment Assembly & Metal Structure JSC (PVC-MS).

- Tha Corpaoration will fully divest its investment in all other subsidiaries during the 2021-2025
period.

- The following companies: Hanol Petroleun Canstruction JSC (PVC-HN), Petraleurn Mechanical
Executing and Assambly Joint Stock Company (PVC-MEA), Mien frung Petroleum Construction
JSC (PVC-MT) and PetroVietnam Urban Development JSC (PVC-Mekaong) will be dissalved or
deciared bankrupt in case the Corporation fails to divest its capits!

- The Corparation will divest all other long-term financial investments and trading securities during
the 2021-2025 pericd.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no significant events cccurring afler the reporting period, which would reguire
adjustments or disciosures o be made in the Separate financial slatements
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36 REMUNERATION, SALARIES AND OTHER INCOME OF MANAGERS OF THE CORPORATION

Remuneration, salanes and other income of members of the Board of Management, Board of
General Director, Board of Supenvision and other managers are as follows:

Board of Directors

Mr Nghiem Quang Huy

kr Pham Van Khanh
Mr Tran Hai Bang
Mr Mguyen Hoal Mam
Mr Chu Thanh Hai

Board of Management

Mir Tran Quoc Hoan
Mr Phan Tu Giang

Mr Nguyen Van Daong
Mr Nguyen Trung Tni

Mr %u Manh Quang

Mr Pham Trung Kien

Mr Hoang Quyet Thang

Mr Bui Son Truong

Board of Supervision

Mr Hua Xuan Nam
kir Phung Van Sy

Mr Nguyen Mgoc Cucng

37 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Positian Yaar 2024 Year 2023
VHD YD
2207775813 2,258,749,B96
Chairman 545,647,303 543,276,735
Indepandant member 244 285 000 244 555 000
Member 478 206 108 204 420 370
Member 466,008,070 485 761,660
Member 471.829.434 465,736,130
2,014,722, 703 2,155 452 154
General Director (Appointed 449 B14 057 -
on 01/01/2024)
General Drecior (Resigned 108,537 217 580,148,335
on 01/0172024)
Deputy General Dirsctor HO7. 748,575 497 083 200
Dreputy General Director - 328,577,304
(Resigned on 01/07/2023)
Deputy General Director - B5,347.000
(Rasignad on 30/05/2024)
Deputy General Dracior 454, 820 490 76,673,500
(Appointad on 01/10/2023)
Depuly General Direclor =
{Resigned on 01/11/2023}
Deputy Seneral Directar 482 731 554
ED6,21B,999
Head of the Board 441 418 509
Membar 42,400,000
Member a2 400,000

The comparative figures are figures in the Separate F Inanclal Statements for the fiscal year ended

as at 31 December 2023, which was audited by MB:: A

b(’— Iy
; w lll' =1 ;1P
kﬂ LAY L
_'_,_lg W et |L|||_
Vu Thi Cham Vu Minh Cong “x‘\ .
Preparer Chief Accountant S _ﬁe

Comgany Limited.
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PETROVIETNAM CONSTRUCTION JOINT STOCK CORFPORATION
14ih Floor, VPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Glay District, Hanoi, Vietnam -

REPORT OF THE BOARD OF MANAGEMENT

The Board of Management of PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corparation (“the Gorporation”)
presents its report and the Carporation’s Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal year ended as
at 31 Decamber 2024,

THE CORPORATION

PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corparation (the “Corporation”), an enfity under management of
Vietnam Oil and Gas Group (PVN), formerfy known as PetroVietnam Construction Joint Siock Company,
was established in Vietnam by privatizing Petroleum Design and Canstruction Campany under Dacision
Me. S32/Q0-TCCH dated 26 March 2004 of the Minister of Industry {currently known as the Ministry of
Industry and Trade). PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Company operatas under Business
Registration Certificate for Joint Stock Company No. 4803000232 dated 13 March 2006 issued by Ba Ria
- Vung Tau Department of Planning and Investment,

As per Resolution No. 3604/NQ-DKVN dated 28 October 2007, the Board aof Members of Viatnam O and
Gas Group ("PetroVietnam”) approved the proposal on transfer of Pero Construction Joint Stock
Company into PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Carporation, operating under the model of holding -
subsidiary company. The Corporation cperates under Business Ragistration Certificate for Joint Stock
Company No. 3500102365 dated 20 December 2007 and the 22t change on 18 January 2024, Issued by
Hanol Authority for Planning and Investment

The Corporation's head office is located at 14th fioor, Vietnam Petroleum Institute building, 167 Trung
Kinh Street, Yen Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, BOARD OF MANAGEMENT AND BOARD OF SUPERVISION

Members of the Bosrd of Directors during the fiscal year 2nd to the reporting date are

Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy Chairman

Mr. Pham Van Khanh Independant Membir
Mr. Tran Hai Bang Member

Mr. Chu Thanh Hai Member

Mr. Nguyen Hoal Nam Member

Members of the Board of Managemant duting the fiscal year and to the reporting date are:

Mr Tran Cuoc Hoan General Director (Appointed on 01 January 2024)
Mr. Phan Tu Giang General Owector (Resigned on 01 January 2024)
Mr. Nguyen Van Dong Deputy General Director

Mr. Bui San Truong Deputy General Director

Mr. Pham Trung Kien Deputy General Director

Mr. Vu Manh Quang Deputy General Director (Resigned on 30 May 2024}

The legal regresentative of the Corporation during the year and until the preparation of this Separate
Financial Statements is Mr. Tran Quoc Hoan (Ganeral Director),

Members of the Board of Supervision are:

Mr. Hua Xuan Nam Head of the Board of Suparvision
Mir. Nguyen Ngoc Cubng Member

Mr. Phung Van Sy Mamber

AUDITORS

The auditors of AASC Auditing. Firm Company Limited have taken the audit of Separate Financial
Statements for the Corporation.
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STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF GENERAL DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Management i responsible for the Consolidated Financial Statements which give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Carporation, its operating results and s cash flows for the
year. In preparing those Consolidated Financial Statements, the Board of Management is required to:

- Establish and maintain an internal control system which is determined necessary by the Board of
Directors and Board of Management to ensure the preparation and presentation of Consolidated
Firancial Statements do not contain any material misstatement caused by errors or frauds;

- Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently.

- Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

- State whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject io any matenal departures
digclozed and explained in the Consolidated Financial Siatermants;

- Prepare the Consobdated Financial Statemenis on the basis of compliance with Vietnamese
Accounting Standards, Vielnamese Corporate Accounting System and the statutory requiremants
relevant to preparation and presentation of Financial Staternents:

- Prepare the Consolidated Financial Statements on the going concern basls unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Corparstion will continue in business.

The Board of Management is responsitle for ensuring that accounting records are kepl to reflact the
financial position of the Corporation. with reasonahble accuracy al any tme and lo ensure that the
Consolidated Financial Statemenis comply with the current Stale's regulations. I is responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Corporation and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other iregularities,

The Board of Management confirms that the Cansolidated Financial Statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position at 31 Decamber 2024, its operation results and cash flows in the year 2024 of the
Corporation in accordance with the Vielnamese Accounting Standards. Vistnamese Corporate
Accounting System and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of
Consalidated Financial Statements.

Other commitments

The Board of Management pledges that the Corporation complies with Decree No. 155/2020/ND-CP
dated 31 December 2020 on detailing and guiding the implementation of a number of arlicles of the Law
on Securities and the Corporation does not viclate the obligations of information disclosure in accordance
with the reguiafions of the Circular No, 98/2020/TT-BTC dated 18 Novemnber 2020 issued by the Ministry
of Finance guiding the disclasure of information on Securities Market and the Circular No. BR2024/TT-

ated 18 September 2024 issued by Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some articles
R Mo, BE2020TT-BTC.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To: Shareholders, Board of Directors and Board of hl_:nagununt
PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statemenis of PetroVietrnam
g:nmmnﬂnn Joint Stock Corporation (the “Corparation”), prepared on 31 March 2025, as set oul on
pages 08 1o 61, including: Consolidated Statement of Financial position as at 31 December 2024,
Consclidated Statement of Income, Consolidated Statement of Cash flows and Noles to
Consolidated Financial Statements for the fiscal vear ended as at 31 Decembar 2024,

Board of Management's Responsibility

The Board of Management of PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation ls responsible for
the preparation and presentation of Consclidated Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with \Vielnamesa Accounting Slandards, Vietnamese Corparate Accounting System
and the statutory requirements refevant to the preparation and presantation of Financial Statemants
and for such internal conlrol as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and
presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from matarial misstatemeant,
wihether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility 18 to express an apinion on these Consolidated Financial Statements hasad an
our audit. We have conducted our audit in accordance with Vielnamesa Standards an Auditing.
However, due 1o the matler deserlbad in the paragraph "Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion”, we were
unabie to obiain sufficient appropriate audit evidence ta provide a basis for the sudit opinian.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinlon

e were unable o assess the effact of the following matters on the Corporation's Consolidated
Financial Statements for the fiscal vearended 31 December 2024 (attached);

1. As at 31 December 2024, the Consolidated Financial Statements reflect the following: an
accumulated loss (code 421) of VND 390841 billien, current liabiliies {code 10} of YND
5,383.51 bdion, which exceeded current =2&5els (code 100) by VND 781.85 billlon, and overdue
debls as at 31 December 2024 amounting 1o VND 1,200.95 billion, The Corporation's financial
posiion as =t 01 January 2024 was similarly challenging. These factors. logether with the
disclosures in Note 1, Jead to substaintial doubl about the Corporation's ability to continue =s a
guing concern. The Corparation's ability 1o maintain operations depends on its plans to recover
oulstanding receivables, restructure Investments, complete and finaiize works in progress. o
recover funds, and secure financial support fram shareholders and creditors. Within the scope of
an audit of the financial statements. we did nol obtain sufficlent appropriate evidence to assess
the feasibility and effectiveness of thesea operational plans,

2. As al 31 December 2024, the Corparation recorded a loan receivable of VND 200 biltion, lent to

Lam Kink Hotel Jaint Stock Company 1o support its business operations (as at 01 January 2024:
VMD 200 bitlion), A provision of VND 124.4 billion had been made for this loan {a= at 01 January
<024 VND 124.4 billion) (Note 7). We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriaie awdi
evidence regarding the recoverability of this receivable as at 31 December 2024 and 01 January

2024, Consequently, we were unable 1o determine whether any adjustments to these amounts
WETE NBCESEITyY.
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3. Ag at 31 December 2024, the cost of work in progress related fo Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power
Plant Project (Mote 10) and Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project (Mote 14) amounted to
approximalely VND 245.1 billon and VND 25.8 billion {as at 01 January 2024; VND 245.1 billion
and VND 258 billion). As at the reporting date, the Corporalion was still engaglng with the
relevant authorities an: (1) approval for adjustments relating to unexpected expenses incurred in
the Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant Project and (2) acceptance and finalization of the
Corporation’s incummed expenses under the Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project. We
were unable 1o oblain the net realizable value of thess work in progress as at 31 December 2024
and 01 January 2024, Consequently, wa were unable lo determine whether any adjustments to
these amounts were necessary

4. In Note 15 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements prasenis the balance of
construction in progress a5 at 31 December 2024 Including projects (where the Corporation (s
the Investor) that have been suspended in previous years namely (1) the Petroleum University
Urban Areas Projact and (2) the Tien Giang Petraleum Industrial Zone Praject wih a total
amount of approximately VND 572 billon (as of 01 January 2024 approdimately VND 5.72
billion}. We were unabie to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence regarding the polential future
economic benefits of these projects. Consequently, we were unable o determine whether any
adjustments to these amounts were necessary.

5. The Corporstion Is consclidating Petrovietnam Urban Develcpment Joint Siock Company (a3
subsidiary) into the Corporation's Consolidated Financial Statements based on the uhaudited
Financial Statements for the second quarer of 2024, As at 30 June 2024 the subsidiary reported
total asset of VND 15.16 bilion and negative equity of VND 193,44 billion. with revenue and profit
after corporate Incoma tax amounting fo WYND 0.09 bilbon and negative VND 0.53 biflion,
respectively. Regarding associate companies, except for Thanh Hoa Petroleum Construction
Joint Stock Company and Mien Trung Petraleum Construction Joint Stock Company, whose
financial staternents have bean audited, the value of investments in the remalining associates is
presented using the equity method based on unaudited financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 December 2024 or the most recent Financial Statements availshle to the Corporation
(Note 04), We were unable 1o assess the appropriatenass of these figures.

B, As at 31 December 2024, the Corporation was unable o obtain financizl stalements from tha
invesiee enfities related to the ‘Equity investments in other entities” item [code 253} on the
Consolidated Statement of Finanetal position. The total carrying amount and total provision far
these investments were VYND 191 585 billion and VND 149.99 billion, respectively (s at 01
January 2024: YND 191,585 bilion and VND 180.08 billion, respactively). Provisions for these
nvesiments were made based on the latest financial statemeris avaitable to the Corporation. We
were Unable lo obtain sufficient appropriste documentation to access the impairment of these
Investments,

/. Thal Binh Petroleum Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary) has neither
astessed the impairment nor estimated the net reslizabie value of ds real estate inventories,
which had camying value of VND 36.3 bilion as at 01 January 2024 and 31 December 2024
{Note 10), We were unable to oblain appropriate decumentation regarding the net realizable
valus of these real estate inventaries

B. At Thai Binh Petroleurn Trading and Investmant Jaint Stock Company, we have carrled out the
necassary audil procedures. However, we were unable to obtain sulficient audit evidence fo
confirm the accuracy and recoverable value of the "Abandaned business production costs” of the
Company as of December 31, 2024 with 3 total amount of VND 33647 bilion, Therefore, we
have not determined the necessary adjustments related to the "Abandoned business production
costs” account and other related accounts, as wall as any potential impacis (if any) on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements

8. As at 31 December 2024, the balance of inventories presented in the financial statements of
Petroleum Dong Do Joint Stock Company {a subsidiary) mcludes construction in progress far
Thal Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant, Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plant, Tran Anh - Long An
Apartment Bullding and Multi-purpose Building FProject In District 1, with a tofal value of
approximately VND 55.38 bilkon (as at 01 January 2024: VND 57.97 Billicn}, We were unable o
assess the nel realizable value of thesa construction in progress projects as at the respective
dates.



10.AL Petroleum Dong Do Jeint Stock Company (8 subsidiary), the outstanding balances of
recelvables and pi?]rahles arg a5 follows: as of 01 Januery 2024 and 31 December 2024,
receivables amounted to VND 14.25 billion and VND 25.58 billion, respectively; payables as of
the same dates smounted to VND 15.51 billion and YND 15,83 billion, respectively. As of 31
December 2024, the company had not reviewed or assessed the collectability of the outstanding
recenvable balance of VWD 20,52 bilion for potantial allowance for doubtful debls. We are unable
to assess the exstenca, recaverability, or the necessary provision for thesa recalvables

11.Al Petroleum Equipment Assembly and Metal Structure Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary), we
were unable to obfain the necessary documentation refated to the Thal Binh 2 Thermal Power
Plant and Song Hau | Thermal Power Plant projecis. Conseguenily, we were unabie lo axpress
&N opinion on the appropriateness of the cumulative revenue and cost of goods sold recognized
#s of 31 December 2024, which amounted to VND 88257 bilion and VND 921,34 billicn,
ively (including revenue and cost of goods sold recognized in 2024 of VND 4.93 billion
and VND 515 billan, respectively). Additionally, we have not been able to assess the
appropriateness and completeness of the work-in-progress expenses related to these two
projects a5 of 31 December 2024 and 01 January 2024, with values of YND 148 25 billion and
WND 148.76 billion, respectively, nor their impact on the accoempanying financial statemants.

12.At Petroleum Equipment Assembly & Metal Structure Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary), Note
13 of the Consolidated Financlal Statements states that this subsidiary is monioring the value of
iand use rights related to the land piat at No. 02 Nguyen Huu Canh, Thang Nhat ward, Vung Tau
city, Ba Ria-Vung Tau province with an original cost of VND 15166 bilkon and accumulated
amortization of VWD 6.488 billion as at 31 December 2024, This land plot has been repurposed
for the development of @ High-rise Residential and Office Complex project, for which the
Subsidiary is the investor. The project was completed and put inta use since 2014, On 24 August
2017, the Department of Matural Resources and Envirenment of Ba Ria - Vung Tau province
revoked the use rights o reallocate them to the project owners. Under this arangement, the
subsidiary retains land use rghts, ownership of residential floors, and other land-attached assets,
inchuding floors 1 through 5, technical fioors, and technical roof fioor of the project However, the
subsidiary has not accounted for the value of the land use rights &s part of the project's cost

13.The work-in-progress balance of PetroVietnam industriagl and Civil Construction Joint Stock
Company (a subsidiary) includes the unfinished value of the Commercial, Service, Office, and
Apartment Complex project, amounting fo VND 3299 billion (Note 10), The project was
completed and put into use in 2019; however, as of the preparabion date of these Consalidated
Firancial Statements, its final settlement has y&l to be approved.

14.At PetroVietnam Industrisl and Civil Construction Joint Stock Company (a subsidiary}): The
Company has not assessad the recoverability of the long-term recelvable for the Long Son

Riverside Apartment Project, amounting fo VND 1289 billion (Note 18), which was completed
since 2009,

13.At PetroVietnam Industrial and Civil Canstruction Joint Stock Company (a8 subsidiary), the
outstanding balances of recejvables and payables had not been fully reconciled and confirmed as
8t 01 January 2024 and 31 December 2024, Specifically, payables amounted 1o VND 79.28
billion and VND 21.27 bilkon, respectively, whils receivables amounted to WND 4.26 billion and
WND 4.21 billion, respectively.

16.At Petroleum Tank Pipeline Construction Joint Stock Company {a subsidiary), the ocutstanding
balznces of receivables and payables had not besn fully reconciled and confirmed as at 01
January 2024 and 31 December 2004 Specifically, payables amounted 1o WND 11.67 billion and
WND 15,55 billion, respectively, receivables amounied to VND 11.48 billian and VHD 10.31
billion, respectively. Maanwhile, the cutstanding recenables amounted to VND 108 22 billion and
131.88 billion a5 of the respective dates had not besn reviewed and assessed for provision by
the company,
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Disclaimer of Opinion

Because of the significance of the malters described in the *Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion®
paragraph, we have not been able o obtain sufficient appropriate evidence to provide a basis for an
audit opinion for Consaolidated Financial Statement Accordingly, we do not express an opinian on
tha Consolidated Financial Statemeants.

Emphasis of Matter
As prasented in Mote 38 of the Notes ta the Consolidated Financial Statements, as at 31 December

2024, the Corporation has certain contingent Eablliies, and the final outcomes regarding its ratated
obligations have not been determined.

of apinion & not modified with respect to this matter

—

"'AASE Auditing Firm Company Limited

LB T

ol HANG RIEH Th! ’
0. AASC W
. P T
an N n Duy Quan
Deputy General Director Aﬁn-dﬁ e ;
Registered Auditor No.; 07 77-2023-002-1 Registerad Auditor No.. 3363-2025-002-1

Hanoi, 31 March 2025




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
V| Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Az ar 31 December 2024

Code ITEMS Mote 111250024

VND
100 A CURRENT ASSETS 4,671,664 998 B14
110 L Cash and cash equivalents 3 433,474,223 954
111 1. Cash 255,791 531,076
112 2 Ceshequivalents 177 682 652 818
120 I Short-term investments 4 254,505 326 478
121 1, Trading securities 14,800,000,000
122 2 Provision for diminutien in value of (13.885,000,000)

trading securities

123 3 Held-io-maturty investments 253,490,326 478
130 . Short-term receivables 1,957 524,578,173
131 1, Short-term trade recaivables 5 1.663 2680, 397 192
132 2 Shor-term prepayments fo suppliers 6 570,180,345 845
135 3 Short-term loan recaivable 7 355,676,953 493
136 4, Other shon-term receivablas B 418,600 386 TES
137 5. Provision for shori-term doubtful debts (1,052,014 338,142)
139 B Shortage of assets awaiting resolution 540 332 220
140 V. Inventories 10 1,817 889,197 656
141 1. inventories 1,937 818,805 304
148 2. Provision for devaluation of inventarias (115,825,707 648)
150 V. Other short-term aszetls 148.171,672,513
151 1. Shori-term prepaid expenses 1 3,443 165 122
152 2. Deductible VAT 110,081,427 581
153 3. Taxes and other receivables fram State 14 34,637,079, 800

budget

01/0172024

WND
4,715,401,378,806

35,530,103,712
248,067 218,323
64,462 584 358

311,127,549,041
14,800,000,000
{13,885,000,000)

310,112.549,041

2,010,762,321,383
1,778,603,348 158
580,508 469,744
255,676,953 4583
399, 325,071,226
(1,104,318 216,688)
BTV 655 450

1,928,609,601,351
2,073,825,708, 264
(145,216,104,913)

149,371,803,318
2 138,750,068
111,859,213 274
35,373,790,879




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
VPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements
Far the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Az at 37 December 2024
(Confinued)}

Code ASSETS Mote 31112/2024 31/01/2024

VND VND
200 B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 1,514 887 611,157 1,498,227 890,963
210 I Long-term receivables 28,744 401,590 31,713,977,662
212 1. Long-term prepayments to suppliers i 8.262,236.011 12.485376,511
216 2. Other long-term recaivables B 2B 587 933837 31,414.3658,209
219 3. Provigion for long-term doubtful debsts (9,085,768, 058) {12,185,768,058)
220 Il Fixed assets 1,025,002, 675,740 1.011,122,079, 780
221 1 Tangible fixed azsets 12 T67,327,869.072 762,911,087,840
222 -Historical cost 1,626,073 749,975 1,648 521, 708 443
223 - Accumutaled depreciation (B53 645 BE0.90:7) (835,670 670.603)
X2F 2 Intangible fixed assels 13 257 674,706,668 258,210,981,840
228 - Historical cost 284,392 878 002 284,302 878 802
229 = Accumulated amortization {28,718 172 .234) {26 187,856 952)
230 . Investment properties 14 85,507 588,185 77,965,TED, 369
231 - Histonical costs 111,067 B44 188 101,148 288 217
232 - Accumulated depreciation (25,559 856,003) (23,182 508 B48)
240 IW. Long-term assets in progress 15 138,515,570,946 136,725,481, 822
241 1. Long-term work in progress 25,064 213 530 25064, 213.539
242 2 Construction in progress 113,451 357,407 111,661 268,283
250 V. Long-term investments 4 78,900,512,008 69,717,480,211
252 1. Investments in joint ventures and 32,208,529,511 33,113.367,012

associstes
253 2. Equity investments in other entitiag 208 313,000, 000 208,313,000 000
234 3. Pravision for devaluation of lang-term (150,621,017 502) (168,708 886,801}
mvesiments

260 VL. Other long-term assets 158,216,562 687 170, 883,091,119
261 1. Long-term prepaid expenses 11 100,284,708, 167 111,621,834 406
262 2 Deferred income tax assels 35 18,801,350, 080 19,230,752 273
268 3. Other long-term assets 16 39,130,504 440 40,130,504 440
270 TOTAL ASSETS

E,HBIEEEEEDEIE*I 6.213,629.269 769




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
VP1 Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2024
(Continued)
Code CAPITAL Thuyét 322024 01/01/2024
minh VND VND

300 C.LIABILITIES 5.587.542, 732,087 5.606.882.T65.922
310 I Current liabilities 5393.511.9324T0  5.503.169.045.805
311 1. Short-term trade payables 17 3.254 538639.111 3.340.526. 731.717
312 2 Shot-term prepayments from customers 18 232 342 450 037 213,715,212 808
313 3. Taxes and olher payables to State budget 18 125.235.4T8.617 122.243.739.620
314 4, Payables o emplovess 48, T01.621.223 5B .835.792 162
315 5. Shaort-term accrued expenses 20 453,154,875 582 451.B22.676.831
318 6. Short-term uneamed fevenue 21 6.249.108.721 3.181,130.462
318 7. Other short-term payables 22 582 456 027 299 587 654,331,570
320 B Short-term borrowings and finance lesse 24 B84 791 647 252 729.443.048 917

liahilities
322 9 Bonus and weifare fund {4.257.818.382) (4.253.618.383)
330 L Non-current liabilities 204.030.800.517 183,823, 720,117
333 1. Long-erm accrued expenses 20 115,497 B0B SR8 T1.310.452 285
336 2 Long-term unearnad revenue 21 50.831.503.317 52 375.6B5.485
337 3 Other long-term payables 22 2823 199,868 1,640, 775.187
332 4, Long-term borrewings and finance lease 24 24 D00.000,000 38.000.000.000

labifities
342 5 Provisions for long-term payables 23 10,778, 458.744 20487 BO3. 160
400 D. OWNER'S EQUITY 529.009.876,984 526.636.603.847
410 L Owner's equity 25 529.008.876.564 526.636.503.847
411 1. Contributed capial 4. 000,000,000 000 &, 000.000.000.000
411a - Ordinary shares with vating rights 4.000.000.000.000  4.000 000800000
412 2. Share Pramium 6.831.719 482 6.831.710.482
414 3. Other capital 22 .681.220.411 22.681.220.411
415 4. Treasury shares 129,720,155} (28, 720.185)
418 5 Development and investment funds 150.855.427.814 150.850 427 814
420 6 Other resarves 233548 426 233.648.428
421 7. Retained earnings (3.¥38.411.998.873) (4.005332 783.992)
421a - Retained eamings accumulated bl the (4.005.781.884.168) (3845710214 787)

end af the previous year
421b - Retained eamnings of the current year 7.369.885 105 {158.622 568 205)
429 A Non- Contralling Interesis 345.645.580.019 351,392.991.901
440 TOTAL CAPITAL

=
N =

6,213.629.260. 769

Nguyen Thi Thu Anh ~ Vu Minh Cong ™ oc Hoan
Preparar Chief Accountant General Director
Hangl, 31 March 2025
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VPl Tawer, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

Yoar 2024
Code ITEMS Note Year 2024 Year 2021
VYND VHD
01 1. Revenue from sales of goods and 27 1,213,006, 106,554 1,185,720,911.618
rendering of services
10 2. Net revenue from sales of goods and 1,213,006,1086,954 1,189,720,911,616
rendering of services
11 3 Cost of goods sold 28 1,164,337 416,154 1.284,1568,315,702
20 4. Gross profit from sales of goods and 51,668,690,7T60 {94 435,404 086)
rendering of services
21 5. Financlal income 29 42 871,334 402 41,635,334 662
22 &, Financial expanse a0 683,779,127 180 71,080,155 881
23 In which: Interest expense 35,758,503 108 41,107, 144807
24 T Share of joint ventures and @ssociates’ (904 837 501) (765,855, T65)
profit or loss
25 B Selling expense 2,074 093 580 427,626,451
26 8 General and administrative expense 31 T4 120 055 138 126.121,618,228
30 10. Net profit from operating activities {46,347 888,645) (251,195, 466,729)
b § 11, Ciher income 32 62,899 113,840 T.357 200 444
32 12 Other expense 33 11.743,521,872 23277496 830
40  13. Other profit §1,155,591,868 {(15,920,287,395)
50 14. Total net profit before tax 4.807,603,223 (267,115,754,124)
51 15. Current corparate income tax expense 34 2077618123 -
52 16 Deferred corporate income tax EXpensa 35 116,962 081 (1,895,066 065)
60 17, Profit after corporate income tax 2.613,023,019 iEE!zzﬂEEHEIEEﬂ
61  18. Profit after tax attributable to cwners 7,385 885,185 (158,622,569,205)
62 19, Profit after tax attributable to non- {4,756,862,176)  (105,598,118,854)

controfling interest

TD  20. Basic earnings pershare

{393)

Nguyen Thi Thu Anh Vu Minh Cong
Preparer Chief Accountant General Director

Hanal, 31 March 2025
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
WPI Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consofidated Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 3111212024

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Yoar 2024
{indirect meathod)
Code ITEMS Mota Year 2024 Year 2023
VHD VND
I. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
01 1. Profit before tax 4,807,603,223  (267,115754,124)
2. Adjustment for:
02 - Depreciation and amartization of fieed 39,785,216,032 43,987 463,802
eseais and invesiment properiss
03 - Provisicns (100,588 458, 527) (17, 770.133,085)
04 - Exchange gains | losses from refransiation (4,160,787 B486) 254 168 100
of manetary items denominated in foreign
05 - Gaing / losses from investment (15,713,638 682) (24,247,047 444)
06 - Interestexpense 36,158 553,108 41,107 144,807
8 3. Operating profit before changes in {39,680,474,692) (223,787, 156,844)
warking capital
09 - Increase or decreass in receivables 126,676,626, 745 Aed 360 408,047
10 - [Incfeass or decreasa in inventaries 125,374 406 428 24,137 8B4 628
11 - Increase or decrease in payables (58,001,830, 745) (160,202, T18.178)
12 - Increase or decrease in prepaid expenses 10,032, 760,183 (5,345,731,832)
14 - Intarest paid {1,064 453 316) (4,015,012, 7T43)
15 - Corporate income tax paid (457 536 232} -
16 - Other receipts from operating activities 1,215,000, 000 4 F70,000,000
17 - Other paymenis on operaling activities (1,244 200 000) (3,931,160,581)
20 Net cash flow from operating activities 157,810,298,372 (145 518 487,301)
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
21 1. Purchase or construction of fixed assels (74,871,268 2439) (850,405 B81)
and ather long-term assets
22 2 Procseds from disposals of fixed assets 16,703,561, 704 -
and other lkang-term assets
23 3 Loans and purchase of debt instruments 248 251,
ol diajesin i 51,256,478) [B8,208,950,000)
24 4 Callecton of loans and resale of debt 304,873,589 041 30,116.349,203
instrument of ather entities : I
27 5. Interest and dividend received 12,180,840,711 23,680,592,035
30 Net cash flow from investing activities 10,615 435,729 {16,362 424,623

12
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VPI Tawer, 167 Trung Kinh Sireet, Hanoi

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

L

B

Year 2024
{indirect mathod)
{Continued)
Code ITEMS Mote Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
33 1. Proceads from bptrn;wlngs 100,737, 532,071 145,549 402 8585
34 2 Repayment of principal {148,788,033,736) (230,774,673.518)
40 Net cash flow from financing activities (48,657,401,665) {84,225.270,621)
50  Met cash flows in the year 113,774,332,436 (246,108,182 545)
80 Cash and cash equivalents at the 315,530,103,712 661,632 676,583

beginning of the year
61  Effect of exchange rate fluctuations 4 168 787 845 3609674

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
W o 3 433,474,223,994 215,530,103,712

g Hor
. y=/ TONG
: et i {OONG 7Y T PHAR
7 H_’-” L—-—'—'_—'_-_ \HAY LAP mhl KH X
N \VET aw />

Mguyen Thi Thu Anh "~ Vu Minh Cong .:‘“EEM ;Hmn
Preparer Chief Accountant hﬁhﬁié'ﬂirad Director

Harai, 37 Merch 2025
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yigtnath netructi Joint ration L L
E;ﬁwa 1E?ﬂ‘?mgg Hm:nsn'aﬂl }mh o For the fiscal yeaT anded as at 31 42/2024
F. : ¥

___._—'_'_'_.

1 GENERAL IHFDH‘HﬁTl.ﬂH

petigyistnam construction  Jeint Stack GTFpﬂ;ﬁm ithe ‘n:ﬁrzmﬂmn

nf‘qrmmiﬂﬂﬂllﬂnﬂﬁaﬂ-ﬁﬂw;l , form :

e o oo U L e Peran 0% U
oy under Decision Mo: 5 D- B f : /

E’ummepﬂrm; known a8 the winisty of Industry and Trade] petro Construction Jaint Stock Enmpanﬁé

ates under BusinBss Regstration Certificate for Joint Stack

13 March 2006 iesued by Ba Ria- yung Tau Dapartment of Planning and jrvestment

i § Members of Wigtnvam

ps per Resciubon Mo, 2604MNC-DKVN dated 26 October apa7, the Board & :

DHF:;.:Td 3as Group L'Fah'nmamm‘:l approved thi p;qpuﬂl on transfer n_l Petno Ennswcmn?jn Jﬂﬂl-:‘ll

sinck Company inta Petroiietnam Construction Joint Stack Corporatan, pperating unCer g
ding as parent company. - i company.

i o pEa i for Joint Stock Company No. 35001023865 dated 20 pecember

Busingss Registration _ .
20:111. gmended for the 225t fime on 1§ January 2pn24 by Hanot Authority for Planning and

Irvastment

*

Corporation’s head office 18 jncated at s4th fiaar, W ietram Petroleum |pstitute paikding. 167

The 4in
I Trung Kinh Streat, ven Hoa ward, Gau Giay distncl, Hanoi, Viet Nam.

' j the total
According to the 27nd amended gusiness Regisiraton Certificate dated January 13 2024,

charter capltat of the Corporation 15 WD i,ﬂﬂﬂ,ﬂﬂlﬂl,ﬂﬂﬂ.nﬂﬂ (divided into 400,000,000 ehamss, par
walue of ona shara s 40,000 VNI

The total numier of smpioyeas of the Caorporation as at 34 Decamber 2024 s 154 peaple (as al o1
January 2024 was 161 peopie}.

Busingss field: Canstruction
Busingss activities

Main business setivities of the Corparation are construction and instaiiation of industrial and ol
works.

The Corporation's pparation in the year that affects the Consolidated Financial Statements

During the year, fhe Corporation gantmued 10 implement the Thal Binh 2 Tharmal Power Plant
profect with an axpected gross 10ss rate of D.6T% according 1o the decigion of ine Board of
Directors. of Petro\ieinam Construction Joint siock Corparalbon an the temporary approval of the
plan o mptement the EPC Contract of Thal Binh 2 Tharmal Power Plant Project. pdditionalty.
gross profit Auctuated due 1o 2 gignificant reversal of irventory provision 2t PatroVigtnam Matal
Structure  Bnd Machinery |nstallation  Joint Stock Company 8 subsidiary) amounting 1o
approximately WND 254 bilion. AL the same time, this company's grass profit increasad

Petrochamical Complex). Meanwhile, the Corporation's financial expenses decreased sharply due
to the reversal of francial investment provISIans. Addifionalty, general gnd adminisirative axpensas
decreased significantly as the Corporatxn revarsad the provision for outstanding daubiful debis.
Thisa ane the main facipss cantributing to the ;rgnlﬂuanl.ﬂunl.uar'rnns in the operating resulis.

Going concer assumption:

As at 31 December 2024, tha accumutated |oss (code 421) of the Corporation was YND 3,088.41
h!11'|un {as al l:l_*l Januiitﬂﬂzd wasﬂ:&uﬂﬁ.ﬂ pillipn), current liahiities (code 310) at WND 538331

. ng current assets (COGE 1007 at YND 781 85 billion ({as at 01 January 2024 curment
fighllitias was 5 503,17 billion, axceading l:_IJI‘TE'I'II assats YND TBT.77 billion), overdue debts as at 31
Decembar 2024 wera VND 120085 bilkion (as at 01 January 2024 were VND 1.063.22 biflion).

14



PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

WPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Sireet, Hanai

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

2.1

These factors lead to doubis about the Corporation's ability to continue operating. Some financial
stalements of the Corporation's subsidiaries also have material uncertainties that cast doubt an the
ability fo coplinue as a going concern, such as. Petrovietnam Urban Development Joint Stock
Company. Pefroleum Pipefine and Tank Construction Joinl Stock Company, PetroVietnam
Industrial and Civil Construction Joint Stock Company Thai Binh Petroleum Trading and Investment
Joint Stock Company, The going concems of the Corporation and its subsidiaries depends on the
plan to recover debte, restructure investments, complete and finalize works in progress to recover
funds, financial support from shareholders and creditors.

Up io now, the Corporation has had is invesiment restricting plan approved by Vietnam il and
Gas Group. The Corporation is also developing a S-year plan for the period of 2021-2025 and
presenting the development sirategy of the Corporation to the Group for approval. Additionally, tha
Board of General Directors of the Corporation is aggressively implementing other solutions and
believes that these solutions will be successful, enabling the Corporation to continue its normal
busingss operation. Therefore, the Consolidated Financial Stetements are still prepared based on
ihe gaoing concern assumplion

Corporate structure

Tha Corporation has subsidiares that have consolidated financial siatemants as a3l 31 Decembar
2024, including:

Mame of member entibies Addrass Proportion  Proportion  Principal activities
of of vating
ownership _ righis

Thai Binh Petrobzum Trading Thai Binh 72.22% T2.22% Construction, real
and Invesiment Joint Stock estate business and
Compary SEIVICES
::;frl::m E&um;‘ﬂ 'II?E Ria - Vung Construction, real

a au gstate business
Shrocke Joan Sick 87%:  Bo.aTH
Company
Binh Son Petrolaum Quang Mgai Trading real estate,
Emm-:uugu JSC 4862%  5288% ol s

efroleum Dong Do Joint Harioi Real astals husinass

Stock Company el RN and sarvices
Petrovietnam Urban Ca Mau Construction, real
Development Joint Stock 53.44% 53.44% eslale business
Company
Petroleum Industrial and Civl  Ba Ria - Vung Construction, indusirial
Construction Joint Stock Tau 1% 51% production, real astate
Company business
Petroleum Pipelfine and Tank  Ba Ria - Vung Construction, real
Construction Joint Stock Tau 51% 1% estate business
Company

According 1o the assessmant of the Board of Management of the Corparation, although the vating

stake of the Corporation fs less than 50% in Petroleun Deong Do Joint Stock Campany, the

Corporation still has the right to conirol this company through the right to dictale financial policies

and activities, as well a5 assign and evaluate the implementation of the annual business plans,

pravide support in terms of work, construction and instalfation contreocts, markets, and finance.

gﬁ;ﬂﬁ"’ Petroleum Dong Do Joint Stock Company is |dentified as a subsidiary of the
n

ACCOUNTING SYSTEM AND ACCOUNTING POLICY

Accounting period and accounting currency
Annual accounting period commences from 1 January and ends as at 31 December.

The Corporation maintaing ls accounting records in Vistnam Dong (VND).

15
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

WPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Straat, Hanol

For the fiscal year anded as at 31122024

2.2

2.3

2.4

Standards and Applicable Accounting Policies
Applicatie Accounting Policies

The Corporation applies Corporate Accountng System issued under the Circular No, 200/2014/TT-
BTC dated 22 Decambear 2014 by the Ministry of Finance, the Circular No. S3201&TT-BTC dated
21 March 2016 issued by Ministry of Finance amending and supplementing some articles of the
Circular Mo, 200/2014TT-BTC and the Circular No. 2022014/ TT-B8TC dated 22 December 2014 by
the Ministry of Finance guiding the preparafion and presentation of Consolidated Financial
Slatemants.

Declaration of compiiance with Accounling Standards and Accounting System

The Corporation applies Vielnamese Accounting Standards and supplementary documents ssued
by tha State. Financial Staterments are prepared and presented in accordance with regulations of
each standard and supplementary document as well as with current Accounting Standards and
Accounting System

Basis for the preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

Consolidated Financiel Statements are prepared based on consolidating Separate Financial
Staterments of the Corporation and Financial Siaternents of iis subsikliaries under ifs control (the

subsidiaries) as at 31 December annually.

Consisient accounting policles are apphed in Financial Stalements of subsidiares and the
Corporation. If necessary, adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiarkes to
ensure the consistency of application of accounting policies among the Cerporation and iis
subsidianas.

The operating results of subsidiaries scquired or disposed during the yesr are included i the
Consolidated financial statements from the effective date of acquisition or up o the efective date of

disposal,

Balance, main incomes and expenses, including wnrealized profits from infra-group transactions
are eliminated in full from Consolidated financial statements.

Naon - carfrofing inferests
HNaon - confralling interesis represents the portion of profit or loss and net assets not hald by owners,
Accounting estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financsal Statements in conformity with Vielnamese Accounting
Standards, Vietnamese Corporale Accounting System and legal regulations relating to financial
TEporting requires the Board of Management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of liabilities, assets and disclosures of contingent liabilities and assets at the date
of the Consoiidated Financial Statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
digrimg the accounting year.

The estimates and assumplions that have a material impact in the Consolidated Financial
Statements include:

= Provision for bad debts;

- Pravision for devaluation of inventary,

= Provision for payvables;

- Allocation of prepaid axpenses;

= Estimated useful life of fixed assets;

= Classification and provision of financial invesimenis;
«  Estimated income fax,
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Sireet, Hanai

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

2.6

2.7

2.8

Such estimates and assumplions are confinually evaluated. They are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of fulure events that may have a financial
impact on the Corporation's Consolidsted Financial Statements and that are assessed by the
Board of Managemsant o be reasonable under the circumstances,

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are fransiated into Vistnam Dong using the actual
rate at transaction date,

Actual exchange rate when revaluating monelary items denominated in foreign currencies at the
raparting date of Consolidated Financial Statements & determined under the following principies:

- For asset accounts, applying the bid rate of the commercial bank where the Carporaton
regularly conducts transaction,

= For cash depesited in bank, applying the bid rale of the commercial bank where the Corporation
opens its foreign currency accounts,

- For liability accounts, dpplying the offer rate of the commercial bank whers the Corposation
regularly conducts transactions.

All exchange differences ansing as a result of ransactions or revaluation at the balance sheet date
shall be racerded into the financial mcome or expensa in the year,

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand, demand deposits,

Cash aquivalents are shor-term investments with the maturity of not over than 3 months from the
date of investment, that are highly liquid and readily convertible Into known amount of cash and
that are subject to an insignificant risk of conversian into cash.

Business combination and goodwill

All business combinations shall be accounted for by applying the purchase method, The cost of 2
business combination includes the aggregate of the: fair values, atl the date of exchange, of azsals
given, liabilities mcurred or assumed, and equity insirumenis issued by the acquirer, in exchange
for control of the acquiree plus any cosls dimsctly aliributable io the business combination. The
acquires’s identifiable assets, lisbiltes and contingent Rabiktes in business combination are
measured at their fair values at the af the acquisition date.

The goodwill or interest from a cheap purchase is defined as tha difference between the cost of the
business combination and soquirer's interest in the net Talr value of the dentifiable subsidiable
assels at the acquisition date held by Parent Cheap purchase interest (if any) will be recognized in
the consolidated incorme statement. Goodwill is allocated to costs by the straight-line method for an
estimated useful period of 10 years. Periodically the Corparation will assess goodwill losses at the
subsidiary, it there is evidence that the loss of goodwill s greater than the annual aliocaton, the
gdlocation shall be based on the loss of goodwill in the year of arising.

Financial investments

Trading secunties are initially recognized at original cost which includes purchase prices plus any
directly attributable fransaction costs such as brokerage, transaction fee, cost of information
provision, taxes, bank's fees and charges. After Initial recognition, frading securities are measured
al original cosl less provision for diminution in value of trading secunties, Upon liguidation or
transfer, cost of frading securities is determined using welghted average method.

investimeants held fo mafunty comprise term deposits held fo maturity to eam profits periodically and
other held fo maturity investments.

Ienvestments i jawnt veniures and assooiales: Durning the year, the buyer defermines the date of
purchase and the cost of invesiments and implements accounting procedures in accordance with
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the Accounting Standards on "Financial reporting of interest in jeint ventures” and "Accounting for
Invastments in associates”

In the Consolidated Financial Stalements, investments in joint ventures and associsles are
accounted for using equity method, Under this method, the investments are initially recognised at
cos! and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group's share in net assets of
the associate after acquisition date, Goodwill incurred from the Invesiment in the associates is
refiected in the carmying amount of the invesiment in the associate. The Group will not allocate such
goodwill but 2ssess annually 1o determine whether the goodwill is under impaired loss or not.

For the adjustment of the value of investments In joint ventures and associates from the date of
investment 1o the beginning of the reparting year, the Corporation shall:

For the adjustment fo the income stafement of previous years, make an adjusiment fo the
undistributed profit after tax according to net adjusied accumulated amount to the beginning of
the reporting year,

- For the adjustment due to the difference in revaluation of assets and the difference in foreign
exchange rates, recorded in the balance sheet of the previous years: delermine the adjustment
ta the corresponding terms on the Statement of Financial Position according to net accumutated
adjusied amount

For the adjustment of the value of investments in joint ventures and associales arising in the year,
the Carporation shall exclude the prefared dividends of ofther sharehodders {if praferred shares ang
classified as Owner's capital), expected number of deductons for bonus and weifare funds of joint
veniures and assockates; share of profits relsted to transacbons of joint ventures, assoclates
contributing capital or saliing assets to the Corporation before determining the Corporation’s shane
in the profit or loss of the joint venture or associated Corporation during the reporting year. The
Corporation then adjusts the value of the invesiment in proportion to iis share in profits and losses
gtfajuinl ventures and associgies and immediately recognizes it in the Consobidated Income
termant.

Equity investments In other entifles comprise mvestments. in equity instruments of ciher entities
withiout having confrol, joint control, or significant influence on the investes, Thesa investmants ans
Initially stated at orginal cost  After indtial recognibon, these mvestmeans are measured at ongingl
cost less provison for devaluation of investments.

For dividends received in the form of shares, only the number of shares received is recorded
without any Increase in the investiment value and financial Incomse,

FProvision for devailvalion of inveslmants is madse al the end of the year a5 follows:

- Investments in irading securites: provision shall be made on the basis of the excess of original

cost of the investments recorded n the accounting book over their market valus at the provision
date.
Long-term investmenis (other than trading secunties) without significant influence on the
invastea; If the investmant in listed shares or the fair value of the investment is determined
reliably, provisions shall be made on the basis of the market value of tha shares; if the fair value
of the invastment is not detarmined at the reporting date, provision shall be made based on the
Financial Statemenis at the provisaon date of the invesies,

- Investments held o maturity: provision for doubtful debts shall be made based on the recovery
capacity in accordance with statutory regulations.

Receivables

The receivables: shall be recorded in details in terms of due date, enfifies receivable, ypes of
currency and other factors according lo requirements for management of the Corporation, The
recelvables shall be classified info short-ferm receivables or long-ferm receivables on the
consalidated financial statements according o thedr remaining terms at the reporting date.

The provision for doubtful debls is made for receivables that are overdue under an econcmic
contract, & loan agreement, & contractual commitment or a promissory note and for receivables
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that are not due but difficult to be recovered. Accordingly, the provisions for overdue debts shall be
based on the due date sbpulaited In the initial sale contract, exclusive of the debt rescheduling
between contracting parties and the case where the debis are not due but the debfor is in
benkrupicy, in dissolution, or mizsing and making fleeing or estimating possible losses.

210 Inventories
Inventorses are initially recognized at onginal cost including purchase price, processing cost and
other costs incurred in bringing the inveniories o their location and condition at the bme of initial
recognition. After initlal recognition, at the reporting date, inveniories are stated at the lower of cost
and nef realizable value,
Met realizable value 5 estimated based on the selling price of the inventory minus the estimated
costs for completing the products and the estimated costs needed for their consumption,
The cost of inventory is calculated wsing weighted average method.
Inventory is recorded by perpetual method
Method for vaiuation of work in process af the end of the year: the value of work in progress is
recorded for each construction progact which is incomplets or revenue s unmecognisad,
cornesponding ta the amaount of work in progress at the end of the year
Provision for devaluation of inveniories made at the end of the year is based on the excess of
original cost of iInventory over their nel realizable value.
2.11 Fixed assets
Fized asseis (tangible and intangible) are initially stated at the historical cosl During the using
time, fixed assets (tangible and intangible) are recorded at cost accumulated depreciation and
carrying amount
Subseguent measurement after initial recognifion
If these costs aument future economic benefits obtained from the use of tangible fixed assels are
extended to their mitlal standards conditions, these costs are capitalimed as an incremental in their
hisioncal cost
Other cosis incwrred afier fangible fixed assets have been put into cperation such as reparr,
matntenance and overhaul costs are réecognized in the [(Separate) Statement of income in the
peried In which the costs ara incurred,
Fixed azsets are depreciated using the siraight-iing method over their estimaeted useful ves as
follows:
- Buildings and structures b - 48 years
= Machinery, equipment 3~ 15 years
« Wehicles, transportation equipment 4 - 10 years
- Office equipment 3 = 10 years
- Land use rights According to the land lease term
- Computer software 3 -5 years
2.12 Investment properties

Investment properties are initially recognised at histoncal cost

Investment properties held for capital appreciation prior to 01 January 2015 are depreciated on 8
siraight-line basis similar to-other fixed assets, bul from 01 January 2015 are not depraciated.
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214

215
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Investment preperies held for operating lease are recorded af cost, accumulated depreciation and
carrying amount. Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method with
expected useful life as follows:

- Buidings, structures 25 - 38 years

An Hem of owner-occupied property or inventories only becomes an investment property when ks
using purposed has been changed, evidenced by commencement of stopping wsing that item and
stariing 1o operate leaging for the third party o complating the construction parod. The mvestment
property is fransferred fo owner-occupied property of inventories only where it undergoes a change
in use, avidenced by commencement of starting using the assets by owner or development with a
view o sale. The transferming from investment property o owner-oocupied propeny or inveniones
will not change the ariginal cosl and carrying amoeunt of asset as at the date of transfer,

Construction in progress

Construction in progress includes fixed assels which s being purchased and constructed as at the
balance sheset date and Is recognised im historical cost This includes costs of construchion,
installation of eguipment and ather dirsct costs

Operating lease

Operating leases is fived asset leasing in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership ame retained by the lessor. Payments made under operating leases are charged to
Statement of Income on & siraighi-line basks over the period of the lease.

Business Cooperation Contract (BCC)

Business Cooperation Contract (BCC) is a confractual agreement between hwo of mare venturers
with the objectives of cooperating to carry out specific business aclivities without constitution of a
new legal antity. This oparation may be jointly contralled by venturers under BCC or controlled by
ane of them.

In case of recalving money or assets from other antities in the BOC, they should be recorded as
payables. In case of contributing money or assets to BCC, they should be recorded as receivables
During the process of operating BOC, BCC In the form of jointly confrolled operations, the
accounting methods are adopted as foliows:

All parties i the joint venture shall simultaneously do the bookkesping in their own accounting
system and present in its Financial Statements with tha foliowing items.

Assets contributed by it and controlled by the joint ventuns,
- iz share of liabilities meurned;

Itz share of income from the sale of goods or rendering of services by the joint venture;
- Iis share of axpenses ncurred.

All parties shall share revenue from the sale of goods or rendering of services and share [oint
expenses according fo the BOC's agreaments.

Prepaid expenses

The expenses incurred but related o operating results of several accounting penods are recorded
as prepaid expenses and are allocated to the operating results in the fallowing accounting pericds.

The calcuiation and allocation of long-term prepad expenses to operating expenses in each
acoounting period should be based on the nature of those expenses to select a reasonable
allocation method and criteria

Types of prepaid expenses include,

Prepaid land expenses include prepaid land rental, including those related to lessed and for which
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2.18

2.19

2.20

2.21

the Company has received cerificate of land use right but not eligible for recording as intangible
fixed asset in accordance with the Circular No, 452013TT-BTC dated 25 April 2013 issued by the
Ministry of Finance guiding regulation on management, use and depreciation of fixed assets and
other expenses related 1o ensure for the use of leased land. These expanses are recognized in the
consalideied statement of income on a straight-line basis according o fhe lease term of the
contract,

Tooks and supplies include assets which are possessed by the Company in an ordinary course of
business, with historical cost of each assel less than 30 million dongs and therefore not eligible for
recording as fixed asset under current legal regulations. The historical cost of fools and supplies
are allocated on the straight-line basis from 01 to 03 years

Office rent represents the amount of prepald rent amoriized (o the consolidated statement of
income on & straight-ine basis over the lease lerm.

Expenses for leasing Sa20 Mai Ben Dinh por facility are allocated o the income stalement dufing
the lease pericd {48 years) from 16 Septambar 2010,

Payables

Thia payables shall be recorded in details in terms of due date, entities payable, types of currency
and other factors according o the requirements for management of the Corporation. The payebles
shall ba classified into short-term payables or long-term payvables on the consoidated financial
statements according o their remaining lerms at the reporiing date

Borrowings and finance lease Habllities

The value of finance lease habiltbes 15 recognized al the payvable amount equal o the present valus
of minimum lease paymenis or the fair value of leased assats.

Borrowings and finance [2asa fiabilities shall be recorded in detsils in tarms of lending anlites, loan
agreament and terms of borrowings and finance lease kabilities, In case of bormowings or kabilites
denominated in foreign curmency, they shall ba recorded in details in terms of types of currency.

Borrowing costs

Bormowing costs are recognized as operating expenses in the year, m which it is incurred excapting
those which are directly atiributable to the construction or production of a gqualifying asset ang
capitalized as part of the cost of that asset in accordance with VAS Mo, 18 "Bormowing costs’
Besides, regarding borrowings serving the construction of fixed assets and investment propemes.
the interests shall be capltalized even when the construction duralion is under 12 months

Accruad expenses

Accrued axpenses include payables o goods or services received from the suppliers or provided
for the customers during the repaorting period, but the payments for such goods or services have
nol been made and other payables such as annual leave salary, expenses arising from seascnal
cessation of production, interest expenses, etc, which are recordad as operating expenses of the
reporting period,

The recording of accrued expanses as operating expenses during the period shall be carried cut
under the maiching principle between revenues and expenses during the period, Accrued

expanses are soltied with aclual expenses incurmed, The difference between accrued and actual
expenses s reveried

Provision for payables
Prowision for payables is anly recognized when meeting all of the following conditions:

- The Corporation has @ present debt obdigation (legal cblgaton or joint obligation) as a result of
past events,
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2.22

£.23

2.24

- |{ is probable that the decrease in economioc bensfits may lzad to the requirement for debt
setilemeant,
Debt obligation can be estimated relisbly

Value recorded as a provision for payables is the most reasonably estimated amount required to
settie the curreni debt obdigation at the end of the accounting year.

Only expenses ralated to the previously recarded provision for payables shall be offset by (hat
provision for payables.

Provisions for payables are recorded a8s operafing expenses of the accounting year. In case
provision made for the previous accounting year but not used up exceads the ane made for the
current accounting vear, the difference is recorded a5 a decrease in operaling expenses. The
excess of the provision for pavables redating to construction warranty is recorded as ather incoma
In the fiscal year,

Unearned revenues

Unearned revenues include prepayments from customers for one or many accounting penods
relating o asset leasing,

Lineamed revenues are transfermed to revenue from sale of goods and rendaring of services with
the amount coresponding to each accounting period,

Owner's equity
Dwner's equity is slated at aclually confributed capital of owners

Share premium |8 recorded al the difference between the par value with costs directly attributable
to the issuance of shares and issue price of shares (including the case of re-issuing treasury
shares) and can be a positive premium (if the ssue prce s higher than par value and costs directy
attributable to the |ssuance of shares) or negative premium (if the issue price is lower than par
value and costs direcily attributable to the Bsuance of shases),

Other capital is the operating capital formed from the operating résults or from gifis, presents,
financing, assets revaluabion (if these items are allowed to be recorded a5 & decrease of Increase
in the owner's equity),

Treasury shares bought before the effactive date of the Secuntes Law 2019 (January 1, 2021) are
shares issued by the Company and bought-back by itself, but these are not cancefied and may be
re-issued subsequently in accordance with the Law on Securities. Treasury shares bought after
January 1, 2021 will be cancelied and adjusted io reduce equity

Retained eamings are used to present the Corporabion's operating results (profil, loss) after
corporate income tax and profit appropriation or loss handling of the Corporation,

Dividends to be paid to shareholders are recognised as a payable in Statement of Financial
position after the announcament of dividend payment from the Board of Management and
annaouncemént of cut-off date for dividend payment of Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing

Corparatian
Revenue

Revenue s recognized 1o axtent that it i3 probable that the economic benefils will flow to the

Corporation and the revenue can be reliably measures regardiess of when payment is being made.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebatas,

and sales returns. The fallowing specific recognition conditions must also be mel when recognizing
revenue.
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2.26

2.26

2.27

Revanue from construclion caonlracks

= In case the construcion coniract stipulstes that the confracior & paid according to the value of
Iha volume performed, when the results of construchon contract performance are reliably
determined and confirmed by the customer, then revenue, Confract-related costs are recorded
in propartion to the completed work confirmed by the customer during the year reflacted in the
involces issued

Fevenue from rendening of services

= The percentage of completion of the transaction at the Balance sheet date can be measured
reliably,

Finanpial Incomes

Financial incomes include income from assels yelding inferest, royalties, dividends and other
financial gains by the Corporation shall be recognised when the two conditions are satisfied:

It is probable that the economic benefits from the transacton will flow to the Carporation,
The amount of the revenue can be measured rellabky

Dividend income shall be recognised when the Corporafion’s nghl Io receive dividend is
establshed,

Cost of goods sold and serviced rendered

Cost of goods sold and services rendered are cost of finished goods, merchandises, materials sald
or services renderad during the year, and recorded on the basis of matching with revenue andon g
prudence basis. Cases of loss of materials and goods exceeded the norm, Iabour cost and fixed
manufacturing overheads not allocated o the value of inventory, provision for devaluation of
inventary, abnormal expensss and losses of inventories afler deducting the responsibility of
collective and individuals concarned, etc. is recognized fully and promptly info cost of goods sold in
the year even when products and goods have not been determined as sold.

Financial exponses

ltems recarded into financial expenses comprise:

- Expenses or losses relaling 1o financaal investment activities;

- Barrawing cosis,

= Losses from the disposal and franster of short-term securnities, fransaction cost of selling
securities,

= Provision for diminution in value of trading securities price, pravision for losses from investment
in other entities, losses from sale of foreign currency, exchange loss, eic

The above tems are recorded by the lotal amount ansing in the year without offsetting against
financial incoma.

Corporabe income tax
Current corporate income tax expenses and deferred corporalfe incame fax pxpenses

Current corporate income tax expenses are defermined based on taxable income during the year
and current corporate income @y rabe.

Deferred corporate income fex expenses are defermined based on deductible temporary
diffarences, the laxable temporary differences and corporate income fax rate,

Currenl corporate income {ax expenses and deferred corporate incoma tax expanses are not offsst
apainst each other.
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2.28

2.30

Current corporale income fax rale

The Corporation apples the corporate income tax rate of 20% for the operating activities which has
taxable income for the fiscal year ended as al 37 December 2024

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing nel profit or loss after fax for the year
attnbutable to ordinary shareholders of the Corporation (after adjusting for the bonus and weifare
furnd 2nd allowance for Board of Managemant) by the welghled average number of ordinary shares
outstamding during the year

Related Parties

The parties are regarded as relaled parties il thal party has the sbility to control or significantly
influence the other pary in making decisions about the financal palicies and activities. The
Corporation's related parbes incliede:

Companies, directly or indirectly through one of more inlermediares, kaving control over the
Carporation or baing under the control of the Corporation, or being under common canfrol with
the Corporation, including the Corporation’s parent, subsidiaries and associates;

- Individuals, directly or indirectly, holding voling power of the Corporation that hawve a significant
influence an the Corporation, key management personnel including directors and employvess of
the Corporation, the close family members of these individuals;

Enterprises that the above-mentioned individuals directly or indirectly hold an important part of
the voting power or have significant influence on these enterprises

In considering the relaticnship of related paries to serve for the preparation and presentstion qf
Censolidated Financial Statements, the Corporstion should consider the nature of the refationship
rather than the legal form of the relationship.

Segment information

As the Corparation operates mainly in the field of construction and installation in the terilory of
Vieinam, the Corporation does nol prepare segment reporls by business sagment and

gecgraphical segmani

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31H22024 01112024
WHD WND
Cash on hand 5.238.205,288 4222871623
Demand deposits 250,553,325 788 244 844 247 T00
Vietnam Public Jaint Stock Commercial Bank 13,878 111,303 236,483, 571
-  Modem Bank of Vietnam Limited (formearly Ooaan 2,254 370 504 2.156,731,548
Commercial Bank Limited - OcpanBank)
- Dthers 234,320 843 084 242 451 052 581
Cash equivaients (i) 177 682,602 918 66 462 BE4 389
- Vietmam Public Joint Stock Commarcial Barnk 4, 200,000, 000 7,500, 000, 000
« thers 173 488 682 918 58 962 BE4, 389
433.474,223.9%4 315.530!! HIHE
in which: Balance with related parties
Vietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial Bank 18,178,111,303 7,736,462,571
- Demand deposils 13,878, 711,3403 236, 463,571
- Cash equivalenis 4 200 000,000 7 500,000,000
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i) At 31 December 2024, the cash equivalents are deposits with term of from 07 to 03 months with
the amount of YND 177 608 842,529 at commercial banks at the interest rate from 3.8%/vear to 4.5

Sohvear.
FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

Held to maturity investments

31/12/2024 01/0172024
Origenal cost _ Provision Original cost _ Provision
VND VND VHD WHD
Short-term investmants
Term deposits (i) 253,490,325, 478 - 310,112,548,041
= Vigtnam Fublic Joint Stock 35, 780,000,000 - 43,773 589,041
Commarcial Bamk
- Modem Bank of Vietnam Limied 45 316,000,000 - 45316000000
formeny Deean Commercial
Bank Limifed - OceanSank)
- Dithars 172 304 326,478 - 221022960000
253,490,326.476 = 310,112,548.041 -
In which: Balance with related parties
Vietnam Public Joirt Stock 35,780.000,000 - 43,773 568 041 -
Commercial Bank

(i} At 31 Decamber 2024, the shor-term investments are deposits with terms from over 3 months to
legs than 12 mentha with the amount of WND 253,490,326 478 at commercial banks at the Intarest
rate from 5.4 %alyear to 7.3 Yelyear.

In which:

Deposits at Bank for Investment and Development of Vietnam (BIDV) - Ha Deng Branch with a
value of VND 153,794,326, 478 is being pledged for loans at the bank {Detailad in Note 24},

The fterm deposit of YHND 453 bilon deposited al Ocean Commercial One
Member Limited Liability Bank - Vung Tau Branch is temporarily suspending transactions urndar
the direction of the State Bank of Vistnam This amount will be paid when there is direction from
the Governmeant and the State Bank. Therefore, the Beard of General Directors of the
Corporation assesses that the above deposits are stll recoverable, have no sk of loss and
accordingly, no (05 provisson & requinred,

Trading securities
Jnz2024 0140172024
Qriginal cost Provision _ Original cost Provision
WD VND VND VD
Shares

- Pefroleum Internal and  14,600,000,000 (13,685,000,000) 14,600,000,000 {13,885 .000,000)
External Eguipment
Jaint Stock Comparny

- Others 200,000,000 - 300,000,000

-14,800,000,000 (13.885.000,000) _14.500,000,000 (13,885,000.000)

The Caorporation has not determined the far value of financial investments since Vielnamese
Accounting Standards and Vieinamese Corporale Accounting Sysiem have not had any detailed
guidance on the determination of the: fair value,
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements
VP| Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi Faor the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

[*] The mvestment value in Peiro Kinh Bac Investing and Construction Joint Stock Company ("PYVC

Kinh Bac™} = WND 23,5 billion, consigting of 2 parts

- An amount of VND 2.5 billlon, representing confributed capital generated befors 2010
accounts for 5% of PVE Kinh Bac's charter capital at that ttme, which was WND 50 hallion;

- An amount of VMD 21 bilion, generated in 2010 from offsetiing debis agains! the amount
advanced by the Corporation o PV Kinh Bac for construction confracts, when PVC Kinh
Bac's charter capital was VWD 150 bilion. This amount was determined io have been used
by PVC Kinh Bac to purchase 3400 m? of land at plot No. 08, Map sheet No. 20, Hamiet 1,
Tam Dao town, Tam Dao district. Vinh Phuc province ("land lot in Tam Dac®), Subsequently,
PYC Kinh Bac transferred the land to Mai Phuong Investment Company Limited ("Mai
Phuang™), which currently hoids the title deed for the mantioned land plot.

The verdict No. 41271202 VHSPT dated 29 Sepiembar 2021 concluded:

- The incident of advancing funds to PYC Kinh Bac was against regulafions, therefore, the
tand hot in Tam Dao must be returned 1o the Corporation,

- The Corporation's capital confribution ratio at PVC Kinh Bac will be resolved by the relevant
perties themselves. If required, it will be addressed in separate civil litigakion.

On 1 June 2022, the Director of the Civil Judgment Enforcement Departmant of Hanoi issued
Drecision No. 805/Q0-CTHSDS to execuie the aforementioned judgmeant.

On 25 Seplember 2024, the Company recaived the transfer of the fand use rights for 3,400 m*
of land at Plot No. 06, Map Sheet No. 20, Hamiet 1, Tam Dao Town, Tam Dao District, Vinh
Phue Prevince, from Mai Phuong Investment Company Limusted.

At date of this Consofidated financial staiement, the Corporation is in the process of complating
the procedures to transfer the ownership of the Tam Dao land fo the Corporation and is working
with PVC Kinh Bac fo reassess the capilal confribution rafio, Given the events that occurred in
2024, the Corporation has assessed that the YND 21 billion capital contribution to Kinh Bac no
longer shows signs of impairment and has therefore fully reversed the provision for this
mvestment,

Investments in other entities;

Deetailed information of long-term investments in other companies of the Company as of 31
December 2024 is as follows:

-L”b.

- iy
—

s

Name of invesies Place of Rata of Fate of Principal aclivities
establishment  interest  wioling rights
and oparation
Ha Long Cement Josnt Stock  Quang Ninh 7:58% 7-58% Manufaciure of
Campany canstruction materials
Petra Kinh Bac Investing And  Bac Ninh 15.687% 1567%  Construction
Construction  Joint  Siock
Company
Vietnam Port and Infrastruction Hanol 2.50% 2.50% Construction
Construction Investment Joint
Stock Company
Truong Son Investment Group  Quang Bink 3.89% 3.99% Consfruction
Jaint Stock Company
MWumber 2 Petrovietnam Wam Dink 5.00% 5.00% Canstruction
Construction Joint Stock
Company
Petro Wistnam Buiding Hanal 10.00% 10.00%  Construction
tatedais and Constructon
Joint Stock Company 4
Petrovietnam investment and Hanaol 7.25% 7.25% Construction
consiruction - 35 Jain Stock
Company
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hancd

For the fiscal year ended as at 3171272024

1

b}

INVENTORIES
1122024 0101/2024
Qriginal cost Proyision Qriginal cost Pravision
WD WHND YHD YHND
Faw materals 64685655338 (3,169,300 408) E.281458. 734 (3,249,102 270)
Tools, supplies 4.920,178,637 (641,839 651) 5,316,250 080 (126,522 432)
Work in progress (i) 1,867,032, 182,874 (104,607 633,381) 2.000,581,148.008 (126,643 454 088)
Goods (i) 59400 887 454 (11,410,534 208) 61,546 649 442  (15,196,626,123)

1&3?'!515&&“ iﬂﬂiﬂ'IBiTH?IHBl kﬂ?!iﬁlﬁi?'l]iim i'ﬂﬁ;iﬁ!igﬂﬂ-!

{1 Detailed information of work in progress is as follows:

311122024 01/01/2024

VND VND

Thai Bmh 2 Thermal Power Piant 1,400,422 457 55T 1,465 587 845,158
Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant {*) 245 057 BEB 468 245,057 BGE 468
Apariment 334, stresl 3004, Vung Tau city (™) 32,986,554 500 32,886,584 500
Song Hau 1 Thermal Power Plam 109,132 879,549 108,261,716,8655
Others 79,432 382 800 147 687,123,224

1,867 182 874 z£m|m1i1ﬂ£m

i(*) The Corporatson is a sub-contractor of the EPC general contracior of these constructions. As
presented in Note 38 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, because of changing
in design and unit price, the Corporation i requesting the Owner, General Contractor and
competent authorities to consider this provision adjustment to the unexpired value of the Vung Ang
1 Thermal Power Plant Project Tha Consolidated Financial Statements does not include any
adjustments that may be related to this matter

(**} This is the remaining work-in-progress cost of the construction item under the Commercial,
Searvice, Office, and Aparimant Complex project at 334, 300 Street, Ward 9, Vung Teu City, Ba
Ria - Vung Tau Province. The project was compieted and put into use in 2018, however, iis final
ceiflemant has not yet been approved,

{il) The value of inventary at 01 Janvary 2024 and 31 December 2024 including apariments from
the Thal Binh Petroleum Hotel Apartment with a value of VND 38,302,881,834 owned by Thal Binh
Petroleum Trading and Investment Jaoint Stock Company. The Corporation has not assessed the
decling in value nor estimated the net realizable value of these properties and has decided not to
make a provision for the comesponding inventory impairmeant.

PREPAID EXPENSES
2024 Q1012024
WHD WMND
Short-term
Dispatched fools and supplies 2 735,278,368 591,587,048
Others 703,885,758 1,546 812,017
3.443,165,122 213 8,066
Long - term
Infrastructure rental at Sao Mai Ben Dinh port T7.108,0086,166 B0 035,871,604
Office rental 5472 381,608 6,777 404 290
Digpatched tools and supplies 11,280,062,911 11.812, 380,753
Property repair costs 5,680,032,3563 6,490,156 446
Othems T34 225128 6.506,021,273

100,284,708, 167 111!521 g%ﬂﬂ

i/l =
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PotroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financlal Statements

13

For thie fiscal year ended as-at 3171212024

et oL, Bt

INTANGIBELE FIXED ASSETS

Land use rights (i} Manager software Total

YND VHD VND

Historical cost
Beginning balance 2682 53t 586 520 21457 212 382 284 392 878 802
Ending balance of the year 262.931,666,520 21.461,212,382 _ 284,382 878,902
Accumulated depreciation
Beginning balance 6,515,034 707 18 B&E B62 255 26,181,886,962
- Depracabion in the year 413, 553 608 583 306 664 975,075.272
- Other decrease (440, 700,000) - (440, 700,000}
Ending balance of the year §,458.003,315 20,230.168,919 268 718,172.234
MNet carrying amount
Beginning balance __ 256,416,831 813 1,754, 350127 _ 258,210,881,840
Ending balance EEE&!HEJ!IES 1 %1 %4&3 257 674,706

Cost of fully amoriized intangible fixed assels but still in use at 31 December 2024 was WD—-:.

18,571,252 382 {(as at 01 January 2024 was VND 18,571,292 382) {1

| 5 .
(i) Including the walue of land use rights at land plot No. 04, map shest No. 10, ocated at No oz

Mguyen Huu Canh, Thang Nhat ward, Yung Tau city, Ba Ria-Vung Tau province, owned
Petrodeum Equipment Assembly & Metal Strecture Joint Stock Compamy. The People's
Committes of Ba Ria Vung Tau province granted the land use rights certificats on 28 July 2008
with an originagl cost of VND 15,168, 470,000, The carying amount as at 31 December 2024 was
VND 8578 458 BA5,

Thizs land plo! was investad in the construction of the Mix-use complex high-rise residental and
office buildings which was handed over for use in 20014, On 24 August 2017, this land plot was
reclaimed by the Department of Natural Resources and Environment of Ba Ria - Vung Tau
provincs to issue a new cerlificale for the properties on the land, which include the apariment
units and office biocks, According to the Certificate of Land Lise Rights Mo, BX 8202580 and the
Certificate of Application No, 0D00033.TS, the Corporation has the right 1o use land, own
residental buildings, and other essets attached fo the land, including fioars 1 through 5, and the
roofiop technical flicor of the Mix-use Complex at tand plotl Na. 02 Nguyen Huu Canh street,
Thang Nhat ward, Vung Tau city, Ba Ria - Vung Tau province.

The asset value i the above-mentioned office space area, which is being presented by the

Corporation as tangible fived assels with a value of VHND 15,166 470,000 and invesiment real
estate with a value of VND 17,530,380,045,

38



PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VP| Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

For the fiscal year andad as at 317122024

14

15

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES HELD FOR LEASE

Buildings Total
YND VND

Historical cost
Beginning batance 101,148.268,217 101,148,289,217
=  Purchasa in the vear 20,379 043,182 20,370,043, 182
= Chher adiustments 734293717 34,283 717
- Reclassification 521 844 B37 591,844 837
- Decrease due to reclassification io inventory (11,785,626 765) __ (11,785 626 765)

Ending balance of the year 111,067 B44. 188 111,067.844, 188

Accumulated depreciation

Beginning balanca 23,182 506,848 23,182,508, 848
- Deprecistion in the year 2,185,280, 762 2,185 280,762
- Othar adjustmenis 272831 032 272,831,052
- Other reclassificaton 228,110,451 228,110,451
- Decreasa due o reclassification to inventory {308,875,090) {308,875,090)
Ending balance of the year 25,559,856,003 25,559,856,003
Het carrying amount

Beginning balance 77,965 780,368 77,965,780, 368
Ending balance 85,507,988 185 85,507,988,185

Carrying amount of investment properties pledged as collsterals for borrowings as st 31 December
2024 was VND 54 5565 800 473 (as at 01 January 2024 was VND 55,737 815,519).

Falr value of investment properties has nol been appraised and determined exacty as at 31
December 2024. However, based on leasing actwvities and market prices of these asseis, the
Board of General Directors believes that the fair value of investment properties is higher than their
camying amount on the books at the end of fiscal year

LONG-TERM ASSET IN PROGRESS

I 22024 00152024
Original cost Recoverabla Criginal cost Recoverable
value value
VD WD WHD WHD
Long-term work in progress
- Cuang Trach 1 25781 820546 12890810273 257B1B20.546 12890910273
Thermal Power
Plant Project (1)
- Dinh Wu Paolyasier 25,758 325 312 9162 308, BB0 25759325212 0,162, 306,850
Plant Project

- Long Phu Thermal 12,180,083 636 800,000,000 12,180,083 636 BO0, 000,000
Fower Operation
Centar

- {thars 7,822 605,745 2,210,955 386 T.522 605 745 2,210,806 386

71643835139 _ 25064,213,538 71,643 835,138  25064,211.539

(i) Accodding to OMficial Latter Mo, 18287 Tg-KTM dated 15 October 2016 of the Prima Minister on
certain changeas relating to thermal power projects under management of Guang Trach and Quynh
Lap Power Centres, \ietnam Electricity Group will replace Vietnam Oil and Gas Group as the
investor of the Quang Trach 1 Thermal Power Plant Project. As of the date of preparing these
Consolidated Financial Staterments, the Corporation is stil in the process of working with involving
parties to finalize and settle the expenses incurred by the Corporation in the construction of this

propect.

oy
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

WP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanci

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

b

Construction in progress

I R2024 g1/01/2024

YND WVHD

Purchasa 147,550,832 -
=  Procurement of fixed assets 147, 550,532 .
Construction in progress 113,303,806,575 111,661,268,283
= Soal Rap Petroleum Sarvice Industrial Zone Project 103,182 528,261 103,182,526, 261

in Tien Giang (i)

- Petra Vistnam University Urban Area (i0) 3,883 D84 385 3,883,284 885
- Tien Giang Petroleum Indusirial Zone Project (i) 1,835,100 823 1.835,100,923
= thers (i) 4402, 154 406 2,759 656,114

113,451 357 407 111,661,268, 283

(i) Thig is the construction in progress of Soal Rap - Tien Giang Pefroleum Service Indusirial Park
Project (referred fo &s “the project”) which the Corporation inherited and became the investor from
Vietnam Oil And Gas Group (PYN} according to Decision Mo TOBSQD-DEVN dated 12 August
2010 of the Board of Members of PWN

On 22 August 2016, the Ministry of Finance issued Document No. T1704/BTC-TCON to the
Peaple’s Committee of Tien Giang Province and PN to provide the specific instructions on the
transfer of the above project from PVN 1o the People’s Gommittee of Tien Giang Province.

According to the minutes No. 1421/BB-SKHADT dated 31 July 2017 between the Project
Acceptance Team and the Pepple’s Commities of Tien Giang Province, it was agreed o recognize
tha projact value during the pericd of implementatian by the Cosporation as VND 143 béllon.

On 01 October 2018, the Corporation signed & minutes of liquidaton of the land lzase contract with
the Department of Natural Resources and Environment of Ten Glang provincs, handing over the
land and the assets aitached to the kand to this agency

on 28 February 2019, the Governmanl Office imsued Documant No, 1830VPCP-CN directing the
Ministry of Planning and Investment, the Minisiry of Justice, the Ministry of Natural Resources and
Environment, the Minstry of Industry and Trade, the Commities for Management of State Capital at
Enterprises fo Instruct the People's Committee of Tien Gieng province and the project investor io
sefile the incurred expenses for the project mvestor due to the recovery of project land, ensuring
compliance with the provisions of law, preventing the loss of stale assels and safeguarding the
rights and interests of the project investor.

Through many directives from the Government, the relevant ministries have yet to come up with an
official plan 1o resolve and guide the reimbursement of the expenses invesied by the Corporation in
the Soai Rap Oil and Gas Indusinal Park project in Tien Giang provinca

On 28 March 2021, the Corporalion issued Document No, 4280XLDK-KHDTETCC requesting to
continue s mile as the Investor of Soal Rap Petroleum Sarvice Indusirial Park Project in Then
iang Provincs,

On 06 August 2021, the Ministry of Planmng and Investment continued 1o send Documant No.
S183/BEHOT-QLEKT proposing ihat the Prime Minister instructs the Peopla's Committee of Tlen
Giang Province to conclusively resolve all issues refated to the Project in 2021 In accordance with
the taw and regulations

On 15 February 2022, the Government Office |ssued Document No. 884NVPLP-CN announcing the
specific directfive of Deputy Prime Minister Le Van Thanh, assigning fhe Ministry of Natural
Resources and Emvironmeant to have specific opinions on the compliance with legal procedures and
pravisions of the Law on land recovery process for the project of the Paopla's Committes of Tien
Giang provines, This will serve as a basis for considerng whether the Corporation is entithed bo
compensatan for assets on the project land,

As at the preparation date of these Consolidated Financial Statemants, the project ransfer process
has not yet been completed. The Board of General Directors of the Corporation belleves thal the
Corporabion will fully recover the expenses incurmed or be entrusted with the project for further
implemeantation.

(i} The Projects that have been suspended for several years have nol been assessed by the
Board of Management for their potential future economac benefits.
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements
WP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Strest, Hanai For the fiscal year endad as at 3171272024

18 LONG-TERM OTHER ASSETS

- =R R - T G E = e g 00 & O . N = GE aE e

J11202024 014012024

VHD WMD

Contributian to the investment of the Dolphin Plaza 26,233,304 440 27,233,304 440
Project (i)

Contribution to Long Son Riverside project (ii) 12 BS7.200,000 12,897,200,000

3810504840 80130504440

{i) The investment under the Business Cooperation Contract No, 0211/2010HDHTKD dated 2

Novemnber 2010 signed betwean Dong Do Petroleum Joint Stock Company (PVC-Dong Do - a

subsidiary of the Carporation), Joint Stock Company Investment and Financial Cansulling of Qil

and Gas Vietnam and TID Joint Stock Company (“TIO")

- Investment purpose: Consfruction of the Dolphin Plaza project at 28 Tran Binh Strest, My Dinh,
Tu Liem, Hanoi,

- Total contract valye: VND 268 706,631,405, Including a land use right contribution of WND
188,753, 800,000 and a cash confribution of WND 79,033,520,990;

- Capital contribution structure; As per the contract commitment, PVC-Dong Do was 1o contribute
WND 51,054, 258 967, consisting of VND 36 060,822,000 from the land use night advantage and
VND 14,893 437 867 in cash, equivalent to 19% of the cash confribution to the prosect. On 18
January 2015, PVC-Dong Do signed Appendix No. 03 to Business Cooperation Contract No.
02112010 HDHTED with TID to withdraw a portion of its capital contribution, amounting to WVND
13,853,720,233. This reduced its remaining cash coninbution ratio to 1.6%, leaving a total capital
contribubion of WND 37100539734 in the project PVC-Dang Do is enfitled to 1.8% of the
prajecl’s business profit;

- Contract payment and settlemant

@ PVC-Dong Do acquired 154 m* of the commercial senice area valued at VND 3,527 582 875
frem TID under Appendic Moo 04 of the Commercial Sarvice Area Transfer Confract Mo,
DPHINTID-PVFC Land, signed on 18 Janugry 2017, This amount was settlad through debt
offsefting with the initial business cooperation contract (from the previously mentioned capitsl
withdrawal of VND 13,953, 720,233, with an acluai cash receipt of VND 10,426,037 558).

% On 23 December 2022, PYC-Dong Do received three apartments with 8 total value of WND
9,867 235294 according to the payment obligation settlement agreements Mo, 5010-
A2022/00-HP-TID, 5000-32022/D0D-HP-TID, and 4990-1/2022/00-HP-TID, dated 23
Drecember 2022, The value of these three apartments was satied throwgh debt offsetting with
the initial business cooperation contract,

< On 16 January 2024 and 05 February 2024, PVC-Dong Do recewed VND 500 000,000 par
fransaction.

< On 20 January 2025, PVC-Dong Do and TID signed a debt offset agreement regarding an
amount payabile to suppliers of WVND 7,566,201 080,

“«0On 21 January 2025, PAVC-Dong Do and TID signed the business cooperation contract
liquidabion agreement. Under this agreement, TID refunded PVC-Dong Do the remaining funds
contributed to participate in the project and the remaining capital contribution for project
implementation, totaling VND 18.667,103,593, after offsetting the VND 7,566,201,080 debt on
20 January 2025 (as mentioned abowval,

(i} The capital contribution under Business Cooperation Contract No. 202010VBCC/HKT-PIVLS-

PETROLAND-PVFC LAND dated 08 June 2010

- Participants, contribution ratio, form, and schedule; The participating parties include IDICC Long
Son Investment Joint Stock Company {IDICO Long Son), Khang Thong Construction Trading
Sefvice Joint Stock Company (Khang Thong), and Petroleum Industrial and Civil Construction
Joint Stock Company (PVCAC. - a subsidiary of the Corporation), with respective capital
confribution ratios of 85%, 5%, and 10%.

- Purpose of business cooperation; Joint invesiment in and management of the “Long Son
Riverside Apartment” project located at 1351 Huynh Tan Phat Street, Phu Thuan Ward, District 7,
Ha Chi Minh City

- Cooperation detads: Business actwibes include the sale and leasing of apartment wnits,
commercial cenler spaces; and other asseis formed during the invesiment, operation, and
business process of the project.

- Prefit-sharing method. The parlies share profits, bear losses, and assume business risks based
on the business performance of the Operator (IDHCO Long Son) and in proportion to their capital
contribution ratio,
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

WP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanol

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

18

{i) The amount that Thal Binh Petroleum Trading and Investment Jeint Stock Company (PVC Thal
Binh - a subsidiary of the Corporation) transferred to PVEP regarding PVC Thai Binh's acceptance
of transfer of the Thal Binh Petroleum Hotal Invastmant from PYEP (Defailed in Mote 39),

{ii} On 25 January 2024, DL E&C Co., Ltd submitted a Staterment of Claim o the Vieinam
Internafional  Arbitration Center (VIAC), initiating a dispute relafed to EPS Confract Mo,
ANHOET2H2PVC-50C dated 22 May 2012, between the Corporation (the main contracior) and
DL EAC Co., Lid (the subconfractor].

The subcontractor has requesied the Arbitral Tribunal to review and decide on the following
matters. the conditions for granting the Operational Acceptance Cerfificate (completion certificate)
for the work performed under the confract have been satisfied; the wamanly pericd for the
equipment and services provided by the subcontractor has ended, the Carporation must setlle the
overdue debts amounting o USD 7,67 million and WND 287.3 million; the Corporation must refund
the performanece depasit for the EPS Contract. totaling USD 13,4 million and WND 532.9 million; the
Corporation must return the retained amaunt for warranty obligations, iotaling USD 20.05 miflion
gnd YD 7053 million; the costs mcurmed due o project defays amouning 1o USD 11.85 million;
other related claims amounting to USD 6523 million, and the estimated late payment penalty
amounting fo USD 17 81 million

On 31 May 2024, the Corporation submitted a Statement of Defense against OL EAC Co., Lid's
Statermant of Chaim to VIAG, with the following key arguments: the Corporation does not recognize
DL E&C Co., Lid's legal standing to initiate the claim, disputes the Arbitral Tribunal's junsdiction
over the case, and rejects all claims made by DL E&C Co., Lid,

On the same day, the Carporation also filed a Counterclaim with VIAC, requesting DL E&C Co., Ltd
to compenzate for damages resulting from breaches in the execution of the EPS Confract, with a
tatal counterclaim valug of WND 17 55547 million and USD 35.64 milion,

On 13 June 2024, VIAC ssued Motice No. 1722WIAC, informing that the Arbitral Tribunal had
decided to hiold a case management conference, scheduled for early August 2024,

On 14 Saptember 2024, VIAC ssued Procedural Order Mo, 1 ("PO Moo 1) under Motice Mo
274TARIAC on behalf of the Tribunal

On 12 December 2024, VIAC conducted an online hearing attended by representatives of both the
claimant and the respondent.

Parallel o the arbitration proceedings at VIAC, PetroConz continues (o engage in negofiations and

mediation efforts with Daelim EAC to resolve the disputes amicably and urges the contracior 1o
withdraw the aforementioned claims.

SHORT - TERM PREPAYMENTS FROM CUSTOMERS

31122024 01/012024

WHD WD

Related partios B2 7T8 475 809 f08.560.208. 084

Wung Ang - Quang Trach Petroleum Power Project B2 778475859 82 778 475 BRG
Management Board

PetroVietnam Technical Services Corporation - 25,702,432,185

Cthers 148 463,053,138 105,154,304, 724

University of Petroleum Project Management Board 17,612,539,300 17.612.935.300

YViat Nam Machinery Insiallation Corporation - JSC 55,897 285,148 55 B9T 285,149

Others 75.853,758,689 31,644,080,275

232,242 459,037 213,715,212,808
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
WPl Tawer, 167 Trung Kinh Sirest, Hanai

Gonsolidaled Financial Statements
Far tha ﬁsca_l_'._'_ear ended as at 311272024

i)

b)

21

a)

b)

22

a)

ACCRUED EXPENSES
31122034 01/01/2024
WD WD
Short - term
Interest expense 200,381,246.911 172,754 276, B55
Accrual of construction work 245 186,668,775 256 448 230,095
Other accrued expanses 6,587 069 908 22822 170ATT
553,154,3?5,592 451,822 676,831
Long - tarm
Accrual of construction work 115,497 BOB,5E8 71,310,452, 285
115,487,608 588 71,310.452,285
UNEARNED REVENUES
11212024 Q1012024
WD WMDY
Short - term

6,245,109,721

B.249.109.721 3,181.130.462
50,632 252,045 52,080,093,5587

Rewvenues from proparty leasing 3,181,120, 462

Long - term
Revenues from property leasing (1)

Gains from sala of assets and sublease af financal 188 251,272 295 685 888
leases
50,831,503,317 _ 52 176,689 485

(i} This includes VND 42 996289 426, the balance of land rent received in advance fram
PetroVistnam Steel Pipe Joint Stock Company under Contract 01/HDTD/PVPIPE-PVC dated 01
MNovember 2012 for a lease term of 588 months with a contract value of VND 46,.818,181.518 at
Soal Rap Industrial Park - Tien Giang province. Tha Corporation has allocsted the lsase payments
up to December 2014 to revenue [n the amount of WYND 3,821 892 393, After December 2014, the
project has been painned for handover to the People’s Committee of Tien Giang province, which
has not been completed yet {Detailed in note 15). Therefore, the Corporation has not yet resumead

negotistions with the customer regarding the remaining balance of land lease payment.

OTHER PAYABLES

Short - term

Surplus of assets awaiting resolulion

Trade unicn fea

Sockal insurance

Hezallh insurance

Unempioyment insurance

Short-term deposils, collateral recenved
Dividends or profils payable

Interest expensas

Provision for guaranies cbligations (i)
CroeanBank (i)

Vietnam Ol and Gas Group (li)
PetroVietnam Gas Joint Stock Corporation (iv)
Payable for condominium malnenance fes
Aid Funds

Others

45

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VND VND
17,130,137 17,130,137
8,580,345,771 10,545 587,233
7,137,502.411 9,745.256,578
732 541,283 1,550,849 048
485 828 275 B40.643 508
4,128 850,588 2,736,317,508
40,394 150,917 41.548,662,078
1,248 252 165 3,927 276,443
137,042 775,482 137.542,779,492
172,784,334,551 162 508,140,733
54,008,484,510 54,008,484 510
£8,212 500,000 56,242, 500,000
10,249,210,378 10,727,767.930
3876, 564,754 3,914 284, 784
B4 550,547 037 01,242 670,601
582456022209  587.654.331,570



PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
VP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Streel, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

b)

cl

SN2 024 014012024
WND VND

Long - term
Long-term deposits, collateral received 2,873,199 668 1,599,775,187
Others 50,000,000 50,000,000

Unpaid overdus payables

2923199888 ___ 1548775167

= Payabis 1o the insurance agency 12,378,318,651 10,0026,6749,264
- Dividends or profits payabla 42 451,440,707 dd 335 430 209
- Payables for assisience funds 1,334,81B,785 1.334,818,785
56,164,579, 143 55,695,928 2TB

In which:; Other payables from related pariies
= Vietnam Oil and Gas Group 54 096 464 510 54,098,454 510
-  PeiroVietnam Gas Joint Stock Corporation 56,212 500,000 56,212.600,000
= Vietnam Petrojeumn Instituts 2 6598 186,687 -
Camau Gas Power Fertilizer Project Management B.607 685,626 8,697 BBE 626

Board

Mien Trung Petroteum Construction JSC BBT 075778 GET BT5 TTE
= Hanaol Petroleum Construction JSC 14,715,555 14,716,555
122,389,529,154 119,691,342 467

(i} As i 31 December 2024, the provision for guaranize chigations was as prasanied in Note 39,

(i) Interest payable o Modem Bank of Vietnam - MBY (okd name was Ocean Commercial Bank
Limited (OceanBank) includes interest expense of the Corporation and interest expense thal the
Corporation will collect from companias that the Corporation has paid or lent under capital suppart
contracts [detafled in Note 07) to pay OceanBank. According to Resolution Mo, 7548/NQ-DKVN
dated 20 October, 2014 of the Members’ Council of Vietnam Oil and Gas Group and according to
Official Letter Na. 7T887/2014/:CV-0OceanBank dated 9 December 2014 of CceanBank, the time of
payment The payment of these amounts has bean axtended to 31 December 2017 and the loan
interest rate has bean reduced to 1%vear from 01 January 2018 as presanted in Note 24 From 01
January 2018, the loan was spplied an overdue interest rate aqual to 150% of the current interest
rate. As al the date of these Consolidated Financial Siatemants, the Corporation s looking far
solutions to pay the overdue loan interest peyable.

(iif) The payable to Vietnam Oil and Gas Group is the amount thal Vietnam Oil and Gas Group
supparted the Corpaoration 1o pay for contractors of the Soal Rap - Tien Giang Petroleum Service
Industrial Zone Project.

(iv) The payable to PetroVietnam Gas Joint Stock Corporation is retated to the transfer of investar
to PetraVietnam Urban Development Joint Stock Company {a subsidiary of the Corparation) in the
Bac Lieu Tower project, PetroVietnam Urban Development Joint Stock Company is obfigated to
pay this amournt to PetreVietnam Gas Joint Stock Corporation according to the contract signed on
12 August 2010,

LONG-TERM PROVISIONS FOR PAYABLES

31/12/2024 01/01/2024
VD WNO
Provision for construction warranky 10,778 488,744 20,487 BO3.160

1“'.??3'4“& _.—mlﬂM
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PatroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

VP Tewwer, 167 Trung Kinh Streat, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

b}

c)

d)

a)

b)

Details of Contributed capital
M 22024 Rate 0112024 Rats
WHD YHD
Vietnam Cil and Gas Group 2178733 330,000 5447% 2178733330000 54.47%
Others 1,621,266,670,000 4553% 1,821 266670,000 4553%
Total 4,000,000,000,000 100% 4!mEgm,nnnim 100%
Capital transactions with owners and distribution of dividends and profits
Year Hi24 Yaar 2023
VMO YND
Owner's contributed capital
= Al the beginning of the year 4,000,000,000,000  4,000,000,000,000
- Al the end of the year 4,000,000 000,000  4,000.000.000,000
Share
31122024 D1/01/2024
YND YND
Quantity of Authorized issuing shares 400,000,000 400,000,000
Quantity of issued shares 400,000,000 400,000,000
= Commaon shares 400 000, 000 400000, 000
Quantity of shares repurchasad 2,87 2.8M
Cammon stocks 287 2,971
Quantity of cutstanding shares in circulation 399,987 029 399,997,029
- Coammon slacks 398 807,029 398,997,029
Par value per share: 10,000 VHND
Company’s reserves
3122024 01/01/2024
WD WYND
Development and investmeant funds 150,858 427 B14 160,850 427 814
Cithar reserves 233,648 426 233,648 426

Forelgn currenciea

UsD

Doubtful debis written-off

Doubtful debls witlen-off

151!ﬂﬂ-ﬁlﬂ IEE 1 Ehm%mﬁﬁ

OFF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION ITEMS AND OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

31/12/2024 0140172024
7,365,086,17 8,454 808 87
3111202024 01/01/2024
VND VND

11,112, 006.001 11.112,006,001

51
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PatroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation

_"I.I’_F"1 Tower, 187 Trung Kinh Sireel Hanal

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

27

29

TOTAL REVENUE FROM SALES OF GOODS AND RENDERING OF SERVICES

Revenue from rendering of sarvices
Revenue from construction contracts
Revenus fram real estate business
Oihars

Revanua deduchons

Met revenue from sales of goods and rendering of

services

In which: Revenue from related parties
{Detailed in Note 42)

CO3T OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of services rendearsd

Cost of construction contracts

Cost of goods =old

Prawision for devaluation of inventares
Othars

In which: Purchase from related parties
Total purchase valus:
(Detailed in Mote 42)

FINANCIAL INCOME

Interest incoma
Gain on exchange differenca in the year

GGain on exchange difference at the year - and

Interast from defarred payment sabe or payment discount

52

Year 2024 Year 2023

YHD WD

73,130, 490,403 187,503,077, 524
1,081,700, 320 483 067 986,570,566
12,443 080 233 .
85,723, 157.825 34, 231,263,525

1,213,006,106,954 _ 1.183,720.911,616

1,213,006,106,954

1,188,720,811,616

e
840,080,581 557 856,441,598 446
Year 2024 Yaar 2023
VRO VHD
62,953 286 487 184 280 1584 958
1,046 095523858 1,078 600437753
7.540 768,825 -
(25,386,397, 265) (17.249,233.471)
70,124, 234 430 38 815 925 422

1,161.337.4156194 1,284,156, 315.702

1,854 288,043 2172, 748,009
Year 2024 Year 2023
WND WND
12,228,895,798 23 BB0,502 035
25 08689 748 185 13,881,770 251
4,275,831,351 B50,954 b5
396, 750 0a0 2983017 832

42!511 é“g! 41,635,334,682




PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
VP! Tawer, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements

30 FINANCIAL EXPENSES

N

a2

Interest sxpansss

Payment discount or interests from deferred payment
purchase

Loss on exchange difference in the year

Loss on exchange difference ar the year - end
Provision for diminution in value of trading securities
and impairment koss from investment

Dther financial expenses

In which: Fimancial expenses from relaied parties
{Detailed in Note 42)

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE

Raw materials

Labour expenses

Tools, supplies office expenses
Deprecigtion expenses

Tax, Charge, Fae

Reverzal of provision expenses
Expenses of outsourcing services
Other expenses in cash

In which; Purchased from related parties
{Detailed in Mate 42)

OTHER INCOME

zain from liquidation, disposal of fixed assats
Collected fines

Gains from compensation

Income from unpayable commission
Reversal of construction warranty provision
Oher income

83

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

Year 2024 Year 2023
VHD VND
36,196,553,108 41,107,144 907
7,638,363 :

32 431,360,267 22,331,501, 488
108,143 505 1,244 123,664
(10,087 868 299) 10,277.811
5,123,263246 6,307,100,011

ﬁili Egl'! E?gﬂn Ti!ﬂ'ﬂﬂ'!‘llﬁéﬂ'l

26 B7E BBE, 751 26,035 872.213
Year 2024 Year 2023
WD WD
TH3.818,933 T8 127 427
T4, 755,631,570 81,261,380 797
B45,784 360 B5G 022 545
3,708 692 400 5,966,898, 583
T.619,285 748 B,B63,980,032
{55, 143,154 547} {4,280, 302 6O
18,662,691,770 12,980,247, 854
17,877,184 312 21,887 353,868

?&12‘9!5&5!11& 1'¢‘EI111 IE1EIEE

117,600,000 121,800,000
Yuar 2024 Year 2023
VRO VND

4388 581,387 1,316,451,174
1,325,025 483 1,720, 540,072
444 318,134 314,006 BEY
44,715,422, 210 .
8,720,624 8500 2,616 500,000
3,304 241 726 1,388, 702,57

£2,899.113.840 7,337,209 444



PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation
WP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanoi

Consolidated Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

33 OTHER EXPENSES

35

a)

Fines
Penalties
Dthers

CURRENT CORPORATE INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Current corporate income fax expensa in Corporation

Current corporate income fax expense in subsidiaries

- Petroleum Mechanical Execufing And Assembly
Jaint Stock Company

- Peirofeum Industnal and Chll Construction Joint
Stock Comparny

Total current corporate income tax expense (tax
rate 20%)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income tax assels

Corporate mcome fax rate used o determine deferred
income tax assels

Defarred income tax assats meisted o deductinle
ternporany differenices

Deferred corporate income tax expense

Deferred CIT expense relating to taxable temparary
difference

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year 2024 Yaar 2023
WND WHD

2 533 444 158 183,972 256
7,108,413,730 3,925 687 052
2,101 664,083 19,187.836.611

1743521977 __ 23277496839

Year 2024 Year 2023
YD WHD
2077.618,123 =
T27 6TR 123 -
1. 350, G060, 000 =
2077 618,123 s
| ——
I 22024 O1a12024
WD WD
20% 0%
18.801,350,080 19,230,752 273
13!501!35[I£B-ﬂ 19,230,752 273
Year 2024 Year 2023
WHND YNED
116,962,081 (1,895,066 065)

116962081 __[1885065,065]

Basic earnings par share distribuled to commaon shareholders of the Corporation are calculated as

follows

Met profit after tax

Profit distributed fo common shares

Average number of outstanding common sharas in
circislation im the year

Basic earnings per share

Year 2024 Year 2023
VMDD YWD
7360885185 (158,622 569,205)
7,368 BES 185 (158622 569 205)
399,887,020 398 997 029
18 (399)




PetroVietnam Construction Jaint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VP Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Stresl Hanol

For the fiscal year ended as &t 31/12/2024

37

b}

The Corporation has not planned 1o allocate the Bonus and Welfare Fund or the Managemeant
Bonus Fund from the after-tax profit at the time of preparing the consaolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2024, the Corporation does not heve shares with dilutive potential for earmings
per sharg

BUSINESS AND PRODUCTIONS COST BY ITEMS

Year 2024 Year 2023

WHD YHD

Raw matenals 167,265,774 428 210,608,132 754
Labour expenses 238.665,019,853 276,686 362 454
Tocks, supplies office expanses 1,117 633,493 2,864 053,572
Depreciation expensas 38,785,216,032 43 987 463,802
Tax, fes and charge B.402 256,023 4,717, 044 623
Reversal of provision expenses (55,404 878.547) (5,774,234 001}
Expenses of outsourcing senvices G26,918.260,057 B42 341 595615
Cither expenses in cash 31,340.526,669 42 578 197 418
~1.058,135.208.049 _1418,010,517.284

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR THE ITEMS OF THE COMNSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

Proceads from borrowings during the year

Year 2024 Year 2023

YHD YWHD

Proceeds from ordinary contracts 100,137,.532,071 146,548 402 B85
Actual epayments on principal during the year

Year 2024 Year 2023

WhD WYHND

Repayment on prncipal from ordingry contracts 148,788,833,7.36 230,774, 673,516
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VP Tower, 1687 Trung Kinh Streat, Hanai

For the fiscal year anded as at 311272024

&}

On 18 August 2016, PVC-SG sent Official Letter No, 58/XLDKSG io the Carporation to repont some
confents related o the collateral for the entrusted Ioan and the situation of working with
Oceanbank. Accordingly, an 10 August 2018, Oceanbank - Salgon Branch sent to PYC-5G Official
Letter No. 784/2016/CV-CNSG replying to the debi setflement plan of PVG-56. In this Official
Lettar, Oceanbank - Saigon Branch approved for PVC-5G 1o carry out 8 business investmeant plan
for the Urban Developmeant Project of Areas 2 and 3, Ward 5, Vi Thanh City, Hau Giang Province
{Vi Thanh Praject) as well as to partially disburse collateral far PVC-SG to sell goodsiassats o
create a source of repayment for Oceanbank and PVC-S5G to pay all outstanding principal
(approximately VWD 148 billon),

As al 31 December 2023, PVC-SG has paid back WND 131 billion oot of VND 148 billion of
principad, At the same time, PVC-5G performed quite well the debt repayment plan proposed by
Oceanbank - Saigon Branch. The Board of Management assesses that the payabis ocbligations of
the Parent Company - the Cosparation for the guaraniee will not Incur because PVC SG s able to
make payment to Oceanbank (now renamed as Modern Bank of Vietnam — MBV]

Fayment guarantee

On 28 December 2010, the Holding Company signed Guarantee Agresment No,
0112201 HDBL TT-FVCTE with Thai Binh Petraleum Tourism Company Limited {currentfy known
as Thai Binh Pefroleum Trading and Investment Joint Stock Company (PVC Thal Binh - a
subsidiary of the Gorparation)) and Issued a letter of guarantee for the payrmant by this company
with the guaranteed value of approximately VND 111.8 billion Aceordingly, the Holding Company
guaranieed that PVC Thai Binh would fulfil all of s obligations to PetroVietnam Exploration
Production Cerporation (PVEP) in a timely manner in sccordance with the agreemant dated 28
Decamber 2010 on the fransfer of Thai Binh Petroleum Hotel construction profact between PAVEP
and PWC Thai Binh, The letler of guarantee takes effect fram the signing date to the ime PVC Thai
Binh fufils all of its obligations to PVEP in accordance with the above transfer agreement

In 2016, the Holding Company received a document from PVEP requestling the Holding Company
to fulfil its guarantee obligation. The Board of Management of the Corporation assesses that such
obligation will nof be incurred since PYC Thai Binh is able to fulfil its payment obligation to PVEP

Conclusion of the Government Inspectorate

The Corporation Is the confractor of Northem ethanc! biofuel factory construction project and Dinh
Wu polyester manufactunng plant construction project,

On 24 November 2018, the Governance Inspectorate msued Announcement Na. 3129TB-TTCP
aboul the conclusion of the inspection of the bicfusl projects funded by Vietnam Ol and Gas Group
and its subsidiaries. Accordingly, the Govemment Inspectorats proposad that the Corporation
should be responsible for the ecanomic loss to the project owner as a result of the breach of EPC
Contract an the construction of Northemn sthanal biofusl factory,

On 24 November 2016, the Government Inspectorate issued the Announcement No. 3130/TB-
TTCP about the conclusion of the Inspection of the construction of Dinh Vu polyester
manufacturing plant. According to the Governmeant Inspectarate:

(Il The accepiance value of the work performed by the Corporation should be reduced by
approximately VND 468 billion due to the Corporation's violation of the Ordinance on Foreign
exchange when signing contract:

() The acceptance value of the work performed by the Corporation under the EPC contract should
be reduced by approximately WND &1 billion and USD 23 thousand due to duplication of the same
acceplance value and the acceptance of some work volume mcurmed not in accordancs with
regulations.

The Corporation’s Board of Management assessed that the conclusions of the Govermment
Inspecicrate as mentioned above are applicable to the owners of the projects to whom the
Corporation is a related party under relevant economic contracts. As at the reporting date, the
Corporation was still working with the progects’ owners and the Government Inspectorate on the
above cenclusions of the Government Inspectorate.
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PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation Consolidated Financial Statements

VPl Tower, 167 Trung Kinh Street, Hanal

For the fiscal year ended as at 31/12/2024

d)

40

Im 2022, the Corporation recelved the conclusion of the Government Inspectar Na. 200Q/KL-TTCP
dated 23 November 2022 on the observance of policies and laws in production and business
activities of the Corporation during the period 2008-2013. The Corporation has been coordinating
with relevant parties to implement the recommendations of the Govemment Inspector in
accordance with the above documant,

Other contingent liabilitles

At the reporting date of these Consolidated Financial Statements, the Corporation and s
subsidiaries had cerain ifigation cases relsted to their receivables, payables, borrowings and
contingent fabilities relating to valued added tax and penalties for late payment of tax on revenue
generatad but not yel billed. The outcomes of these liigation cases could not be determined.

OTHER INFORMATION
The value of issuance has not yet been estimated at the Corporation's constructed works

Due to the influence of Auctuations in the economy, the Corporation's operations contain risks of
fluctuations in market value of materials used for construction, Major changes in the price of
construction materiale can greatly affect the benefils and economic obligations of tha Corporation.
Hewever, the Board of Management of the Corporation said that the changes of the market as well
as ihe influence of the Government's macre management policies are very difficult i predict
Therefore, the Board of Managament of the Cotporation cannct quantify the impact of this issue on
the Corparation’s ongoing construction projects. The final resull will only be determined when the
consiruction is completed, and the acceptance is handed over fo the nvestors

Thal Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project

The Carporation signed an EPC contract to build Thal Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant with the Thai
Binh 2 Petroleum Power Project Management Board (under the Vietnam Ol and Gas Group) with a
value of about USD 818 million and VHND 5,874 billion. At the date of these consolidated financial
stalements, the total value of the provisional contracts signed by the Corporation with
subconiractors for the Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant project has exceeded the value of the EPC
contract signed with Thal Binh Petraleurn Power Project Management Board. According to Official
Letter No. 737/TTg-KTN dated 23 May 2014 of the Prima Minister. Thai Binh 2 thermal power plant
5 added to the kst of urgent power projects for the perad 20132020

The project applies specific mechanisms and polcies ssued in Decisfon No 2414/0D-TTg dated
11 December 2013 of the Prime Ministar.

Aamrdirpg 1o the decision of the Board of Management of Petro Vietnam Consfruction Jaint Stock
Comporation on temporarily approving the implementation plan of the EPC Cantract of Thal Binh 2
Thermal Power Plant Project, the sxpecied revenue for the project implementation s USD B26.6

11,402.1 billlon; the expected gross Ioes ratio of the whole project is 0.67%. Up to the date of this
Consolidated financial statement the Carporation and the Power Project Management Board of
Thai Binh 2 Petraleum are negotiating, agreeing and signing the appendices to adjust the valus of
the EPC contract Al the same tima, the Corporation has besn Warkeng with subcontractors to ra-
sign the appendix to adjust the contract valus with subcontractors, The Board of Management of
the Corporation considers this to be the best estimate at the time of prepargtion of these
consalidated financial statemants and this estimate s always reviewsd and updated to reffect the
true movaments of realized profitioss of Thai Binh 2 Thermal Power Plant Project. Accordingly, the
Corporation has recognized the revenyue and cost of this project at the expecied gross loss rafio.

Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant

On 28 September 2009, the Corporation signed a contract to build Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power
Plant with Vist Nam Machinary Installation Corporation  (LILAMA) under Contract Mo
2B090Q/LILAMA-PVC with a total value of package is about VWND 1,322 hilion According o
Resolution No. B85MNO-DKVN dated 27 January 2014, the Vietnam Ol and Gas Group (PVN) has
approved the unforeseeable costs of the entire Vung Ang 1 Thermal Power Plant project {include
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internal road and construction) ts about WND 1090 bilion. The estimated wvalue afer
vedification/appraisal for construction items performed by the Corporation increased by about WND
280 biltien (excluding the deductible value-added fax valus) compared to the value of the package
conslruction contract signed by the Corporation. The Corporation has requested PVN to consider
adjusting the unexpected ansing value of this project At the date of these Consolidated Financial
Statements, PVN and the competent State agencies have not yat made a decision on the
Corporation's decision, the Board of Management of the Corporation belleves that the valus arising
outside the contract will be signad additionally.

Information on the Corporation’s restructuring

According 1o Resclution Moo 332/NO-XLDK-DHDCD dated 11 Octobar 2022 of tha General
Mesting of Sharehoiders of PetroVietnam Construction Joint Stock Corporation on approving the
restructuring of the Corperation for the period of 2021-2025:

- The Carporation confinues to hold at least 51% of charer capital in the penod 2021-2025,
including: Petroleum Pipeline and Tank Construction Joint Stock Company (PVC-PT) and
Petroleum Equipment Assembly & Metal Structure . JSC {PVC-MS)

- TE-E Corparation will divest all investment capital in the remaining subsidiaries in the penod of
2029-2025,

- Companies: Ha Noi Pefroleum Construction JSC (PVC-HN), Pefroleum Mechanical Exscuting
and Assembly Joint Stock Company (PVC-MEA), Migntrung Petrolaumn Construction JSC (FVC-
MT) and PetroVietnam Urban Development JSC (PVC-Mekong) will handle dissalution and
bankruptcy in case the Corporation cannot divest its capital

- The Corporation will divest all other leng-term financial investments and trading securilies in the
pericd 2021-2025.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no significant events occurring after the reporting period, which would fequire
adjustments or disclosures o be made in the Consolidated financial statemants
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42 TRANSACTION AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
List and refation between related parties and the Company are as follows;

Related parties Relation
Vietnam Oil and Gas Group [PVYN) Parent comparny :
Vung Ang - Quang Trach Patroleum Power Project PVN's dependant entity

Managemant Board

Thai Binh 2 Petroleum Power Prosect Management
Board

Nghi Scn Refinery and Petrochemical Complex Project
Mangement Board

Song Hau 1 Petroleum Power Poject Management
Board

Vigtnam Petroleum Institula

PetroVietnam Technical Services Corporation
PetroVietnam Technical Services Corparation (PTSC)
PetroVietnam Gas Joint Stock Corporation

Petro Vietnam Engineering Consultantey JSC
Petravietnam Stee! Plpa JSC

Petrovietnam Censtruction Land Corporation
Southern Shipbailding Industry Invesiment
Development Company Limited

Petraleum Internal and Extermnal Equipment JSC
Vietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial Bank
PetreVietnam Exploration Production Corpaoration
Petrovietnam Low Pressure Gas Distribution JEC
Petroleum Mechanical Executing And Assembly JSC
Hanod Petrofaum Construction JSC

Saigon Petroleum Construction and Invesment JSC
Duyen Hai Patro Vietnam Investmeant and Censtruction
JSC

Thanh Hoa Petro Vistnam Investment and
Construction JSC

Mizn Trung Petroleum Construction J50C

Lam Kinh Hotel JSC

Petro Vietnam Mghe An Construction JSC

Petraleumn Interior Decoration JSC

Heerim-PVC international Design JSC

Petroleum Link Communication and Trading JSC
Petro Kinh Bac Investing and Construction 435
Members of the Baard of Dvireclors, Baard of
Management, Supervisory Baard, and othar key
management persannel of the Corporation

PWN's depandent entity
FVN's dependant anfity
FVN's dependent entity

PVN's dependant entity
Same cwnar
Same owner
Same owner
Same owner
Same awner
Same owner
Same ownes

Same ownar
Same swner
Same owner
Sama awner
Associate
Aszociate
Agsoclale

Associate
ASscoigle

Associale

Associate

Associate

Associate

Associate

AESHCatn

The Corporation is the major shareholder
Key management persannel of the
Corporation

in addition 1o the relsted party infarmation presantad in the riotes above, the Company also had the

fallowing transactions with related partas auring the yvear

Curing the year, the Company has the ransactions with related parties &5 follows:

Revenue from saje of goods

Thal Binh 2 Petrolaum Power Project Management Boar

Vietnam Petroleum Institute
FetroVietnam Technical Services Comparation (PTSC)
Vietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial Barnk

64d

Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND
840,980,581 557 856,441,598 446
473,184 613 532 735,572,194, 711
- B.838,321 437

367,815 968,025 110.511,602 208
1.419,480,000
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Year 2024 Year 2023

VND VND

Purchase of goods and services 2B, 548 554,784 29.230,420,222

Thanh Hoa Petra Vietnam Investment and 1,854 288 043 2172 748,008
Consifuction JSC

Petroleum Link Communication and Trading JSC = 4,200,000

Vietnam Public Joint Stock Commercial Bank 26, 876,688,751 26,835 872213

Vietnam Petrodewrm Institutes 117,600,000 117,600,000

Remuneration, salaries and other income of members of the Board of Diectors. Board of

Management, Board of Supenvision and ather Managers are a3 follows:

Board of Directors

Mr. Nghiem Quang Huy

Mr. Pham Van Khanh
Mr. Tran Hai Bang
Mr. Moguyen Hoai Mam
Mr. Chu Thanh Hai

Board of Management

Mr. Tran Quac Hoan
Mr. Phan Tu Giang

Mr. Nguyen Van Dong
Mr. Nguyen Trung Tri

Mr. Vu Manh Quang

Mr. Pham Trung Kien

Mr, Hoang Quyet Thang

Mr. Bui Sen Truong

Board of Supervision
Mr. Hua Xuan Nam
Mr. Phung Van Sy

Mr. Nguyen Ngoc Cuong

Position Year 2024 Year 2023
VND VND

2,207,775.913 2,258,749,896
Chairman 545 847 303 543 276,735 o
Independant Membaer 244 285 000 249,555,000,
Member 475,906,106 504,420,370, ..\
Member 456,008,070 495,781,680 | |=|
Mamber 471,920 434 4&5.?36.13Dc /

2,014,722,793 2,155452,151 3.7
General Director appointed 445 B14 557 [
on 00172024
Geanaral Director resigned 109,537 217 580,148,335
an 01/01/2024
Deputy General Director 507,748,578 497 083,200
Depuly General Director - 228,677,204
resigned on 01/07/2023
Deputy General Dirsclor 85,347,000
resigned on 30j05/2024
Deputy General Director 454 BO0 490 76,673,500
appainted on 011 0/2023
Deputy General Director - 102 897,000
rasigned on 01/11/2023
Deputy General Direcior 482 731,554 484 725 812

506,218,999 502,385,625

Head of the Board 441 415 955 432 185 625
Memiber 32,400,000 35,100,000
Flember 32,400 000 35,100,000

In addition to the above related partie transactions, other related parties did not have any

transactions during the
with the Corparation

period and have no balance at

the end of the accounting period fiscal yar
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43 COMPARATIVE FIGURES
. g
The comparative figues are figures In the Consolidated latements for the fiscal year
ended as at 31 December 2023, which was audited by ﬁt:s;ﬂau | Figm Company Limited.
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Nguyen Thi Thu Anh Vu Minh Cong . Fran Qute Hoan
Preparer Chief Accountant hﬁ?’ﬁml Director

Hanoi, 31 March 2025
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